
 
 
 
 

 
Board of Public Education Meeting 

Montana School for the Deaf and Blind 
3911 Central AVE 

Great Falls, MT 59401 
 
 
 
 

May 9-10, 2019 
 
 
 
 
 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
 
 
 
 

  



AGENDA 
 
 

 
 
  



May 9-10, 2019 Board of Public Education  Page 1 
 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
MEETING AGENDA 

 
May 9-10, 2019 

Montana School for the Deaf and Blind 
3911 Central Ave 

Great Falls, MT 59401 
 

 
Thursday May 9, 2019 
8:30 AM 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
B. Roll Call 
C. Statement of Public Participation 
D. Welcome Visitors 

    
PUBLIC COMMENT 

 
CONSENT AGENDA 

(Items may be pulled from Consent Agenda upon request) 
 

A. March 14-15, 2019 Meeting Minutes 
B. Financials 

    
ADOPT AGENDA 
 
INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

 REPORTS – Dr. Darlene Schottle (Items 1-6) 
    

Item 1   CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT – 10 minutes 
   Dr. Darlene Schottle 
 

• Update of MSDB Exiting Intensive Assistance 
      
Item 2   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT (ACTION) – 15 minutes 
   Pete Donovan 
 

• CSPAC Appointment: 
o Rob Watson 

 
Item 3   STATE SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT – 15 minutes 
   State Superintendent Elsie Arntzen 
 
Item 4   COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER EDUCATION’S REPORT – 15 minutes 
   Angela McLean 
 
 
 



May 9-10, 2019 Board of Public Education  Page 2 
 

Item 5   GOVERNOR’S OFFICE REPORT – 15 minutes 
   Siri Smillie 

• Future Ready Cabinet Resolution 
 
Item 6   STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT – 15 minutes 
   Paris Becker 
 

 MSDB LIAISON - Mary Jo Bremner (Item 7) 
 
Item 7   MSDB REPORT (ACTION) – 30 minutes 
   Donna Sorensen 

• Approve Golden Triangle Cooperative Agreement 
• Approve MSDB School Calendar 
• Approve Out of State Travel Requests 
• Approve Human Resource Hires 

 
 Presentation of new Prodigy Machines by MSDB Students and Staff 
 

 
 MACIE LIAISON – Mary Jo Bremner (Item 8) 

 
Item 8   MACIE REPORT (INFORMATION ONLY) – 15 minutes 
  MACIE Chair 
 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Dr. Darlene Schottle (Items 9-10) 
 
Item 9  FEDERAL REPORT (INFORMATION ONLY) – 15 minutes 
  Susie Hedalen 
 
Item 10  APPROVE K-12 SCHOOLS PAYMENT SCHEDULE (ACTION) – 15 minutes 
  Kara Flath 
 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – Tammy Lacey (Items 11-12) 
 
Item 11  LICENSURE COMMITTEE REPORT (INFORMATION ONLY) – 15 minutes 
  Tammy Lacey 
 
Item 12 DISCONTINUATION OF SELECTED ENDORSEMENT PROGRAMS IN THE 

TEACHER EDUCATION PROGRAM AT THE UNIVERSITY OF PROVIDENCE 
(INFORMATION ONLY) -15 minutes 

  Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson 
  Dr. Matt Redinger, Provost at the University of Providence 
 

 ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE – Jesse Barnhart (Items 13-20) 
 
Item 13 UPDATE OF LOCKWOOD HIGH SCHOOL INTENT TO ACCREDIT PROCESS 

(INFORMATION ONLY) – 10 minutes 
  Patty Muir 
  Tobin Novasio, Superintendent, Lockwood K-12 Schools 
 
 
 
 



May 9-10, 2019 Board of Public Education  Page 3 
 

************************************TIME CERTAIN @1:30 PM************************************************* 
  
Item 14 RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE 2018-2019 CORRECTIVE PLANS AND 

TIMELINES OF ACCREDITED SCHOOLS IN STEP 2 OF THE INTENSIVE 
ASSISTANCE PROCESS (ACTION) – 60 minutes 

  Patty Muir 
 

• Medicine Lake K-12 Schools 
• Vaughn Elementary School 
• Box Elder Schools 
• Huntley Project Schools 
• Plevna K-12 Schools 

   
Item 15 RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE 2018-2019 CORRECTIVE PLANS AND 

TIMELINES OF ACCREDITED SCHOOLS IN ONGOING ASSISTANCE OF 
THE INTENSIVE ASSISTANCE PROCESS (ACTION) – 15 minutes 

  Patty Muir 
 
Item 16 RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE ADDENDUM(S) TO THE 2018-2019 

ANNUAL ACCREDITATION STATUS REPORT OF ALL SCHOOLS (ACTION) 
– 15 minutes 

  Patty Muir 
 
Item 17 RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE 2018-2019 INITIAL AND RENEWAL 

VARIANCE TO STANDARDS APPLICATIONS (ACTION) – 15 minutes 
  Patty Muir 
 
Item 18 RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR 

HAZARD AND EMERGENCY PLANS (ACTION) – 15 minutes 
  Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson 
 
Item 19 RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT 

REPORT AND THE NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING COMMITTEE’S FINAL 
REPORT PERTAINING TO ARM 10.55.606 ACCREDITATION PROCESS 
(ACTION) – 15 minutes 

  Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson 
 
************************************************************************************************************************ 
Friday May 10, 2019 
8:00 AM 
 

 ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE – Anne Keith (Items 20-21) 
 
Item 20   ASSESSMENT REPORT (INFORMATION ONLY) -15 minutes 
   Ashley McGrath 
 
Item 21 RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR 

ASSESMENT, ARM TITLE 10, CHAPTER 56 (ACTION) – 15 minutes 
 Ashley McGrath 
 
 
 
 



May 9-10, 2019 Board of Public Education  Page 4 
 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Dr. Darlene Schottle (Items 22-23) 
 
Item 22 OPI STFAFFING REPORT (INFORMATION ONLY) – 15 minutes 

Jule Walker 
 
Item 23 UPDATE ON EDUCATOR SHORTAGE REPORT (INFORMATION ONLY) 15 

minutes 
 Jule Walker 
 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – Tammy Lacey (Items 24-30) 
 
Item 24 RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR 

REVISIONS TO ARM 10.57, EDUCATOR LICENSURE (ACTION) – 15 minutes 
 Kris Thatcher 
 
Item 25 REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL YEAR OF INTERNSHIP FOR DOUGLAS 

GLENNY (ACTION) – 15 minutes 
 Kris Thatcher 
 
Item 26 RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A NEW CURRICULAR PROGRAM IN 

COMPUTER SCIENCE – COLLEGE OF EDUCATION AND HEALTH AND 
HUMAN DEVELOPMENT AT MSU – BOZEMAN (ACTION) – 15 minutes 

  Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson 
  Dr. Nick Lux, Associate Professor of Education, MSU 
 
Item 27 CARROLL COLLEGE GOOD CAUSE EXTENSION PROPOSAL 

(INFORMATION ONLY) – 15 minutes 
  Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson 
  Dr. Robert Stansberry, Director of Teacher Education, Carroll College 
 
*********************************TIME CERTAIN AT 10:00 AM****************************************************  
    
Item 28 INITIAL INVESTIGATION OF BPE CASE #2019-07, TURCOTTE 

(INFORMATION ONLY) - 10 minutes 
  Rob Stutz, Agency Legal Services 
 
Item 29 APPEAL OF LICENSURE DENIAL, BPE CASE #2019-08, MURPHY (ACTION) 

– 30 minutes 
   Rob Stutz, Agency Legal Services  
 
Item 30 APPEAL OF LICENSURE DENIAL, BPE CASE #2019-06, BEALE (ACTION) - 

30 minutes 
  Rob Stutz, Agency Legal Services 
 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Dr. Darlene Schottle (Item 31) 
 
***********************************EXECUTIVE SESSION -CLOSED********************************************* 
 
Item 31   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR PERFORMANCE EVALUATION 
   Dr. Darlene Schottle 
 
*********************************************************************************************************************** 
 



May 9-10, 2019 Board of Public Education  Page 5 
 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS July 11-12, 2019 
Strategic Planning Meeting 
CSPAC/BPE Joint Meeting 
CSPAC Annual Report 
Approve MSDB/Golden Triangle Co-op  
Annual HiSET Report 
Annual Special Education Report 
Assessment Update 
Federal Update 
Educator Preparation Program Report 
Accreditation Report 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
ADJOURN 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The Montana Board of Public Education is a Renewal Unit Provider.  Attending a Board of Public Education Meeting may qualify you 
to receive renewal units.  One hour of contact time = 1 renewal unit up to 8 renewal units per day.  Please complete the necessary 
information on the sign-in sheet if you are applying for renewal units.    
 
Agenda items are handled in the order listed on the approved agenda.  Items may be rearranged unless listed “time certain”.  Action 
may be taken by the Board on any item listed on the agenda.  Public comment is welcome on all items but time limits on public 
comment may be set at the Chair’s discretion.   
 
The Board of Public Education will make reasonable accommodations for known disabilities that may interfere with an individual’s 
ability to participate in the meeting.  Individuals who require such accommodations should make requests to the Board of Public 
Education as soon as possible prior to the meeting start date.  You may write to: Kris Stockton, PO Box 200601, Helena MT, 59620, 
email at: kmstockton@mt.gov or phone at 444-0302. 
 

 
 

mailto:kmstockton@mt.gov


CALL TO ORDER 
 
 

A. Pledge of Allegiance  
B. Roll Call 
C. Statement of Public Participation 
D. Welcome Visitors 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Items may be pulled from Consent Agenda if 
                          requested 

 
 

A. March 14-15, 2019 Meeting Minutes 
B. Financials 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 

MINUTES 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  



 

March 14-15, 2019 Board of Public Education  Page 1 
 

BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
March 14-15, 2019 

Montana School Board Association Conference Room 
863 Great Northern Blvd, 4th Floor 

Helena, MT 
 

 
Thursday, March 14, 2019 
10:00 AM 

 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Schottle called the meeting to order at 10:00 AM.  The Board said the Pledge of Allegiance and the 
Chair read the Statement of Public Participation and welcomed guests.  Ms. Stockton took roll call. 
 
Board members present: Dr. Darlene Schottle, Chair; Ms. Tammy Lacey, Vice Chair; Ms. Mary Jo 
Bremner; Mr. Scott Stearns; Ms. Madalyn Quinlan; Ms. Anne Keith; Mr. Jesse Barnhart; Ms. Paris Becker, 
Student Rep.  Ex-Officio Members: Ms. Angela McLean, Commissioner of Higher Education’s Office; Ms. 
Siri Smillie, Governor Bullock’s Office; Superintendent of Public Instruction Elsie Arntzen.  Staff members 
present: Mr. Pete Donovan, Executive Director; Ms. Kris Stockton, Administrative Assistant.  Guests 
present: Mr. Rob Stutz, Counsel, Agency Legal Services; Dr. Linda Peterson, OPI; Ms. Patty Muir, OPI; 
Mr. Nathan Miller, OPI; Ashley McGrath, OPI; Kyle Moen, Chief Legal Counsel, OPI; Kristine Thatcher, 
OPI; Chris Emerson, OPI; Colet Bartow, OPI; Ron Whitmoyer, Superintendent East Helena Public 
Schools; Donna Sorensen, Superintendent Montana School for the Deaf and Blind; Susie Hedalen, OPI; 
Michelle Mitchell, OPI;  Ms. Nancy Hall, Governor’s Budget Office; Mr. Ron Whitmoyer, Superintendent, 
East Helena Public Schools; Mr. Randy Hiatt, Billings; Mr. Marco Ferro, MFPE. 
   
PUBLIC COMMENT 
No public comment. 

 
ADOPT AGENDA 
 

Mr. Scott Stearns moved to approve the agenda as presented.  Motion 
seconded by Mr. Jesse Barnhart. 

 
   No discussion.  Motion passed. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA 
 

Ms. Mary Jo Bremner moved to approve the consent agenda as presented.  
Motion seconded by Ms. Tammy Lacey. 

 
   No discussion.  Motion passed. 
 
******************************Items are listed in the order in which they are presented********************* 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

March 14-15, 2019 Board of Public Education  Page 2 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

 REPORTS – Dr. Darlene Schottle (Items 1-6) 
    

Item 1   CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT  
   Dr. Darlene Schottle 
Chair Schottle thanked the Board staff for their work during the legislative session, taking particular note 
of the Governor and Superintendent’s bill regarding Computer Science.  Chair Schottle also noted a 
recent tour of the Missoula schools which are under construction and remodel, noting the hard work 
underway in that community.  Appreciation was extended by the Chair to Ms. Lacey and Ms. Keith for 
their work since the last meeting on the Licensure Committee and Assessment Committee respectively.  
Chair Schottle also noted that Ms. Bremner is active on the MSDB Committee between meetings. 
      
Item 2   EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT  
   Pete Donovan 
Mr. Donovan thanked Chair Schottle for the work she does for the Board.  Mr. Donovan noted the Board 
confirmation hearings for SR 19 for Board members Barhnhart, Stearns, and Quinlan scheduled for 
Friday March 15 at 3:00 PM.  Mr. Donovan updated the Board on the status of the 2018 Legislative Audit, 
and a review of HB 351 and HB 387 pertaining to the Board.  Ms. Lacey suggested creating a new Board 
committee regarding Innovative Learning should these two bills pass and be funded. 

• BPE Legal Update 
Mr. Donovan turned the report over to Mr. Stutz to update the Board on a lawsuit filed that could have 
implications for the Board regarding the Board’s decision on the Oelkers case in January 2019.  Mr. Stutz 
reviewed the issue at hand, answered Board member questions, and clarified that should the case move 
forward, and the Board become involved, the Board would need to retain outside counsel. 
 
Item 3   STATE SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT  
   State Superintendent Elsie Arntzen 
Superintendent Arntzen notified the Board of a letter the OPI received from ACT regarding an information 
breach of 8,000+ Montana students.  The Superintendent continued with her report updating the Board on 
different bills the office is following or has requested, regarding students and education in Montana.  The 
Superintendent answered Board member questions. 
 
Item 4   COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER EDUCATION’S REPORT  
   Angela McLean 
Ms. McLean discussed legislation tracked by OCHE, mainly the Governor’s budget request including a 
request for a tuition freeze, increasing need-based aid, a request to refund the Quality Educator Loan 
Repayment program, and a ‘grow your own’ teacher program to support rural communities.  Ms. McLean 
also discussed a new online course of Indian Education for All in Montana for MUS faculty and staff to 
take as a professional development course. 
  
Item 5   GOVERNOR’S OFFICE REPORT  
   Siri Smillie 
Ms. Siri Smillie updated the Board on the Governor’s budget request for education funding specifically 
Special Education, Preschool, and the Quality Educator Loan Repayment program.  Ms. Smillie then 
updated the Board on the draft recommendation from the Future Ready MT Cabinet to the Governor.  Ms. 
Smillie noted that this report is open for comment and encouraged Board members to review the report 
and contact her with any suggestions.  Once the report is complete the Governor will request approval 
from the Board. 
    
 
 
 



 

March 14-15, 2019 Board of Public Education  Page 3 
 

Item 6   STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT  
   Paris Becker 
Ms. Becker reported on issues in Fairfield and surrounding communities, specifically concerns 
surrounding e-cigarettes, vaping, and educating students on the dangers.  Fairfield is participating in a 
Graduation Matters walk, the ACT for juniors will be held in this spring, and Ms. Becker discussed 
preparation assistance the school is providing to students prior to the test.  Ms. Becker noted that Fairfield 
was chosen by ACT as a site to offer the Pre-ACT.  Ms. Becker noted the upcoming State Student 
Council Conference and some realignment going on with districts to encourage more schools to actively 
participate.  Ms. Becker discussed probable changes to how the State Student Council President is 
selected which would change the process from an appointment process to an election process.  The 
National Student Conference will be held in July in Pittsburgh and a representation of 15 students from 
Montana will attend, including Ms. Becker. 
 

 MSDB LIAISON - Mary Jo Bremner (Item 7) 
 
Item 7   MSDB REPORT (ACTION)  
   Donna Sorensen 
Ms. Sorensen presented the MSDB report to the Board, announcing that 1 new student was accepted 
yesterday.  Ms. Sorensen reviewed the Listening Sessions she holds at the school with faculty and staff, 
an IT training the IT Administrator at the MSDB took and noted that he realized that the training is not 
ADA compliant so not all staff can take the training.  The school is working with State ITSD regarding 
ADA accessibility.  Ms. Sorensen noted a recommendation from a recent AdvancedED audit requiring the 
school to keep their governing Board informed and that she will be discussing it at the next MSDB 
Committee meeting.  Ms. Sorensen reviewed student activities, Academic Bowl Competition, Student Life 
happenings, audit review, budgeting, and upcoming school celebrations. 
 

• Approve Out of State Travel Requests 
Ms.Mary Jo Bremner moved to approve the Out of State Travel request for 
a Student Life Behavioral Counselor to attend the Residential Child and 
Youth Care Professional Training April 29-May 3, 2019 in Cleveland, Ohio.  
Motion seconded by Mr. Scott Stearns. 
 
No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
• Superintendent Leave Report 

Ms. Mary Jo Bremner moved to approve the Superintendent Leave Report 
for Annual Leave Days to be taken March 29, 2019, May 3, 2019, and May 
31, 2019.  Ms. Tammy Lacey seconded the motion. 

 
   No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 

 
• Human Resource hirings 

Ms. Mary Jo Bremner moved to approve the Human Resource Hirings at the 
MSDB for: Louie (Lou) Collins, Cottage Life Counselor, Boys Cottage, and 
Erin Faulkner, Cottage Life Attendant, Girls Cottage.  Ms. Tammy Lacey 
seconded the motion. 

 
   No further discussion.  Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Board members asked questions of Ms. Sorensen regarding the AdvancedEd accreditation process, 
legislative issues, which were answered by Ms. Sorensen. 
 
 



 

March 14-15, 2019 Board of Public Education  Page 4 
 

**********************************************TIME CERTAIN AT 1:00 PM***************************************** 
 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – Tammy Lacey (Items 9-13) 
 
Ms. Lacey noted that Item 11 and 12 will be switched as Item 12 is now a Surrender.  Ms. Lacey asked 
Mr. Stutz to review the process briefly.  
 
Item 9 REPORT OF LICENSURE SURRENDER BPE CASE #2018-11, JOHNSON 

(INFORMATION ONLY)  
   Kyle Moen 
Mr. Moen reviewed the circumstances of the educator surrender for the Board.  Mr. Stutz noted that a 
surrender does not require Board action or offer any public comment.  
 
Item 10 REPORT OF LICENSURE SURRENDER BPE CASE #2019-05, PETT 

(INFORMATION ONLY)  
 Kyle Moen 
Mr. Moen reviewed the circumstances of the educator surrender for the Board.  
 
Item 12 INITIAL PRESENTATION OF REQUEST TO REVOKE EDUCATOR LICENSE, 

BPE CASE #2019-02, MATTINGLY  
 Rob Stutz 
Mr. Moen reviewed the circumstances of the educator surrender for the Board.  Clarification was made 
that this item was initially an action item for disciplinary action as listed on the agenda.  Since the agenda 
was finalized and posted the OPI received the notice of surrender from the educator so no action is 
required of the Board. 
 
Item 11 INITIAL PRESENTATION OF REQUEST TO SUSPEND EDUCATOR 

LICENSE, BPE CASE #2019-01, GUTHRIE (ACTION)  
 Rob Stutz 
Mr. Stutz briefly reviewed the case file for the Board and answered Board questions.  Chair Schottle 
noted that she will recuse herself from voting as she knows the educator professionally and personally.  
Mr. Stutz clarified for the Board that this is the Initial Presentation of this item to determine whether to 
move to a hearing or not. 
 

Mr. Scott Stearns motioned to move Item 12, Initial Presentation of Request 
to Suspend Educator License, BPE Case #2019-01, Guthrie, to a hearing at 
the May BPE meeting.  Motion seconded by Ms. Tammy Lacey. 

 
   No discussion.  Motion passed with Chair Schottle not voting. 
 
Item 13 APPEAL OF LICENSURE DENIAL, BPE CASE #2018-09, HIATT (ACTION)  
   Rob Stutz 
Mr. Stutz opened the hearing.  Mr. Stutz swore in witnesses for OPI, Ms. Kris Thatcher, and educator Mr. 
Randy Hiatt.  Mr. Stutz outlined the order in which presentations will take place, and that Mr. Hiatt has the 
burden of proof but will also have the opportunity to speak after OPI presents their case.  Mr. Hiatt stated 
his case for the Board.  Board members asked questions of Mr. Hiatt. 
 
Mr. Moen waived opening remarks and called Ms. Kristine Thatcher, Educator Licensure Manager, OPI, 
to testify.  Ms. Thatcher reviewed the case for the Board, and how OPI came to deny his application for 
an upgrade from a Class 2 to a Class 1 Montana Educator License. 
 
Mr. Moen made closing arguments.  Mr. Moen noted that the Superintendent is not recommending this as 
an Unusual Case. 



 

March 14-15, 2019 Board of Public Education  Page 5 
 

 
Mr. Hiatt made closing remarks to the Board and thanked the Board for their time. 
 

Ms. Tammy Lacey moved to deny the appeal of the licensure denial of Mr. 
Hiatt.  Motion seconded by Ms. Madalyn Quinlan. 

 
Mr. Stearns noted that he will vote against the motion. 
 
Ms. Lacey noted as Chair of the Licensure Committee that there are specific rules for specific reasons, 
set forth in good faith, and that to grant a license would not be following the Administrative Rules of 
Montana that the Board is required to uphold. 
 
Ms. Bremner noted that OPI has often come forward with a request for Special Circumstance, and 
although she has always voted against those requests, she questions why OPI did not do so in this 
matter. 
 
Chair Lacey noted previous reasons for Special Circumstance in prior cases the Board has heard. 
 
Mr. Stearns also commented regarding Special Circumstance, and that a future discussion may need to 
be held regarding how and when Special Circumstances are used. 
 
Mr. Stutz noted the ARM for Special Circumstance under 10.57.109 in which the rule states that the 
Special Circumstances must come before the Board “upon a recommendation from the Superintendent of 
Public Instruction”. 
 

Roll call vote: Yes: Chair Schottle, Tammy Lacey, Mary Jo Bremner, Anne 
Keith, Madalyn Quinlan.  No: Scott Stearns, Jesse Barnhart. 

 
   Motion passes 5-2. 
 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE - Dr. Darlene Schottle (Item 8) 
Mr. Stearns noted that this will be the last Board meeting for Chief Legal Counsel at OPI Kyle Moen as he 
will be joining a private firm in Billings practicing educational law. 
 
Item 8   FEDERAL REPORT (INFORMATION ONLY)  
   Susie Hedalen 
Ms. Susie Hedalen presented the Federal Report to the Board, speaking first about the preliminary 
allocations presented in the President’s budget.  No Montana Congressional members are on the 
education subcommittee, though both Senators Tester and Daines are on the full committee, and Ms. 
Hedalen and Ms. Walker will be in communication with both Senators regarding education funding for 
Montana.  Ms. Hedalen noted that Title IV funding will hopefully remain the same as Montana uses their 
Title IV funding consistently, specifically mentioning the #letstalk app Ms. Lacey referred to in an earlier 
report and noted that is a specific app to Montana developed in Great Falls and in collaboration with the 
OPI Title IV Administrator.  Ms. Hedalen noted the OPI staff numbers have gone from 188 to 163.  A 
review of the After-School Programs was given and the 21st Century Grants in which schools can apply 
for to run their After-School Programs.  Applications will be open in the coming weeks.  Ms. Hedalen 
updated the Board on the progress of the report card, which should be available by the end of April 2019.  
Only information required by Federal Law will be included on the report card for this year.  Schools will be 
notified 1 week prior to the media being notified of the report card being released so schools have time to 
analyze the data prior to receiving questions about the data for their school. 
 
 
 



 

March 14-15, 2019 Board of Public Education  Page 6 
 

 MACIE LIAISON – Mary Jo Bremner (Item 14)  
 
Item 14   MACIE REPORT (INFORMATION ONLY)  
   Michelle Mitchell 
Ms. Michelle Mitchell discussed the upcoming MACIE retreat where the group will review and act up-on 
the Council’s institutional By-Laws.  Superintendent Arntzen has challenged the Council to become more 
action oriented, and this is part of that action plan.  The retreat will be held the day prior to the Montana 
Indian Education for All Conference.  At the retreat the Council will also be electing a new Chair and Vice 
Chair.  Ms. Mitchell will be the facilitator for the retreat.  The MACIE is also looking at how to increase and 
support students becoming teachers, reviewing wrap around services on the reservations, and will be the 
Advisory Board for the Wrap Around Grant that provides funding for those services.  Ms. Mitchell noted 
the two open positions on the Council, and they are trying to fill those positions.  Discussion was held 
regarding struggles of Native American’s in passing the PRAXIS test and how to support those students.  
Ms. Mitchell fielded Board member questions. 
 
************************************************************************************************************************ 
Friday, March 15, 2019 
 
Chair Schottle called the meeting to order at 8:41 AM.  The Board said the Pledge of Allegiance and Ms. 
Stockton took roll call. 
 

 ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE – Anne Keith (Items 15-16) 
 
Item 15 ASSESSMENT UPDATE AND REVISIONS (INFORMATION)  
 Ashley McGrath 
Ms. Anne Keith, Assessment Committee Chair, opened the item up and noted that new Board member 
Madalyn Quinlan has joined the Assessment Committee and been involved in the Assessment 
discussions ongoing with OPI since her term began February 1st.  Ms. Keith thanked her for her input and 
guidance.  Ms. Ashley McGrath, Assessment Director at OPI presented the Assessment report to the 
Board, reviewing the Peer Review Process through the US Department of Education, how that process 
works, who does the reviewing, etc.  Ms. McGrath also discussed the ACT and how that aligns and does 
not align with ESSA and issues surrounding that test.  Ms. McGrath answered Board member questions. 
 
Item 16 BPE ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ARM 

TITLE 10, CHAPTER 56, ASSESSMENT (ACTION)  
 Anne Keith 
Chair Schottle reviewed the Assessment Committee proposed changes to the OPI proposed revisions to 
the Assessment Rule.  Ms. McGrath thanked the Assessment Committee for allowing the OPI to review 
their proposals prior to the meeting and spoke to those revisions. 
 

Ms. Anne Keith moved to accept the amendments to and timeline for 
Assessment for ARM 10.56.101, and to accept the timeline as proposed on 
page 114.  Motion seconded by Ms. Madalyn Quinlan. 

 
Ms. Quinlan asked for clarification that the motion is in reference to the amendments proposed by the 
Board. 
 
Ms. Keith asked to revise the motion. 
  

Ms. Anne Keith moved to accept the amendments and the timeline for the 
Assessment rule 10.56.101, Student Statewide Assessment as proposed by 
the BPE Assessment Committee.  Motion seconded by Ms. Madalyn 
Quinlan. 



 

March 14-15, 2019 Board of Public Education  Page 7 
 

Ms. Lacey thanked the Assessment Committee for their work on the revisions.  Ms. Bremner noted her 
thanks to the committee for adding clarification to the rule.  Ms. Quinlan commended the OPI for the work 
they have done, and that she was impressed with the Negotiated Rulemaking report. 
 
   No further discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Chair Schottle noted that the process worked the way it was designed to work. 
 
 
 

 ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE – Jesse Barnhart (Items 17-22) 
 
Item 17 RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE 2018-2019 ACCREDITATION STATUS 

OF ALL SCHOOLS (ACTION)  
 Patty Muir, Nathan Miller 
Ms. Patty Muir presented the embargoed copy of the 2018-2019 Annual Accreditation Report to the 
Board noting that both she and Mr. Nathan Miller will co present the report to the Board.  Ms. Muir 
thanked the BPE Accreditation Committee for meeting with OPI earlier this week to discuss the report and 
answer any questions and address any concerns the Board had.  Ms. Muir and Mr. Miller presented the 
report to the Board highlighting changes from last year’s report.  Ms. Muir and Mr. Miller answered Board 
member questions.  Mr. Stearns extended his appreciation for the report being mailed to Board members 
in advance of the meeting for proper preparation.  Ms. Muir recommended the approval of the report. 
 

Mr. Jesse Barnhart moved to approve the 2018-209 Accreditation Status of 
All Schools as recommended by the Superintendent of Public Instruction.  
Motion seconded by Ms. Anne Keith. 

 
   No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item 18 RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE 2018 – 19 REPORT OF SCHOOLS TO 

EXIT INTENSIVE ASSISTANCE; SCHOOLS TO ENTER INTENSIVE 
ASSISTANCE; SCHOOLS TO MOVE TO STEP 2 OF INTENSIVE 
ASSISTANCE; SCHOOLS TO REMAIN IN STEP 2 OF INTENSIVE 
ASSISTANCE. (ACTION)  

 Patty Muir 
Ms. Muir presented the item to the Board and discussed how schools move into and out Step 2 of 
Intensive Assistance.  Ms. Bremner thanked Ms. Muir and Mr. Miller for all the travels they make across 
the state to visit these schools. 
 

Mr. Jesse Barnhart moved to approve the Exit of 10 schools from Intensive 
Assistance as presented.  Motion seconded by Ms. Tammy Lacey. 

 
   No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 

Mr. Jesse Barnhart moved to approve the Superintendent’s 
recommendation to move 20 schools in to Intensive Assistance as 
presented.  Motion seconded by Ms. Anne Keith. 

 
Clarification questions from Mr. Stearns and Ms. Lacey.  Motion passed 
unanimously. 
 
Mr. Jesse Barnhart moved to approve the Superintendent’s 
recommendation for 13 schools to move to Step 2 of the Intensive 



 

March 14-15, 2019 Board of Public Education  Page 8 
 

Assistance process as presented.  Motion seconded by Ms. Mary Jo 
Bremner. 
 
No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Mr. Jesse Barnhart moved to approve the Superintendent’s 
recommendation for seven schools to remain in Step 2 with ongoing 
assistance as presented.  Motion seconded by Ms. Madalyn Quinlan. 
 
No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously.  
 

Item 21 ACCREDITATION EAST HELENA AND LOCKWOOD HIGH SCHOOL 
(INFORMATION ONLY) – 15 minutes 

 Patty Muir; Mr. Ron Whitmoyer, Superintendent, East Helena Schools 
Ms. Muir updated the Board on the status for Lockwood High.  Groundbreaking has taken place and the 
school is expecting approximately 100 students to begin attending Fall 2019.  Job postings are open 
currently, and the Superintendent hopes to present to the BPE at the May meeting in Great Falls. 
 
Superintendent Ron Whitmoyer presented the plan for the East Helena High School to the Board.  Mr. 
Whitmoyer reviewed the process of how the district and community made the decision to create a new 
high school. 
 
Mr. Whitmoyer invited the Board to meet in September at the new Prickly Pear Elementary School in 
September 2019, or at the new East Helena High School in September 2020.  Mr. Whitmoyer also noted 
that groundbreaking for the new High School is Monday, March 18. 
 
Item 19 RECOMMEND ACCEPTANCE OF THE NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING 

COMMITTEE FOR HAZARD AND EMERGENCY PLANS AND ECONOMIC 
IMPACT STATEMENT (ACTION) – 15 minutes 

 Dr. Linda Peterson 
Dr. Peterson presented the item to the Board, reviewing the rulemaking process going forward for the 
Board to adopt the proposed plan.  Dr. Peterson walked through the Final Report and the Economic 
Impact Statement with the Board and answered questions. 
 

Mr. Jesse Barnhart moved to accept the Economic Impact Statement 
Report recommended by the State Superintendent, direct the Office of 
Public Instruction to prepare the Notice of Public Hearing and Timeline for 
Hazard and Emergency Plans pertaining to the proposed rule changes to 
ARM 10.55.701 and related new rule.  Motion seconded by Ms. Madalyn 
Quinlan. 

 
   No discussion.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Item 20 UPDATE ON PROGRESS OF THE NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING PROCESS 

TO AMEND ARM 10.55.606 – (INFORMATION ONLY) – 15 minutes 
 Dr. Linda Peterson 
Dr. Peterson presented the item to the Board and reviewed the proposed revisions the Office of Public 
Instruction is requesting.   
 
Item 22 CONTENT STANDARDS REVISION TIMELINE AND OVERVIEW OF 

ACTIVITIES - (INFORMATION ONLY) – 15 minutes 
 Colet Bartow 



 

March 14-15, 2019 Board of Public Education  Page 9 
 

Ms. Colet Bartow briefly reviewed the timeline for Content Standards review and discussed the timeline 
with the Board and answered questions. 
 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – Dr. Darlene Schottle (Item 23) 
 
Item 23 SCHOOL NUTRITION PROGRAMS 2018 ANNUAL REPORT (INFORMATION 

ONLY) – 15 minutes 
   Christine Emerson 
Ms. Christine Emerson presented the Annual School Nutrition Report to the Board.  Ms. Emerson 
reviewed the report, how the division at OPI supports schools across the state, reviewed the two USDA 
grants that help administer the program, and highlighted areas of the report for Board members. 
 
FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS May 9-10, 2019 
CSPAC Appointments 
Student Representative Last Meeting & Recognition 
Approve K-12 Schools Payment Schedule 
Assessment Update 
Accreditation Report 
Variance to Standards Requests & Renewals 
Federal Update 
MACIE Update 
Approve MSDB School Calendar 
Executive Director Performance Evaluation 
 
Mr. Donovan discussed a proposed rule amendment to Chapter 57 to create a one-year Class 5 license 
for individuals seeking license in Montana who need to take the PRAXIS test to complete certification but 
are unable to complete the test timely fashion due to scheduling.  The proposed revisions would allow 
educators to be granted a Class 5 license for one year pending completion of the PRAXIS test, when they 
could receive a Class 1 or Class 2 license.  The proposed language will be presented to CSPAC on April 
17, and if approved, will forward to the Board for the May meeting to approve the Notice of Public 
Hearing. Possible adoption of the new rule would be in July. 
 
Ms. Lacy requested for an OPI staffing report from May 2017 to May 2019, by division, and what impact 
those staffing changes have had on students and districts.  The report should also include additions to 
FTE or new positions created due to legislation or policy changes.  Chair Schottle asked for information 
on whether positions are state or federally funded. 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
ADJOURN at 12:27 PM 
_________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
The Montana Board of Public Education is a Renewal Unit Provider.  Attending a Board of Public Education Meeting may qualify you 
to receive renewal units.  One hour of contact time = 1 renewal unit up to 8 renewal units per day.  Please complete the necessary 
information on the sign-in sheet if you are applying for renewal units.    
 
Agenda items are handled in the order listed on the approved agenda.  Items may be rearranged unless listed “time certain”.  Action 
may be taken by the Board on any item listed on the agenda.  Public comment is welcome on all items but time limits on public 
comment may be set at the Chair’s discretion.   
 
The Board of Public Education will make reasonable accommodations for known disabilities that may interfere with an individual’s 
ability to participate in the meeting.  Individuals who require such accommodations should make requests to the Board of Public 



 

March 14-15, 2019 Board of Public Education  Page 10 
 

Education as soon as possible prior to the meeting start date.  You may write to: Kris Stockton, PO Box 200601, Helena MT, 59620, 
email at: kmstockton@mt.gov or phone at 444-0302. 
 

 
 

mailto:kmstockton@mt.gov


CONSENT AGENDA 
 
 

FINANCIALS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



51010 Board of Public Education
ORG Budget Summary by OBPP Prog, Fund, Subclass
Data Selected for Month/FY:    01 (Jul)/2019 through 10 (Apr)/2019

This report compares ORG Budgets (ORG_BD) to Actuals expended amounts

Business Unit (All)
Program Year (All)
FY_BudPer (All)
Month (All)
Source of Auth (All)
Fund Type (All)
Account (All)
Acct Lvl 2 (All)
Account Type E
Project (All) Return to Menu
Ledger (All)

OBPP Program Fund Subclass Org Acct Lvl 1 ORG Budget Actuals Amt A Accrual Amt ORG Bud Balance
01 K-12 EDUCATION 377,143.03 263,173.13 0.00 113,969.90

01100 General Fund 155,808.28 128,663.82 0.00 27,144.46
235H1 ADMINISTRATION 133,108.00 109,816.84 0.00 23,291.16

1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 133,108.00 109,816.84 0.00 23,291.16
61000 Personal Services 111,013.00 109,082.96 0.00 1,930.04
62000 Operating Expenses 22,095.00 733.88 0.00 21,361.12

ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

235H2 AUDIT (RST/BIEN) 14,293.28 10,949.62 0.00 3,343.66
1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 14,293.28 10,949.62 0.00 3,343.66

62000 Operating Expenses 14,293.28 10,949.62 0.00 3,343.66

ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

235H4 STATE ITSD/RST 8,378.00 7,897.36 0.00 480.64
1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 8,378.00 7,897.36 0.00 480.64

62000 Operating Expenses 8,378.00 7,897.36 0.00 480.64

ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

235X1 GOVERNOR'S REDUCTIONS 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

62000 Operating Expenses 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

ORG Bud by OBPP Prog,Fund,Subcl 1 of 2



OBPP Program Fund Subclass Org Acct Lvl 1 ORG Budget Actuals Amt A Accrual Amt ORG Bud Balance
01 K-12 EDUCATI 01100 General F 235Z1 WORKERS COMP. REDUCTION 29.00 0.00 0.00 29.00

1 BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 29.00 0.00 0.00 29.00
61000 Personal Services 29.00 0.00 0.00 29.00

ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

02122 Advisory Council 143,907.00 76,350.62 0.00 67,556.38
235H1 ADMINISTRATION 134,877.00 76,350.62 0.00 58,526.38

30 Advisory Council Program 01 134,877.00 76,350.62 0.00 58,526.38
61000 Personal Services 134,877.00 76,350.62 0.00 58,526.38

ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

235H3 LEGAL EXPENSES (RST/OTO) 9,000.00 0.00 0.00 9,000.00
30 Advisory Council Program 01 9,000.00 0.00 0.00 9,000.00

62000 Operating Expenses 9,000.00 0.00 0.00 9,000.00

ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

235Z1 WORKERS COMP. REDUCTION 30.00 0.00 0.00 30.00
30 Advisory Council Program 01 30.00 0.00 0.00 30.00

61000 Personal Services 30.00 0.00 0.00 30.00

ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

02219 Research Fund 77,427.75 58,158.69 0.00 19,269.06
235H1 ADMINISTRATION 56,427.75 43,052.00 0.00 13,375.75

50 Research Program 01 56,427.75 43,052.00 0.00 13,375.75
62000 Operating Expenses 56,427.75 43,052.00 0.00 13,375.75

ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

235H3 LEGAL EXPENSES (RST/OTO) 21,000.00 15,106.69 0.00 5,893.31
50 Research Program 01 21,000.00 15,106.69 0.00 5,893.31

62000 Operating Expenses 21,000.00 15,106.69 0.00 5,893.31

ALL All Organization Rollup 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
(blank) 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00

Grand Total 377,143.03 263,173.13 0.00 113,969.90

ORG Bud by OBPP Prog,Fund,Subcl 2 of 2



CALENDARS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

March 2019
1 2

3 54 6 7

13 14

8 9

10 1211 15 16

17 1918 20 21 22 23

24 28 302625 27

Notes:

29

Dyslexia Task Forice 
- Pete

BPE Meeting - Helena

Education 
Advocate's
Meeting - Pete

Computer Science
Workgroup - Pete

Negotiated 
Rulemaking - Pete

House Education 
Commitee - Pete

MFPE Hall of Fame 
Dinner - Pete



Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

April 2019

21

8

15 16

22

3

17 19

27

61 2 4 5

7 9 10 11 12 13

14 18 20

23 24 25 26

CSPAC Meeting

Accreditation Process: 
Neg Reg - Pete Variance to 

Standards Board -
Pete

Negotiated
Rulemaking -
Assessment - Pete

MSDB Spring Dinner

Education 
Advocate's
Meeting - Pete

Dyslexia Task Force -
Pete

MSDB Committee 
Call - Pete, Mary Jo, 
Darlene

Negotiated 
Rulemaking: 
Assessment - Pete

Negotiated 
Rulemaking Agency 
Meeting - Pete



Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday

May 2019
41 2 3

5 6 7 8 9 10

12 13

11

14 15 16 17

19 20

18

21 2422 28 25

Mother's Day

23

2826 3027 28

Notes:

29 31

BPE Meeting - Great Falls

MPA Prgoram 
Meeting UM - Pete

Dyslexia Task Force
Meeting - Pete



INFORMATION 
 
 

   REPORTS – Dr. Darlene Schottle (Items 1-6) 
 
 

ITEM 1 
 
 

CHAIRPERSON’S REPORT 
 

 
             

Dr. Darlene Schottle 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 



   
                                                

April 1, 2019 

Darlene Schottle, Board Chairperson 
Montana School for the Deaf and Blind 
3911 Central Avenue 
Great Falls, MT 59401 
 
Dear Board Chairperson Schottle: 

In 2017, the Board of Public Education (BPE) placed Montana School for the Deaf and Blind – 
Elementary and the Montana School for the Deaf and Blind – High School in the Intensive 
Assistance Process due to serious and continuing deviations from the Standards of Accreditation 
for Montana schools. Since that time, Montana School for the Deaf and Blind – Elementary and 
High School have had REGULAR accreditation for school years 2017-18 and 2018-19. 

Because of this improvement in accreditation status, the BPE voted at the March meeting to 
remove Montana School for the Deaf and Blind – Elementary and High School from the Intensive 
Assistance Process. Your leadership over the past two years in correcting accreditation issues 
deserves our congratulations. You have demonstrated diligence in meeting the Standards of 
Accreditation for Montana schools. 

If the Accreditation staff of the Montana Office of Public Instruction can be of service to the 
Montana School for the Deaf and Blind’s staff, please call on us. 

Sincerely, 

 

Linda Peterson 
Administrator 
Division of Accreditation and Educator Preparation 
Montana Office of Public Instruction 
 

cc: Donna Sorenson, Superintendent 

 

 



ITEM 2 
 
 
 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
 

• CSPAC Appointment – Rob Watson 
 

 
Peter Donovan 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Meetings Attended by Peter Donovan 

 

03/15/2019 – 05/09/2019 
 

 
 
 
 

March 
 
 

1. Board of Public Education Meeting     03/14,15/2019 
 

2. Education Advocate’s Meeting     03/19/2019 
 

3. Computer Science Workgroup      03/19/2019 
 

4. Negotiated Rulemaking      03/22/2019 
 

5. House Education Committee      03/25/2019 
 

6. MFPE Hall of Fame Dinner      03/29/2019 
 

April 
 
 

7. Accreditation Process – Negotiated Rulemaking   04/01/2019 
 

8. Variances to Standards Board      04/03/2019 
 

9. Negotiated Rulemaking Committee – Assessment   04/04/2019 
 

10. Check in w/Siri Smillie      04/11/2019 
 

11. MSDB Spring Dinner       04/14/2019 
 

12. Education Advocate’s Meeting     04/16/2019 
 

13. Dyslexia Task Force       04/16/2019 
 

14. Computer Science Workgroup      04/16/2019 
 

15. CSPAC April Meeting       04/17/2019 
 

16. MSDB Committee Conference Call     04/18/2019 
 

17. Agency Meeting       04/23/2019 
 

18. Negotiated Rulemaking Committee Meeting    04/25/2019 
 



19. Governor’s Future Ready Cabinet Meeting    04/29/2019 
 

20. OPI Conference Call        04/30/2019 
 

21. Exit Interview Audit       04/30/2019 
 
 

May 
 
 
 

22. MPA Program Meeting at UM      05/02/2019 
 

23. Dyslexia Task Force Meeting      05/07/2019 
 

24. Board of Public Education Meeting     05/09,10/2019 
 

 
 

    
 

 
 
 
 
 
 



66th Legislature HB0351

AN ACT REVISING EDUCATION LAWS TO SUPPORT TRANSFORMATIONAL LEARNING; PROVIDING

INCENTIVES FOR SCHOOL DISTRICTS TO IMPLEMENT TRANSFORMATIONAL LEARNING; SPECIFYING

A QUALIFYING PROCESS FOR TRANSFORMATIONAL LEARNING PLANS; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS;

PROVIDING LIMITED LEVY AND TRANSFER AUTHORITY TO DISTRICTS IMPLEMENTING A QUALIFIED

TRANSFORMATIONAL LEARNING PLAN; ENSURING TAXPAYER TRANSPARENCY IN IMPOSITION OF

LEVY INCREASES; PROVIDING RULEMAKING AUTHORITY; PROVIDING AN APPROPRIATION; AMENDING

SECTION 20-9-116; AND PROVIDING AN IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVE DATE AND A TERMINATION DATE.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MONTANA:

Section 1.  Transformational learning -- legislative intent. The legislature finds and declares pursuant

to Article X, section 1, of the 1972 Montana constitution that transformational learning is an appropriate means

of fulfilling the people's goal of developing the full educational potential of each person.  The provision of and

participation in transformational learning under [sections 1 and 2] and in compliance with accreditation standards

of the board of public education is constitutionally compliant and protected. The legislature declares that any

public or private regulation that discriminates against a district or pupil participating in transformational learning

is inconsistent with constitutional goals and guarantees under Article X of the Montana constitution.

Section 2.  Incentives for creation of transformational learning programs. (1) (a) A school district

as defined in 20-6-101 that satisfies the conditions of subsection (2) and is qualified by the board of public

education pursuant to subsection (3) is eligible for a 4-consecutive-year provision of the transitional funding and

flexibilities in subsections (4) and (5).

(b)  A school district may be qualified by the board of public education for no more than one

4-consecutive-year provision of transitional funding and flexibilities in any 8-year period.

(2)  To qualify for the transitional funding and flexibilities in subsections (4) and (5), the board of trustees

of a district shall submit an application that has been approved by motion of the board of trustees and signed by

- 1 - Authorized Print Version - HB 351
ENROLLED BILL



HB0351

the presiding officer to the board of public education for approval of a transformational learning program on a form

provided by the superintendent of public instruction.  The school board's application must:

(a)  identify the number of full-time equivalent educators meeting the criteria of 20-9-327(3) who will

participate in the district's transformational learning program, with full-time equivalence calculated and reported

by the district based on the planned portion of each qualifying educator's full-time equivalent assignment that is

dedicated to the district's transformational learning program;

(b)  include the district's definition of proficiency within the meaning of that term as used in 20-9-311(4)(d). 

The definition must not require seat time as a condition or other element of determining proficiency.  The definition

must be incorporated in the district's policies and must be used for purposes of determining content and course

mastery and other progress, promotion from grade to grade, grades, and graduation for pupils enrolled in the

district's transformational learning program.

(c)  include a strategic plan with appropriate planning horizons for implementation, measurable objectives

to ensure accountability, and planned strategies to:

(i)  develop a transformational learning plan for each participating pupil that honors individual interests,

passions, strengths, needs, and culture, and that is rooted in relationships with teachers, family, peers, and

community members;

(ii) embed community-based, experiential, online, and work-based learning opportunities and foster a

learning environment that incorporates both face-to-face and virtual connections;

(iii) provide effective professional development to assist employees in transitioning to a transformational

learning model; and

(iv) ensure equality of educational opportunity to participate by all pupils of the district.

(3)  On an annual basis, the board of public education shall:

(a)  establish by rule the opening and closing dates for receipt of applications and annual reports;

(b)  qualify districts that submit an application meeting the requirements of subsection (2) for the funding

in subsection (4) and the flexibilities in subsection (5) until the annual appropriation is exhausted, after which

further applications, including first-time applications and annual reports requesting an expansion of a previously

approved plan, are to be deferred for consideration in a subsequent year, in the order of date received, if and

when additional funds become available for distribution;

(c)  require each participating school district to submit an annual report demonstrating continued

- 2 - Authorized Print Version - HB 351
ENROLLED BILL



HB0351

qualification for funding under this section and including a report of progress toward measurable objectives under

the school district's transformational learning plan. The school district shall include any decrease or requested

increase in the number of participating full-time equivalent educators under subsection (2)(a) for adjustments to

its funding. Any increase in funding based on requested increased levels of participation under subsection (2)(a)

must be determined in the order of date received among all first-time applications and annual reports requesting

an expansion of a previously approved plan and must be contingent on the availability of funds within any

appropriation of the legislature. An application deferred for consideration in a subsequent year due to lack of

funding must be annually updated each year after more than 1 full fiscal year has passed from the date of original

submission of the application in order for the application to retain its priority by original date received.

(d)  on or before September 15 of even-numbered years, report to the education interim committee on

the progress made by districts operating under approved transformational learning plans.

(4)  (a) Except as provided in subsection (4)(d), for a period of 4 consecutive fiscal years following the

fiscal year in which a district is qualified by the board of public education and contingent on continued compliance

with annual reporting requirements under subsection (3), the superintendent of public instruction shall provide

a transformational learning aid payment to the district equivalent to 50% of the quality educator payment defined

in 20-9-306 from the immediate prior fiscal year multiplied by the number of the district's full-time equivalent

educators reported under subsection (2)(a) of this section.

(b)  The payment under this subsection (4) must be distributed directly to the school district's flexibility

fund established under 20-9-543 no later than June 30 of fiscal year 2020 and by October 1 of each year

beginning fiscal year 2021 by the superintendent of public instruction. The money must be expended by the

district only for the purposes set forth in the district's approved transformational learning program.

(c)  For fiscal years 2020 and 2021, a school district may not receive more than 25% of the total amount

of payments made under this subsection.

(d)  Applications qualified by the board of public education in fiscal year 2020 must be funded beginning

in fiscal year 2020.

(5)  During each year that a school district remains qualified for funding under subsection (4), the district's

trustees may:

(a)  if the obligations of transparency set forth in 20-9-116 are met, levy an annual permissive property

tax not to exceed 100% of any funds distributed to the district under subsection (4). Proceeds of the levy must

- 3 - Authorized Print Version - HB 351
ENROLLED BILL



HB0351

be deposited in the district's flexibility fund established under 20-9-543 and must be expended by the district only

for the purposes of the district's approved transformational learning plan.

(b)  transfer state or local revenue from any budgeted or nonbudgeted fund, other than the debt service

fund or retirement fund, to the district's flexibility fund.

(6)  (a) Any funds transferred pursuant to subsection (5)(b) may be expended by the district solely for the

purposes of implementing the district's approved transformational learning plan. Any transfers of funds are not

considered expenditures to be applied against budget authority.

(b)  Any transfers that are not expended for the purposes of implementing the district's approved

transformational learning plan within 2 full school fiscal years after the funds are transferred must be transferred

back to the originating fund from which the revenue was transferred.

(c)  The intent of subsection (5)(b) and this subsection (6) is to increase the flexibility and efficiency of

school districts without an increase in local taxes. In furtherance of this intent, if transfers of funds are made from

any school district fund supported by a nonvoted levy, the district may not increase its nonvoted levy for the

purpose of restoring the amount of funds transferred.

(7)  The present law base calculated for K-12 local assistance under Title 17, chapter 7, part 1, must

include transformational learning aid as defined in subsection (8).

(8)  For the purposes of this title, the following definitions apply:

(a)  "Transformational learning" means a flexible system of pupil-centered learning that is designed to

develop the full educational potential of each pupil that:

(i)  is customized to address each pupil's strengths, needs, and interests;

(ii)  includes continued focus on each pupil's proficiency over content; and

(iii) actively engages each pupil in determining what, how, when, and where each pupil learns.

(b)  "Transformational learning aid" means 50% of the quality educator payment defined in 20-9-306

multiplied by:

(i)  for fiscal year 2020, 5% of the statewide number of full-time equivalent educators from fiscal year 2019

calculated as provided in 20-9-327;

(ii) for fiscal year 2021, 7.5% of the statewide number of full-time equivalent educators from fiscal year

2020 calculated as provided in 20-9-327; and

(iii) for fiscal year 2022 and subsequent fiscal years, 10% of the statewide number of full-time equivalent

- 4 - Authorized Print Version - HB 351
ENROLLED BILL



HB0351

educators from the fiscal year immediately preceding the year to which distribution of transformational aid applies

calculated as provided in 20-9-327.

Section 3.  Section 20-9-116, MCA, is amended to read:

"20-9-116.  Resolution of intent to increase nonvoted levy -- notice. (1) The trustees of a school

district shall adopt a resolution no later than June 1 in fiscal year 2017 only and no later than March 31 of in fiscal

year 2018 and subsequent fiscal years each fiscal year and provide notice pursuant to subsection (2) whenever

the trustees intend to impose an increase in a nonvoted levy in the ensuing school fiscal year for the purposes

of funding any of the funds listed below:

(a)  the tuition fund under 20-5-324;

(b)  the adult education fund under 20-7-705;

(c)  the building reserve fund under 20-9-502 and 20-9-503;

(d)  the transportation fund under 20-10-143 and 20-10-144; and

(e)  the bus depreciation reserve fund under 20-10-147; and

(f)  the flexibility fund established in 20-9-543 for the purposes in [section 2].

(2)  The trustees shall provide notice of intent to impose an increase in a nonvoted levy for the ensuing

school fiscal year by:

(a)  adopting a resolution of intent to impose an increase in a nonvoted levy that includes, at a minimum,

the estimated number of increased or decreased mills to be imposed and the estimated increased or decreased

revenue to be raised compared to nonvoted levies under (1)(a) through (1)(e) (1)(f) imposed in the current school

fiscal year and, based on the district's taxable valuation most recently certified by the department of revenue

under 15-10-202, the estimated impacts of the increase or decrease on a home valued at $100,000 and a home

valued at $200,000; and

(b)  publishing a copy of the resolution in a newspaper that will give notice to the largest number of people

of the district as determined by the trustees and posting a copy of the resolution to the school district's website."

Section 4.  Appropriation. There is appropriated $2.6 million from the general fund to the office of public

instruction for the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, for distributions of transformational learning aid to districts

pursuant to [section 2(4)]. The superintendent shall allocate a sufficient portion of the appropriation for

- 5 - Authorized Print Version - HB 351
ENROLLED BILL



HB0351

distributions in fiscal year 2020 and fiscal year 2021 that are estimated to allow for levels of district participation

within this biennial appropriation and pursuant to the definition of "transformational learning aid" in [section 2(8)].

Section 5.  Codification instruction. [Sections 1 and 2] are intended to be codified as an integral part

of Title 20, chapter 7, and the provisions of Title 20, chapter 7, apply to [sections 1 and 2].

Section 6.  Effective date. [This act] is effective on passage and approval.

Section 7.  Termination. [This act] terminates June 30, 2027.

- END -

- 6 - Authorized Print Version - HB 351
ENROLLED BILL



HB0351

I hereby certify that the within bill,

HB 0351, originated in the House.

Speaker of the House

Signed this day

of , 2019.

Chief Clerk of the House

President of the Senate

Signed this day

of , 2019.

- 7 - Authorized Print Version - HB 351
ENROLLED BILL



HOUSE BILL NO. 351

INTRODUCED BY W. MCKAMEY, F. ANDERSON, B. BEARD, D. BEDEY, M. BLASDEL, K. BOGNER,

S. FITZPATRICK, M. FUNK, B. GRUBBS, G. HERTZ, L. JONES, J. KASSMIER, D. LOGE, S. MORIGEAU,

T. RUNNINGWOLF, D. SALOMON, S. VINTON, P. WEBB

AN ACT REVISING EDUCATION LAWS TO SUPPORT TRANSFORMATIONAL LEARNING; PROVIDING

INCENTIVES FOR SCHOOL DISTRICTS TO IMPLEMENT TRANSFORMATIONAL LEARNING; SPECIFYING

A QUALIFYING PROCESS FOR TRANSFORMATIONAL LEARNING PLANS; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS;

PROVIDING LIMITED LEVY AND TRANSFER AUTHORITY TO DISTRICTS IMPLEMENTING A QUALIFIED

TRANSFORMATIONAL LEARNING PLAN; ENSURING TAXPAYER TRANSPARENCY IN IMPOSITION OF

LEVY INCREASES; PROVIDING RULEMAKING AUTHORITY; PROVIDING AN APPROPRIATION; AMENDING

SECTION 20-9-116; AND PROVIDING AN IMMEDIATE EFFECTIVE DATE AND A TERMINATION DATE.



66th Legislature HB0387

AN ACT CREATING THE MONTANA ADVANCED OPPORTUNITY ACT; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS;

EXPANDING PERSONALIZED OPPORTUNITIES FOR STUDENTS TO ACCELERATE THEIR CAREER AND

COLLEGE READINESS AND REDUCE OUT-OF-POCKET COSTS FOR FAMILIES; EMPOWERING

STUDENTS TO ACTIVELY ENGAGE IN FORMING SUCCESSFUL POSTSECONDARY PATHWAYS;

PROVIDING EXPANDED FLEXIBILITY AND ADVANCED OPPORTUNITY AID TO DISTRICTS IN

SUPPORTING EACH STUDENT'S PATHWAY; AUTHORIZING DISTRICTS TO UTILIZE LIMITED FUNDING

IN THE ADULT EDUCATION FUND TO SUPPORT ADVANCED OPPORTUNITIES; PROVIDING RULEMAKING

AUTHORITY; PROVIDING AN APPROPRIATION; AMENDING SECTION 20-7-701, MCA; AND PROVIDING

AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MONTANA:

Section 1.  Short title. [Sections 1 through 4] may be cited as the "Montana Advanced Opportunity Act".

Section 2.  Purpose -- intent. (1) The purposes of [sections 1 through 4] are to:

(a)  expand personalized career and technical education opportunities for middle school and high school

pupils;

(b)  reduce out-of-pocket costs for pupils and families in support of a pupil's postsecondary success;

(c)  empower pupils to actively engage in forming their postsecondary success path; and

(d)  provide expanded flexibility to districts in supporting each pupil's postsecondary success path to align

with each pupil's individual interests, passions, strengths, needs, and culture.

(2)  The legislature intends to fulfill the purposes under subsection (1) by authorizing elected boards of

school districts to develop initiatives using advanced opportunity aid that makes a prudent long-term investment

in Montana youth by providing state funding for advanced educational opportunities and individualized pathways

for career and postsecondary opportunities for pupils through career and technical education that allow pupils

to accelerate and self-direct their learning.

- 1 - Authorized Print Version - HB 387
ENROLLED BILL



HB0387

Section 3.  Definitions. As used in [sections 1 through 4], the following definitions apply:

(1) "Advanced opportunity" means any course, exam,  experiential, online, or other learning opportunity

that is incorporated in a district's advanced opportunity plan and that is designed to advance each qualifying

pupil's opportunity for postsecondary career and educational success.

(2) "Advanced opportunity aid" means, for fiscal years 2021 and beyond:

(a) for an elementary district, 3% of the district's total quality educator payment defined in 20-9-306 in the

prior year;

(b) for a high school district, 20% of the district's total quality educator payment defined in 20-9-306 in

the prior year; and

(c) for a K-12 district, 8.5% of the district's total quality educator payment defined in 20-9-306 in the prior

year.

(3) "Advanced opportunity plan" means a plan adopted by a board of trustees of a district that provides

advanced opportunities for the pupils of the district.

(4) "District" means a school district as defined in 20-6-101.

(5) "Qualifying pupil" means a pupil, as defined in 20-1-101, that is enrolled and admitted by a district

qualified for advanced opportunity aid under [section 4(3)] who is in grades 6 through 12.

Section 4.  Incentives for creation of advanced opportunity programs. (1) A district that satisfies the

conditions of subsection (2) and is qualified by the board of public education pursuant to subsection (3) is eligible

for the funding and flexibilities in subsections (4) and (5).

(2) (a) To qualify for the funding and flexibilities in subsections (4) and (5), the board of trustees of a

district shall submit an application that has been approved by motion of the board and signed by the presiding

officer to the board of public education for approval of an advanced opportunity program on a form provided by

the superintendent of public instruction.

(b)  The school board's application must include a strategic plan with appropriate planning horizons for

implementation, measurable objectives to ensure accountability, and planned strategies to:

(i)  develop an advanced opportunity plan for each participating pupil from grades 6 through 12 that

fosters individualized pathways for career and postsecondary educational opportunities and that honors individual

- 2 - Authorized Print Version - HB 387
ENROLLED BILL



HB0387

interests, passions, strengths, needs, and culture and is supported through relationships among teachers, family,

peers, the business community, postsecondary education officials, and other community stakeholders;

(ii) embed community-based, experiential, online, and work-based learning opportunities and foster a

learning environment that incorporates both face-to-face and virtual connections; and

(iii) ensure equality of educational opportunity to participate by all qualifying pupils of the district.

(3)  The board of public education shall:

(a)  establish by rule the opening and closing dates for receipt of applications and annual reports;

(b)  no later than January 31, qualify for the subsequent school year nonparticipating districts that submit

an application meeting the requirements of subsection (2) for the funding in subsection (4) and the flexibilities in

subsection (5);

(c)  no later than January 31, requalify for the subsequent school year participating districts that submit

an annual report demonstrating continued qualification for funding under this section and including a report of

progress toward measurable objectives under the district's advanced opportunity plan and any updates to the

plan;

(d)  limit the districts qualified under subsections (3)(b) and (3)(c) based on the appropriation available

in the subsequent year and on the order of date received, after which further applications are to be deferred for

consideration in a subsequent year, in the order of date received. An application deferred for consideration in a

subsequent year due to lack of funding must be annually updated each year after more than 1 full fiscal year has

passed from the date of original submission of the application in order for the application to retain its priority by

original date received.

(e)  on or before September 15 of even-numbered years, report to the education interim committee

pursuant to 5-11-210 on the progress made by districts operating under approved advanced opportunity plans. 

The report must address, at a minimum:

(i)  the number of pupils benefiting from advanced opportunity aid;

(ii) the number and type of credits and certifications or credentials earned by pupils that have been paid

for by the program;

(iii) projected growth in the program and funding needs for the next biennium; and

(iv)  any issues with the program reported by pupils, parents, districts, postsecondary institutions, or

examination administrators and how these issues are being addressed and whether the issues require legislative

- 3 - Authorized Print Version - HB 387
ENROLLED BILL



HB0387

action.

(4)  Beginning in fiscal year 2021, the superintendent of public instruction shall provide advanced

opportunity aid to each district qualified by the board of public education under subsection (3) by October 1. The

aid under this section must be distributed directly to the school district's flexibility fund under 20-9-543.

(5)  Advanced opportunity aid may be expended on any qualifying pupil by the district subject to the

following conditions:

(a)  at least 60% of a district's annual distribution of advanced opportunity aid must be spent or

encumbered to address out-of-pocket costs that would otherwise, in the absence of such expenditure, be

assumed by a qualifying pupil or the pupil's family as a result of participation in an advanced opportunity. The

trustees have full discretion to allocate expenditures among all pupils of the district or any select group of pupils,

using any reasonable method they consider appropriate in their full discretion to meet the individual needs of each

pupil who pursues an advanced opportunity. The trustees may create free district initiatives of their own that

satisfy the conditions of this subsection (5)(a). Permissible expenditures include:

(i)  dual credit tuition at any institution under authority of the board of regents;

(ii) exam fees used for postsecondary advancement, placement, or credit, including but not limited to

exam fees associated with the ACT, SAT, CLEP, career advancement, international baccalaureate, and

advanced placement;

(iii) fees charged by and any out-of-pocket costs of any business providing work-based learning

opportunities to a qualifying pupil of the district, including the cost of workers' compensation insurance for

work-based learning opportunities;

(iv) exam and other fees of any industry-recognized credential or license for which a qualifying pupil is

eligible as a result of participation in an advanced opportunity; and

(v)  the costs of participation for qualifying pupils that are identified as necessary, in the discretion of the

district and upon request of a qualifying pupil, to maximize the benefit of an advanced opportunity for a qualifying

pupil;

(b)  advanced opportunity aid remaining that is not expended or carried forward for the purposes of

subsection (5)(a) may be spent by the district to provide any K-12 career and vocational/technical education

course offered by the district.

(6)  A district qualified for funding under subsection (3) may supplement state funding of advanced

- 4 - Authorized Print Version - HB 387
ENROLLED BILL



HB0387

opportunity aid with matched expenditures from its adopted adult education budget, not to exceed 25% of the

district's advanced opportunity aid. The conditions under subsection (5) apply to any matched expenditures

funded under this subsection (6).

(7) The present law base calculated for K-12 local assistance under Title 17, chapter 7, part 1, must

include advanced opportunity aid as follows:

(a) for fiscal year 2022, an amount sufficient to provide advanced opportunity aid as defined in [section

3] to:

(i)  50% of all elementary districts;

(ii) 50% of all high school districts; and

(iii) 50% of all K-12 districts;

(b) for fiscal year 2023, an amount sufficient to provide advanced opportunity aid as defined in [section

3] to:

(i)  75% of all elementary districts;

(ii) 75% of all high school districts; and

(iii) 75% of all K-12 districts;

(c) for fiscal year 2024 and subsequent fiscal years, an amount sufficient to provide advanced opportunity

aid as defined in [section 3] to:

(i)  100% of all elementary districts;

(ii) 100% of all high school districts; and

(iii) 100% of all K-12 districts.

Section 5.  Section 20-7-701, MCA, is amended to read:

"20-7-701.  Definition of adult basic education and adult education. As used in this title, unless the

context clearly indicates otherwise, the following definitions apply:

(1)  "Adult basic education" means instruction in basic skills, such as reading, writing, arithmetic, and

other skills required to function in society, offered to persons 16 years of age or older who are not regularly

enrolled, full-time pupils for the purposes of ANB computation. Adult basic education may include any subject

normally offered in the basic curricula of an accredited elementary or secondary school in the state.

(2)  "Adult education" means the instruction of persons 16 years of age or older who are not regularly

- 5 - Authorized Print Version - HB 387
ENROLLED BILL



HB0387

enrolled, full-time pupils for the purposes of ANB computation and the provision of advanced opportunities to

qualified pupils pursuant to [sections 1 through 4]."

Section 6.  Appropriation. There is appropriated $750,000 from the general fund to the office of public

instruction for fiscal year 2021, for distributions of advanced opportunity aid to districts pursuant to [sections 1

through 4]. 

Section 7.  Codification instruction. [Sections 1 through 4] are intended to be codified as an integral

part of Title 20, chapter 7, and the provisions of Title 20, chapter 7, apply to [sections 1 through 4].

Section 8.  Effective date. [This act] is effective July 1, 2019.

- END -

- 6 - Authorized Print Version - HB 387
ENROLLED BILL



HB0387

I hereby certify that the within bill,

HB 0387, originated in the House.

Speaker of the House

Signed this day

of , 2019.

Chief Clerk of the House

President of the Senate

Signed this day

of , 2019.

- 7 - Authorized Print Version - HB 387
ENROLLED BILL



HOUSE BILL NO. 387

INTRODUCED BY L. JONES, N. BALLANCE, D. BEDEY, S. BERGLEE, M. BLASDEL, K. BOGNER,

K. DUDIK, W. GALT, F. GARNER, B. HAMLETT, G. HERTZ, E. MCCLAFFERTY, W. MCKAMEY,

F. MOORE, D. SALOMON, R. SHAW, F. THOMAS, B. TSCHIDA, S. WEBBER, T. WELCH, T. WOODS

AN ACT CREATING THE MONTANA ADVANCED OPPORTUNITY ACT; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS;

EXPANDING PERSONALIZED OPPORTUNITIES FOR STUDENTS TO ACCELERATE THEIR CAREER AND

COLLEGE READINESS AND REDUCE OUT-OF-POCKET COSTS FOR FAMILIES; EMPOWERING

STUDENTS TO ACTIVELY ENGAGE IN FORMING SUCCESSFUL POSTSECONDARY PATHWAYS;

PROVIDING EXPANDED FLEXIBILITY AND ADVANCED OPPORTUNITY AID TO DISTRICTS IN

SUPPORTING EACH STUDENT'S PATHWAY; AUTHORIZING DISTRICTS TO UTILIZE LIMITED FUNDING

IN THE ADULT EDUCATION FUND TO SUPPORT ADVANCED OPPORTUNITIES; PROVIDING RULEMAKING

AUTHORITY; PROVIDING AN APPROPRIATION; AMENDING SECTION 20-7-701, MCA; AND PROVIDING

AN EFFECTIVE DATE.



 
  
 

 
April 3, 2019 
 
Peter Donovan, Executive Director, Montana Board of Public Education 
 
Dear Mr. Donovan, 
 
I am writing today to express my desire for a reappointment for a second 3-year term on the Certification 
Standards and Practices Advisory Council.  I learned so much in my first term and I believe I contributed 
to the discussion and process in advising the Board of Public Education.  I look forward to continuing my 
contributions and sharing my perspectives from the field. 
 
Thank you for your consideration. 

 
 
Rob Watson 
Superintendent 
Bozeman School District 

Robert J. Watson, Ed.D. 
Superintendent 
 

Phone: (406) 522-6001 

Fax:      (406) 522-6065 

robert.watson@bsd7.org 

Bozeman Public Schools 
404 West Main, P.O. Box 520 

Bozeman, MT  59771-0520 

www.bsd7.org 



 
ITEM 3 

 
 

STATE SUPERINTENDENT’S REPORT 
 
 
 

Superintendent of Public Instruction  
Elsie Arntzen 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date: January 5, 2019 
  

Presentation Superintendent’s Update 
Presenter Elsie Arntzen 
 
Position Title State Superintendent 
  

Overview • Recap of the 66th Legislative Session and 
overview of the OPI’s Legislative Wrap-Up 
Document 
o See attachment 

  

Requested Decision(s) None 
  

Related Issue(s) None 
  

Recommendation(s) None 

http://opi.mt.gov/


1 | P a g e  
 

 
 
 

 
 

66th Montana Legislature 
 

Session Wrap-Up 
 

 April 15, 2019  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



2 | P a g e  
 

66th Legislative Session Wrap-Up  
From the Office of Public Instruction 

 
Thank you, Montana Legislators, for your service this session and your continued 
service to students and families in your community during the Interim. As a teacher of 
23 years and Legislator for 12 years, I appreciate your commitment to funding schools 
and protecting students this session.  
 
As Montana’s Superintendent of Public Instruction, it has been an honor to work 
alongside you. During the Interim, my office looks forward to continued 
collaboration with you and we are always available should you have questions or 
requests.  
 
This session, the OPI made student safety and restoration of education funding our 
top priorities. In this document, you will find updates on education related legislation, 
legislative activities hosted by the OPI, general information about education in 
Montana, and an update on the activities of your Montana Land Board. 
 
Thank you for putting Montana students first this legislative session! 
 
 
 
 
 

Elsie Arntzen 
State Superintendent 

CONTACTS: 
 

For inquiries related to legislation: 
 

John Perkins 
Legislative Liaison 

john.perkins@mt.gov 
406-444-5658 

 
Media inquiries: 

 
Dylan Klapmeier 

Director of Communications 
dylan.klapmeier@mt.gov 

406-444-3559 

mailto:john.perkins@mt.gov
mailto:dylan.klapmeier@mt.gov


3 | P a g e  
 

 

Education in Montana: 
 

For a full overview of education in Montana, visit the OPI’s website.  
 

• A quality public education system is a value that is enshrined in Article X of 
Montana’s Constitution. 
 

• Funding for education is the single largest appropriation from Montana’s 
general fund.  

 

• Montana has over 800 schools and over 400 school districts. 
 

• A plurality (39%) of Montana schools have less than 50 students. 
 

• Montana has roughly 147,000 public students and about 14,000 non-public 
students. 

 

• 41% of Montana students qualify for federal free and reduced-price lunch. 
 

• The largest demographics of Montana students are white (79%), American 
Indian (11%), and Hispanic (4.5%) 

 

• In 2018, Montana had the highest statewide graduation rate in recent history: 
86.4%. 

 

• Montana has roughly 15,000 licensed K-12 educators.  
 

• The average student to teacher ratio in Montana is 14 to 1. 
 

• The average ACT (Montana’s state assessment for high school) score in 
Montana is 20. The requirement of the Montana University System is a 22. 

 

• State Trust Lands produced nearly $42 million for Montana schools last year, 
down from previous years. 

 

• The OPI has 3 campuses on the state-complex (down from 4). 
 

• The OPI has 163 regular employees, down from 188 in 2016. 

http://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/Superintendent's%20Folder/2018.Facts%20about%20MT%20Education.pdf?ver=2018-10-31-083350-713


4 | P a g e  
 

 

The OPI’s Capitol Connections: 
 

 
Education Caucus Meetings 

The bipartisan education caucus meetings were an opportunity for legislators, 
education organizations, and the OPI to discuss legislation and coordinate 
opportunities for Montana students. The meetings occurred every other Thursday 
morning at 7:00am in room 335 of the Capitol.  

 
Tribal Education Caucus Meetings 

Tribal Education Caucuses occurred every Thursday at 4:00pm in room 350 of the 
Capitol. These meetings were an opportunity for tribal legislators, education 
organizations, and the OPI to discuss how to improve opportunities for Montana’s 
American Indian students and schools. 
 

Weekly Meetings with Legislative Pages 
Each Thursday OPI leadership met with the Legislative Pages to discuss education in 
Montana, education-related topics, legislation, and answer questions. 
 

 
Additional Capitol Events: 

 

• January 7th the OPI hosted a school safety panel for legislators 
 

• January 18th the OPI hosted the biennial Indian Education for All Rotunda Day 
 

• February 11th Superintendent Arntzen delivered the State of Education Address 
 

• February 28th Superintendent Arntzen hosted a women leadership in 
government luncheon to celebrate Montana’s elected women leaders with 
legislators and our women supreme court justices. 

 

• April 1st the OPI hosted a Military Children Event 
 

• April 3rd the hosted a Montana Ready Rotunda Day with industry partners and 
career and technical student organizations 

 
 

 

https://www.bozemandailychronicle.com/news/education/school-safety-in-spotlight-on-legislature-s-first-day/article_c5f2b917-99ad-5065-a023-5830fd9ea10f.html
https://kpax.com/news/montana-news/2019/01/19/opi-promotes-indian-education-for-all-at-the-capitol-rotunda/
http://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/2019%20Legislature/2019%20State%20of%20Education%20Transcript.dotx.pdf?ver=2019-02-11-134928-687
https://twitter.com/SuptArntzen/status/1104078713749037056
https://twitter.com/SuptArntzen/status/1112794640854335488
http://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/MT%20Ready%20Bi-fold%20Agenda.pdf?ver=2019-04-01-142331-700


5 | P a g e  
 

 

 
Superintendent Arntzen’s Initiatives  

to Make Montana Proud: 
 
 

• Family, student, and community 
engagement 
 

• Safety, mental health, and suicide 
prevention 

 
  
 

• Celebrating teacher excellence and 
extending leadership opportunities 
 

• Teacher retention and recruitment 
     

 
 

 
  

• Closing achievement gaps 
 

• Improving math and reading with a 
focus on middle school 

 
 

 
 

• STEM, CTE, and workforce development 
emphasis beginning in middle school 
 

• Expanding industry, military, and post-
secondary partnerships 

 



6 | P a g e  
 

 
 

Images from the Session: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
Superintendent Arntzen and Montana Chamber CEO   Superintendent Arntzen and Rep. Buttrey 
Todd O’Hair Kickoff “Montana Ready Day”               Celebrate “Month of the Military Child”                                                            

                                                                           
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Superintendent Arntzen Recognizes Montana’s         Superintendent Arntzen Delivers the State 
Women Leaders in Government with Legislators       Of Education Address to the Legislature 
and Supreme Court Justices                                

 
 



7 | P a g e  
 

 
Tribal Education Caucus: 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Superintendent’s Awards for Educational Influence: 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Sen. Dan Salomon      Sen. Keith Regier        Rep. Geraldine Custer     Rep. Shane Morigeau 
Ronan                         Kalispell                     Forsyth                       Missoula 

From Left to Right: 
 
1st Row: Rep. Sharon Stewart-Peregoy (Crow Agency), Rep. Jonathan Windy Boy (Box Elder),  
Rep. Jade Bahr (Billings), Rep. Shane Morigeau (Missoula), Rep. Rae Peppers (Lame Deer), Rep. Barbara Bessette 
(Great Falls) 
 
2nd Row: Sen. Jason Small (Busby), Rep. Bridget Smith (Wolf Point), Sen. Frank Smith (Poplar),  
Rep Susan Webber (Browning), Rep. Tyson Runningwolf (Browning), Rep. Marvin Weatherwax (Browning) 



8 | P a g e  
 

Montana Hope Awards: 
 
 
 
 
 

Sen. Cary Smith                                                                                  Sen. Frank Smith 
Billings                                                                                                Poplar 

Montana Teach Awards: 
 
 
 
 
 

Rep. John Fuller                                                                                Rep. Moffie Funk 
Kalispell                                                                                            Helena 

Montana Learn Awards: 
 
 
 
 
 

Rep. Wendy McKamey                                                                Rep. Daniel Zolnikov 
Great Falls                                                                                   Billings 

Montana Ready Awards: 
 
 
 
 

Rep. David Bedey                                                                        Sen. Jeffrey Welborn 
Hamilton                                                                                     Dillon 



9 | P a g e  
 

 
Overview of Budget and Policy Priorities: 

 
SB 132: Student Safety Accountability Act (?) 
This OPI requested legislation recognizes that students are a protected class and that 
school officials are in a position of trust over them, therefore, students should not be 
able to consent to sexual contact with school officials. Further, it criminalizes those in 
a school setting who aid an individual in gaining employment if they have probable 
cause to believe that said individual has engaged in sexual misconduct with a student. 
 
This legislation has important exemptions so that student-to-student relationships and 
relationships between recent graduates are not criminalized. 

 
HB 61: Revise Student Data Privacy Laws (signed into law) 
The OPI and the Montana University System have requested a change to statute to 
allow for sharing of student ACT scores (if the student consents) to provide better 
post-secondary opportunities for Montana students. 
 
HB 127: Generally Revise Laws Related to School Payments (signed into law) 
The OPI has requested that the state payment schedule to schools be revised to better 
align with state treasury receipts. This will prevent school payments from being used 
as political capital during tight budget periods. 
 
 
HB 601: Transfer Funds Within OPI for School Safety Professional 
Development Grants (?) 
The OPI made a promise to Montana students to increase school safety training. This 
piece of legislation allows school districts to apply for school safety professional 
development grants that give teachers, administrators, and other school district 
personnel skills to combat mental and physical threats to students. 

 
Education Budgets  
The OPI sought restoration of cuts that were made to education programs in the 
2017 Regular and Special Sessions while also providing an inflationary increase to 
special education along with the largest inflationary increase to general education 
funding in Montana history. A detailed budget overview can be found on the next 
page. 

 



10 | P a g e  
 

 
General Fund Budget Overview  

 
The OPI’s General Fund Budget Status: 
 
Program 6: Personal services and operating expenses of the agency. 
  

FY 2020 FY 2021 Total 

Starting Point 10,389,999  10,389,999  20,779,998  

Statewide Present Law Adjustments 377,922  383,841  761,763  

Restore Montana Digital Academy OTO 842,500  842,500  1,685,000  

Other adjustments (894,600) (518,000) (1,412,600) 

Total Appropriation 10,715,821  10,722,118  21,437,939  

Cat and Dog Bills 0  0  0  

Total General Fund Appropriation 21,105,820  21,112,117  42,217,937  

 
The Subcommittee reduced general fund FTE by 1.0 and reduced operating expenses. 
 
Program 9: Funds distributed to school districts. 
 

 FY 2020 FY 2021 Total 

Starting Point 788,289,411  788,289,411  1,576,578,822  

K-12 BASE Aid Inflationary Increase 24,572,480  46,158,348  70,730,828  

NRD Major Maintenance Aid 4,783,000  5,391,000  10,174,000  

Restore Data for Achievement Payment 3,209,999  3,272,947  6,482,946  

Restore Transportation Payment 1,900,000  1,900,000  3,800,000  

Special Education Inflation 460,080  1,400,139  1,860,219  

Restore SB 261 Reductions  805,956  805,956  1,611,912  

School Safety Professional Development 500,000  500,000  1,000,000  

National Board Certification Stipends 107,000  174,500  281,500  

At Risk Inflation 49,721  150,620  200,341  

Guarantee Account Adjustment 118,567  (222,392) (103,825) 

Total Requests 36,506,803  59,531,118  96,037,921  

Increased Guarantee Account Forecast (4,000,000) (4,000,000) (8,000,000) 

Subcommittee Executive Action (759,560) (1,699,615) (2,459,175) 

HB 2 for OPI after Subcommittee 820,036,654  842,120,914  1,662,157,568  
 
The Legislature has approved BASE Aid inflation, restored SB261 and special session reductions, 
added funding for School Safety, Professional Development, the Cultural Integrity Commitment Act 
and Gifted and Talented. 



11 | P a g e  
 

 
LEGISLATION 

 
Sort by passed-numerical order 
Sort by not passed- numerical order 
Appendix by topic 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



12 | P a g e  
 

 
Land Board: 

 
During the 2018 year, the Land Board has dutifully exercised its oversight 
responsibilities with regards to the management of the varied Trust properties.  
 
The Land Board oversees DNRC’s management of Trust Land Resources  
 - 5.2 Million Surface Acres 
 -  6.2 Million Mineral Acres  
 
2018:   
 
Active Timber Sales                   40 
 
Current Oil & Gas Leases                       1,486 
 
Current Coal Leases                  35 
 
Current Ag/Grazing Leases             8,935 
 
Active Residential Leases                           587 
 
Active Commercial Leases                          137 
 
Cabin Sites Sold                              22 
 
Rights of Way Processed                          440 
 
Active Land Use Licenses                         764 
 
Land Banking Sites Sold                             4 
 
Tree Seedlings Planted                        191,026 
 
Timber Harvested (MMBF)                      61.2 
 
 
Revenues – Common Schools :  
  - Leases, Bonuses & Timber Sales  - $38,098,000 (approx.) 
  - Mineral Royalties & Right of Way  - $18,205,000 (approx.)                                                       



 
ITEM 4 

 
 

COMMISSIONER OF HIGHER EDUCATION 
REPORT 

 
 
 

Angela McLean 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
ITEM 5 

 
 

GOVERNOR’S OFFICE REPORT 
 
 

• Future Ready Cabinet Resolution 
 
 

Siri Smillie 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



RESOLUTION OF THE MONTANA BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
AFFIRMING COMMITMENT TO A FUTURE READY MONTANA 
 
RESOLUTION 
 
WHEREAS, Montana’s strong and growing economy means that more Montanans are working now than 
ever before, household income growth in Montana has grown faster than any other state in the country 
over the past five years, and Montanans continue to lead the way in innovation and entrepreneurship; 
 
WHEREAS, Montana is also facing a demographic challenge with 6.5% of our workforce over the age of 
65 and another 96,000 workers between the ages of 55-64; 
 
WHEREAS, over the last five years through the Main Street Montana Project, we have built robust 
partnerships across education, labor, the private sector and both state and local partners to strengthen 
Montana’s talent pipeline and ensure that Montana workers have clear pathways to good-paying jobs; 
 
WHEREAS, apprenticeships have nearly doubled since 2011 and we are expanding this time-honored 
training model into non-traditional fields like healthcare, IT, accounting and advanced manufacturing; 
 
WHEREAS, communities across the state are developing relevant, high-quality work-based learning 
experiences for high school students; 
 
WHEREAS, two-year colleges in the Montana University System are partnering with employers and the 
Registered Apprenticeship Program to develop customized apprenticeships connected to academic credit, 
so students can earn while they learn; 
 
WHEREAS, we have connected education and labor market data to better understand labor market and 
wage outcomes for students in the Montana University System and plan for future workforce demand; 
 
WHEREAS, Montana has set a goal that 60 percent of adults have a post-secondary degree or credential;  
 
WHEREAS, Title 20, Chapter 2, Part 1 of Montana Code charges the Board of Education with long-
range planning and for coordinating and evaluating policies and programs for the public educational 
systems of the state; 
 
WHEREAS, the Future Ready Cabinet has met over the last ten months to determine strategies to meet 
Montana’s postsecondary attainment goal; and 
 
WHEREAS, by working together, we can ensure that Montana’s workers are Future Ready. 
 
THEREFORE, be it resolved that, the Montana Board of Public Education supports and commits to 
implementing the strategies recommended by the Future Ready Cabinet. 



ITEM 6 
 
 

STUDENT REPRESENTATIVE’S REPORT 
 
 

Paris Becker 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 



ACTION 
 
 

 MSDB LIAISON – (Item 7) 
 
 

Mary Jo Bremner 
 
 

ITEM 7 
 
 

MSDB REPORT  
 
 

• Approve Golden Triangle Cooperative 
Agreement  

• Approve MSDB School Calendar 
• Approve Out of State Travel Requests 

• Approve Human Resources Hires 
 
 

Donna Sorensen 
 
 
 



Board of Public Education – MSDB Report: May 9-10, 2019 
D/HH=Deaf or Hard of Hearing, B/VI=Blind or Visually Impaired, DB=Deafblind 

*Some numbers below indicate ongoing total since the beginning of the school year 
Agenda Item Report 

Numbers EDUCATION NUMBERS 
Blind/Low Vision Department 
    M F 
Preschool    2 0 
Elementary (K-6)  4 3 
Middle School (7-8)  1           1 
High School (9-12)  6 4
  
  Total  13 8 (21) 
Deaf/Hard of Hearing Department 
    M F 
Preschool    0 4 
Elementary (K-6)  3 4 
Middle School (7-8)  2 2 
High School (9-12)  5 5 
  Total  10 15 (25) 
 
CAMPUS VISITS 
*College student interested to pursue Interpreter 
career     
*Community Volunteer at Eagle Mount 
*High school student job shadow 
 

CAMPUS 
10-day Observations 
   Three in progress: DHH female, 2 VI males 
   *Total placement requests: 13 
      (VI-8, DHH-5, DB-0) 
   *Total Placement recommended: 6 
      (VI-3, DHH-3, DB-0) 
   *Placement req. changed by Family: 3 
   *Placement not recommended: 2 
   *Not meet state criteria: 2 
 
 
COTTAGE: 17 total students 
     9 DHH, 8 VI 
     4 Boys, 13 Girls  
 
 
OUTREACH 
Data as of (4/2/19) 
     1795 *Family Contacts D/HH  
     2939 *School Contacts D/HH 
     1203 *Other Contacts D/HH 
 
     1485 *Family Contacts B/VI 
     1976 *School Contacts B/VI 
     650 *Other Contacts B/VI  
 
Data as of  
     49/564 *Prof Dev In-services / 
*Number in Attendance 

Administration Legislative Updates 
HB 2 passed both the House and the Senate very early in the session. MSDB does not have 
any additional legislation being presented.  
 
Listening Sessions 
At staff’s request, administrators agreed to conduct monthly Listening Sessions. In March and 
April, no staff members attended. We are canceling the May session. The Labor Management 
Committee can re-evaluate in the fall to see if staff would like to continue these sessions.  
 
Human Resources 
We have hired Thyra Wood, alum of MSDB as our ASL Mentor. She will start in the fall. We 
have hired Trevor Morse, an alum of MSDB as CLA-Boys and are awaiting his background 
check results. We have hired Rueben Ulibarri as part-time Maintenance. We hired Jennifer 
Lawrence (not the actress) as full-time Interpreter. We hired Andrea Downard as Lifeguard.   

Supt. Leave  None to report. 
Union Items MFPE (MEA-MFT) 

We have received and intent to bargain. Donna Sorensen is working with Christian Mackay to 
set up some dates to meet.  
 
UFCW 
No updates.  



Education AdvancEd Accreditation 
A team of 33 began to answer tough questions that will prepare us for the full accreditation 
visit next year. This group has met twice with 6 more meetings scheduled for the rest of this 
school year. During the first meeting, the school improvement process and final desired 
outcome were explained to the team. Currently, the team is working on what is the current 
reality at MSDB. During the second meeting, the large group was divided into 3 different 
groups. Each group was asked to present what the current reality was in their mind. That was 
followed by the groups adding what data sets were available to affirm that reality. If data did 
not exist, the team was provided a list of survey’s that could be used to collect that 
information. 
 
OPI Accreditation 
For the 2nd year, MSDB received Normal Accreditation via OPI. This is a credit to the 
recruitment efforts of the administration team. During the accreditation process, we decided 
that we would like to offer more electives to our students this year. We will be asking the kids 
whether they would like art, cooking, or music next year. 
 
ASL Programming 
Our new ASL teacher has done a great job transitioning into our school. She has been team 
teaching sign language class with Brenda L. and recently took the class over herself. She will 
be assessing all of our student’s sign language skills. We will adding more sections to our 
classes next year, including one class that will be done virtually to students throughout the 
state. 
 
Pre ACT and ACT Test 
Our school chose to administer both the Pre ACT and ACT test. We had 4 sophomores take 
the Pre-ACT and they all scored higher than we thought they would score. This is encouraging 
and telling us we are on the right track in many ways. This week we completed the last of the 
tests. Our kids enjoyed the experience. The data will give us some baseline data to begin 
making some decisions. 
 
Office of Civil Rights Report 
The CRDC report has been submitted with zero errors. 
 
Spring Program 
We had a great spring program last week. Hopefully you were able to watch via Facebook. 
Many people said it was one of the best programs they had ever seen!  
 
Special Education Monitoring 
We had our special education monitoring in February. Overall, we had a very good review. 
Our biggest weakness pertained to secondary transition services. As the review team put it, we 
need to give ourselves credit for our great work. We have completed all IEP corrections and 
will finish the 2 Evaluation Plans after spring break. 

Student Life  Since the last report the students in the cottage have been busy with their school work, 
attending the various clubs and activities and hanging out with friends.  

 Our cottage students have participated in the Visually Impaired Enrichment Weekend 
(March 29th and March 30th). The “Seeing Eye” outfit was on campus and worked with 
many students on the do’s and don’ts and the process to obtain a guide dog. The students 
had fun with this activity.    

 On April 5th the Expressions of Silence had their annual spring fundraiser performance. 
There was a great turnout!     

 As part of their weekend activities the students in the cottage spent some time picking up 
trash on campus. After they finished clean-up they had a small BBQ in the activity room.   



 On Sunday, April 7th our student Nurse (McKenna) did a presentation with the Geyser 
cottage (girls who are blind or low vision). The focus of the presentation was on personal 
hygiene. The girls seemed to enjoy McKenna and the presentation!   

 Our Deaf Enrichment Weekend (April 12-13) will focus on summer type activities. With 
our pool being operation the students will enjoy a night of swimming. Cottage students 
enjoy the opportunity to meet new friends and participate in different activities. 

 The Easter Formal dinner will held on Sunday, April 14th. Our cooks do a great job with 
these events. The students make the table decorations and assist with set-up and clean-up. 
These dinners are a big deal for our students and the staff. This is the last formal dinner 
for the school year. 

 Our students then traveled home for the Easter/Spring break on April 18th and will return 
on April 23rd with school resuming on the 24th.    

 On April 28th almost all of the cottage students will participate in the 38th Annual Ice 
Breaker Fun Run. Great thanks to Cheri Turner (cottage counselor) for coordinating the 
event and the Foundation for their support of the Ice Breaker fees for staff.   

 Students will travel home for Mother’s Day weekend leaving on Friday, May 10th and 
returning Monday, May 13th.   

 MSDB will host their 5rd Annual American Red Cross blood drive on Thursday, May 16th 
from noon until 4:15 PM. The Cottage Student Council will prepare some snacks for the 
donors to eat after they give blood. This event will be held in the Mustang Center Lobby.   

 Students will have their high school Prom on Friday, May 17th. While our high school 
numbers are small, the students always have a great time and dance the night away!     

 The Cottage Student Council will go to Museum of the Rockies. This is planned for May 
19th. The group is still working out all the details on this all day outing.    

 Graduation will be Friday, May 24th at 2:00 PM held in the Mustang Center. This year we 
will have three students graduating.     

 The end of the school year is coming soon. Students and staff will be gearing up for 
wrapping up the school year and getting their areas ready for the summer events. Each 
cottage wing will have an “end of the year party” with the Foundation funds being used to 
support these parties.   

 The last day of school will be Friday, May 31st and our first summer event begins at 4:00 
PM on that same day!    

Outreach  We are preparing for our Cochlear Implant workshop happening April 5th in Great Falls 
where we have confirmation from over 30 professionals from around the state who are 
wanting to learn about CI uses in students.  

 Continuing monthly Untangling the Dots workshops which are online support to public 
educators learning braille.  

 Continuing monthly Listening under the Big Sky which is an online training focused on 
listen and spoken language.  

 Continuing Online ASL classes as well as community sign classes through our grant.  
 We are preparing for VIEW and DEW enrichment weekends in March and April. 

Outreach has been setting up Deaf Mentors. 
 Working with school to prepare for student transitions between grades and prepping 

materials and placing orders for needed APH materials with public schools for low vision 
and blind students.  

 Preparing in-service trainings with school districts for summer in-services. 
Business  Legislative Audit – We did have some findings in this audit. The findings were regarding 

the A-Accruals and B-Accruals done at fiscal year-end. In regards to the A-Accruals, the 
findings were that we accrued some purchase orders that should not have been accrued, 
and that we didn’t accrue some purchase orders that they felt should have been accrued.  
My misunderstanding was in regards to quotes for work to be done that I accrued and 
shouldn’t have been. When a vendor sent me a quote, I would write a purchase order and 
send the vendor a signed purchase order as my approval and agreement for the vendor to 



do the work. I was mistaken, the quote also needed to be signed. I will make sure that is 
done in the future. And in regards to the purchase orders that I should have accrued as A-
Accruals, at the end of the fiscal year if we have a purchase order that was created before 
June 30th, and an item arrived on July 1st. I paid the invoice with a date of June 30th since 
the fiscal year was not closed yet. At fiscal year-end state accounting leaves the fiscal year 
open until around July 15th for agencies to pay state June invoices, such as print & mail 
and ITSD.  I thought we could enter invoices during those 15 days into July with a June 
date. I was informed this was only for state interagency invoices, not other vendors. I now 
know not to do this in the future. When I was processing the B-Accruals I made a math 
error. In the future I will always have someone check my math. 

 Preparing for fiscal year end – In my calculations for fiscal year I anticipate that we will 
need to ask the Governor’s office for approximately $150,000 in supplemental funds.  I 
anticipate not having enough funds in our agency due to the wage increases given to the 
education staff on July 1st 2018. 

Maintenance 
and Facilities 

 Architecture & Engineering has started on the project to re-roof the cottage buildings.  
The architecture firm has been on site and did an inspection and started specifics for the 
request for bids.  The tentative schedule is: 
 

April 15 & 16 – Site Survey (on roof and inside areas of leakage) 
April 24 – Meeting to review design progress 
May 1 – Construction Documents complete & meeting to review (Online meeting?) 
May 5 – Reroof Advertisement to Bid #1 
May 12 – Reroof Advertisement to Bid #2 
May 14 – Pre-Bid Conference on site (9:00 AM) 
May 19 – Reroof Advertisement to Bid #3 
May 22 – Bid Opening  

 
Foundation Executive Assistant 

The MSDB Foundation met on Monday, April 15, 2019. Bonnie DeNoma is retiring as 
Executive Assistant to the Foundation. The Foundation is conducting interviews the last week 
in April for this position.  
 
Prodigi Connect 12s 
We have exceeded our fundraising efforts to purchase 100 machines for students who have 
low vision across the state of Montana. We began discussing other options for students who 
are blind and use braille. The Development Committee will work with the Lion’s Club to 
determine how to appropriately use any remaining funds and how to inform donors of the 
expansion of this work. 

Calendar Items * May 3-4, 2019 – VI Games 
* May 10, 2019 – Travel Home 
* May 13, 2019 – Travel Return – School in Session  
* May 14, 2019 – Listening Session 
* May 17, 2019 – Prom 
* May 17-18, 2019 – Signing Saturday 
* May 24, 2019 – Graduation at 2:00pm 
* May 27, 2019 – Memorial Day – Cottages Open 
* May 31, 2019 – Awards Day and Last Day of School 
* May 31-June 2, 2019 – Family Learning Weekend – Deaf and Hard of Hearing 
* June 7-9, 2019 – Family Learning Weekend – Visually Impaired  
* June 16-22, 2019 – Deaf Camp  
* July 14-20, 2019 – Summer Skills Camp (VI) 

Action Item:  
GTCC 

Approval of the Cooperative Agreement with the Golden Triangle Cooperative for the 2019-
2020 School year.  



Action Item:  
Calendar 

The Board establishes as policy that the administration of the Montana School for the 
Deaf and the Blind shall:  

1. Develop and submit for Board approval a yearly school calendar having not less 
than 180 or more than 186 instructional days.  

2. Such yearly calendar may be adjusted to coincide with the school calendar 
adopted by Great Falls School District #1.  

3. Require that all children residing in the school cottages go to their respective 
homes or to other destinations specified by their parents or guardians for all 
residential closings during the year.  

Policy History: Adopted on: 10-14-92  
Action Item: 
Out-of-State 
Travel 
Requests 

These requests are incredibly important for us to remain current in our fields, to interact with 
our like-colleagues across the country, and to reward and celebrate student accomplishments. 
 Up to 5 Educational Interpreters and 1 Outreach Consultant to attend the National 

Conference on Interpreting in Education conference held at the University of Northern 
Colorado in Greeley, CO from June 20-23, 2019. Total approximate costs of $2700 paid 
for by State funds as Foundation funds have been exhausted.  

 The ASL Teacher to attend the American Sign Language Teacher Association 
Conference in San Diego, CA from June 30-July 3, 2019. Total approximate costs of 
$2500 paid for by the State as this conference is considered a requirement for her teaching 
position.  

 The Superintendent to attend the COSB Summer Board meeting in North Dakota from 
July 9-10, 2019. Total approximate costs of $600 paid for by State funds. 

 Denise Rutledge, TVI, to attend the Experience Programming in Quorum 2019 
conference in Vancouver, WA from July 15-19, 2019. Total approximate costs of $2500 
paid for using a $500 scholarship secured by Denise and Foundation funds.  

 The Superintendent to attend the Western Deaf Superintendents’ meeting in Salt Lake 
City, UT from July 18-19, 2019. Total approximate cost of $600 paid for using State 
funds.  

 Up to 4 Outreach Consultants to attend the Western Regional Early Intervention 
Conference in Broomfield, CO from September 11-13, 2019. Early bird registration is 
due by May 31, 2019. Total approximate costs of $5800 paid using some State funds 
(registration due this fiscal year) and some Foundation funds (any remaining costs in the 
next fiscal year).  

 Up to 6 Teachers and/or Outreach Consultants to attend the Getting in Touch with 
Literacy (braille focus) conference in Seattle, WA from November 13-16, 2019. Total 
approximate costs of $8000 paid using State funds for registration costs that are due in 
this fiscal year. Remaining costs would be paid by Foundation funds.  

Action Item: 
Human 
Resources 

Retiring 
 CJ Oakland, Office Assistant (former Interpreter), 27 years 
 
Hired 
 Jennifer Lawrence, ASL Interpreter 
 Trevor Morse, Student Life Staff – Boys, background check in progress 
 Thyra Wood, ASL Mentor, starting in the Fall, background check in progress 
 Andrea Downard, Lifeguard 
 Rueben Ulibarri, Part-time Maintenance, background check in progress 
 
Leaving MSDB 
 Erica Peterson, Paraeducator in the Visually Impaired Department, is resigning from her 

position at the end of the year.  
 























MSDB
2019 - Detail Budget Tracking Sheet AS OF: 4/17/19

TOTAL BUDGET TOTAL EXPENDITURES BALANCE
ADMINISTRATION 539,873.16$                                   415,955.32$                           123,917.84$                                         
MAINTENANCE 486,174.89$                                   399,802.41 86,372.48$                                           
COTTAGE 1,710,853.19$                                1,135,269.31 575,583.88$                                         
EDUCATION 4,800,056.92$                                3,618,247.89 1,181,809.03$                                      

7,536,958.16$                                5,569,274.93$                        1,967,683.23$                                      

Balance Remaining PS -vs- EXP

PS 1,467,472.62$                                      75%
Exp 500,210.61$                                         25%

1,967,683.23$                                      



MONTANA SCHOOL FOR THE DEAF AND THE BLIND
APPROPRIATIONS - VS - EXPENDITURES

FISCAL YEAR 2019

YEAR TO DATE 

AS OF:  4/17/19

GENERAL STATE SPECIAL FEDERAL SPECIAL TOTAL PERCENT PERCENT
FUND REVENUE REVENUE YEAR TO DATE YEAR TO DATE

FY 2019 FY 18
4/17/2019 4/13/2018

ADMINISTRATION PROGRAM BUDGET (01) 536,886.16 2,987.00 0.00 539,873.16

EXPENDITURES YEAR TO DATE 415,955.32 0.00 0.00 415,955.32 77.05% 68.62% %
UNSPENT ALLOCATED BUDGET: 120,930.84 2,987.00 0.00 123,917.84 22.95% 31.38%

GENERAL SERVICES PROGRAM BUDGET (02) 486,174.89 0.00 0.00 486,174.89

EXPENDITURES YEAR TO DATE 399,802.41 0.00 0.00 399,802.41 82.23% 81.82%

UNSPENT ALLOCATED BUDGET: 86,372.48 0.00 0.00 86,372.48 17.77% 18.18%

STUDENT SERVICES BUDGET (03) 1,657,688.19 30,000.00 23,165.00 1,710,853.19

EXPENDITURES YEAR TO DATE 1,086,864.10 30,000.00 18,405.21 1,135,269.31 66.36% 67.75%

UNSPENT ALLOCATED BUDGET: 570,824.09 0.00 4,759.79 575,583.88 33.64% 32.25%

EDUCATIONAL  PROGRAM BUDGET (04) 4,227,630.92 377,427.00 194,999.00 4,800,056.92

EXPENDITURES YEAR TO DATE 3,457,692.05 104,997.16 55,558.68 3,618,247.89 75.38% 66.00%  

UNSPENT ALLOCATED BUDGET: 769,938.87 272,429.84 139,440.32 1,181,809.03 24.62% 34.00%

ALLOCATED TOTALS: 6,908,380.16 410,414.00 218,164.00 7,536,958.16

TOTAL EXPENDITURE TO DATE: 5,360,313.88 134,997.16 73,963.89 5,569,274.93 73.89% 67.63%

UNSPENT ALLOCATED BUDGET: 1,548,066.28 275,416.84 144,200.11 1,967,683.23 26.11% 32.37%

 

S:\BPE Agenda Electronic\2019\May 2019\Item 7 -- MSDB Report\May BPE 2019 EXPENDITURE TO APPROPRIATIONS.xlsx



INFORMATION 
 
 

 MACIE LIAISON – (Item 8) 
 
 

Mary Jo Bremner 
 
 

ITEM 8 
 
 

MACIE REPORT 
 
 
 

MACIE Chair 
  



 
 

MACIE Update for the Board of Public Education 
American Indian Student Achievement Unit Director, Michelle Mitchell  

for MACIE Chairperson, Georgie Gourneau 
April 17, 2019 

 
Upcoming Schedule of Meetings: 
 

• May 8, 2019, Great Falls, Coincides with BOPE meeting (will be voting on Nov meeting 
date at May meeting) 

• Nov 7 or 8, 2019, Helena, Coincides with BOPE meeting (will be voting on which date at 
March meeting) 

 
MACIE held a retreat the day before Montana Indian Education Association’s Annual 
Conference begins to evaluate, edit and revise the constitution and by-laws as well as 
identifying key issues regarding American Indian Student Achievement and areas they 
want to focus on. Michelle Mitchell was the day’s facilitator.  
 
Retreat Agenda and Notes included. 
 
John Salois stepped down from MACIE because he is no longer a member of SAM. 
There are also currently three vacant seats designated for SAM, the Crow and Fort 
Belknap tribes. Letters were sent to encourage nominations which have not happened 
yet. 
 
Election of officers 
Jennifer Smith nominated Georgie Gourneau to continue as chairperson and Dawn 
Bishop-Moore seconded the motion. Passed by all 
 
Norma Bixby nominated Jennifer Smith as vice-chairperson and Harold Dusty Bull 
seconded the motion. Passed by all 
 
Harold Dusty Bull nominated Dawn Bishop-Moore as secretary and Jennifer Smith 
seconded the nomination. Passed by all. 
 
Next meeting 
Through consensus, it was decided to have the next MACIE meeting on May 8 in Great 
Falls, right before the next Board of Public Education meeting. 
 
 
  



 
 

Current Membership as of April 2019 
VOTING MEMBERS 

 
TRIBE/ORGANIZATION NAME CONTACT 
Blackfeet Harold Dusty Bull 

Blackfeet Tribe 
PO Box 850 
Browning, MT 59417 

(406) 338-7538 Office 
hdustybull@hotmail.com 

Chippewa Cree Voyd St. Pierre 
Rocky Boy Schools 
81 Mission Taylor Road 
Box Elder, MT 59521 

(406) 395-4291 Office 
voydsp@rockyboy.k12.mt.us 

Confederated Salish & 
Kootenai Tribes 

Charmel Gillin 
CSKT Tribal Council 
PO Box 278 
Pablo, MT 59855 

(406) 675-2700 Office 
charmel.gillin@cskt.org 

Crow Vacant  

Fort Belknap Vacant  

Fort Peck Kaci Wallette 
Fort Peck Assiniboine and Sioux 
Tribes 
PO Box 1027 
Poplar MT 59255 

(406) 768-2300 Office 
kwallette@fortpecktribes.net 

Little Shell Gerald Gray 
8415 Black marlin Drive 
Billings MT 59106 

  (406) 690-9757 
ggray@gng.net 

Northern Cheyenne Norma Bixby 
Northern Cheyenne Tribal 
Education Department 
PO Box 307 
Lame Deer, MT 59043 

(406) 477-6602 Office 
Norma.bixby@cheyennenation.com 

Class 7 Jason Cummins 
914 Blue Sage Court 
Hardin, MT 59034 

  (406) 850-8887 
  Jason.d.cummins@gmail.com 
 

Indian Impact Schools 
of Montana 

Dawn Bishop-Moore 
PO Box 345 
Hays, MT 59527 

(406) 390-1950 Office 
dawn_hayspm@yahoo.com 

 
TRIBE/ORGANIZATION NAME CONTACT 

mailto:hdustybull@hotmail.com
mailto:voydsp@rockyboy.k12.mt.us
mailto:charmel.gillin@cskt.org
mailto:kwallette@fortpecktribes.net
mailto:ggray@gng.net
mailto:Norma.bixby@cheyennenation.com
mailto:Jason.d.cummins@gmail.com
mailto:dawn_hayspm@yahoo.com


 
 

MEA-MFT Georgie Gourneau 
Box 772 
Poplar, MT 59255 

(406) 650-6372 
gourneaug@poplar.k12.mt.us 

Montana Indian 
Education Association 
(MIEA) 

Joe Arrowtop 
PO Box 1 
Heart Butte, MT 59448 

(406) 470-1683 
jarrowtop@hotmail.com 

Montana School 
Boards Association 
(MTSBA) 

Yancey Beston 
PO Box 488 
Frazer, MT 59225 

(406) 439-2809 Cell 
ybeston@mt.gov 

School Administrators 
of Montana (SAM) 

Vacant 
 

 

Urban - Billings Jennifer Smith 
Billings Public Schools 
415 North 30th Street 
Billings, MT 59101 

(406) 281-5071 Office 
smithj@billingsschools.org 

Urban – Great Falls Marcy Cobell-Gilbert 
Great Falls Public Schools 
PO Box 249 
Great Falls, MT 59403 

(406) 268-6003 Office 
marcy_cobell@gfps.k12.mt.us 

Urban – Missoula Melissa Hammett 
2707 Westminster Drive 
Missoula, MT 59808 

(406) 529-1007 Cell 
mshammett@mcps.k12.mt.us 

 
EX-OFFICIO MEMBERS 

 
TRIBE/ORGANIZATION NAME CONTACT 
Board of Public 
Education (BPE) 

Mary Jo Bremner 
PO Box 193 
Browning, MT 59417 

(406) 338-7183 
mjo.bremner@gmail.com 

Bureau of Indian 
Education (BIE) 

Teresa McMakin 
Northern Cheyenne Tribal 
Schools 
Busby, MT 59016 

  (406)592-3646 
  teresamcmakin@nctsk12.com 
 

Montana University 
System (MUS) 

Angela Mclean 
PO Box 2023201 
Helena, MT 59620 

(406) 444-0332 Office 
amclean@montana.edu 

Office of Public 
Instruction (OPI) 

Michelle Mitchell 
American Indian Student 
Achievement Unit Director 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 

  (406) 444-3013 Office 
michelle.mitchell@mt.gov 

 

mailto:gourneaug@poplar.k12.mt.us
mailto:jarrowtop@hotmail.com
mailto:ybeston@mt.gov
mailto:smithj@billingsschools.org
mailto:marcy_cobell@gfps.k12.mt.us
mailto:mshammett@mcps.k12.mt.us
mailto:mjo.bremner@gmail.com
mailto:teresamcmakin@nctsk12.com
mailto:amclean@montana.edu
mailto:michelle.mitchell@mt.gov


 
 

Tribal Colleges Dr. Richard Little Bear 
Chief Dull Knife College 
PO Box 98 
Lame Deer, MT 59043 

(406) 477-6215 Office 
rlbear@cdkc.edu 

Tribal Head Start Viola Wood 
Fort Peck Tribes Head Start 
PO Box 1027 
Poplar, MT 59255 
 

  (406) 768-2503 
  headstrt@nemontel.net 
 

 

mailto:rlbear@cdkc.edu
mailto:headstrt@nemontel.net


 
 
April 17, 2019 
 
 
Kirk Miller 
School Administrators of Montana 
900 North Montana Ave, Ste A-4 
Helena MT 59601 
 
RE: Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education 
 Member Nomination for School Administrators of Montana 
 
Dear Mr. Miller: 
 
The Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education (MACIE) was established in 1984 by the Office 
of Public Instruction and the Board of Public Education to act in an advisory role in matters related 
to Indian Education in Montana. 
 
Membership in the council consists of representatives of Indian education in the state of 
Montana selected in consultation with tribes, Indian organizations, and major education 
organizations in which Indians participate.  I value the input and expertise MACIE contributes to 
education in Montana. The council meets on a regular basis, usually in Helena.  Travel expenses 
for members are reimbursed by my office. 
 
John Salois was your most recent representative to this council.  However, as he will no longer 
be a member of SAM after June, we are requesting a nomination for a member to this council. 
 
Please complete the attached form by April 30, to designate a representative.  If you have any 
questions, please do not hesitate to contact Joan Franke at (406) 444-3694 or jfranke@mt.gov.  
 
 The next MACIE meeting is scheduled for May 8, 2019, at the Paris Gibson Education 
Center, 2400 Central Ave., Room 120, Great Falls. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Elsie Arntzen 
Superintendent 

mailto:jfranke@mt.gov


Please fill out this form and return to: 
Joan Franke 
Office of Public Instruction 
PO Box 202501 
Helena, MT  59620-2501 
(406) 444-3924 (fax) 
jfranke@mt.gov 
 
 
_____ Yes, our tribe/organization wishes to appoint the person listed below as our 

representative to Montana Advisory Council on Indian Education. 
 
 
Name:  _________________________________ 

Address: _________________________________ 

City, ZIP _________________________________ 

Phone/Fax: _________________________________ 

Email:  _________________________________ 
 
 
_____ Yes, I have contacted our nominee and he/she has agreed to represent our 

tribe/organization. 
 
 
_____ No, our tribe/organization does not wish to be represented on the Montana Advisory 

Council on Indian Education. 
 
 
Organization: _________________________________________________________ 

 
President/Chairperson signature:  _______________________________________________ 

 
Date:   ________________________ 
 

 
 



INFORMATION 
 
 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – (Items 9-10) 
 
 

Dr. Darlene Schottle 
 
 

ITEM 9 
 
 

FEDERAL REPORT 
 
 

Susie Hedalen 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date: April 26, 2019 
  

Presentation Federal Update 
Presenter Susie Hedalen 
 
Position Title Deputy Superintendent for Education Services 
  

Overview • Deputy Hedalen will give an overview of the state, 
district, and local ESSA Report Cards, answer any 
questions that Board members have, and solicit 
feedback. 

o See attachments 
  

Requested Decision(s) None 
  

Related Issue(s) None 
  

Recommendation(s) None 

http://opi.mt.gov/


 

 

FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE 

Montana’s New School, District, and State Report Cards Now Available 

April 22, 2019 

HELENA— The Montana Office of Public Instruction announced today that report cards 
for Montana schools, districts, and the state are now publicly available. The federal 
Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) requires state, district, and school-level data to be 
displayed on report cards in a concise, understandable, and accessible manner for 
families and communities.  

The report cards can be viewed along with additional information on the OPI’s new 
report card webpage. Report cards showcase student achievement data, college and 
career readiness, school finances, and school climate data. 

“Montana’s report cards reflect extensive input from families, communities, and 
educators across the state,” State Superintendent Elsie Arntzen said Monday. “This 
new educational tool will allow further family and community engagement with schools 
to create better outcomes for students.” 

Feedback on Montana’s report cards can be sent to ESSAInput@mt.gov.  

### 

CONTACT:   Dylan Klapmeier 
                       Director of Communications, Montana Office of Public Instruction 
                       dylan.klapmeier@mt.gov 
                       406-444-3559 

 

http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Academic-Success/Every-Student-Succeeds-Act-ESSA/Report-Card
mailto:ESSAInput@mt.gov
mailto:dylan.klapmeier@mt.gov


2017-18 State Report Card

Student Achievement Scores

Novice
Nearing 
Proficient Proficient Advanced

State 29% 30% 24% 17%

Novice
Nearing 
Proficient Proficient Advanced

State 26% 24% 31% 19%

Novice
Nearing 
Proficient Proficient Advanced

State 11% 28% 42% 18%

Montana Accountability System
As required under the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), Montana developed an accountability system to 
meaningfully differentiate schools by the support needed.

Schools are identified as one of the following: 

• Comprehensive Support & Improvement (CSI) Schools

• Targeted Support & Improvement (TSI) Schools

• Universal Support Schools

Click here for more detail about Accountability

Licensed K-12 Staff & Paraprofessionals: 15,273

Public School Districts: 409

Public Schools: 822

Student Enrollment: 146,772

Due to rounding, percentages on each page may not add up to 100%.
An asterisk ( * ) indicates that number has been suppressed for student privacy and security reasons (Privacy & 
Security Details).

Report Card Definitions & Methodology

Due to rounding, percentages on each page may not add up to 100%.
An asterisk ( * ) indicates that number has been suppressed for student privacy and security 
reasons (Privacy & Security Details). Page 1 of 12

http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Academic-Success/Every-Student-Succeeds-Act-ESSA
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Academic-Success/Every-Student-Succeeds-Act-ESSA/Comprehensive-Support','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Academic-Success/Every-Student-Succeeds-Act-ESSA/Targeted-Support','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Academic-Success/Every-Student-Succeeds-Act-ESSA/Universal-Support','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Academic-Success/Every-Student-Succeeds-Act-ESSA/Report-Card/Report-Card-Definitions-Methodology#StateReportCardFacts','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Academic-Success/Every-Student-Succeeds-Act-ESSA/Report-Card/Report-Card-Definitions-Methodology#StateReportCardFacts','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Academic-Success/Every-Student-Succeeds-Act-ESSA/Report-Card/Report-Card-Definitions-Methodology#StateReportCardFacts','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Data-Reporting/Student-Privacy-K-12-Data-Governance','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Data-Reporting/Student-Privacy-K-12-Data-Governance','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Academic-Success/Every-Student-Succeeds-Act-ESSA/Report-Card/Report-Card-Definitions-Methodology%20','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Data-Reporting/Student-Privacy-K-12-Data-Governance','_blank'))


Student Achievement Progress Scores

% of students showing progress in 
Reading

% of students showing progress in 
Mathematics

% of English Learners showing 
progress toward English proficiency

Educator Qualifications

Click for more information Click for more information

% of students graduating high 
school in four years

% of students who are college or 
career ready

% of students with at least 95% 
attendance for the entire school year

35 %

2 %

3,111# English Learners

% Achieved Proficiency

% Students Showing 
Progress on the EL 
Assessment

English Learners School Attendance

Click here for details on Educator Qualifications (inexperienced educators, emergency provisional licenses, educators working out of field)

Click here for more detail about Student Achievement

Due to rounding, percentages on each page may not add up to 100%.
An asterisk ( * ) indicates that number has been suppressed for student privacy and security 
reasons (Privacy & Security Details). Page 2 of 12

javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Data-Reporting/Student-Privacy-K-12-Data-Governance','_blank'))


School Quality, Climate, and Safety

Click here for details on Montana Civil Rights Data Collection

School Finance
Data on school level expenditures will be available later in 2019

School Improvement Funds

District School Funding Strategies

Pryor Elem Arrow Creek Elem School $22,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

On-site Math Consultant Training

Purchase interventions with strong to moderate evidence

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Substitutes for professional development outside the contract day

Pryor 7-8 $22,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

On-site Math Consultant Training

Purchase interventions with strong to moderate evidence

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Substitutes for professional development outside the contract day

Hardin Elem Crow Agency School $54,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Reading Mastery Intervention

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Lodge Grass Elem Lodge Grass School $36,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Substitutes for professional development during the contract day

Summer school materials and trips

Supplies and materials for professional development

Title I conference travel

Lodge Grass 7-8 $36,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

School Administrators of Montana Leaders Professional Learning Program

Substitutes for professional development during the contract day

Summer school materials and trips

Supplies and materials for professional development

Comprehensive Support & Improvement Schools receive funding to support academic and systems change. As part of the schools ’ continuous 
improvement cycle, improvement strategies are tailored to the specific needs of the students, schools, and community. The ESSA Plan requires that 
these schools identify the specific strategies for which funds were used.  Comprehensive Schools receiving school improvement funds were identified 
in 2018. Funds were used to implement strategies in 2018-2019.

Due to rounding, percentages on each page may not add up to 100%.
An asterisk ( * ) indicates that number has been suppressed for student privacy and security 
reasons (Privacy & Security Details). Page 3 of 12

javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0021','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=0027','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1668','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0023','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=0033','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0025','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=0039','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1669','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Data-Reporting/Student-Privacy-K-12-Data-Governance','_blank'))


Lodge Grass Elem Lodge Grass 7-8 $36,000 Title I conference travel

Wyola Elem Wyola School $39,500 Attend math professional development conference

Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Purchase local assessment for progress monitoring

Purchase math intervention with strong to moderate evidence

Purchase professional development for Go Math!

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Supplies for a community literacy night

Wyola 7-8 $39,500 Attend math professional development conference

Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Purchase local assessment for progress monitoring

Purchase math intervention with strong to moderate evidence

Purchase professional development for Go Math!

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

School Administrators of Montana Leaders Professional Learning Program

Supplies for a community literacy night

Browning Elem Babb School $12,550 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Math Consultant for monthly on-site support

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Stipends for professional development outside the contract day and 
Saturdays

Supplies and resources for professional development

KW-VC Elementary $12,550 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Math Consultant for monthly on-site support

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Stipends for professional development outside the contract day and 
Saturdays

Supplies and resources for professional development

Napi School $12,550 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Math Consultant for monthly on-site support

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Stipends for professional development outside the contract day and 
Saturdays

Supplies and resources for professional development

Browning Middle School $12,550 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Math Consultant for monthly on-site support

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Stipends for professional development outside the contract day and 
Saturdays

Due to rounding, percentages on each page may not add up to 100%.
An asterisk ( * ) indicates that number has been suppressed for student privacy and security 
reasons (Privacy & Security Details). Page 4 of 12

javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0025','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1669','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0026','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=0041','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1583','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0400','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=0537','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=0538','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=0539','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1613','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Data-Reporting/Student-Privacy-K-12-Data-Governance','_blank'))


Browning Elem Browning Middle School $12,550 Supplies and resources for professional development

Browning Elementary $12,550 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Math Consultant for monthly on-site support

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Stipends for professional development outside the contract day and 
Saturdays

Supplies and resources for professional development

Browning H S Browning High School $34,550 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Math Consultant for monthly on-site support

Purchase intervention with strong to moderate

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Dupuyer Elem Dupuyer School $34,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

On-site Math Consultant Training

Purchase interventions with strong to moderate evidence

Purchase iReady professional development

Purchase technology

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Stipends for professional development outside the contract day

Victor K-12 Schools Victor School $49,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Materials and supplies for professional development

Milepost Student Achievement

Purchase interventions with strong to moderate evidence

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

STAR 360

Substitutes for administering SBAC Interim

Poplar Elem Poplar 5-6 School $24,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Purchase books

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Substitutes for professional development outside the contract day

Poplar School $26,500 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Purchase books

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Substitutes for professional development outside the contract day

Poplar 7-8 $24,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Purchase books

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Due to rounding, percentages on each page may not add up to 100%.
An asterisk ( * ) indicates that number has been suppressed for student privacy and security 
reasons (Privacy & Security Details). Page 5 of 12

javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0400','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1613','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1840','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0401','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=0543','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0671','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=0888','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0738','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=0971','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0775','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1014','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1015','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1550','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Data-Reporting/Student-Privacy-K-12-Data-Governance','_blank'))


Poplar Elem Poplar 7-8 $24,000 Substitutes for professional development outside the contract day

Poplar H S Poplar High School $39,500 AdvancEd improvement services

Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

School Administrators of Montana Leaders Professional Learning Program

Stipends for professional development outside the contract day

Wolf Point H S Wolf Point High School $54,000 ACT Aspire

ACT Bootcamp

EPI Yellowstone Credit Recovery

Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Tutor for lunch and after school

Brockton Elem Barbara Gilligan School $14,750 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Purchase of intervention with strong to moderate evidence

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Stipends for professional development outside the contract day

Substitutes for professional development during the contract day

Barbara Gilligan 7-8 $14,750 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Purchase of intervention with strong to moderate evidence

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Stipends for professional development outside the contract day

Substitutes for professional development during the contract day

Brockton H S Brockton High School $27,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

On-site Math Consultant Training

Purchase of intervention with strong to moderate evidence

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

School Administrators of Montana Leaders Professional Learning Program

Substitutes for professional development during the contract day

Lame Deer Elem Lame Deer School $28,500 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Purchase Saxon Math curriculum

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Lame Deer 7-8 $28,500 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Purchase Saxon Math curriculum

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Ashland Elem Ashland School $43,250 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Due to rounding, percentages on each page may not add up to 100%.
An asterisk ( * ) indicates that number has been suppressed for student privacy and security 
reasons (Privacy & Security Details). Page 6 of 12

javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0775','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1550','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0776','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1016','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0781','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1023','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0782','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1025','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1759','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0783','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1026','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0792','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1035','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1626','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0800','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1043','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Data-Reporting/Student-Privacy-K-12-Data-Governance','_blank'))


Ashland Elem Ashland School $43,250 Purchase interventions with strong to moderate evidence

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Substitutes for professional development outside the contract day

Supplies and materials

Ashland 7-8 $42,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Purchase interventions with strong to moderate evidence

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Substitutes for professional development outside the contract day

Supplies and materials

Absarokee H S Absarokee High School $31,500 Additional Teacher Aide

Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Professional development supplies and materials

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Summer School Teacher

Frazer H S Frazer High School $44,000 ACT Online Support

Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Math Curriculum

On-site Math Consultant Training

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

SBAC Interim Assessment supplies and materials

Stipends for meetings outside contract day

Lodge Grass H S Lodge Grass High School $52,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

On-site Math Consultant Training

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Substitutes for professional development during the contract day

Supplies and materials for professional development

Yellowstone Academy Elem Yellowstone Academy 7-8 $34,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

On-site Math Consultant Training

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Rocky Boy Elem Rocky Boy School $23,500 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Substitutes for professional development during the contract day

Rocky Boy 7-8 $23,500 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Due to rounding, percentages on each page may not add up to 100%.
An asterisk ( * ) indicates that number has been suppressed for student privacy and security 
reasons (Privacy & Security Details). Page 7 of 12

javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0800','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1043','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1763','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0862','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1126','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=0928','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1208','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=1190','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=0040','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=1196','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1850','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=1207','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=0579','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1711','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Data-Reporting/Student-Privacy-K-12-Data-Governance','_blank'))


Rocky Boy Elem Rocky Boy 7-8 $23,500 Substitutes for professional development during the contract day

Hays-Lodge Pole K-12 Schls Lodge Pole School $23,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

On-site Math Consultant Training

Professional development on direct instruction

Purchase local assessments for progress monitoring

Purchase materials and supplies for professional development

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Hays-Lodge Pole High Sch $23,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

On-site Math Consultant Training

Professional development on direct instruction

Purchase local assessments for progress monitoring

Purchase materials and supplies for professional development

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Hays-Lodge Pole 7-8 $23,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

On-site Math Consultant Training

Professional development on direct instruction

Purchase local assessments for progress monitoring

Purchase materials and supplies for professional development

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Plenty Coups H S Plenty Coups High School $37,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Purchase interventions with strong to moderate evidence

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

School Administrators of Montana Leaders Professional Learning Program

Substitutes for professional development outside the contract day

Heart Butte K-12 Schools Heart Butte Elementary $20,500 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

On-site Math Consultant Training

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Substitutes for professional development outside the contract day

Heart Butte High School $20,500 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

On-site Math Consultant Training

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

School Administrators of Montana Leaders Professional Learning Program

Substitutes for professional development outside the contract day

Heart Butte 6-8 $18,000 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

On-site Math Consultant Training

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Due to rounding, percentages on each page may not add up to 100%.
An asterisk ( * ) indicates that number has been suppressed for student privacy and security 
reasons (Privacy & Security Details). Page 8 of 12

javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=1207','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1711','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=1213','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=0072','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1551','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1659','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=1214','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1553','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=1226','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=0886','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1656','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1748','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Data-Reporting/Student-Privacy-K-12-Data-Governance','_blank'))


Heart Butte K-12 Schools Heart Butte 6-8 $18,000 Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

Substitutes for professional development outside the contract day

Rocky Boy H S Rocky Boy High School $58,500 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

School Administrators of Montana Leaders Professional Learning Program

Substitutes for professional development during the contract day

Lame Deer H S Lame Deer High School $69,500 Instructional Consultant monthly on-site support

On-site Math Consultant Training

Reimbursement of travel to application workshop

Reimbursement of travel to Fall and Spring School Leadership Team 
Trainings

School Administrators of Montana Leaders Professional Learning Program

Below Basic Basic Proficient Advanced
All Students
All Students Math Grade 4 Montana 17% 42% 35% 6%

National 21% 39% 32% 8%

Math Grade 8 Montana 24% 39% 29% 8%

National 31% 36% 24% 10%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 30% 32% 30% 8%

National 33% 31% 27% 9%

Reading Grade 8 Montana 21% 44% 32% 3%

National 25% 41% 31% 4%

Race/Ethnicity
Hispanic Math Grade 4 Montana 25% 50% 23% 2%

National 30% 44% 23% 3%

Math Grade 8 Montana 37% 40% 20% 3%

National 43% 37% 16% 3%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 30% 33% 28% 8%

National 46% 32% 18% 4%

Reading Grade 8 Montana 28% 47% 24% 1%

National 34% 44% 21% 1%

American Indian or 
Alaskan Native

Math Grade 4 Montana 43% 44% 12% 0%

National 31% 44% 22% 3%

Math Grade 8 Montana 52% 34% 13% 1%

National 43% 38% 15% 4%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 58% 29% 10% 3%

National 51% 28% 18% 3%

National Assessment of Educational Progress (NAEP)

Due to rounding, percentages on each page may not add up to 100%.
An asterisk ( * ) indicates that number has been suppressed for student privacy and security 
reasons (Privacy & Security Details). Page 9 of 12

javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=1226','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1748','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=1229','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1807','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_District&Year=%202018&Org=1230','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://nativereportsgems.opi.mt.gov/ReportServer_GEMSNative/Pages/ReportViewer.aspx?%2fESSA+Report+Card%2fESSA_Report_Card_School&Year=%202018&Org=1816','_blank'))
javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Data-Reporting/Student-Privacy-K-12-Data-Governance','_blank'))


American Indian or 
Alaskan Native

Reading Grade 8 Montana 43% 43% 14% 0%

National 37% 42% 20% 1%

Asian Math Grade 4 Montana 0% 0% 0% 0%

National 8% 25% 41% 26%

Math Grade 8 Montana 0% 0% 0% 0%

National 12% 24% 32% 32%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 0% 0% 0% 0%

National 16% 25% 36% 22%

Reading Grade 8 Montana 0% 0% 0% 0%

National 13% 30% 45% 12%

Black or African 
American

Math Grade 4 Montana 0% 0% 0% 0%

National 37% 44% 17% 2%

Math Grade 8 Montana 0% 0% 0% 0%

National 53% 34% 11% 2%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 0% 0% 0% 0%

National 50% 31% 16% 3%

Reading Grade 8 Montana 0% 0% 0% 0%

National 41% 42% 16% 1%

Native Hawaiian or 
Other Pacific Islander

Math Grade 4 Montana 0% 0% 0% 0%

National 30% 43% 23% 4%

Math Grade 8 Montana 0% 0% 0% 0%

National 38% 39% 18% 5%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 0% 0% 0% 0%

National 44% 30% 22% 4%

Reading Grade 8 Montana 0% 0% 0% 0%

National 36% 41% 21% 2%

White Math Grade 4 Montana 13% 41% 40% 7%

National 12% 37% 40% 11%

Math Grade 8 Montana 19% 39% 33% 9%

National 20% 37% 30% 13%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 26% 33% 33% 9%

National 22% 32% 34% 12%

Reading Grade 8 Montana 17% 44% 35% 3%

National 17% 40% 39% 5%

Multi-Racial Math Grade 4 Montana 18% 45% 31% 6%

National 16% 39% 34% 10%

Math Grade 8 Montana 40% 39% 18% 4%

Due to rounding, percentages on each page may not add up to 100%.
An asterisk ( * ) indicates that number has been suppressed for student privacy and security 
reasons (Privacy & Security Details). Page 10 of 12

javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Data-Reporting/Student-Privacy-K-12-Data-Governance','_blank'))


Multi-Racial Math Grade 8 National 28% 36% 24% 12%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 36% 29% 30% 5%

National 28% 32% 29% 11%

Reading Grade 8 Montana 26% 47% 25% 2%

National 20% 41% 35% 5%

Gender
Female Math Grade 4 Montana 17% 43% 35% 5%

National 21% 42% 31% 7%

Math Grade 8 Montana 24% 39% 29% 7%

National 31% 37% 24% 9%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 29% 32% 30% 9%

National 30% 32% 28% 10%

Reading Grade 8 Montana 15% 42% 38% 5%

National 20% 40% 35% 5%

Male Math Grade 4 Montana 17% 40% 36% 7%

National 21% 37% 32% 9%

Math Grade 8 Montana 24% 38% 30% 8%

National 31% 34% 23% 11%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 32% 32% 29% 7%

National 36% 30% 25% 8%

Reading Grade 8 Montana 26% 46% 27% 1%

National 29% 41% 27% 3%

English Learner
Yes Math Grade 4 Montana 59% 37% 4% 0%

National 47% 39% 13% 2%

Math Grade 8 Montana 0% 0% 0% 0%

National 71% 23% 5% 1%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 79% 14% 7% 0%

National 68% 23% 8% 1%

Reading Grade 8 Montana 0% 0% 0% 0%

National 68% 27% 5% 0%

No Math Grade 4 Montana 16% 42% 36% 6%

National 18% 39% 34% 9%

Math Grade 8 Montana 23% 39% 30% 8%

National 28% 36% 25% 10%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 29% 33% 30% 8%

National 29% 32% 29% 10%

Due to rounding, percentages on each page may not add up to 100%.
An asterisk ( * ) indicates that number has been suppressed for student privacy and security 
reasons (Privacy & Security Details). Page 11 of 12

javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Data-Reporting/Student-Privacy-K-12-Data-Governance','_blank'))


No Reading Grade 8 Montana 20% 44% 33% 3%

National 22% 41% 33% 4%

Students With Disability
Yes Math Grade 4 Montana 51% 37% 11% 1%

National 55% 31% 12% 2%

Math Grade 8 Montana 72% 22% 5% 1%

National 74% 20% 5% 1%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 77% 14% 8% 1%

National 71% 18% 9% 2%

Reading Grade 8 Montana 64% 32% 4% 0%

National 66% 27% 7% 0%

No Math Grade 4 Montana 13% 42% 39% 7%

National 16% 41% 34% 9%

Math Grade 8 Montana 18% 41% 33% 9%

National 26% 37% 26% 11%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 24% 34% 33% 9%

National 28% 33% 29% 10%

Reading Grade 8 Montana 15% 46% 36% 3%

National 20% 42% 34% 4%

Economic Disadvantage
Yes Math Grade 4 Montana 25% 45% 27% 3%

National 31% 44% 22% 3%

Math Grade 8 Montana 16% 38% 35% 11%

National 45% 37% 15% 3%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 43% 32% 21% 5%

National 46% 32% 18% 3%

Reading Grade 8 Montana 29% 46% 24% 1%

National 36% 43% 20% 1%

No Math Grade 4 Montana 9% 38% 44% 9%

National 9% 33% 43% 14%

Math Grade 8 Montana 35% 40% 21% 4%

National 17% 34% 32% 16%

Reading Grade 4 Montana 18% 32% 38% 11%

National 18% 30% 37% 15%

Reading Grade 8 Montana 15% 42% 39% 4%

National 14% 38% 42% 7%

Due to rounding, percentages on each page may not add up to 100%.
An asterisk ( * ) indicates that number has been suppressed for student privacy and security 
reasons (Privacy & Security Details). Page 12 of 12

javascript:void(window.open('http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Data-Reporting/Student-Privacy-K-12-Data-Governance','_blank'))


ACTION 
 
 

ITEM 10 
 
 

APPROVE K-12 SCHOOL PAYMENT 
SCHEDULE 

 
 

Kara Flath 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date: May 9 – 10, 2019 
  

Presentation K-12 Schools Payment Schedule for Fiscal Year 2019-2020 

   

Presenter Kara Flath 

 

Position Title School Finance Administrator 

  

Overview As required by 20-9-344, MCA, the Board of Public Education must 
approve the distribution of K-12 BASE aid for public education. 

  

Requested 
Decision(s) 

Approval of Dates. 

  

Related Issue(s) None. 

  

Recommendation(s) Approval of Schedule. 

  



 
 

 

Office of Public Instruction 
P.O. Box 202501 

Helena, MT 59620-2501 
406.444.3095 
888.231.9393 

406.444.0169 (TTY) 
opi.mt.gov 

PROPOSED PAYMENT SCHEDULE - FISCAL YEAR 2020 
 

The following distribution dates for FY 2020 BASE aid payments to K-12 schools are proposed for the Montana 
Board of Public Education and are scheduled according to 20-9-344, MCA as amended. 

 

August 30    Direct State Aid, Quality Educator Component, At Risk Component, Indian Education for 
All, Student Achievement Gap, Data for Achievement, Special Education, Technology, and Transportation 
Prepayment 
 
September 27   Direct State Aid, Quality Educator Component, At Risk Component, Indian Education 
for All, Student Achievement Gap, Data for Achievement, and Special Education 
 
October 25  Direct State Aid, Quality Educator Component, At Risk Component, Indian Education for 
All, Student Achievement Gap, Data for Achievement, and Special Education 
 
November 29 Direct State Aid, Quality Educator Component, At Risk Component, Indian Education 
for All, Student Achievement Gap, Data for Achievement, Special Education, State Coal Mitigation Block 
Grant, and Indian Language Immersion Payment 
 
December 20 Guaranteed Tax Base Aid for General Fund, State Lands Block Grant, and County 
Retirement 
 
January 31  Direct State Aid, Quality Educator Component, At Risk Component, Indian Education for 
All, Student Achievement Gap, Data for Achievement, and Special Education 
 
February 28  Direct State Aid, Quality Educator Component, At Risk Component, Indian Education 
for All, Student Achievement Gap, Data for Achievement, and Special Education 
 
March 27 Direct State Aid, Quality Educator Component, At Risk Component, Indian Education for 
All, Student Achievement Gap, Data for Achievement, Special Education, and Transportation 
 
April 24 Direct State Aid, Quality Educator Component, At Risk Component, Indian Education for All, 
Student Achievement Gap, Data for Achievement, and Special Education 
 
May 29 Guaranteed Tax Base Aid, State Coal Mitigation Block Grant, and Education Improvement 
Payment 
 
June 19 Direct State Aid, Quality Educator Component, At Risk Component, Indian Education for All, 
Student Achievement Gap, Data for Achievement, Special Education, and Transportation 



INFORMATION 
 
 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – (Items 11-12) 
 
 

Tammy Lacey 
 
 

ITEM 11 
 
 

LICENSURE COMMITTEE REPORT 
 
 

Tammy Lacey 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Name Case # Reason Results

Reason for Unusual Case 

Request

YEAR - 2019
Bruce Guthrie 2019-01 Suspension, Class 2 hearing at May 2019 meeting
Thomas Mattingly 2019-02 Revocation, Class 1 surrender
Jeanne Cooper 2019-03 Appeal, Class 3 appeal dropped
Steven Riccio 2019-04 Appeal, Class 1 appeal dropped
Morgan Pett 2019-05 Surrender, Class 2
Andrea Beale 2019-06 Denial, Class 3 hearing at May 2019 meeting

YEAR - 2018
Spencer Johnson 2018-01 Denial, Class 3 appeal dropped
Genevieve Thomas 2018-02 Denial, Class 3 denial upheld

Colter Bethurem 2018-03 Denial Class 1
appeal dropped, applied for wrong 
license

Jerri Russell
2018-04 Denial, Class 6

license granted Unusual Case

individual has experience as college 
counselor and granted a Class 5 to obtain 
required coursework at MSU Billings 
necessary to apply for Class 6 license.  

Sally King 2018-05 Denial, Class 5 extension
OPI requested Unusual Case, 
license not granted One year extension granted previously

Zachary C R Rowan 2018-06 Revocation, Class 2 license revoked
Troy Bashor 2018-07 Surrender

Colter Bethurem 2018-08 Denial, Class 3
OPI requested Unusual Case, 
license not granted

teaching experience all in the Catholic 
School Elementary School system which is 
not state accredited.

Randy Hiatt 2018-09 Denial, Class 1 denial upheld
Christina McGill 2018-10 Denial, Class 3 hearing at May 2019 meeting
Levi Johnson 2018-11 Revocation, Class 2 surrender
Hayley Oelkers 2018-12 Revocation, Class 2 not moved to hearing



YEAR - 2017

John E Bach, Jr 2017-01 Denial, Class 3 license granted Unusual Case

Unusual Cases request as teaching 
experience all at BIA schools, which are 
recognized by the Federal Government as a 
"state accredited entity".

Debra Hayes 2017-02 Denial, Class 3 denial upheld
Thomas McLaren 2017-03 Revocation Request Class 2 surrender
Bryan Lamm 2017-04 Revocation Request surrender
Michaella Westfall 2017-05 Material Non-Performance district chose not to pursue
Jennifer Painter 2017-06 Material Non-Performance district chose not to pursue
Karissa Gordon 2017-07 Material Non-Performance district chose not to pursue

Genevieve Thomas 2017-08 Denial, Class 3 license granted Unusual Case

Unusual Cases request granted as 
experience all in California which does not 
"state accredit" their schools

Phillip VanDenBrink 2017-09 Denial, Class 5 license granted Unusual Case

Unusual Cases request as individual was 
licensed administrator in Michigan with 
over 14 years teaching experience in 
overseas boarding schools.  Request for 
license granted on the condition that the 
educator complete required MT school law 
w/special education coursework and 
provide proof before license issued.

Nikki Kaup 2017-10 Denial, Class 2 license granted Unusual Case

Unusual cases request to include her one 
year of student teaching experience in 
Kalispell to be included in the "5 years of 
experience" requirement in 10.57.410.  
Educator had 4 years of experience out of 
state.



INFORMATION 
 
 

ITEM 12 
 
 

DISCONTINUATION OF SELECTED 
ENDORSMENT PROGRAMS IN THE 

TEACHER EDUCATION PROGRAM AT THE 
UNIVERSITY OF PROVIDENCE 

 
 

Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson 
Dr. Matt Redinger, Provost, University of 

Providence 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date: May 9-10, 2019 
  

Presentation Discontinuation of the Selected Endorsement 
Programs in Teacher Education Program at the 
University of Providence 

  

Presenter Linda Vrooman Peterson 
Office of Public Instruction  

Position Title Administrator 
Accreditation and Educator Preparation Division  

  

Overview Dr. Matt Redinger, Provost at the University of 
Providence (UP), announces the decision of the 
UP Board of Trustees to discontinue selected 
endorsement programs within UP’s Teacher 
Education Program. Dr. Redinger will present the 
UP plan to teach-out current students enrolled in 
the  discontinued programs. 

  

Requested Decision(s) Recognition of the UP Board of Trustees’ decision 
to discontinue selected endorsement programs. 

  

Related Issue(s)  
  

Recommendation(s) Recognition of the decision of the University of 
Providence Board of Trustees to discontinuation 
of selected endorsement programs at UP, 
effective immediately. The UP will provide annual 
reports on the progress of the teach-out 
transition plan to the Office of Public Instruction 
and the Board of Public Education. 

  





University of Providence Discontinuance and Teach Out of Selected Teacher Education Programs 

Discontinued Program # of Students Teach out plan 

Art K-12 1 1 student should complete licensure SP19 

Biology for Secondary Education - Major 0 N/A 

Biology for Secondary Education - Minor 0 N/A 

English Language Arts Major 1 1 student will graduate SP21 

English Language Arts Minor 1 1 student will graduate SP21 

History Major 2 1 student will graduate FA20 

1 student will graduate FA21 

History Minor 0 N/A 

Mathematics Major 1 1 student will graduate SP22 

Mathematics Minor 1 1 student will graduate SP19 

Physical Education & Health K-12 Major 5 1 student will graduate SP20 

1 student will graduate SP21 

1 student will graduate FA21 

1 student will graduate SP22 

1 student will graduate FA22 

Physical Education & Health K-12 Minor 0 N/A 

Political Science Minor 0  

Psychology Minor 0  

Science Broadfield 3 2 will graduate SP19 

1 will graduate FA21 

Secondary Education 15 These students have been identified in the 
secondary majors they are completing.  

Social Studies Broadfield 3 1 student will graduate FA20 

1 student will graduate FA21 

1 student changed to another major 

Sociology Minor 0 N/A 

Special Education K-12 3 1 student graduates SP21 

1 student graduates FA22 

1 student graduates FA23 

 



1 

  

 

Policy 6.02 Substantive Changes (CAEP Accreditation Policy 20180418, pgs. 21-24) 
(Note: Language is quoted from U.S. Department of Education Regulations) 
 
CAEP, in accordance with Federal regulation (34 CFR Part 602 Subpart B (§602.22)), requires an EPP to inform CAEP of any 
changes to the educational mission, program, or programs of the EPP which may adversely affect the capacity of the EPP to 
continue to meet CAEP’s standards. These changes must be communicated as part of the Annual Report or in a separate 
communication to the CAEP President, addressed to president@caepnet.org or the current mailing address for the 
organization. 

 

CAEP has the responsibility to determine what effect, if any, substantive changes would have on an EPP’s accreditation. Per 
the U.S. Department of Education Regulations (quoted below), CAEP minimally requires notification in case of the following 
substantive changes: 

1. Any change in the established mission or objectives of the EPP. 

2. Any change in the legal status, form of control, or ownership of the EPP. 

3. Addition of courses or programs that represent a significant departure from the existing offerings of educational 
programs, or method of delivery, from those that were offered when CAEP last evaluated EPP. 

4. A contract with other providers for direct instructional services, including any teach-out agreements. 

5. The addition of programs of study at a degree or credential level different from that which is included in the 
EPP’s current accreditation or pre-accreditation. 

6. A change from clock hours to credit hours. 

7. A substantial increase in the number of clock or credit hours awarded for successful completion of a program. 

8. If CAEP's accreditation of an institution enables the institution to seek eligibility to participate in title IV, HEA 
programs, the entering into a contract under which an institution or organization not certified to participate in the 
title IV, HEA programs offers more than 25 percent of one or more of the accredited institution's educational 
programs. 

(A) If the agency's accreditation of an institution enables it to seek eligibility to participate in title IV, HEA 
programs, the establishment of an additional location at which the institution offers at least 50 percent of an 
educational program. The addition of such a location must be approved by the agency in accordance with 
paragraph (c) of this section unless the accrediting agency determines, and issues a written determination stating 
that the institution has— 

a. Successfully completed at least one cycle of accreditation of maximum length offered by the agency and 
one renewal, or has been accredited for at least ten years; 

b. At least three additional locations that the agency has approved; and 

c. Met criteria established by the agency indicating sufficient capacity to add additional locations without 
individual prior approvals, including at a minimum satisfactory evidence 

of a system to ensure quality across a distributed enterprise that includes— 
i. Clearly identified academic control; 

ii. Regular evaluation of the locations; 

iii. Adequate faculty, facilities, resources, and academic and student support systems; 

iv. Financial stability; and 

v. Long-range planning for expansion. 

(B) The agency's procedures for approval of an additional location, pursuant to paragraph (a)(2)(viii)(A) of 

this section, must require timely reporting to the agency of every additional location established under this 

approval. 

(C) Each agency determination or redetermination to preapprove an institution's addition of locations 

under paragraph (a)(2)(viii)(A) of this section may not exceed five years. 

(D) The agency may not preapprove an institution's addition of locations under paragraph (a)(2)(viii)(A) of this 

section after the institution undergoes a change in ownership resulting in a change in control as defined in 34 

CFR 600.31 until the institution demonstrates that it meets the conditions for the agency to preapprove 

additional locations described in this paragraph. 

mailto:president@caepnet.org


2 

  

(E) The agency must have an effective mechanism for conducting, at reasonable intervals, visits to a 

representative sample of additional locations approved under paragraph (a)(2)(viii)(A) of this section. 

i. The acquisition of any other institution or any program or location of another institution. 

ii. The addition of a permanent location at a site at which the institution is conducting a 

teach-out for students of another institution that has ceased operating before all 

students have completed their program of study. 

9.  Any change that means the EPP no longer meets CAEP Standards or adheres to CAEP 
policies. 

 

 

Policy 6.06 Good Cause Extension 

CAEP reserves the right to approve or deny requests for Good Cause Extension. The EPP must provide sufficient justification 
to demonstrate need for an extension. CAEP reserves the right to adjust the length of the extension based on the nature of 
the request. 

 

a) Request for a Good Cause Extension 
An EPP may submit a request in-full for an extension of the term of its accreditation no earlier than 24 months and 
no later than 12 months prior to the EPP’s site visit semester. 

 
An EPP may request an extension from CAEP from the term of its accreditation (and delay a site visit) for good 
cause for a period of up to one (1) semester; or up to two (2) years in consultation with the state/country partner. 
Extensions may not exceed two (2) years. Any extension request for longer than a period of one (1) year must be 
approved by the Annual Report Monitoring (ARM) Committee and the Accreditation Council. 

 
An administrative fee will be applied to all good cause extension applications. The fee will be to cover the 
administrative costs associated with the extension. 

 
Decisions regarding requests for good cause extension of an accreditation term will be based on one or more of 
the following factors. The EPP must provide evidence of the factor(s) preventing accreditation-related activities. 

(A) State or federal standards or legislation requiring significant programmatic change. 

(B) Substantive changes – see Policy 6.02: Substantive Changes. 

(C) Other extenuating circumstances such as, an Act of God, natural disaster, or civil unrest. 
 

As a general rule, requests for more than one (1) extension within an accreditation cycle will be denied. In 
extenuating circumstances, CAEP will consider such requests on a case-by-case basis. 

 
If a Good Cause Extension is granted, the term of accreditation granted through the subsequent review will be 
reduced by the length of the extension. For example, upon the expiration of a 
one-year (1) extension, the EPP’s next term of accreditation will be shortened by one (1) year. 

 

(b) Good Standing 
An EPP in good standing may request an extension under the factors described in Policy 6.06(a). An EPP not in good 
standing may only apply for an extension under factors described in Policy 6.06(a)3. An EPP with an unresolved 
stipulation is considered not in good standing. Accreditation Policy Updated 4/18/2018 24 
  

(c) Impact to Site Visit 
The EPP will be charged for any expense already incurred by CAEP (including but not limited to site team travel) at 
the time a good cause extension is requested and granted.  

(d) State or Country Agreement 



3 

  

The state/country must concur with the EPP’s request for Good Cause Extension. If the state/country does not 
concur, the extension will not be granted. Documentation of state/country support must be submitted with the 
request for an extension.  

(e) Public Information 
Extensions granted to EPPs will be published in accordance with Section VIII - Consumer information, Public 
Disclosure, and Transparency. 
 
 



INFORMATION 
 
 

 ACCREDITATION COMMITTEE – (Items 13-20) 
 
 

ITEM 13 
 
 

UPDATE OF LOCKWOOD HIGH SCHOOL 
INTENET TO ACCREDIT PROCESS 

 
 

Patty Muir 
Tobin Novasio, Superintendent, Lockwood K-

12 Schools 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date: May 9-10, 2019 
  

Presentation Accreditation of Lockwood High School 
  

Presenter Patty Muir, M.Ed. 
Tobin Novasio, Superintendent, Lockwood K-12 
Schools 
Gordon Klasna, Principal, Lockwood Middle 
School 
Tim Sather, Lockwood Board Chair 

 

Position Title Accreditation Program Director 
 Office of Public Instruction 

Overview This presentation provides an update on the 
accrediting and progress of Lockwood High 
School. 

  

Requested Decision(s) None 

  

Related Issue(s) None 
  

Recommendation(s) Information 
  



ACTION 
 
 

ITEM 14 
 
 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE 2018-2019 
CORRECTIVE PLANS AND TIMELINS OF 

ACCREDITED SCHOOLS IN STEP 2 OF THE 
INTENSIVE ASSISTANCE PROCESS 

 
• Medicine Lake K-12 Schools 
• Vaughn Elementary Schools 

• Box Elder Schools 
• Huntley Project Schools 
• Plevna K-12 Schools 

 
 

Patty Muir 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 



 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date: May 9, 2019 
  

Presentation Recommend Approval of the 2018-2019 
Corrective Plans and Timelines of Accredited 
Schools in Step 2 of the Intensive Assistance 
Process 

  
Presenter Patty Muir, M.Ed. 
 
Position Title Accreditation Program Director 

Office of Public Instruction 
  

Overview This presentation provides the Board of Public 
Education the 2018-19 Corrective Plans and 
Timelines for schools moving into Step 2 of the 
Intensive Assistance Process.   
District Board of Trustee Chairs and 
Superintendents will be presenting.  

  

Requested Decision(s) Action 
  

Related Issue(s) None 
  

Recommendation(s) Action One: Recommend APPROVAL of the  
2018-2019 Corrective Plan and Timeline for 
Vaughn 7-8. 
 
Action Two:  Recommend APPROVAL of the  
2018-2019 Corrective Plan and Timeline for 
Medicine Lake High School.  
 



 

 

Action Three: Recommend APPROVAL of the 
2018-2019 Corrective Plan and Timeline for Box 
Elder 7-8. 
 
Action Four: Recommend APPROVAL of the  
2018-2019 Corrective Plan and Timeline for 
Plevna 7-8 and Plevna High School.  
 
Action Five: Recommend APPROVAL of the 
2018 – 2019 Corrective Plan and Timeline for 
Huntley Project High School. 

   



Corrective Plan Presentations for Schools MOVING to STEP 2 Intensive Assistance 

(May Board of Public Education Appearance) 

 

5/9/19 & 5/10/19  Page 1 of 3 
 

 

Vaughn Elementary 

• Vaughn 7-8 

 

Plevna K-12 Schools 

• Plevna 7-8 

• Plevna High School 

 

Box Elder Public Schools 

• Box Elder 7-8 

 

Medicine Lake K-12 Schools 

• Medicine Lake High School 

 

Huntley Project K-12 Schools 

• Huntley Project High School 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Corrective Plan Presentations for Schools MOVING to STEP 2 Intensive Assistance 

(May Board of Public Education Appearance) 

 

5/9/19 & 5/10/19  Page 2 of 3 
 

 

Vaughn Elementary 

 

Vaughn 7-8 

Year Accreditation 
Status 

Assurance 
Level 

Performance 
Level 

Assurance Deviations (Years of Occurrence) 

2018-2019 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Nonlicensed Teacher (3) 

Library Media Specialist Not Endorsed (2) 

2017-2018 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Nonlicensed Teacher (2) 

Library Media Specialist Not Endorsed 

2016-2017 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Nonlicensed Teacher 

2015-2016 REGULAR Regular Regular  

2014-2015 REGULAR MD Regular MD Regular MD No Superintendent FTE 

 

 

Plevna K-12 Schools 

 

Plevna 7-8 

Year Accreditation 
Status 

Assurance 
Level 

Performance 
Level 

Assurance Deviations (Years of Occurrence) 

2018-2019 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Nonlicensed Teacher (3) 

2017-2018 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Nonlicensed Teacher (2) 

2016-2017 DEFICIENCY Deficiency NA Nonlicensed Teacher 

2015-2016 REGULAR Regular NA  

2014-2015 DEFICIENCY Deficiency NA Nonlicensed Teacher 

 

 

Plevna High School 

Year Accreditation 
Status 

Assurance 
Level 

Performance 
Level 

Assurance Deviations (Years of Occurrence) 

2018-2019 DEFICIENCY Deficiency NA Nonlicensed Teacher (3) 

2017-2018 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Nonlicensed Teacher (2) 

2016-2017 DEFICIENCY Deficiency NA Nonlicensed Teacher 

2015-2016 REGULAR Regular NA  

2014-2015 DEFICIENCY Deficiency NA Nonlicensed Teacher 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Corrective Plan Presentations for Schools MOVING to STEP 2 Intensive Assistance 

(May Board of Public Education Appearance) 

 

5/9/19 & 5/10/19  Page 3 of 3 
 

Box Elder Public Schools 

 

Box Elder 7-8 

Year Accreditation 
Status 

Assurance 
Level 

Performance 
Level 

Assurance Deviations (Years of Occurrence) 

2018-2019 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Deficiency Nonlicensed Teacher 

2017-2018 DEFICIENCY Regular Deficiency  

2016-2017 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular MD No Curriculum Coordinator FTE 

Principal Not Endorsed 

2015-2016 REGULAR Regular Regular MD  

2014-2015 REGULAR Regular Regular MD  

 

 

Medicine Lake K-12 Schools 
 

Medicine Lake High School 

Year Accreditation 
Status 

Assurance 
Level 

Performance 
Level 

Assurance Deviations (Years of Occurrence) 

2018-2019 DEFICIENCY Deficiency NA Nonlicensed Teacher 

No School Counselor FTE 

2017-2018 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Misassigned Teacher (3) 

2016-2017 DEFICIENCY Deficiency NA Misassigned Teacher (2) 

Nonlicensed Teacher 

2015-2016 ADVICE Advice Regular Misassigned Teacher 

2014-2015 REGULAR Regular Regular  

 

 

Huntley Project K-12 Schools 
 

Huntley Project High School 

Year Accreditation 
Status 

Assurance 
Level 

Performance 
Level 

Assurance Deviations (Years of Occurrence) 

2018-2019 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Insufficient Library Media Specialist FTE (4) 

2017-2018 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Insufficient Library Media Specialist FTE (3) 

Misassigned Teacher 

2016-2017 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Advice Status For Two Years 

Insufficient Library Media Specialist FTE (2) 

2015-2016 ADVICE Advice Regular Misassigned Teacher 

Insufficient Library Media Specialist FTE 

2014-2015 REGULAR Regular Regular MD  

 



CoName Sheridan

LE Medicine Lake K-12 Schools, LE0822

School Medicine Lake 7-8, SC1662

2018-2019 Corrective Plan Form

A separate Corrective Plan must be completed for EACH school that has an accreditation status of ADVICE or DEFICIENCY for the 2018-

2019 school year.

Please select the county, district and school for which you are submitting  a plan.

All assurance and student performance deviations on the Final Accreditation Report must be addressed.

D1. Select the assurance or student performance area where the school received a deviation.

10.55.601 – School Did Not Complete CSIP Report

10.55.701(2)(e-q) – School Does Not Have Required Policy

10.55.702 – Superintendent is Nonlicensed

10.55.702 - Superintendent is not properly endorsed

10.55.703 – Principal  is Nonlicensed

10.55.703 - Principal is not properly endorsed

10.55.704(1)(a-e) – No Superintendent FTE

10.55.704(1)(a-e) – Insufficient Superintendent FTE

10.55.704(2) – No Curriculum Coordinator FTE

10.55.704(2) – Insufficient Curriculum Coordinator FTE

10.55.704(2) Curriculum Coordinator is Nonlicensed

10.55.704(2) Curriculum Coordinator is not properly endorsed

10.55.705(2)(a-g) – No Principal FTE

10.55.705(2)(a-g) – Insufficient Principal FTE

10.55.707(1) – Library Media Specialist Nonlicensed

10.55.707 – Nonlicensed Teacher

10.55.707(1) - Activities/Athletic Director Nonlicensed

10.55.701(1) - Dean of Students Nonlicensed

10.55.707(4) – School Counselor Nonlicensed

10.55.704(4) – School Counselor Not Endorsed

10.55.708 – Misassigned Teacher

10.55.708 – Library Media Specialist Not Endorsed

10.55.709(1)(a-f) – No Library Media Specialist FTE

10.55.709(1)(a-f) – Insufficient Library Media Specialist FTE

10.55.710 – No School Counselor FTE

10.55.710 – Insufficient School Counselor FTE

10.55.712 – Class Size: Elementary

10.55.713 – Class Size: Middle Grades and High School

10.55.714(2) - School does not have the minimum of three PIR days
devoted to professional development

10.55.716(1)(b) – Long-Term Substitute Nonlicensed

10.55.902(2) – Basic Education Program Area Not Offered at Middle
Grades School

10.55.902(4) – Basic Education Program Area Not Offered at Junior
High or 7-8

10.55.902(4)(d) – Basic Education Program Area Does Not Meet
Required Minutes at Middle Grades School

10.55.904(3) – Basic Education Program Area Not Offered at High
School

10.55.906(1)(a) – Basic Education Program Area Does Not Meet
Required Minutes at High School

20-1-301 (2), MCA – Required aggregate hours not met

Student Performance – Graduation Rate

Student Performance – Mathematics

Student Performance – Reading

Student Performance – Science

D1. Indicate the school's plan to remedy the deviation selected above:

Non-licensed teacher has been removed from the employ of the district. Students were placed in an online program (Odyssey) for the remainder of the
year to complete English work. The position for English teacher has been posted. Administration will continue recruitment efforts to find certified, qualified
teacher for this role.

Do you have another deviation to address for this school?

Yes

No

Submit date: Mar 29, 2019  

Dr. J Lail, Ed.D. 
Superintendent
Medicine Lake School District 
311 Young St. 
Medicine Lake, MT 59247



D2. Select the assurance or student performance area where the school received a deviation.

10.55.601 – School Did Not Complete CSIP Report

10.55.701(2)(e-q) – School Does Not Have Required Policy

10.55.702 – Superintendent Not Endorsed

10.55.703 – Principal Not Endorsed

10.55.704(1) – No Superintendent FTE

10.55.704(1)(a-e) – Insufficient Superintendent FTE

10.55.704(2) – No Curriculum Coordinator FTE

10.55.704(2) – Insufficient Curriculum Coordinator FTE

10.55.705(2) – No Principal FTE

10.55.705(2)(a-g) – Insufficient Principal FTE

10.55.707 – Nonlicensed Teacher

10.55.707(1) – Library Media Specialist Nonlicensed

10.55.707(4) – School Counselor Nonlicensed

10.55.704(4) – School Counselor Not Endorsed

10.55.708 – Misassigned Teacher/School Administrator

10.55.708 – Library Media Specialist Not Endorsed

10.55.709(1) – No Library Media Specialist FTE

10.55.709(1)(a-f) – Insufficient Library Media Specialist FTE

10.55.710 – No School Counselor FTE

10.55.710 – Insufficient School Counselor FTE

10.55.712 – Class Size: Elementary

10.55.713 – Class Size: Middle Grades and High School

10.55.714 – No Professional Development Advisory Committee

10.55.716 – Long-Term Substitute Nonlicensed

10.55.902(2) – Basic Education Program Area Not Offered at Middle
Grades School

10.55.902(4)(d) – Basic Education Program Area Does Not Meet
Required Minutes at Middle Grades School

10.55.904(3) – Basic Education Program Area Not Offered at High
School

10.55.906(1)(a) – Basic Education Program Area Does Not Meet
Required Minutes at High School

20-1-301, MCA – Pupil Instruction Hours Not Met

Student Performance – Graduation Rate

Student Performance – Mathematics

Student Performance – Reading

Student Performance – Science

D2. Indicate the school's plan to remedy the deviation selected above:

A certified music teacher was hired in January 2019. At this time, this teacher plans to continue to teach into the 2019-2020 school year.

Do you have another deviation to address for this school?

Yes

No

D3. Select the assurance or student performance area where the school received a deviation.

10.55.601 – School Did Not Complete CSIP Report

10.55.701(2)(e-q) – School Does Not Have Required Policy

10.55.702 – Superintendent Not Endorsed

10.55.703 – Principal Not Endorsed

10.55.704(1) – No Superintendent FTE

10.55.704(1)(a-e) – Insufficient Superintendent FTE

10.55.704(2) – No Curriculum Coordinator FTE

10.55.704(2) – Insufficient Curriculum Coordinator FTE

10.55.705(2) – No Principal FTE

10.55.705(2)(a-g) – Insufficient Principal FTE

10.55.707 – Nonlicensed Teacher

10.55.707(1) – Library Media Specialist Nonlicensed

10.55.707(4) – School Counselor Nonlicensed

10.55.704(4) – School Counselor Not Endorsed

10.55.708 – Misassigned Teacher/School Administrator

10.55.708 – Library Media Specialist Not Endorsed

10.55.709(1) – No Library Media Specialist FTE

10.55.709(1)(a-f) – Insufficient Library Media Specialist FTE

10.55.710 – No School Counselor FTE

10.55.710 – Insufficient School Counselor FTE

10.55.712 – Class Size: Elementary

10.55.713 – Class Size: Middle Grades and High School

10.55.714 – No Professional Development Advisory Committee

10.55.716 – Long-Term Substitute Nonlicensed

10.55.902(2) – Basic Education Program Area Not Offered at Middle
Grades School

10.55.902(4)(d) – Basic Education Program Area Does Not Meet
Required Minutes at Middle Grades School

10.55.904(3) – Basic Education Program Area Not Offered at High
School

10.55.906(1)(a) – Basic Education Program Area Does Not Meet
Required Minutes at High School

20-1-301, MCA – Pupil Instruction Hours Not Met

Student Performance – Graduation Rate

Student Performance – Mathematics

Student Performance – Reading

Student Performance – Science

D3. Indicate the school's plan to remedy the deviation selected above:

The certified teacher who was misassigned as a music teacher has been moved to the counselor role and we are utilizing the Montana Small School
Alliance to offer her support in performance of this role until she can complete her certification in this area.

Do you have another deviation to address for this school?

Yes

No



CoName  Sheridan

LE  Medicine Lake K-12 Schools, LE0822

School  Medicine Lake High School, SC1065

2018-2019 Corrective Plan Form

A separate Corrective Plan must be completed for EACH school that has an accreditation status of ADVICE or DEFICIENCY for the 2018-
2019 school year.

Please select the county, district and school for which you are submitting  a plan.

All assurance and student performance deviations on the Final Accreditation Report must be addressed.

D1. Select the assurance or student performance area where the school received a deviation.

10.55.601 – School Did Not Complete CSIP Report

10.55.701(2)(e-q) – School Does Not Have Required Policy

10.55.702 – Superintendent is Nonlicensed

10.55.702 - Superintendent is not properly endorsed

10.55.703 – Principal  is Nonlicensed

10.55.703 - Principal is not properly endorsed

10.55.704(1)(a-e) – No Superintendent FTE

10.55.704(1)(a-e) – Insufficient Superintendent FTE

10.55.704(2) – No Curriculum Coordinator FTE

10.55.704(2) – Insufficient Curriculum Coordinator FTE

10.55.704(2) Curriculum Coordinator is Nonlicensed

10.55.704(2) Curriculum Coordinator is not properly endorsed

10.55.705(2)(a-g) – No Principal FTE

10.55.705(2)(a-g) – Insufficient Principal FTE

10.55.707(1) – Library Media Specialist Nonlicensed

10.55.707 – Nonlicensed Teacher

10.55.707(1) - Activities/Athletic Director Nonlicensed

10.55.701(1) - Dean of Students Nonlicensed

10.55.707(4) – School Counselor Nonlicensed

10.55.704(4) – School Counselor Not Endorsed

10.55.708 – Misassigned Teacher

10.55.708 – Library Media Specialist Not Endorsed

10.55.709(1)(a-f) – No Library Media Specialist FTE

10.55.709(1)(a-f) – Insufficient Library Media Specialist FTE

10.55.710 – No School Counselor FTE

10.55.710 – Insufficient School Counselor FTE

10.55.712 – Class Size: Elementary

10.55.713 – Class Size: Middle Grades and High School

10.55.714(2) - School does not have the minimum of three PIR days
devoted to professional development

10.55.716(1)(b) – Long-Term Substitute Nonlicensed

10.55.902(2) – Basic Education Program Area Not Offered at Middle
Grades School

10.55.902(4) – Basic Education Program Area Not Offered at Junior
High or 7-8

10.55.902(4)(d) – Basic Education Program Area Does Not Meet
Required Minutes at Middle Grades School

10.55.904(3) – Basic Education Program Area Not Offered at High
School

10.55.906(1)(a) – Basic Education Program Area Does Not Meet
Required Minutes at High School

20-1-301 (2), MCA – Required aggregate hours not met

Student Performance – Graduation Rate

Student Performance – Mathematics

Student Performance – Reading

Student Performance – Science

D1. Indicate the school's plan to remedy the deviation selected above:

Non-licensed teacher has been removed from the employ of the district. Students were placed in an online program (Odyssey) for the remainder of the
year to complete English work. The position for English teacher has been posted. Administration will continue recruitment efforts to find certified, qualified
teacher for this role.

Do you have another deviation to address for this school?

Yes

No

Submit date: Mar 29, 2019                         



D2. Select the assurance or student performance area where the school received a deviation.

10.55.601 – School Did Not Complete CSIP Report

10.55.701(2)(e-q) – School Does Not Have Required Policy

10.55.702 – Superintendent Not Endorsed

10.55.703 – Principal Not Endorsed

10.55.704(1) – No Superintendent FTE

10.55.704(1)(a-e) – Insufficient Superintendent FTE

10.55.704(2) – No Curriculum Coordinator FTE

10.55.704(2) – Insufficient Curriculum Coordinator FTE

10.55.705(2) – No Principal FTE

10.55.705(2)(a-g) – Insufficient Principal FTE

10.55.707 – Nonlicensed Teacher

10.55.707(1) – Library Media Specialist Nonlicensed

10.55.707(4) – School Counselor Nonlicensed

10.55.704(4) – School Counselor Not Endorsed

10.55.708 – Misassigned Teacher/School Administrator

10.55.708 – Library Media Specialist Not Endorsed

10.55.709(1) – No Library Media Specialist FTE

10.55.709(1)(a-f) – Insufficient Library Media Specialist FTE

10.55.710 – No School Counselor FTE

10.55.710 – Insufficient School Counselor FTE

10.55.712 – Class Size: Elementary

10.55.713 – Class Size: Middle Grades and High School

10.55.714 – No Professional Development Advisory Committee

10.55.716 – Long-Term Substitute Nonlicensed

10.55.902(2) – Basic Education Program Area Not Offered at Middle
Grades School

10.55.902(4)(d) – Basic Education Program Area Does Not Meet
Required Minutes at Middle Grades School

10.55.904(3) – Basic Education Program Area Not Offered at High
School

10.55.906(1)(a) – Basic Education Program Area Does Not Meet
Required Minutes at High School

20-1-301, MCA – Pupil Instruction Hours Not Met

Student Performance – Graduation Rate

Student Performance – Mathematics

Student Performance – Reading

Student Performance – Science

D2. Indicate the school's plan to remedy the deviation selected above:

The certified teacher who was misassigned as a music teacher has been moved to the counselor role and we are utilizing the Montana Small School
Alliance to offer her support in performance of this role until she can complete her certification in this area.

Do you have another deviation to address for this school?

Yes

No



CoName Sheridan

LE Medicine Lake K-12 Schools, LE0822

School Medicine Lake School, SC1064

2018-2019 Corrective Plan Form

A separate Corrective Plan must be completed for EACH school that has an accreditation status of ADVICE or DEFICIENCY for the 2018-
2019 school year.

Please select the county, district and school for which you are submitting  a plan.

All assurance and student performance deviations on the Final Accreditation Report must be addressed.

D1. Select the assurance or student performance area where the school received a deviation.

10.55.601 – School Did Not Complete CSIP Report

10.55.701(2)(e-q) – School Does Not Have Required Policy

10.55.702 – Superintendent is Nonlicensed

10.55.702 - Superintendent is not properly endorsed

10.55.703 – Principal  is Nonlicensed

10.55.703 - Principal is not properly endorsed

10.55.704(1)(a-e) – No Superintendent FTE

10.55.704(1)(a-e) – Insufficient Superintendent FTE

10.55.704(2) – No Curriculum Coordinator FTE

10.55.704(2) – Insufficient Curriculum Coordinator FTE

10.55.704(2) Curriculum Coordinator is Nonlicensed

10.55.704(2) Curriculum Coordinator is not properly endorsed

10.55.705(2)(a-g) – No Principal FTE

10.55.705(2)(a-g) – Insufficient Principal FTE

10.55.707(1) – Library Media Specialist Nonlicensed

10.55.707 – Nonlicensed Teacher

10.55.707(1) - Activities/Athletic Director Nonlicensed

10.55.701(1) - Dean of Students Nonlicensed

10.55.707(4) – School Counselor Nonlicensed

10.55.704(4) – School Counselor Not Endorsed

10.55.708 – Misassigned Teacher

10.55.708 – Library Media Specialist Not Endorsed

10.55.709(1)(a-f) – No Library Media Specialist FTE

10.55.709(1)(a-f) – Insufficient Library Media Specialist FTE

10.55.710 – No School Counselor FTE

10.55.710 – Insufficient School Counselor FTE

10.55.712 – Class Size: Elementary

10.55.713 – Class Size: Middle Grades and High School

10.55.714(2) - School does not have the minimum of three PIR days
devoted to professional development

10.55.716(1)(b) – Long-Term Substitute Nonlicensed

10.55.902(2) – Basic Education Program Area Not Offered at Middle
Grades School

10.55.902(4) – Basic Education Program Area Not Offered at Junior
High or 7-8

10.55.902(4)(d) – Basic Education Program Area Does Not Meet
Required Minutes at Middle Grades School

10.55.904(3) – Basic Education Program Area Not Offered at High
School

10.55.906(1)(a) – Basic Education Program Area Does Not Meet
Required Minutes at High School

20-1-301 (2), MCA – Required aggregate hours not met

Student Performance – Graduation Rate

Student Performance – Mathematics

Student Performance – Reading

Student Performance – Science

D1. Indicate the school's plan to remedy the deviation selected above:

The master schedule is undergoing revision to provide fewer minutes of recess and more minutes of instruction, per 20-1-301(2)(c), MCA.

Do you have another deviation to address for this school?

Yes

No

Submit date: Mar 29, 2019         

Elementary (2 additional missing deficiencies)

10.55.708 Misassigned Teacher/ District continued the search for a Montana-endorsed music 
teacher and did hire one in January of 2019. This deviation is remedied, provided the teacher 
decides to stay for subsequent school years.

10.55.710(3) No School Counselor/ The certified teacher who was misassigned as a music teacher 
has been moved to the counselor role and we are utilizing the Montana Small School Alliance to 
offer her support in performance of this role until she can complete her certification in this area.  



 

 

 
 

Vaughn Public School 
“Home of the Wildcats” 

   
P.O. Box 279                                       Jan Cahill, Superintendent 
Vaughn MT 59487                                                        Liz Thibert, Business Manager 
406 965-2231                                                        jcahill@vaughnschool.com 
www.vaughnschool.com                                           lthibert@vaughnschool.com 
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
April 9, 2019 
 
Patty Muir 
Accreditation Program Director 
Montana Office of Public Education 
PO Box 20251 
Helena, MT 59620-2501 
 
Dear Ms. Muir: 
 
This letter is in response to action by the Board of Public Education on March 15, 2019, that resulted in 
the placement of the Hillcrest Colony Elementary School and Vaugh School in the Intensive Assistance 
Process due to continuing deviations from the Standards of Accreditation for Montana schools.  This 
letter is also in response to moving Vaughn 7-8 to Step 2 of the Intensive Assistance Process. 
 
The following is the corrective plan for Hillcrest Colony Elementary School, Vaughn School and Vaughn 
7-8: 
 

(1) Jennifer Henning is now fully certified by the Montana Office of Public Instruction SEID 74106 
(2) Tamera Buley is now fully certified by the Montana Office of Public Instruction SEID 136243 
(3) Ricky Anderson will not be returning to the Vaughn School for the 2019-2020 school year 
(4) A contract has been offered to a fully certified music teacher for the 2019-2020 school year 

 
A fully certified ELA teacher will be hired by the Vaughn School for the 2019-2020 school year.  That 
position was posted on the OPI job website on Tuesday, April 9, 2019.  Please note this position is subject 
to transfer by current certified staff pursuant to the Collective Bargaining Agreement. 
 
In the event the music teacher rejects the offer of employment, Vaughn School will continue to advertise 
the position.  In the event the District does not receive any additional applications or determines an 
applicant does not meet the criteria for the music position, the District may need to request emergency 
authorization (Rule 10.57.107).   
 
 
 
 



Sincerely, 
 
 
Jan Cahill 
Superintendent 
Vaughn School 
965-2231 (office) 89 
9-1988 (cell) 



BOX ELDER PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
District no. 13-G, Hill County 
Box Elder, Montana 59521 

April 29, 2019 

Montana Board of Education 
Office of Public Instruction 

RE: Box Elder Schools Deficiencies 2018-19 

Dear Board of Education: 

Box Elder School District 13&G received a number of deficiencies on our Final Accreditation Status for the 
2018-19 school year.   

In School 0570 Box Elder School we had deficiencies for Teacher, Specialist, and Professional Licensure and 
Licensure and Duties of School Principal.  The following educators, Terra Bremner, Jacob Eldridge, and 
Raelynn Genereux were listed as nonlicensed.  Ms. Bremner was a new teacher and now has a current license.  
Mrs. Genereux is a veteran teacher and has since updated her license and is currently licensed.  Mr. Eldridge is 
working with Kristine Thatcher from OPI and Darlene Sellers from MSU-Northern to obtain a provisional 
license.  He has informed me he has submitted all required documents from a letter dated 4/4/19 from OPI to 
obtain his provisional license.  Our principal, Julie MacDonald completed the Internship program through the 
University of Montana, submitted required documents to OPI and currently is a licensed principal.   

School 1710 Box Elder 7-8 received deficiencies for Teacher, Specialist, and Professional Licensure and 
Student Performance Standards Level.  The license issue was regarding Mr. Eldridge and details about 
correcting the situation are included in the above paragraph.  To address our student performance we are 
updating our Science Curriculum to better meet the Next Generation Science Standards.  We also have 
professional development planned for staff and administrators and will be analyzing and evaluating our 
performance scores over the summer to determine new efforts to improve our scores.  

School 0571 Box Elder High School received deficiencies for Teacher, Specialist, and Professional Licensure 
and Student Performance Standards Level.  Mr. Eldridge license is being addressed as stated previously.  To 
increase our ACT Math scores we are planning to devote an elective class for juniors in the Fall of 2019 to 
ACT and implement a new curriculum, Eureka Math for our high school.  We have just hired a Junior High/
High School Principal who was previously a math teacher and we have added a new math teacher who brings 
many years of experience to the District.   

Box Elder’s Board of Trustees and Administration are addressing the deficiencies for the 2018-19 year to the 
best of our abilities.  Traditionally test scores have been below state averages and we plan to make 
improvements in this area.  We will be implementing additional checks on paperwork in our personnel 
department to ensure licenses are current and we avoid any additional deficiencies for Teacher, Specialist, and 
Professional Licensure in the future.   

Sincerely, 

Jeremy MacDonald 
Superintendent 
Box Elder Schools 
(406) 352-4195





Plevna School District #55 
___________________________________________________________________________________ 

327 North Main, Plevna, MT  59344    Nick Schumacher, Superintendent 

Business Office: (406) 772-5666     Website:  www.plevna.k12.mt.us 

 

During the accreditation period of the SY 2018-19 school year, Plevna 7-8 School and the Plevna 

High School have been assigned a Deficiency Status for a Non-Licensed Teacher.  SY2018-19 was 

the fourth Deficiency in accreditation in the past five school years.  Clearly, the approach of the 

district to employ fully licensed educators has been ineffective.   

First,  the non-licensed teacher for the 2018-19 school year received his full Broadfield Social 

Studies Endorsement on 04 December 2018.  The date required for licensure for accreditation is 

01 December.  We have remedied the SY2018-19 Deficiency.    

Secondly.  Two or more of our schools have been awarded a deficiency in four of our last five 

school years.  As a district, a more proactive approach to teacher recruitment and licensure is 

required moving forward.  Outlined below is the corrective plan for Plevna School District #55 

Accreditation Deficiency:   

- The district will recruit quality educators fully endorsed in their area of service.  Full 

endorsement implies that candidates will possess a current State of Montana Teaching 

License with the proper endorsement in an area of need.   

- When quality “in-state” applicants are not available, the District will recruit 

quality educators from outside of Montana.  Candidates will be fully licensed in 

their home state and required to procure a Montana Teaching License with the 

appropriate endorsement(s) within 60 calendar days after the candidate begins 

to perform services in the district.   

- The District will work with the County Superintendent to adhere to Montana Code 

Annotated 20-4-202.   

- Teachers employed by the district shall register their Montana Teaching License 

with the county superintendent in order to validate employment status and 

permit payment under the employment contract.   

- Teachers employed by the district must register their Montana Teaching License 

with the county superintendent within (Sixty) 60 calendar days after the teacher 

begins to perform services.   

 



- If a teacher employed by the district fails to register their Montana Teaching 

License with the county superintendent, the teacher is not eligible to receive any 

further compensation under the contract of employment until the teacher has 

registered his/her License.   

- Teachers failing to register their Montana Teaching License with county 

superintendent may be retained in the capacity of a substitute teacher.  

- The district will apply for and register an emergency authorization of 

employment.  Such authorization will enable to teacher to return to the 

performance of services and receive compensation as agreed under the 

contract of employment.     

- Should a teacher prove ineligible for an emergency authorization or 

otherwise have an emergency authorization revoked, The teacher will not 

be eligible to receive further compensation under the contract of 

employment.  

 

Sincerely,  

 

 

Nick Schumacher 
Superintendent                   



ACTION 
 
 

ITEM 15 
 
 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE 2018-
2019 CORRECTIVE PLANS AND 

TIMELINES OF ACCREDITED SCHOOLS 
IN ONGOING ASSITANCE OF THE 

INTENSIVE ASSISTANCE PROCESS 
 
 

Patty Muir 
  



 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date: May 9, 2019 
  

Presentation Recommend Approval of the 2018-2019 
Corrective Plans and Timelines of Accredited 
Schools in Ongoing Assistance of the 
Intensive Assistance Process. 

  

Presenter Patty Muir, M.Ed. 
 

Position Title Accreditation Program Director 
Office of Public Instruction 

  

Overview This presentation provides the Board of 
Public Education the 2018-19 Corrective Plans 
and Timelines for schools in Ongoing 
Assistance of the Intensive Assistance 
Process. 
 

  

Requested Decision(s) Action 
  

Related Issue(s) None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 



 

 

Recommendation(s) Action One: Recommend APPROVAL of the  
2018-2019 Corrective Plan and Timeline for 
Northern Cheyenne Tribal Elementary. 
 
Action Two:  Recommend APPROVAL of the  
2018-2019 Corrective Plan and Timeline for 
Northern Cheyenne Tribal 7-8. 
 
Action Three: Recommend APPROVAL of the 
2018-2019 Corrective Plan and Timeline for 
Northern Cheyenne Tribal High School.  
 
Action Four: Recommend APPROVAL of the  
2018-2019 Corrective Plan and Timeline for 
Helena High School. 
 
Action Five: Recommend APPROVAL of the  
2018-2019 Corrective Plan and Timeline for 
Lustre School. 
 
Action Six: Recommend APPROVAL of the  
2018-2019 Corrective Plan and Timeline for 
Wolf Point 7-8. 
 
Action Seven: Recommend APPROVAL of the  
2018-2019 Corrective Plan and Timeline for 
Box Elder High School.  



Corrective Plan Presentations for Schools in Ongoing Assistance Intensive Assistance 

 

5/9/19 & 5/10/19  Page 1 of 4 
 

1st Year in Ongoing Assistance 

 

Northern Cheyenne Tribal Schools 

• Northern Cheyenne Tribal Elementary 

• Northern Cheyenne Tribal 7-8 

• Northern Cheyenne Tribal High School 

 

Helena Public Schools 

• Helena High School 

 

Lustre Elementary 

• Lustre School 

 

 

3rd Year in Ongoing Assistance 

 

Wolf Point Public Schools 

• Wolf Point 7-8 

 

 

4th Year in Ongoing Assistance 

 

Box Elder Public Schools 

• Box Elder High School 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



Corrective Plan Presentations for Schools in Ongoing Assistance Intensive Assistance 

 

5/9/19 & 5/10/19  Page 2 of 4 
 

1st Year in Ongoing Assistance 

Northern Cheyenne Tribal Schools 

 

Northern Cheyenne Tribal Elementary 

Year Accreditation 
Status 

Assurance 
Level 

Performance 
Level 

Assurance Deviations (Years of Occurrence) 

2018-2019 DEFICIENCY Regular Deficiency  

2017-2018 DEFICIENCY Regular Deficiency  

2016-2017 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular MD Nonlicensed Teacher 

2015-2016 REGULAR Regular Regular MD  

2014-2015 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Advice Nonlicensed Teacher (2) 

Nonlicensed School Counselor 

No Curriculum Coordinator FTE (2) 

Dean of Students Not Endorsed 

Principal Not Endorsed 

 

 

Northern Cheyenne Tribal 7-8 

Year Accreditation 
Status 

Assurance 
Level 

Performance 
Level 

Assurance Deviations (Years of Occurrence) 

2018-2019 DEFICIENCY Regular Deficiency  

2017-2018 DEFICIENCY Regular Deficiency  

2016-2017 ADVICE Advice Regular MD Basic Education Program 

Misassigned Teacher 

2015-2016 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Advice Nonlicensed Teacher 

2014-2015 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Advice No School Counselor FTE (2) 

No Curriculum Coordinator FTE (2) 

Dean of Students Not Endorsed 

 
 

Northern Cheyenne Tribal High School 

Year Accreditation 
Status 

Assurance 
Level 

Performance 
Level 

Assurance Deviations (Years of Occurrence) 

2018-2019 DEFICIENCY Regular Deficiency  

2017-2018 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Deficiency Nonlicensed Teacher 

2016-2017 ADVICE Advice Advice Basic Education Program 

Misassigned Teacher 

2015-2016 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Deficiency Nonlicensed Teacher (3) 

2014-2015 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Deficiency Nonlicensed Teacher (2) 

Dean of Students Not Endorsed (2) 

Nonlicensed School Counselor 

No Curriculum Coordinator FTE (2) 

Principal Not Endorsed 

 

 



Corrective Plan Presentations for Schools in Ongoing Assistance Intensive Assistance 

 

5/9/19 & 5/10/19  Page 3 of 4 
 

Helena Public Schools 

 

Helena High School 

Year Accreditation 
Status 

Assurance 
Level 

Performance 
Level 

Assurance Deviations (Years of Occurrence) 

2018-2019 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular MD Nonlicensed Superintendent 

2017-2018 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Nonlicensed Athletic Director 

Misassigned Teacher 

2016-2017 REGULAR Regular Regular MD  

2015-2016 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Class Size (8) 

2014-2015 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Class Size (7) 

Nonlicensed Teacher (2) 

Board of Trustees Policies 

 

 

Lustre Elementary 

 

Lustre School 

Year Accreditation 
Status 

Assurance 
Level 

Performance 
Level 

Assurance Deviations (Years of Occurrence) 

2018-2019 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Nonlicensed Teacher (2) 

 

2017-2018 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Nonlicensed Teacher 

2016-2017 REGULAR Regular Regular  

2015-2016 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Misassigned Teacher (6) 

2014-2015 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular Misassigned Teacher (5) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



Corrective Plan Presentations for Schools in Ongoing Assistance Intensive Assistance 

 

5/9/19 & 5/10/19  Page 4 of 4 
 

3rd Year in Ongoing Assistance 

 

Wolf Point Public Schools 
 

Wolf Point 7-8 

Year Accreditation 
Status 

Assurance 
Level 

Performance 
Level 

Assurance Deviations (Years of Occurrence) 

2018-2019 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Deficiency Misassigned Teacher (4) 

Nonlicensed Library Media Specialist 

2017-2018 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Deficiency Misassigned Teacher (3) 

No Library Media Specialist FTE 

Nonlicensed Long-Term Substitute 

Nonlicensed Teacher 

2016-2017 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular MD Misassigned Teacher (2) 

Basic Education Program 

2015-2016 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular MD No Library Media Specialist FTE 

Nonlicensed Teacher 

Misassigned Teacher 

2014-2015 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular MD CSIP Not Completed 

Basic Education Program 

Insufficient Library media Specialist FTE 

 

 

 

4th Year in Ongoing Assistance 

 

Box Elder Public Schools 
 

Box Elder High School 

Year Accreditation 
Status 

Assurance 
Level 

Performance 
Level 

Assurance Deviations (Years of Occurrence) 

2018-2019 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Deficiency Nonlicensed Teacher 

2017-2018 DEFICIENCY Regular Deficiency  

2016-2017 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Regular MD No Curriculum Coordinator FTE 

Principal Not Endorsed 

2015-2016 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Advice Nonlicensed Teacher (3) 

2014-2015 DEFICIENCY Deficiency Deficiency Nonlicensed Teacher (2) 

Basic Education Program 

 



WOLF POINT PUBLIC SCHOOLS
scHool DtsTRtcT #45.45A, WOLF POTNT, MONTANA 59201-1538

District Ofllce
213 6th Ave. South
406-653-2361
Fax 406-653-1881

High School/Junior High
2 1 3 6th Ave. South
406-653-1200
Fax 4066593104

Northside School
710 4th Ave. North
406-653-1653
Fax 406653-2368

Southside School
415 4th Ave. South
406-653-1480
Fax 406-653-1483

Corrective Plan for Wolf Point Schools
Wolf Point 7-8

Dear Ms. Muir:

The Wolf Point Corrective Action Plan for Wolf Point 7-8 are as listed:

The school is using one Misassigned Teacher. The class is American lndian Language and we

have requested from the Tribal Board to assist uS so that teacher is properly endorsed with a

class 7. Next year, I believe that we need to do the necessary paperwork for a provisional in

this area if possible or possibly employ the individual that assist this teacher.

The other deviation is a Non-licensed Library Media Specialist. The individual currently in this

area is taking classes and is in the process of getting an endorsement.

lf you have any questions please contact me at (406) 653-5540.

Respectfully,

?,*
Robert D Osborne

District Superintendent

ACCREDITED AY THE MONTANA OFFICE OF PUBLIC INSTRUCTION AND NORTHWEST ASSOCIATION OF SCHOOLS AND COLLEGES





Hrblic Schools
. . - a great place to learrl

55 South Rodney Sh'eet. Helena, -\{ontana 59601

Board of Pu blic Education

46 North Last Chance Gulch, Suite 2B

He lena MT 59601

SUBJECT: Accreditation lntensive Corrective Plan

The Helena Public Schools has engaged the Office of Public lnstruction to address accreditation

deviations for 2018-2019. Two deficiencies noted were 1) Employing an Athletic Director without
appropriate licensure and 2) Employing a Superintendent without proper endorsement.

The District has taken the following action to resolve these deficiencies;

1)

2)

Hired a property licensed Athletic Director effective July 1, 2018, and

Tyler Ream, Superintendent will enroll in the University of Montana, lnternship Program for his

Superintendent Endorsement beginning in the Summer of 2019.

We appreciate the opportunity to resolve these issues and work with the Board and the Offlce of Public

lnstruction.

Sin erel

Tyler Ream, Superintendent

Helena Public Schools

o Area Code 406 o Human Resources Office 324-2010 r Insurance Office 324-2008. Sub OfIice 324-201 | .
o Business Office 324-2044. Payroll Office 324-2009 . Business Office Fa\ 324-2045 .

I



BOX ELDER PUBLIC SCHOOLS 
District no. 13-G, Hill County 
Box Elder, Montana 59521 

April 29, 2019 

Montana Board of Education 
Office of Public Instruction 

RE: Box Elder Schools Deficiencies 2018-19 

Dear Board of Education: 

Box Elder School District 13&G received a number of deficiencies on our Final Accreditation Status for the 
2018-19 school year.   

In School 0570 Box Elder School we had deficiencies for Teacher, Specialist, and Professional Licensure and 
Licensure and Duties of School Principal.  The following educators, Terra Bremner, Jacob Eldridge, and 
Raelynn Genereux were listed as nonlicensed.  Ms. Bremner was a new teacher and now has a current license.  
Mrs. Genereux is a veteran teacher and has since updated her license and is currently licensed.  Mr. Eldridge is 
working with Kristine Thatcher from OPI and Darlene Sellers from MSU-Northern to obtain a provisional 
license.  He has informed me he has submitted all required documents from a letter dated 4/4/19 from OPI to 
obtain his provisional license.  Our principal, Julie MacDonald completed the Internship program through the 
University of Montana, submitted required documents to OPI and currently is a licensed principal.   

School 1710 Box Elder 7-8 received deficiencies for Teacher, Specialist, and Professional Licensure and 
Student Performance Standards Level.  The license issue was regarding Mr. Eldridge and details about 
correcting the situation are included in the above paragraph.  To address our student performance we are 
updating our Science Curriculum to better meet the Next Generation Science Standards.  We also have 
professional development planned for staff and administrators and will be analyzing and evaluating our 
performance scores over the summer to determine new efforts to improve our scores.  

School 0571 Box Elder High School received deficiencies for Teacher, Specialist, and Professional Licensure 
and Student Performance Standards Level.  Mr. Eldridge license is being addressed as stated previously.  To 
increase our ACT Math scores we are planning to devote an elective class for juniors in the Fall of 2019 to 
ACT and implement a new curriculum, Eureka Math for our high school.  We have just hired a Junior High/
High School Principal who was previously a math teacher and we have added a new math teacher who brings 
many years of experience to the District.   

Box Elder’s Board of Trustees and Administration are addressing the deficiencies for the 2018-19 year to the 
best of our abilities.  Traditionally test scores have been below state averages and we plan to make 
improvements in this area.  We will be implementing additional checks on paperwork in our personnel 
department to ensure licenses are current and we avoid any additional deficiencies for Teacher, Specialist, and 
Professional Licensure in the future.   

Sincerely, 

Jeremy MacDonald 
Superintendent 
Box Elder Schools 
(406) 352-4195







ACTION 
 
 

ITEM 16 
 
 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE 
ADDENDUM(S) TO THE 2018-2019 ANNUAL 

ACCREDITATION STATUS REPORT OF ALL 
SCHOOLS 

 
 

Patty Muir 
  



 

 

 

 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date: May 9, 2019 
  

Presentation Addendum (s) 2018-19 Annual Accreditation 
Status Report of All Schools 

  
Presenter Patty Muir, M.Ed. 
 
Position Title Accreditation Program Director 

Office of Public Instruction 
  

Overview This presentation provides an update to the 
Board of Public Education on any addendums to 
the Annual Montana Accreditation Report. There 
are no addendums to the 2018-19 Annual 
Accreditation Status Report.  

  

Requested Decision(s) None 
  

Related Issue(s) None 
  

Recommendation(s) Information 
  



ACTION 
 
 

ITEM 17 
 
 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE 2018-2019 
INITIAL AND RENEWAL VARIANCE TO 

STANDARDS APPLICATIONS 
 
 

Patty Muir 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date: May 9, 2019 
  

Presentation Recommend Approval of 2019 Initial and Renewal 
Variances to Standards 

  
Presenter Patty Muir, M.Ed. 

  
Position Title Accreditation Program Director 
 Office of Public Instruction 

Overview  
 This presentation provides to the Board of Public 

Education (BPE) recommendations from the state 
superintendent to approve Initial and Renewal of 
Variances to Standards.  The summary report of 
the recommendations from the state 
superintendent is attached. 

Requested Decision(s)  

 Action 

Related Issue(s)  
  

Recommendation(s) Action One: Approve the recommendation of 
State Superintendent Arntzen of the three 
requests for Initial Variances to Standards. 
 
Action Two: Approve the recommendation of 
State Superintendent Arntzen of the three 
requests for Renewal of Variances to Standards. 

  



  Office of Public Instruction  
P.O. Box 202501  

Helena, MT 59620-2501  
406.444.5643  
888.231.9393  

406.444.0235 (TTY)  
opi.mt.gov 

 
 

 
Montana Board of Public Education 

May 9, 2019 

 
Superintendent’s Recommendations on the Applications for a Variances to Standards 

(ARM 10.55.604) Submitted by Schools, March 2019 for Implementation 
First Semester of the 2019-2020 School Year 

 
 
Initial Applications 
 

Application 1 
Ronan Middle School ‐ variance to ARM 10.55.709. The superintendent recommends approval of the 
initial request for the variance as submitted in this application. 
 
 
Application 2 
Whitehall Elementary, Whitehall Middle School, Whitehall High School ‐ variance to ARM 10.55.709. 
The superintendent recommends approval of the initial request for the variance as submitted in this 
application. 
 
 
Application 3 
Libby Middle School, Libby High School ‐ variance to ARM 10.55.709. The superintendent 
recommends approval of the initial request for the variance as submitted in this application. 

 
 
Renewal Applications 
 

Application 4 
Independent Elementary-variance to ARM 10.55.704 and 10.55.705. The superintendent 
recommends approval of the renewal request for the variance as submitted in this application. 
 
 
Application 5 
Loring Colony School, Malta K-5, Malta 6-7-8, Malta High School ‐ variance to ARM 10.55.709. The 
superintendent recommends approval of the renewal request for the variance as submitted in this 
application. 
 
 
Application 6 
Fort Smith Elementary ‐ variance to ARM 10.55.709. The superintendent recommends approval of the 
renewal request for the variance as submitted in this application. 

 
 























































































































































ACTION 
 
 

ITEM 18 
 
 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE NOTICE 
OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR HAZARD AND 

EMERGENCY PLANS 
 
 

Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: May 9-10, 2019 
  

Presentation Recommend Approval of the Notice of Public 
Hearing and Timeline pertaining to Hazard and 
Emergency Plans Rule Changes. 

  
Presenter Linda Vrooman Peterson 
 
Position Title Administrator  

Accreditation and Educator Preparation Division 
Office of Public Instruction 

  

Overview This is an action item.  
At the March meeting, the BPE approved the 
State Superintendent Arntzen’s recommendation 
for the OPI to develop the Notice of Public 
Hearing pertaining to Hazard and Emergency 
Plans. The Office of Public Instruction presents 
the Notice of Public Hearing and proposed 
timeline amending Administrative Rules of 
Montana 10.55.701 Board of Trustees pertaining 
to Hazard and Emergency Plans.  
The Notice and Timeline are attached. 

  

Requested Decision(s) Action. 
  

Related Issue(s)  
  

Recommendation(s) Recommend Approval of the Notice of Public 
Hearing and Timeline amending Administrative 
Rules of Montana 10.55.701 Board of Trustees 
pertaining to Hazard and Emergency Plans. 

  



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-55-286  

-1- 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

 
In the matter of the adoption of New 
Rule I and the amendment of ARM 
10.55.701 pertaining to hazard and 
emergency plans 

) 
) 
) 
) 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
PROPOSED ADOPTION AND 
AMENDMENT 

 
TO:  All Concerned Persons 
 
1.  On June 26, 2019 at 10:00 a.m., the Board of Public Education will hold a 

public hearing in the Superintendent’s Conference room at 1227 11th Avenue, 
Helena, Montana, to consider the proposed adoption and amendment of the above-
stated rules. 

 
2.  The Board will make reasonable accommodations for persons with 

disabilities who wish to participate in this rulemaking process or need an alternative 
accessible format of this notice.  If you require an accommodation, contact the Board 
of Public Education no later than 5:00 p.m. on June 19, 2019, to advise us of the 
nature of the accommodation that you need.  Please contact Pete Donovan, 
Executive Director, 46 N. Last Chance Gulch, Suite 2B, P.O. Box 200601, Helena, 
Montana, 59620-0601; telephone (406) 444-0300; fax (406) 444-0847; or e-mail 
pdonovan@mt.gov. 

 
3.  The rule as proposed to be adopted provides as follows: 
 

 NEW RULE I  HAZARD AND EMERGENCY PLANS  (1)  A local board of 
trustees shall adopt a policy addressing a school safety plan or emergency 
operations plan. The plan required by this rule shall be periodically reviewed and 
updated as determined necessary by the trustees based on changing circumstances 
pertaining to school safety. 

(2)  The plan shall include: 
(a)  Identification and assessment of the risks posed by potential local 

hazards within the boundaries of its school district; 
(b)  Designing and incorporating regularly-conducted disaster drills to address 

the hazards identified pursuant to 1(a); 
(c)  Prevention, mitigation, response, and recovery (before, during, and after) 

an event; and 
(d)  Training. 
 

AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, MCA 
 

4.  The rule as proposed to be amended provides as follows, new matter 
underlined, deleted matter interlined: 

 
10.55.701  BOARD OF TRUSTEES  (1) through (2)(p) remain the same. 

mailto:pdonovan@mt.gov


 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-55-286  

-2- 

(q)  a policy addressing hazard and emergency plans as outlined in NEW 
RULE I; 

(q) and (r) remain the same but are renumbered (r) and (s). 
(3) through (5) remain the same. 
 

AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-114, MCA 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, MCA 
 

5.  REASON: The Board of Public Education proposes to adopt and amend 
rules pertaining to hazard and emergency plans requiring Montana school district 
trustees adopt a school safety plan or emergency operations plan. School district 
trustees are required to certify to the OPI that a school safety plan or emergency 
operations plan has been adopted. Adopting and amending ARM 10.55.701 is the 
result of Legislative action amending § 20-1-401, MCA, Disaster Drills. Based on 
legislative action, the process for amending the standards of accreditation ensures 
every Montana school district board of trustees will meet the legislative intent by 
adopting, periodically reviewing, and updating the plan. 

 
6.  Concerned persons may submit their data, views, or arguments either 

orally or in writing at the hearing.  Written data, views, or arguments may also be 
submitted to: Pete Donovan, Executive Director, Board of Public Education, 46 N. 
Last Chance Gulch, Suite 2B, P.O. Box 200601, Helena, Montana, 59620-0601; 
telephone (406) 444-0300; fax (406) 444-0847; or e-mail pdonovan@mt.gov, and 
must be received no later than 5:00 p.m., June 26, 2019. 

 
7.  Pete Donovan, Executive Director, has been designated to preside over 

and conduct this hearing. 
 
8.  The Board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive 

notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency. Persons who wish to have 
their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name, e-
mail, and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies for which 
program the person wishes to receive notices.  Notices will be sent by e-mail unless 
a mailing preference is noted in the request.  Such written request may be mailed or 
delivered to the contact person in 2 above or may be made by completing a request 
form at any rules hearing held by the board. 

 
9.  The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply. 
 
10.  With regard to the requirements of 2-4-111, MCA, the board has 

determined that the amendment of the above-referenced rule will not significantly 
and directly impact small businesses. 

 
 
__________________   ________________________________ 
Pete Donovan    Darlene Schottle 
Rule Reviewer    Chair 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-55-286  

-3- 

      Board of Public Education 
   

Certified to the Secretary of State May 14, 2019. 
 



Proposed Timeline for Hazard and Emergency Plans 

Updated August of 2018 

• File Notice of Negotiated Rule Making (NRM) with SOS  April 17, 2018 

• Publish Notice of NRM in MAR     April 27, 2018 

• Initial presentation to BPE for introduction of proposed  May 10-11, 2018 

Negotiated Rulemaking process         

• Final Date to receive nominations/appointments for 

NRM Committee       May 25, 2018   

• OPI appoints NRM Committee     June 15, 2018 

• Initial presentation to BPE for introduction of proposed rule  July 13, 2018 

• First meeting of NRM Committee     August 14, 2018 

• Economic impact survey to districts and compile responses  October 29, 2018  

• Superintendent’s review of proposed language for  

proposed rules from NR Committee     November 30, 2019 

• Second NRM committee meeting     December 4, 2018  

• Recommendations of economic impact state report to BPE  March 14-15, 2019 

• Notice of proposed hearing with rule language as 

approved by the Superintendent submitted to BPE 

for vote to publish notice      May 9-10, 2019   

• File Notice of Public Hearing      May 14, 2019 

• Notice of Public Hearing is published     May 24, 2019  

• Proposed rule amendment and economic impact statement  

submitted to Education Interim Committee    June, 2019  

• Public Hearing        June 26, 2019   

• Final Date for Public comments     June 26, 2019   

• BPE review Notice of Amendment/Adoption and 

vote to amend/adopt rules      July 11-12, 2019  

• File Notice of Amendment/Adoption     July 30, 2019 

• Publication date of Notice of Amendment/Adoption   August 9, 2019 

• Effective Date of rules       August 9, 2019 

 

*Committee meeting dates not determined at this time.   



ACTION 
 
 

ITEM 19 
 
 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE 
ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT REPORT 

AND THE NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING 
COMMITTEE’S FINAL REPORT PERTAINING 

TO ARM 10.55.606, ACCREDITATION 
PROCESS 

 
 

Dr. Linda Peterson 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date: May 9-10, 2019 
  

Presentation Recommend Approval of the Economic Impact 
Statement Report pertaining to the  
Amendments of ARM 10.55.606 Accreditation 
Process.  

  
Presenter Linda Vrooman Peterson 

  
Position Title Division Administrator 
 Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Overview This is an action item. The Office of Public 
Instruction (OPI) presents to the Board of Public 
Education (BPE) the Economic Impact Statement 
Report and the proposed rule changes amending 
ARM 10.55.606(3)-(9) Accreditation Process 
recommended by State Superintendent Arntzen. 
In addition, the State Superintendent presents 
the Final Report of the Negotiated Rulemaking 
Committee for Accreditation Process ARM 
10.55.606. The Committee reached consensus on 
proposed rule changes to the accreditation 
process pertaining to student performance 
standards and on the Economic Impact Statement 
Report’s conclusions.  
Reports are attached.  
 

  

Requested Decision(s) Action 
  

Related Issue(s) The BPE will present the proposed accreditation 
rule changes and the Economic Impact Statement 
Report to the Education Interim Committee and 



 

 

will likely move forward with its formal 
rulemaking notices and hearings in July and 
September of 2019. 

Recommendation(s) Approve the Economic Impact Statement Report 
recommended by the State Superintendent. 
Request the OPI prepare the Notice of Public 
Hearing and Timeline to amend ARM 
10.55.606(3)-(9) Accreditation Process pertaining 
to student performance standards. 

  



Board of Public Education 
Standards of Accreditation, Chapter 55 

Draft Proposed Rule Change for ARM 10.55.606  

1 | Page 
WORKING DRAFT 

April 4, 2019 
 

opi.

 
Current Rule Language Draft Proposed Rule Change 

10.55.606 ACCREDITATION PROCESS (1) The categories of 
accreditation of a school shall be determined by using two sets 
of standards: 
 

Remains as is 

(a) Assurance standards; and 
(b) Student performance standards. 

Remains as is 

(2) Assurance standards are comprised of the following 
subchapters in ARM Title 10, chapter 55: 
 
(a)  Subchapter 6, General Provisions, ARM 10.55.601 through 
1.55.607; 
 
(b)  Subchapter 7, School Leadership, ARM 10.55.701 through 
10.55.719; 
 
(c)  Subchapter 8, Academic Requirements, ARM 
10.55.801 through 10.55.805; 
 
(d)  Subchapter 9, Educational Opportunity, ARM 
10.55.901 through 10.55.910; and 
 
(e)  Subchapter 10, Program Area Standards, ARM 
10.55.1001 through 10.55.1003. 

Remains as is 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Board of Public Education 
Standards of Accreditation, Chapter 55 

Draft Proposed Rule Change for ARM 10.55.606  

2 | Page 
WORKING DRAFT 

April 4, 2019 
 

opi.

 
(3) Student performance standards are comprised of 
student performance measures for each grade as follows: 
(a) Math and reading average scale score range for all 
students grades 3-8 and 10 and science average scale score 
range for all students grades 4, 8, and 10: 
 
(i) Level 1 = 300-250; 
(ii) Level 2 = 249-220; 
(iii)Level 3 = 219-210; 
(iv)Level 4 = 209-200; and  

(b)For high schools, graduate rate range:   

(i) Level 1 = 100.0%-75.0%; 

(ii) Level 2 = 74.9%-60.0%; 

(iii)  Level 3= 59.9%-55.0%; 

(iv) Level 4= 54.9%-0.0% 
 

 

(3) Student performance standards are described in 
Chapter 56 Assessment and defined in the state 
accountability system as recommended by the state 
superintendent and approved by the Board of Public 
Education (BPE). 
 
(a) BPE shall establish the minimum statistical threshold 
for reporting valid and reliable student group results and 
to protect student privacy based on the recommendation 
of the Office of Public Instruction. 
 
(b) Modifications to the accreditation determination 
procedures shall be made in writing by the state 
superintendent for consideration and approval by BPE.  

(i) Modifications shall be submitted after 
consultation with representative stakeholders.  

 
 

(4) For schools with any combination of  
grades only K-2, only the assurance standards will be 
used to determine accreditation status. 

(4) For schools with only combinations of grades PK-2, only the 
assurance standards shall be used to determine accreditation 
status. 

 (5) There shall be four levels for assurance standards and 
student performance standards used to determine 
accreditation status, as described in the Accreditation Status 
Criteria Reference Guide, a copy of which may be found at: 
http://www.opi.mt.gov/pdf/Accred/Ch55/Appendices.pdf. 
The highest level is 1 and the lowest level is 4. 

(5) There shall be four categories of assurance standards and 
student performance standards used to determine 
accreditation status, pursuant to ARM 10.55.605 Categories of 
Accreditation. 

http://www.opi.mt.gov/pdf/Accred/Ch55/Appendices.pdf


Board of Public Education 
Standards of Accreditation, Chapter 55 

Draft Proposed Rule Change for ARM 10.55.606  

3 | Page 
WORKING DRAFT 

April 4, 2019 
 

opi.

(6) A school shall be classified as regularly accredited by using 
the combined results of the assurance standards and student 
performance standards as follows: 
 
(a)  level 1 for all assurance standards and level 1 
or 2 for student performance standards; or 
 
(b)  level 1 or 2 for all assurance standards and 
level 1 for student performance standards. 
 

(6) A school shall be designated with Regular accreditation 
status by using the combined results of the assurance 
standards and student performance standards as follows: 
(a) Regular status for assurance standards and Regular status  
for student performance standards; 
 
(b) Regular status for assurance standards and Regular with 
Minor Deviations for student performance standards; or 
 
(c) Regular with Minor Deviations for assurance standards and 
Regular status for student performance standards.  
 

(7)  A school shall be classified as regularly accredited with 
minor deviation by using the combined results of the 
assurance standards and student performance standards with 
level 2 in any category in both sets of standards. 
 

(7) A school shall be designated with Regular with Minor 
Deviations accreditation status by using the combined results 
of both assurance standards and student performance 
standards with Regular with Minor Deviations. 

(8)  A school shall be classified as accredited with advice 
by using the combined results of the assurance standards 
and student performance standards with level 3 in any 
category in either set of standards. 
 

(8) A school shall be designated with Advice accreditation 
status by using the combined results of the assurance 
standards and student performance standards with Advice 
status in either set of standards, or as stated in ARM 10.55.605. 
 
 

(9)  A school shall be classified as accredited with deficiency by 
using the combined results of the assurance standards and 
student performance standards with level 4 in any category in 
either set of standards.  
 

(9) A school shall be designated with Deficiency accreditation 
status by using the combined results of the assurance 
standards and student performance standards with Deficiency 
status in either set of standards, or as stated in ARM 10.55.605. 

History: 20-2-114, MCA; IMP, 20-2-121, MCA; NEW, 2000 MAR p. 3340, Eff. 12/8/00; AMD, 2012 MAR p. 2042, Eff. 7/1/13.) 

 



Board of Public Education 
Standards of Accreditation, Chapter 55 

Draft Proposed Rule Change for ARM 10.55.606  

4 | Page 
WORKING DRAFT 

April 4, 2019 
 

opi.

References 

ARM 10.55.602 Definitions 

 (41) “Student performance standards" means minimal standards of a quality education, which measures student 

performance on annual state level summative assessments and graduation rates used to determine the accreditation status of a 

school. 

ARM 10.55.601 Accreditation Standards: Procedures 

(3)(iv) a description of strategies for assessing student progress toward meeting all content standards, pursuant to the 

requirements of ARM 10.55.603 and ARM 10.56.101; 

ARM 10.55.603 Curriculum and Assessment 

 (3) School districts shall assess the progress of all students toward achieving content standards and content-specific grade-level 

learning progressions in each program area. The district shall use assessment results, including state-level achievement information 

obtained by administration of assessments pursuant to ARM 10.56.101 to examine the educational program and measure its 

effectiveness. 

(5)(b) School districts shall use appropriate multiple measures and methods, including state-level achievement information 

obtained by administration of assessments pursuant to the requirements of ARM 10.56.101, to assess student progress in achieving 

content standards and content-specific grade-level learning progressions in all program areas.  



Board of Public Education 
Standards of Accreditation, Chapter 55 

Draft Proposed Rule Change for ARM 10.55.606  

5 | Page 
WORKING DRAFT 

April 4, 2019 
 

opi.

ARM 10.56.101 Statewide Assessment  

(1) By the authority of 20-2-121(12), MCA and ARM 10.55.603, the Board of Public Education adopts rules for state-level assessment in the 
public schools and those private schools seeking 
accreditation. 
(1) (2) The Board of Public Education (Board) recognizes that the primary purpose of assessment is to serve learning. A balanced 
assessment system including formative, interim, and summative assessments aligned to state content standards, will provide an 
integrated approach to meeting both classroom learning needs and school and state level information needs. A balanced assessment 
system is structured to continuously improve teaching and learning and to inform education policy. 
(2)(3) The obligation for funding the assessments is the responsibility of the state. This chapter may not be construed to require a school 
district to provide these assessments if the state does not have a current contract with test vendors for provision of these assessments to 
Montana school districts. 
(3)(4) The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall recommend in writing to the Board any modifications to the single system of state 
level assessment as set forth in (1)(2). The Board may consider recommended modifications as an information item on an agenda at a 
board meeting. At that meeting, the Board may vote to list the recommendations as an action item on the agenda of a subsequent Board 
meeting. Unless approved by the Board, no recommended modifications are effective and no accredited schools may implement the 
recommended modifications. 
(4)(5) When developing a recommendation to the Board for adopting statewide assessments the Superintendent of Public Instruction will 
include implications including alignment to content standards. 
(5) The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall: 
(a) ensure Montana educators participate in the process; 
(b) ensure that all statewide test items are field tested before being used to 
determine proficiency; and 
(b) (c) request approval from the Board to allow for census field testing before 
determining proficiencies. 
 
AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, MC 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-7-402, MCA 
  



Board of Public Education 
Standards of Accreditation, Chapter 55 

Draft Proposed Rule Change for ARM 10.55.606  

6 | Page 
WORKING DRAFT 

April 4, 2019 
 

opi.

 
NEW RULE I PARTICIPATION (1) By the authority of §20-2-121(11) and ARM 10.55.603, the Board of Public of Education (Board) adopts 
rules for statewide assessment in all public and accredited nonpublic schools. 

(2) Statewide assessments approved by the Board shall be administered in all public and accredited nonpublic schools. 
(3) School districts shall annually administer statewide assessments to all students 
(a) in accordance with state and federal laws and regulations that meet or exceed the specifications below: 
(i) The English language arts and mathematics assessments shall be aligned to Montana content standards in English language arts 

and mathematics and administered 
in grades 3-8 and 11; 

(ii) The science assessments shall be aligned to Montana content standards for science and administered in grades 5, 8, and 11; 
and 

(iii) The assessments shall be administered in the spring of the year. 
(b) State-level assessments aligned to Montana English language proficiency standards shall be administered to all students 

identified as Limited English Proficient 
(LEP) in grades K-12. These assessments shall be administered mid-school year. 

(c) The Board of Public Education may approve alternative grade levels and timelines for the administration of statewide 
assessments due to the availability of assessments and other academic factors. 

(4) School districts shall use guidance provided by the Office of Public Instruction to inform parents/guardians about statewide 
assessments, including: 

(a) the purpose; 
(b) the source of the requirement; 
(c) when the information about student performance is provided to teachers and 

parents; 
(d) how teachers, principals, and district officials use the information about 

student performance; and 
(e) how parents can use that information to help their child. 
 

AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, MC 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-7-402, MCA 
  



Board of Public Education 
Standards of Accreditation, Chapter 55 

Draft Proposed Rule Change for ARM 10.55.606  

7 | Page 
WORKING DRAFT 

April 4, 2019 
 

opi.

 
NEW RULE II TEST SECURITY (1) The Office of Public Instruction has the responsibility to audit test administration activities to monitor 
adherence to test security and best practices without undue disruption to schools. 
(2) All statewide assessments must be administered to students only by school district employees who have been trained and are familiar 
with standardized testing procedures. 
(3) Suspected violations of test security must immediately be reported to the Office of Public Instruction. 
(4) Failure to comply with the test administration and security requirements may result in the Office Public Instruction making a 
recommendation for consequences up to reporting findings to the Board of Public Education for further action within the limits of its 
authority. 
 
AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, MC 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-7-402, MCA 
 
NEW RULE III ACCESSIBILITY AND ACCOMMODATIONS (1) Schools shall administer statewide assessments with or without 
accommodations based on individual student needs consistent with all state and federal laws and regulations. 
(2) The Individualized Education Program (IEP) team for a student shall determine if the student meets the eligibility criteria for the 
statewide alternate assessment based on the alternate achievement standards. 
(3) Schools shall use the guidance from the Superintendent of Public Instruction to identify English Learners (EL) and annually monitor 
individual progress in acquiring academic English consistent with all state and federal laws and regulations. 
 
AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, MC 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-7-402, MCA 
  



Board of Public Education 
Standards of Accreditation, Chapter 55 

Draft Proposed Rule Change for ARM 10.55.606  

8 | Page 
WORKING DRAFT 

April 4, 2019 
 

opi.

 
NEW RULE IV REPORTING (1) The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall provide a report of the annual state assessment results to the 
Legislature and Board of Public Education. 
(2) The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall make available student assessment data in compliance with confidentiality requirements 
of federal and state law (§ 20-7-104, MCA). To facilitate transparency, the statewide assessment results 
released to the public shall be accompanied by a clear statement of the purpose, subject areas assessed, description of proficiency levels, 
and the percent of students who participated in the assessments. 
(3) Statewide assessment results are a part of each student's permanent record 
as described in compliance with § 20-1-213 and § 20-7-104, MCA. 
 
AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, MC 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-7-402, MCA 



OPI Announces the Selection of the 
Negotiated Rulemaking Committee Members 
for Amending ARM 10.55.606(3)-(9) 
Accreditation Process 
Thursday, April 4, 2019/Categories: Office of Public Instruction/Tags: Office of Public 
Instruction , OPI , Administrative Rules of Montana , negotiated rulemaking , Board of Public 
Education , ARM , school accreditation  

Office of Public Instruction Announces the Selection of the Negotiated Rulemaking 
Committee Members for Amending Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.55.606(3)-

(9) Accreditation Process 

April 4, 2019 

HELENA—The Office of Public Instruction has selected 18 members to serve on the negotiated 
rulemaking committee to amend the ARM 10.55.606(3)-(9) Accreditation Process and consult on 
the preparation of an economic impact survey questionnaire. The purpose of this survey is to 
estimate what the impact of these proposed rule changes will be to local school district budgets. 
The negotiated rulemaking process is required by §20-7-101, Montana Code Annotated (MCA). 
The Negotiated Rulemaking Committee will provide a recommendation to the State 
Superintendent on the rule changes to ARM 10.55.606(3)-(9) pertaining to the student 
performance procedures used by the OPI during the accreditation process. 

Committee members represent a diverse group of Montanans who are experts in education, 
school accreditation, statewide assessment, culturally relevant practices, and school finance. 

Negotiated Rulemaking Facilitator: 

• Kirsten Madsen, MT Department of Justice, Legal Services Bureau Assistant Attorney 
General 

Negotiated Rulemaking Committee Members include: 

• Norah Barney, Anaconda Public Schools, Principal 
• Craig Barringer, Libby K-12, Superintendent 
• Sandra Beal, Ronan Public Schools, Principal 
• Bob Connors, Glasgow K-12, Superintendent 
• Scott Dubbs, Lewistown Public Schools, Curriculum Director 
• Mark Halgren, Belgrade Public Schools, Curriculum Director 
• Annette Hart, Rapelje Public Schools, Superintendent 
• Matthew Lewis, Lewistown Public Schools, Principal 

http://news.mt.gov/category/office-of-public-instruction-1
http://news.mt.gov/tag/office-of-public-instruction-1
http://news.mt.gov/tag/office-of-public-instruction-1
http://news.mt.gov/tag/opi-2
http://news.mt.gov/tag/administrative-rules-of-montana
http://news.mt.gov/tag/negotiated-rulemaking
http://news.mt.gov/tag/board-of-public-education
http://news.mt.gov/tag/board-of-public-education
http://news.mt.gov/tag/arm
http://news.mt.gov/tag/school-accreditation


• Erin Lipkind, Missoula County Superintendent 
• KT Northington, Bainville K-12 Schools, Business Manager 
• David Pafford, Noxon Public Schools, School Board Trustee 
• Michele Paine, Kalispell Public Schools, Principal 
• Lynne Peterson, Laurel Public Schools, Principal 
• Stephen Schreibeis, Glendive Public Schools, Superintendent 
• Karlona Sheppard, East Glacier Park Elementary, Superintendent 
• Ruth Uecker, Great Falls Public Schools, Assistant Superintendent 
• Dee Hensley-Maclean, Montana PTA Advocacy Chair 
• Jeremy MacDonald, Box Elder Public Schools, Superintendent 

Once the Committee finishes its work and makes a recommendation to the state superintendent, 
the next step is for the Board of Public Education to consider the recommended amendment, 
present the economic impact statement report to the Education Interim Committee, and begin the 
Montana Administrative Procedures Act rulemaking process. 

Additional Resources: 

Board of Public Education School Accreditation Standards and Procedures Manual: 

http://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/School%20Accreditation/Standards%20of%20Accre
ditation/AccreditationStandards_Ch55.pdf 

Office of Public Instruction Administrative Rules Notice Page: 

http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/School-Accreditation/Montana-
Accreditation-Process-Negotiated-Rulemaking-Committee 

Board of Public Education Home Page:  http://bpe.mt.gov/ 

Office of Public Instruction website of the Negotiated Rulemaking Committee for Accreditation 
Process: 

http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/School-Accreditation 

 

http://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/School%20Accreditation/Standards%20of%20Accreditation/AccreditationStandards_Ch55.pdf
http://opi.mt.gov/Portals/182/Page%20Files/School%20Accreditation/Standards%20of%20Accreditation/AccreditationStandards_Ch55.pdf
http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/School-Accreditation/Montana-Accreditation-Process-Negotiated-Rulemaking-Committee
http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/School-Accreditation/Montana-Accreditation-Process-Negotiated-Rulemaking-Committee
http://bpe.mt.gov/
http://opi.mt.gov/Leadership/Assessment-Accountability/School-Accreditation


Proposed Draft Timeline for Accreditation Process  

ARM 10.55.606 

OPI NEGOTIATED RULEMAKING BEGINS 

• File Notice of Negotiated Rulemaking (NR) with SOS   January 15, 2019 

• Initial presentation to BPE for introduction of proposed  January 18, 2019 

NR timeline  

• Publish Notice of NR in MAR      January 25, 2019 

• File Notice of NR Amendment in MAR    January 29, 2019 

• Publish Notice of NR Amendment in MAR    February 8, 2019 

• Final Date to receive nominations/applications for 
Negotiated Rulemaking Committee (NRC)    March 12, 2019 

• NR Proposed Timeline Presentation to BPE    March 14-15, 2019 

• OPI appoints NRC       March 27, 2019 

• First meeting of NRC       April 4, 2019 

• Economic impact survey to districts and compile responses  April 15, 2019 

• Second meeting of NRC      April 25, 2019  

• Proposed rule change and proposed economic impact statement  

from NRC reviewed by State Superintendent    April 26, 2019 

• Proposed rule change and economic impact statement 

to BPE         May 9-10, 2019 

• Proposed rule change and economic impact statement    

submitted by BPE to Education Interim Committee (EIC)  *One month prior  

*EIC meetings not confirmed at this time.    to EIC  

• Proposed rule change and economic impact statement 

presented to Education Interim Committee    June 2019*   
BPE MAPA PROCESS BEGINS 

• Notice of proposed hearing with rule language as  
approved by the Superintendent and submitted to BPE 
for vote to publish notice      July 11-12, 2019   

• File Notice of Public Hearing      July 2019 

• Notice of Public Hearing is published     August 2019 

• Public Hearing        August or Sept. 2019 

• Final Date for Public comments     September 2019 

• BPE review Notice of Amendment/Adoption and  

vote to amend/adopt rules      November 7-8, 2019 

• File Notice of Amendment/Adoption     November, 2019 

• Publication date of Notice of Amendment/Adoption   November, 2019 

• Effective Date of rules       December, 2019 



 

ECONOMIC IMPACT 
STATEMENT REPORT 
Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction April 2019 

 



Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Economic Impact Statement for Accreditation Process Student 
Performance Standards 

 

Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 | Page 2  

 

Contents  
Executive Summary ....................................................................................................... 3 
Introduction .................................................................................................................... 4 
Affected Classes of Persons ........................................................................................... 4 
Economic Impact ........................................................................................................... 4 
Cost to State Agencies ................................................................................................... 5 
Costs and Benefits of the Proposed Rule ....................................................................... 5 
Less Costly or Less Intrusive Methods .......................................................................... 6 
Selection of Proposed Rule ............................................................................................ 6 
Efficient Allocation of Public and Private Resources ................................................... 6 
Data Gathering and Analysis ......................................................................................... 6 
Conclusion ..................................................................................................................... 6 
Montana Code Annotated Reference ............................................................................. 7 
Attachment A—Proposed Rule Changes ....................................................................... 9 
Attachment B – Summary of Economic Impact Survey Responses ........................... 10 
Attachment C—Negotiated Rulemaking Committee Members .................................. 15 
Attachment D—Survey Questionnaire ........................................................................ 16 



Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Economic Impact Statement for Accreditation Process Student 
Performance Standards 

 

Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 | Page 3  

 

Executive Summary 
State Superintendent Elsie Arntzen selected 18 individuals to serve on the negotiated rulemaking 
committee to amend the ARM 10.55.606(3)-(9) accreditation process and consult on the preparation 
of an economic impact survey questionnaire. The purpose of this survey is to estimate the impact of 
these proposed rule changes to local school district operations and budgets. The negotiated 
rulemaking process is required by §20-7-101, Montana Code Annotated (MCA). The Negotiated 
Rulemaking Committee (Committee) will provide a recommendation to Superintendent Arntzen on 
the rule changes to ARM 10.55.606(3)-(9) pertaining to the student performance procedures used by 
the OPI during the accreditation process. 
The Committee met on April 4 and April 25, 2019 and reached consensus on language for proposed 
changes to the accreditation standards amending Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.55.606 
(3)-(9) Accreditation process Student performance standards. In consultation with the negotiated 
rulemaking committee, the Office of Public Instruction (OPI) developed an Economic Impact 
Statement pursuant to § 2-4-405, MCA relating to proposed accreditation standard changes as 
required.  

The survey data show no indication that the proposed rule changes would create a significant 
economic impact for districts and their schools. It is important to note the proposed rule changes are 
specific to OPI outlining the accreditation process and procedures to meet the statutory requirements 
pursuant to § 20-3-106, MCA, Supervision of schools – powers and duties to determine and report to 
the BPE the accreditation status of every accredited school in Montana. The rule changes do not 
include required action by local school district trustees.  

Based on the analysis of the survey results after consultation with the Negotiated Rulemaking 
Committee, the agency estimates there appears to be no impact of these proposed rule changes to 
local school district operations and budgets. 

 



Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Economic Impact Statement for Accreditation Process Student 
Performance Standards 

 

Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 | Page 4  

 

Introduction 
The Montana Superintendent of Public Instruction initiated the negotiated rulemaking process to 
amend the standards of accreditation. Results of amended standards of accreditation proposed by a 
negotiated rulemaking process are considered for adoption by the Board of Public Education based 
upon the recommendation of the Superintendent of Public Instruction. Proposed changes to the 
accreditation standards require that the Superintendent establish an independent negotiated 
rulemaking committee (Committee) under § 20-7-101, MCA. Superintendent Arntzen selected 18 
members to serve on the Committee. See Attachment C.  
The Committee completed its work and reached consensus on proposed rule changes for amending 
the standards of accreditation Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.55.606. A copy of the 
proposed rule changes is attached. See Attachment A.  
 
Economic Impact Statement Required Elements 
As required by § 20-7-101(1), MCA, the Montana Superintendent of Public Instruction has prepared 
in consultation with the Negotiated Rulemaking Committee this economic impact statement under 
the provisions of § 2-4-405, MCA. Each of the elements required to be addressed in the economic 
impact statement are outlined below. 

Affected Classes of Persons 
Describe the classes of persons who will be affected by the proposed rule including classes 
that will bear the costs of the proposed rule and classes that will benefit from the proposed 
rule. Refer to § 2‐4‐ 405 (2)(a), MCA. 

The classes of persons affected by the rule changes include individuals from the following groups: 
school district trustees, K-12 school administrators, K-12 teachers and counselors, school 
clerks/business officials, parents, and taxpayers. Members of the rulemaking Committee were 
selected based on the following criteria: cultural diversity, geographic distribution, accreditation 
knowledge and experience, statewide assessment knowledge and experience, district and school size, 
and grade levels served. 

Costs associated with the rule changes are the responsibility of the Office of Public Instruction. The 
beneficiaries of the rule changes are trustees, administrators, teachers, and students of local school 
districts as well as Montana communities served by accredited schools.  

Economic Impact 
Describe the probable economic impact of the proposed rule upon affected classes of persons 
including but not limited to providers of services under contracts with the state and affected 
small businesses, and quantifying, to the extent practicable, that impact. Refer to § 2‐4‐405 
(2)(b), MCA. 

OPI developed and distributed a questionnaire after consultation with the Negotiated Rulemaking 
Committee to determine the probable economic impact of the proposed rule changes to a local school 

https://leg.mt.gov/bills/mca/title_0200/chapter_0070/part_0010/section_0010/0200-0070-0010-0010.html


Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Economic Impact Statement for Accreditation Process Student 
Performance Standards 

 

Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 | Page 5  

 

district budget. The questionnaire was emailed to school district trustees, administrators, county 
superintendents, curriculum directors, school clerks, and Montana K-12 education stakeholders 
between April 9, 2019, and April 23, 2019. The questionnaire was emailed to 1,490 recipients 
through the OPI bulk email system. Sixteen responses were received. 

Respondents indicated school district budgets would not be impacted by the implementation 
of the rule changes of ARM 10.55.606(3) – (9).  

One respondent expressed an interest in giving more weight to student performance standards 
than to assurance standards. The purpose of the work of this negotiated rulemaking process is 
to amend the student performance measures parallel to Chapter 56 Assessment and the 
statewide accountability system. 

Sixteen respondents completed the questionnaire. OPI staff did call individuals to encourage 
respondents. The agency believes there were limited responses to the survey because ARM 10.55.606 
outlines the accreditation process and procedures used by the OPI Accreditation team. The proposed 
rule changes do not include required action by local school district trustees.  

Cost to State Agencies 

Describe and estimate the probable costs to the agency and to any other agency of the 
implementation and enforcement of the proposed rule and any anticipated effect on state 
revenue. Refer to § 2‐4‐ 405 (2)(c), MCA 

The Office of Public Instruction (OPI), in accordance with § 20-7-101, MCA, has incurred minimal 
costs associated with the negotiated rulemaking process, including contracting with a facilitator and 
convening the rulemaking committee. Total cost to the OPI for the negotiated rulemaking process is 
approximately $5,000. 

OPI does not anticipate additional costs associated with the implementation of the proposed rule 
changes pertaining to amending the student performance measures of ARM 10.55.606 (3) through 
(9). OPI’s Accreditation Unit will complete the accreditation review process and procedures 
determining accreditation status of every Montana accredited school.  

The Board of Public Education is responsible for filing fees of notices of public hearing of proposed 
rule changes and publication fees of notices of adoption and amendments with the Secretary of State 
at $60 per page. The costs associated with board member attendance at public hearings will be paid 
within the existing budget of the Board of Public Education. 

Costs and Benefits of the Proposed Rule 
Analyze and compare the costs and benefits of the proposed rule to the costs and benefits of 
inaction. Refer to § 2‐4‐405 (2)(d), MCA. 

Based on legislative action, the State Superintendent initiated the process for amending the 
standards of accreditation. The proposed rule changes will help assure school district trustees of the 
reliable and valid student performance measures used to determine accreditation status is also 
consistent data implemented for federal and other state programs.  



Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Economic Impact Statement for Accreditation Process Student 
Performance Standards 

 

Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 | Page 6  

 

The agency did not undertake analysis of the costs and benefits of “inaction.”  

The Summary of Survey Responses, Attachment B, addresses personnel expenses, available 
resources, and professional development budgetary areas of possible economic impact on school 
district operations and budgets.  

Less Costly or Less Intrusive Methods 
Are there less costly or less intrusive methods for achieving the purpose of the proposed rule? 
Refer to § 2‐4‐405 (2)(e), MCA. 

As indicated above, the purpose of the proposed rule Because the language of the rule changes 
reflects § 20-1-401, MCA, there is no less costly or less intrusive method for achieving the purpose 
of the proposed rule changes.  

It appears there is little to no economic impact to school district operations and budgets because the 
focus of the rule changes relates to OPI’s process and procedures in determining accreditation status 
of accredited schools in Montana.  

Selection of Proposed Rule 
Analyze any alternative methods for achieving the purpose of the proposed rule that were 
seriously considered by the agency and the reasons why they were rejected in favor of the 
proposed rule. Refer to § 2‐4‐405 (2)(f), MCA. 

The agency considered alternative methods for achieving the purpose of the proposed rule. Because 
the purpose of the rule changes is to implement process and procedures used by the OPI staff to 
determine accreditation status, the agency concentrated on rule implementation. 

Efficient Allocation of Public and Private Resources 
Does the proposed rule represent an efficient allocation of public and private resources? 
Refer to § 2‐4‐405 (2)(g), MCA. 

The proposed rule changes address the process and procedures of the agency to complete its statutory 
requirement of determining the accreditation status of accredited Montana schools. Efficient 
allocation of  public and private resources does not apply.  

Data Gathering and Analysis 
Quantify or describe the data upon which the economic impact statement was based and an 
explanation of how the data was gathered. Refer to § 2-4-405(2)(h), MCA. 

Attachment B is the summary of the economic impact survey results. 
  



Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Economic Impact Statement for Accreditation Process Student 
Performance Standards 

 

Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 | Page 7  

 

Between April 9 and April 23, 2019, the OPI distributed a questionnaire to survey school personnel 
and stakeholders about the probable economic impact of the rule changes. The survey questionnaire 
was individually emailed to approximately 1,460 recipients through the OPI bulk email system.  

Sixteen questionnaires were completed, and Attachment B provides a summary of the data received 
in those responses.  

The survey data show no indication that the proposed rule changes would create a significant 
economic impact for districts and their schools. It is important to note the proposed rule changes are 
specific to OPI outlining the accreditation process to better align student performance standards with 
the Statewide Assessment system. The proposed rule changes do not include required action by local 
school district trustees.  

Montana Code Annotated Reference  
 § 2-4-405, MCA.  Economic impact statement. (1) Upon written request of the appropriate 
administrative rule review committee based upon the affirmative request of most of the members 
of the committee at an open meeting, an agency shall prepare a statement of the economic impact 
of the adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule as proposed. The agency shall also prepare a 
statement upon receipt by the agency or the committee of a written request for a statement made 
by at least 15 legislators. If the request is received by the committee, the committee shall give the 
agency a copy of the request, and if the request is received by the agency, the agency shall give 
the committee a copy of the request. As an alternative, the committee may, by contract, prepare 
the estimate. 

(2) Except to the extent that the request expressly waives any one or more of the 
following, the requested statement must include, and the statement prepared by the 
committee may include: 

(a) a description of the classes of persons who will be affected by the proposed rule, 
including classes that will bear the costs of the proposed rule and classes that will benefit from the 
proposed rule; 

(b) a description of the probable economic impact of the proposed rule upon affected 
classes of persons, including but not limited to providers of services under contracts with the 
state and affected small businesses, and quantifying, to the extent practicable, that impact; 

(c) the probable costs to the agency and to any other agency of the implementation and 
enforcement of the proposed rule and any anticipated effect on state revenue; 

(d) an analysis comparing the costs and benefits of the proposed rule to the costs and 
benefits of inaction; 

(e) an analysis that determines whether there are less costly or less intrusive methods for 
achieving the purpose of the proposed rule; 

(f) an analysis of any alternative methods for achieving the purpose of the proposed rule 
that were seriously considered by the agency and the reasons why they were rejected in favor of 
the proposed rule; 

(g) a determination as to whether the proposed rule represents an efficient allocation of 
public and private resources; and 

(h) a quantification or description of the data upon which subsections (2)(a) through (2)(g) 
are based and an explanation of how the data was gathered. 

(3) A request to an agency for a statement or a decision to contract for the preparation of a 



Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Economic Impact Statement for Accreditation Process Student 
Performance Standards 

 

Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 | Page 8  

 

statement must be made prior to the final agency action on the rule. The statement must be filed 
with the appropriate administrative rule review committee within 3 months of the request or 
decision. A request or decision for an economic impact statement may be withdrawn at any 
time. 

(4) Upon receipt of an impact statement, the committee shall determine the sufficiency of 
the statement. If the committee determines that the statement is insufficient, the committee may 
return it to the agency or other person who prepared the statement and request that corrections or 
amendments be made. If the committee determines that the statement is sufficient, a notice, 
including a summary of the statement and indicating where a copy of the statement may be 
obtained, must be filed with the secretary of state for publication in the register by the agency 
preparing the statement or by the committee, if the statement is prepared under contract by the 
committee, and must be mailed to persons who have registered advance notice of the agency's 
rulemaking proceedings. 

(5) This section does not apply to rulemaking pursuant to § 2-4-303, MCA. 
(6) The final adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule is not subject to challenge in any 

court because of the inaccuracy or inadequacy of a statement required under this section. 
(7) An environmental impact statement prepared pursuant to §75‐1‐201 that includes an 

analysis of the factors listed in this section satisfies the provisions of this section. 



Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Economic Impact Statement for Accreditation Process Student 
Performance Standards 

 

  Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 | Page 9  

 

Attachment A—Proposed Rule Changes  

ARM 10.55.606 Accreditation Process 

(3) Student performance standards are described in Chapter 56 Assessment and defined in the 
state accountability system as recommended by the state superintendent and approved by the 
Board of Public Education (BPE). 
(a) BPE shall establish the minimum statistical threshold for reporting valid and reliable student 
group results and to protect student privacy based on the recommendation of the Office of 
Public Instruction. 
(b) Modifications to the accreditation determination procedures shall be made in writing by the 
state superintendent for consideration and approval by BPE.  
(i) Modifications shall be submitted after consultation with representative stakeholders. 

(4) For schools with only combinations of grades PK-2, only the assurance standards shall be used to 
determine accreditation status. 

(5) There shall be four categories of assurance standards and student performance standards used to 
determine accreditation status, pursuant to ARM 10.55.605 Categories of Accreditation.  

(6) A school shall be designated with Regular accreditation status by using the combined results of 
the assurance standards and student performance standards as follows: 
(a) Regular status for assurance standards and Regular status for student performance standards; 
(b) Regular status for assurance standards and Regular with Minor Deviations for student 
performance standards; or 
(c) Regular with Minor Deviations for assurance standards and Regular status for student 
performance standards. 

(7) A school shall be designated with Regular with Minor Deviations accreditation status by using the 
combined results of both the assurance standards and student performance standards with Regular 
with Minor Deviations. 

(8) A school shall be designated with Advice accreditation status by using the combined results of the 
assurance standards and student performance standards with Advice status in either set of standards, 
or as stated in ARM 10.55.605. 

(9) A school shall be designated with Deficiency accreditation status by using the combined results of 
the assurance standards and student performance standards with Deficiency status in either set of 
standards, or as stated in ARM 10.55.605.  



Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Economic Impact Statement for Accreditation Process Student 
Performance Standards 

 

  Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 | Page 10  

 

Attachment B – Summary of Economic Impact Survey Responses  

Survey Demographics  

 

Figure 1 

The above information in Figure 1 relates to the survey respondents’ school district size from AA to 

K-8 Elementary school districts. The respondents represent more small schools than larger school 

districts with over half of those surveyed representing K-8 Elementary and C districts. We also heard 

from AA, A, and B schools representing less than half of respondents.   



Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Economic Impact Statement for Accreditation Process Student 
Performance Standards 

 

  Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 | Page 11  

 

 

Figure 2  

Over half of respondents work as district superintendents and school clerks/business officials in 

Montana schools. The smallest groups of respondents were school administrative staff and 

superintendents.  

Personnel Expenses  

Do you believe there will be an economic impact on personnel and budget in your 

district?

 

Figure 3  



Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Economic Impact Statement for Accreditation Process Student 
Performance Standards 

 

  Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 | Page 12  

 

If yes, please explain below: 

 

Figure 3 shows the respondents’ answers to whether they perceive an impact on a district’s 
personnel budget from the proposed rule changes. Eleven respondents perceive no personnel 
expenditure increases will be necessary. Four did not know whether the new rule will have an 
impact while one respondent believed there would be additional personnel expenditures.  

Available Resources  

Figure 4 

If yes, please explain below: 

 
Question 2 addresses the perceived impact the proposed rule changes would have on a district’s 

available resources to support the rule change. The majority of respondents completing this 

question believed there would either be no economic impact to a districts budget or they did not 

know whether there would be an impact.  

We struggle to fill some of the required positions to the Board of Public Education's 
requirements. Positions such as Library are hard to fill and have requirements for filling that do 
not allow us to place teachers with other endorsements and/or degrees in that position to meet the 
requirements. 

Some of the BPE's requirements require the district to spend funds in certain areas, despite the 

needs in other areas that our Board and community believe is important for our students' 

education. 



Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Economic Impact Statement for Accreditation Process Student 
Performance Standards 

 

  Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 | Page 13  

 

Professional Development 

 
Question 3 addresses the perceived impact the proposed rule changes would have on a district’s 
professional development budget. Most respondents believe that additional professional 
development would not be needed and less than a third were unaware of whether additional 
professional development would be needed.  

Other Considerations  
Your Turn: Is there anything else you believe the Superintendent should consider in 

determining the fiscal impact for implementing the new student performance 

accreditation rule? 

● OPI Website information and Q & A for new changes. 
● Our numbers are low enough none of our groups should be reported, so I am unsure how this 

will impact our district. 
● No 
● Each year our district receives fewer and fewer applicants, particularly in hard to find areas 

such as math, special education, and music. Despite our students' success on measured 
standards we can still be declared a school in need of assistance, if we cannot find certified 
people in these areas. 

● Thank you for including stakeholders in the current and future discussions. 
● I am fairly new to my position and my school. I can't answer this question.  



Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Economic Impact Statement for Accreditation Process Student 
Performance Standards 

 

  Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 | Page 14  

 

Conclusion  

The survey data show no indication that the proposed rule changes would create a significant 
economic impact for districts and their schools. It is important to note the proposed rule changes are 
specific to OPI outlining the accreditation process to better align student performance standards with 
the Statewide Assessment system. The proposed rule changes do not include required action by local 
school district trustees.  
  



Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Economic Impact Statement for Accreditation Process Student 
Performance Standards 

 

  Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 | Page 15  

 

Attachment C—Negotiated Rulemaking Committee Members 
• Norah Barney, Anaconda Public Schools, Principal  
• Craig Barringer, Libby K-12, Superintendent  
• Sandra Beal, Ronan Public Schools, Principal  
• Bob Connors, Glasgow K-12, Superintendent  
• Scott Dubbs, Lewistown Public Schools, Curriculum Director  
• Mark Halgren, Belgrade Public Schools, Curriculum Director  
• Annette Hart, Rapelje Public Schools, Superintendent  
• Matthew Lewis, Lewistown Public Schools, Principal  
• Erin Lipkind, Missoula County Superintendent  
• Kt Northington, Bainville K-12 Schools, Business Manager  
• David Pafford, Noxon Public Schools, School Board Trustee  
• Michele Paine, Kalispell Public Schools, Principal  
• Lynne Peterson, Laurel Public Schools, Principal  
• Stephen Schreibeis, Glendive Public Schools Superintendent  
• Karlona Sheppard, East Glacier Park Elementary, Superintendent  
• Ruth Uecker, Great Falls Public Schools, Assistant Superintendent  
• Dee Hensley-Maclean, Montana PTA Advocacy Chair  
• Jeremy MacDonald, Box Elder Public Schools, Superintendent 
 

Negotiated Rulemaking Committee Facilitator  
Kirsten Madsen, Assistant Attorney General, Agency Legal Services Bureau   



Montana Office of Public Instruction 

Economic Impact Statement for Accreditation Process Student 
Performance Standards 

 

  Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 | Page 16  

 

Attachment D—Survey Questionnaire 
1 Do you believe there will be an economic impact on personnel and budget in your 

district?  
1a If yes, please explain below  
2 Do you believe there will be an economic impact on available resources in your 

district? 
2a If yes, please explain below  
3 Would additional professional development be needed to implement the 

PROPOSED rule?  
3a If yes, please explain below 
4 Your Turn: Is there anything else you believe the Superintendent should consider 

in determining the fiscal impact for implementing the new student performance 
accreditation rule? 

 



Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 / 1 

Negotiated Rulemaking Committee 

 

Final Report 
Accreditation Process  
April 2019 

Dear Superintendent Arntzen: 

This Final Report is submitted to you in accordance with § 20-7-101(2), Montana Code Annotated 
(MCA), and § 2-5-108(4), MCA. The Negotiated Rulemaking Committee (Committee) reached 
consensus on proposed rule changes to the accreditation process pertaining to student performance 
procedures of Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.55.606. The rule changes are attached 
as Exhibit A. 

A. Background 

The Legislature of Montana requires Standards of Accreditation rule changes be recommended 
by the State Superintendent to the Board of Public Education (BPE) and these recommendations 
be developed through the negotiated rulemaking processes of the Montana Administrative 
Procedures Act (MAPA) pursuant to § 20-7-101(1) and (2), MCA. 

Using the negotiated rulemaking process, you developed recommendations for changes in 
accreditation standards pertaining to the amendment of ARM 10.55.606 Accreditation Process 
Student Performance measures.  

Under your advisement, the Notice of Negotiated Rulemaking was published in the Montana 
Administrative Register (2019 Issue No. 3, February 8, 2019, 10-1-31), in accordance with § 20-7-
101(2), MCA, seeking applications from individuals who were likely to be significantly affected by 
the proposed rule changes. Members of the Committee were selected based on the affected groups 
of individuals and the following criteria: cultural diversity, K-12 accreditation process knowledge, 
K-12 statewide assessment knowledge, geographic distribution, district and school size, and grade 
levels served. A copy of the Committee roster is attached as Exhibit B.  

In accordance with § 2-5-109, MCA, the services of a facilitator were secured by your office to 
assist the Committee in performing its work. 

  



Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 / 2 

Negotiated Rulemaking Committee 

 

B. The Committee Meetings 

The Committee met twice in Helena, on April 4, 2019, and April 25, 2019, for the purposes of (1) 
reaching consensus on the revised proposed accreditation rule changes and (2) completing the 
Committee’s role in consulting with OPI staff in the preparation of the final Economic Impact 
Statement (EIS) report as determined by § 20-7-101(1), MCA. 

1. April 4, 2019 Meeting 

The key purpose of the April 4 meeting was to attempt to reach consensus on the proposed 
accreditation standard language and to initially review the agency’s proposed survey questionnaire for 
gathering the information necessary for the Committee to consult with the OPI in preparing the EIS 
report required under § 20-7-101, MCA. 

Call to Order 

The meeting was called to order at 10:07 a.m. by Office of Public Instruction (OPI) Deputy 
Superintendent Jule Walker.  

Committee Introductions 

Committee members, OPI staff, and facilitator Kirsten Madsen introduced themselves and discussed 
how their experiences, expertise, and representation contributes to the Committee’s work. Board of 
Public of Education Executive Director Peter Donovan thanked the Committee for their work. Ms. 
Madsen announced that OPI Accreditation and Educator Preparation Division Administrator Linda 
Vrooman Peterson would be the person voting for OPI. 

Confirm Facilitator 

The Committee voted unanimously to confirm Kirsten Madsen as facilitator of the negotiated 
rulemaking process. After she was confirmed as facilitator, Ms. Madsen reviewed the meeting 
agenda. 

Committee Membership 

Facilitator Madsen asked Committee members to verify their intent to be part of the Committee. 
Committee members present, in-person and virtually, confirmed their membership on the Committee. 
(Lewistown Superintendent Matthew Lewis was not present at the meeting.) The Committee 
confirmed its membership of represented groups who would be most impacted by the rule changes 
with no need to expand its membership under § 2-5-107, MCA.  

Establish Committee’s Consensus Definition 

Facilitator Madsen led the discussion with the Committee on what consensus means. The Committee 
agreed that a thumbs-up meant they understood and agreed with the proposal; a thumb-sideways 
meant they did not understand the proposal; and a thumbs-down meant they understood the proposal 
and did not agree with it. 



Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 / 3 

Negotiated Rulemaking Committee 

 

Review Negotiated Rulemaking Roles, Responsibilities, and Process 

Facilitator Madsen provided the Committee an overview of its specific role and how this role is the 
first step in a multi-step process involving both:  

(1) Your recommendation to the BPE of the proposed accreditation standard language. 
(2) The BPE’s engaging the Montana Administrative Procedures Act (MAPA) rulemaking process, 
i.e., notice, comment, and public hearing before proposed accreditation standard language would be 
formally adopted. 

The Committee was advised that, as part of your and the efforts of the BPE in adopting the new 
accreditation standards, both the proposed language and the accompanying EIS report would be 
presented to the Legislature’s Education Interim Committee for its review and comment.   

Facilitator Madsen reminded everyone as a public meeting the proceedings of the committee meeting 
were being recorded. 

OPI’s Background and Context behind Rule Recommendations 

Agency staff shared how Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.56 Assessment; Accountability 
under Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA), and the state accountability system guided the proposed 
rule changes to ARM 10.55.606 Accreditation Process (1)(b) Student performance standards. 

Ashley McGrath, OPI Director of Assessment, provided an overview of the assessment process, 
changes to the assessment of student learning in the state, and the status of the recent negotiated 
rulemaking process for Chapter 56. These revisions to Student Assessment Rules to prepare for 
present and future transitions to new assessments. The rule changes of  Chapter 56 Assessment 
provide guidance to the needed changes of ARM 10.55.606 student performance standards.  

Jack O’Connor, OPI State Title I Director, gave an overview of the changes in accountability 
regarding the No Child Left Behind Act and ESEA. There was a discussion about the differences 
between the accountability models for the No Child Left Behind Act and ESEA.  

Scott Furois, OPI Measurement and Accountability Assessment Analyst, gave an overview of the four 
main indicators of the state accountability system: the graduation rate, assessment proficiency, growth 
in assessment for reading and math, and English learners proficiency improvement. Mr. Furois 
discussed the fifth indicator’s elements: attendance rates, college and career readiness measures, and 
science proficiency were reviewed. 

Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson discussed OPI’s background and context behind the rule 
recommendation. ARM 10.55.606 Accreditation Process Student Performance Standards was adopted 
by the BPE as part of the revision of Chapter 55 Standards of Accreditation, effective July 1, 2013. 
The rule outlines the accreditation process and procedures for using both the assurance standards and 
the student performance standards to determine the accreditation status for every accredited school in 
Montana. “Student performance standards” means minimal standards of a quality education, which 
measures student performance on annual state level summative assessments and graduation rates 
used to determine the accreditation status of a school, as stated in ARM 10.55.602(1)(41). 
Definitions. The state accountability system and Chapter 56 Assessment for student performance no 



Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 / 4 

Negotiated Rulemaking Committee 

 

longer use the average scale score range for all students in the tested grades for math, reading, and 
science. The state student performance standards as proposed will be parallel to Chapter 56 
Assessment and the state accountability system to ensure consistent data across state and federal 
programs. 

The proposed rule changes focus solely on ARM 10.55.606(1)(a) and (3)-(9), Accreditation Process 
Student Performance Standards. The proposed rule changes are generalized to help ensure flexibility 
to adapt to changes in student assessment and the state accountability system at the state and federal 
levels. 

Patty Muir, OPI Accreditation Program Director, explained the procedures she and OPI Accreditation 
Data Specialist Nathan Miller follow to make recommendations to the State Superintendent and the 
BPE relating to the accreditation status of every accredited school in Montana. Ms. Muir reviewed the 
accreditation process and procedures and the various statuses of accreditation based on the assurance 
standards listed in Chapter 55. The accreditation process uses both assurance standards and student 
performance standards data to determine accreditation status.  

Nathan Miller, OPI Data Specialist, reviewed the current and proposed student performance measures 
and final accreditation statuses for the Committee. There was a discussion about the changes to the 
high school graduation rates across the board and its potential impact on smaller high schools. The 
committee also discussed the weight given to the indicators that make up a school’s accreditation 
status, and the role the BPE plays in the setting of the statistical thresholds that make up the 
indicators. It was agreed to continue the discussion about the weight given to indicators at another 
time. 

Rule Discussion 

Facilitator Madsen led the discussion on the proposed rule changes, reviewing the agency proposal 
section by section. The Committee started its review with section 3 of ARM 10.55.606, since there 
were no recommended changes to sections 1 and 2. 

Proposed Section 3 

The Committee read and discussed the proposed changes to 15.55.606(3). The Committee voiced 
concerns about the removal of the negotiated rulemaking process from the section. BPE Executive 
Director, Peter Donovan, explained the Board’s process for reviewing rule changes. The committee 
discussed adding a work group or task force language to the proposed language so future changes will 
have input from stakeholders. 

The committee revised proposed Section 3 from: 

“(3) Student performance standards are described in Chapter 56 Student Statewide Assessment 
and defined in the state accountability system as recommended by the state superintendent and 
approved by the Board of Public Education. 

(a) The Board shall establish the minimum statistical threshold for reporting valid and reliable 
student group results and to protect student privacy based on the recommendation of the Office 
of Public Instruction. 



Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 / 5 

Negotiated Rulemaking Committee 

 

(b) Modifications to the accreditation determination procedures shall be made in writing by the 
State Superintendent for consideration and approval by the Board.” 

to: 

“(3) Student performance standards are described in Chapter 56 Assessment and defined in the 
state accountability system as recommended by the state superintendent and approved by the 
Board of Public Education. 

(a) The Board shall establish the minimum statistical threshold for reporting valid and reliable 
student group results and to protect student privacy based on the recommendation of the Office 
of Public Instruction. 
(b) Modifications to the accreditation determination procedures shall be made in writing by the 
State Superintendent for consideration and approval by the Board. 

(i) Modifications shall be submitted after consultation with representative stakeholders. 

After reviewing the revised Section 3, the committee reached a consensus and approved proposed 
Section 3 as revised. 

Proposed Section 4 

The committee reviewed the proposed changes to 10.55.606(4). There was a discussion about what 
defines a preschool and how it is reported to OPI. The committee discussed how the proposed rule 
could be potentially interpreted by school districts, and how these grades are not currently subject to 
statewide testing requirements.  

The committee revised proposed Section 4 from: 

“(4) For schools with combinations of grades PK-2, only the assurance standards shall be used to 
determine accreditation status.” 

to: 

“(4) For schools with only combinations of grades PK-2, only the assurance standards shall be 
used to determine accreditation status.” 

After reviewing the revised Section 4, the committee reached a consensus and approved proposed 
Section 4 as revised. 

Proposed Section 5 

The committee reviewed the proposed changes to 10.55.606(5). The committee made minor revisions 
to proposed language to make consistent with language in ARM 10.55.605.  

The committee revised the proposed Section 5 from: 

“(5) There shall be four categories for assurance standards and student performance standards 
used to determine accreditation status, pursuant to the ARM 10.55.605 Accreditation Categories.” 

to: 



Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 / 6 

Negotiated Rulemaking Committee 

 

“(5) There shall be four categories of assurance standards and student performance standards used 
to determine accreditation status, pursuant to the ARM 10.55.605 Categories of Accreditation.” 

After reviewing the revised Section 5, the committee reached a consensus and approved proposed 
Section 5 as revised. 

Proposed Section 6 

The committee reviewed the proposed changes to 10.55.606(6). There was a discussion about the 
clarity of the language, and how the wording matches ARM 10.55.605. The committee revised the 
language to include all three categories of Regular accreditation status.  

The language was changed from: 

“(6) A school shall be designated with regular accreditation status by using the combined results 
of the assurance standards and student performance standards as follows: 

(a) Regular status for assurance standards and regular or regular with minor deviations for 
student performance standards; 
(b) Regular status or regular with minor deviations or for assurance standards and regular status 
for student performance standards.” 

to: 

“(6) A school shall be designated with regular accreditation status by using the combined results 
of the assurance standards and student performance standards as follows: 

(a) Regular status for assurance standards and Regular status for student performance standards; 
(b) Regular status for assurance standards and Regular with Minor Deviations for student 
performance standards; or 
(c) Regular with Minor Deviations for assurance standards and Regular status for student 
performance standards.” 

After reviewing the revised Section 6, the committee reached a consensus and approved proposed 
Section 6 as revised. 

Proposed Section 7 

The committee reviewed the proposed changes to 10.55.606(7). The committee discussed changes to 
the language.  

The language was changed from: 

“(7) A school shall be designated with regular with minor deviation accreditation status by using 
the combined results of the assurance standards and student performance standards with regular 
with minor deviation in both sets of standards.” 

to:  



Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 / 7 

Negotiated Rulemaking Committee 

 

“(7) A school shall be designated with Regular with Minor Deviation accreditation status by using 
the combined results of the assurance standards and student performance standards with Regular 
with Minor Deviation.” 

After reviewing the revised Section 7, the committee reached a consensus and approved proposed 
Section 7 as revised. 

Proposed Section 8 

The committee reviewed the proposed changes to 10.55.606(8). The committee discussed changes to 
the language.  

The language was changed from: 

“(8) A school shall be designated with advice accreditation status by using the combined results of 
the assurance standards and student performance standards with advice status in either set of 
standards.” 

to: 

“(8) A school shall be designated with Advice accreditation status by using the combined results 
of the assurance standards and student performance standards with Advice status in either set of 
standards, or as stated in ARM 10.55.605.” 

After reviewing the revised Section 8, the committee reached a consensus and approved proposed 
Section 8 as revised. 

Proposed Section 9 

The committee reviewed the proposed changes to 10.55.606(9). The committee discussed changes to 
the language.  

The language was changed from: 

“(9) A school shall be designated with deficiency accreditation status by using the combined 
results of the assurance standards and student performance standards with deficiency status in 
either set of standards.” 

to: 

“(9) A school shall be designated with Deficiency accreditation status by using the combined 
results of the assurance standards and student performance standards with Deficiency status in 
either set of standards, or as stated in ARM 10.55.605.” 

After reviewing the revised Section 9, the committee reached a consensus and approved proposed 
Section 9 as revised. 

Economic Impact Statement 



Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, April 2019 / 8 

Negotiated Rulemaking Committee 

 

Facilitator Madsen led the review of the draft Economic Impact Statement survey questionnaire. 
Committee member Erin Lipkind said she appreciated the inclusion of county superintendents as part 
of the survey. The Committee believed there would be no economic impact of school district budgets 
because ARM 10.55.606 is a rule to guide the OPI process and procedures in determining 
accreditation status. Therefore, the Committee discussed and suggested streamlining the questionnaire 
by condensing the Personnel section (questions 6-9), Available Resources section (questions 10-15), 
and Professional Development section (16-19) to include a “if yes to the question, then what or why?” 
open-ended answer area.  

The committee voted on the changes to the Economic Impact Statement survey questionnaire, and 
consensus was reached on the changes. 

Public Comment and Adjournment 

Facilitator Madsen reviewed where the committee was in the negotiated rule making process. The 
next meeting date was announced as Thursday, April 25, 2019. Facilitator Madsen thanked the 
committee for its work. 

Facilitator Madsen asked for public comment about the committee’s work and the day’s proceedings. 
Finding none, the meeting was adjourned at 3:30 pm.  

 



Negotiated Rulemaking Committee 

Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, February 2019 / 9 

2. April 25, 2019 Meeting 

The Committee held its second meeting on April 25, 2019, for the purposes of both (1) reaching 
consensus on the revised proposed accreditation rule changes and (2) completing the 
Committee’s role in consulting with the OPI staff in the preparation of the final EIS report as 
determined by § 20-7-101(1), MCA. 

Call to Order 
The meeting was called to order at 10:13 a.m. by Facilitator Kirsten Madsen. Housekeeping items, 
such as internet connectivity and speakerphones, were discussed. 

Committee Introductions 

Committee members, OPI staff, and facilitator Kirsten Madsen, introduced themselves since there 
were new people to the committee. Lewistown Public Schools Curriculum Director Scott Dubbs, 
Rapelje Public Schools Superintendent Annette Hart, Montana PTA Advocacy Chair Dee Hensley-
Maclean, and Laurel Public Schools Principal Lynne Peterson were not present at the meeting. 

Confirmation of Committee’s Consensus Definition 

Facilitator Madsen confirmed the definition of consensus the committee agreed to at the last 
committee meeting. The Committee agreed that a thumbs-up meant they understood and agreed with 
the proposal; a thumb-sideways meant they did not understand the proposal; and a thumbs-down 
meant they understood the proposal and did not agree with it. 

Review Negotiated Rulemaking Process and Meeting Agenda 

Facilitator Madsen reviewed where the committee was in the negotiated rulemaking process, and the 
agenda for the meeting. 

Rule Revision Review and Discussion 
Facilitator Madsen led the rule revision review and discussion. It was explained that some of the 
revisions were made to clarify some of the terms in the revised rules. The term “board” was clarified 
to mean the Board of Public Education in Section 3 of ARM 10.55.606. The word both was added 
back to Section 7 of the ARM to clarify what constitutes a Regular with Minor Deviations 
accreditation status.  

After reviewing the revisions, the committee reached a consensus and approved the revisions as 
presented. 



Negotiated Rulemaking Committee 

Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, February 2019 / 10 

Economic Impact Survey Results and Report 

Facilitator Madsen turned the meeting over to OPI Accreditation and Educator Preparation Division 
Administrator Linda Vrooman Peterson to discuss the economic impact survey results. Dr. Peterson 
introduced OPI Accreditation Data Technician Harlan Reidmohr. Mr. Reidmohr reviewed the process 
and results of the economic impact survey for the committee. 

Facilitator Madsen led the review of the draft economic impact survey report section by section. The 
committee made minor corrections to the report. There was a discussion as to why the responses to 
the survey were so low. Dr. Peterson stated that the low response rate was typical for a non-
contentious issue and that if the issue were contentious, OPI would receive an outpouring of 
responses. The Committee reached a consensus and approved the report as corrected. 

Draft Final Report to the Superintendent 

Facilitator Madsen led the review of the draft final report to the Superintendent section by section. 
The committee made minor corrections to the report. There was a discussion whether to include a 
definition of the term “representative stakeholders.” The committee reached a consensus to include a 
definition. 

After continuing to review the draft final report, the committee reached a consensus and approved the 
draft final report as corrected. 

The Committee questioned the meaning of “representative” stakeholders. Following discussion, the 
Committee approved requesting the OPI to define “representative stakeholders.” The Committee 
believed the OPI should be afforded flexibility when seeking and selecting stakeholders to review 
modifications to the rules. Using the term “representative stakeholders” the agency is able consult 
with stakeholders who have experience and knowledge applicable to each proposed modifications.  

Committee Accomplishments 

Facilitator Madsen reviewed the accomplishments of the committee, and what happens next in the 
negotiated rulemaking process. 

The Committee agreed that a thumbs-up meant they understood and agreed with the proposal; a 
thumb-sideways meant they did not understand the proposal; and a thumbs-down meant they 
understood the proposal and did not agree with it. 

Public Comment and Adjournment 

Facilitator Madsen asked for public comment about the committee’s work and the day’s proceedings. 
Finding none, the meeting was adjourned at 11:02 a.m. Facilitator Madsen thanked the committee for 
its work. 
  



Negotiated Rulemaking Committee 

Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, February 2019 / 11 

Exhibit A 

FINAL NR COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION OF PROPOSED RULE CHANGES  

April 25, 2019 

ARM 10.55.606 Accreditation Process 

3) Student performance standards are described in Chapter 56 Assessment and defined in the 
state accountability system as recommended by the state superintendent and approved by the 
Board of Public Education (BPE). 
(a) BPE shall establish the minimum statistical threshold for reporting valid and reliable student 
group results and to protect student privacy based on the recommendation of the Office of 
Public Instruction. 
(b) Modifications to the accreditation determination procedures shall be made in writing by the 
state superintendent for consideration and approval by BPE.  
(i) Modifications shall be submitted after consultation with representative stakeholders. 

(4) For schools with only combinations of grades PK-2, only the assurance standards shall be used to 
determine accreditation status. 

(5) There shall be four categories of assurance standards and student performance standards used to 
determine accreditation status, pursuant to ARM 10.55.605 Categories of Accreditation.  

(6) A school shall be designated with Regular accreditation status by using the combined results of 
the assurance standards and student performance standards as follows: 
(a) Regular status for assurance standards and Regular status for student performance standards; 
(b) Regular status for assurance standards and Regular with Minor Deviations for student 
performance standards; or 
(c) Regular with Minor Deviations for assurance standards and Regular status for student 
performance standards. 

(7) A school shall be designated with Regular with Minor Deviations accreditation status by using the 
combined results of both the assurance standards and student performance standards with Regular 
with Minor Deviations. 

(8) A school shall be designated with Advice accreditation status by using the combined results of the 
assurance standards and student performance standards with Advice status in either set of standards, 
or as stated in ARM 10.55.605. 

(9) A school shall be designated with Deficiency accreditation status by using the combined results of 
the assurance standards and student performance standards with Deficiency status in either set of 
standards, or as stated in ARM 10.55.605. 
  



Negotiated Rulemaking Committee 

Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, February 2019 / 12 

DRAFT FINAL COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION OF PROPOSED RULE CHANGES 
April 4, 2019 

ARM 10.55.606 Accreditation Process 

(3) Student performance standards are described in Chapter 56 Assessment and defined in the 
state accountability system as recommended by the state superintendent and approved by the 
Board of Public Education. 
 
(a) The Board shall establish the minimum statistical threshold for reporting valid and reliable 
student group results and to protect student privacy based on the recommendation of the Office 
of Public Instruction. 
 
(b) Modifications to the accreditation determination procedures shall be made in writing by the 
State Superintendent for consideration and approval by the Board.  

(i) Modifications shall be submitted after consultation with representative stakeholders.  
 

(4) For schools with only combinations of grades PK-2, only the assurance standards shall be used to 
determine accreditation status. 

(5) There shall be four categories of assurance standards and student performance standards used to 
determine accreditation status, pursuant to ARM 10.55.605 Categories of Accreditation.  
 
(6) A school shall be designated with regular accreditation status by using the combined results of the 
assurance standards and student performance standards as follows: 
(a) Regular status for assurance standards and Regular status  for student performance standards; 
(b) Regular status for assurance standards and Regular with Minor Deviations for student 
performance standards; or 
(c) Regular with Minor Deviations for assurance standards and Regular status for student 
performance standards. 

(7) A school shall be designated with Regular with minor deviation accreditation status by using the 
combined results of the assurance standards and student performance standards with Regular with 
minor deviation. 

(8) A school shall be designated with Advice accreditation status by using the combined results of the 
assurance standards and student performance standards with Advice status in either set of standards, 
or as stated in ARM 10.55.605. 

(9) A school shall be designated with Deficiency accreditation status by using the combined results of 
the assurance standards and student performance standards with Deficiency status in either set of 
standards, or as stated in ARM 10.55.605. 
  



Negotiated Rulemaking Committee 

Prepared by the Office of Public Instruction, February 2019 / 13 

Exhibit B. 

Negotiated Rulemaking Process  
Facilitator: Kirsten Madsen, Assistant Attorney General, Agency Legal Services Bureau 

Negotiated Rulemaking Committee (Committee):  
• Norah Barney, Anaconda Public Schools, Principal  
• Craig Barringer, Libby K-12, Superintendent  
• Sandra Beal, Ronan Public Schools, Principal  
• Bob Connors, Glasgow K-12, Superintendent  
• Scott Dubbs, Lewistown Public Schools, Curriculum Director  
• Mark Halgren, Belgrade Public Schools, Curriculum Director  
• Annette Hart, Rapelje Public Schools, Superintendent  
• Matthew Lewis, Lewistown Public Schools, Principal  
• Erin Lipkind, Missoula County Superintendent  
• Kt Northington, Bainville K-12 Schools, Business Manager  
• David Pafford, Noxon Public Schools, School Board Trustee  
• Michele Paine, Kalispell Public Schools, Principal  
• Lynne Peterson, Laurel Public Schools, Principal  
• Stephen Schreibeis, Glendive Public Schools Superintendent  
• Karlona Sheppard, East Glacier Park Elementary, Superintendent  
• Ruth Uecker, Great Falls Public Schools, Assistant Superintendent  
• Dee Hensley-Maclean, Montana PTA Advocacy Chair  
• Jeremy MacDonald, Box Elder Public Schools, Superintendent 

Agency Team Members: 
• Peter Donovan, Board of Public Education (BPE) Executive Director 
• Jule Walker, Office of Public Instruction (OPI) Deputy Superintendent*  
• Kyle Moen, OPI Chief Legal Counsel  
• Ashley McGrath, OPI State Assessment Director* 
• Siri Smillie, Policy Advisor on Education, Office of the Governor 
• Linda Vrooman Peterson, OPI Accreditation and Educator Preparation Administrator*  
• Patty Muir, OPI Accreditation Program Director*  
• Nathan Miller, OPI Accreditation Data Specialist*  
• Jack O’ Connor, OPI State Title I Director*  
• Bev Marlow, OPI Legal Division Paralegal  
• Kathi Tiefenthaler, OPI Title I School Support Unit Director*  
• Frank Podobnik, OPI Special Education Division Administrator  
• Michelle Mitchell, OPI Director of American Indian Student Achievement  
• Donnie Wetzel, OPI American Indian Youth Development Coordinator*  
• Colet Bartow, OPI Content Standards and Instruction Division Administrator  
• Scott Furois, Assessment Analyst, OPI Measurement and Accountability* 

* Indicates Agency Team Members also representing state agencies on the Committee 



INFORMATION 

 ASSESSMENT COMMITTEE – (Items 20-21)

Anne Keith 

ITEM 20 

ASSESSMENT REPORT 

Ashley McGrath 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: May 2019 

Presentation Assessment Update 

Presenter Ashley McGrath 

Position Title State Assessment Director 
Assessment Department 
Office of Public Instruction 

Overview The Office of Public Instruction (OPI) will present an 
update for the Montana Comprehensive Assessment 
System (MontCAS) including the anticipated state 
data access dates, updates with the competitive bid 
process, and plans for summer projects. 

Requested Decision(s) Information Item 

Related Issue(s) None 

Recommendation(s) None 



OPI Assessment Update 
Board of Public Education

May 2019

Ashley McGrath, Assessment Director

Note:  slides were prepared on 4/24/2019. 1



• 2019 School Testing Windows

• Anticipated State Results Access Dates

• Science Enhanced Assessment Grant Update

• RFP Update

• ACT Data Release Update

• Summer Projects

Presentation Overview

2



2019 School Testing Windows

Grade

ACCESS for 

ELLs

(English 

Language 

Proficiency) 

CRT Science 

(Alternate)

CRT Science

(General)

MSAA

(Alternate)

Smarter 

Balanced

(General)

ACT with 

Writing

(General)

Test 

Window

Dec 5 –

Jan 30

Feb 19 –

Mar 26

Feb 28 –

Mar 26

Mar 18 –

May 3

Mar 20 –

May 24

Initial: Apr 2

Make-up: 

Apr 24 

Emergency: 

May 7

Required 

Subjects
ELP Science Science Math & ELA Math & ELA Math & ELA

Grades 
Tested

Grades 
K–12

Grades
4, 8 & 10

Grades
4, 8 & 10

Grades 
3–8 & 11

Grades 
3–8 

Grade 
11

Note: NAEP will be administered to a sample of schools in Grades 4, 8, and 12 during the 
NAEP six-week test window (i.e., January 28 – March 8, 2019).

3



Anticipated State Results Access Dates

Grade

ACCESS for 

ELLs

(English 

Language 

Proficiency) 

CRT Science 

(Alternate)

CRT Science

(General)

MSAA

(Alternate)

Smarter 

Balanced

(General)

ACT with 

Writing

(General)

Anticipated 

Dates
June 7, 2019 May 20, 2019 May 20, 2019 June 28, 2019 July 3, 2019 June 28, 2019

Required 

Subjects
ELP Science Science Math & ELA Math & ELA Math & ELA

Grades 
Tested

Grades 
K–12

Grades
4, 8 & 10

Grades
4, 8 & 10

Grades 
3–8 & 11

Grades 
3–8 

Grade 
11

*NAEP: likely November/December 2019 4

• This slide indicates the anticipated dates the test delivery vendor will provide the OPI
with access to the initial result data files.



• Strengthening Claims-based
Interpretations and Uses of Local
and Large-scale Science Assessment
Scores (SCILLSS) Project

• Nebraska, Montana, Wyoming

• Year 3 of Project (2019)

• MT Educator Meeting in August

– Recruitment

– Classroom-based tasks

Science Enhanced Assessment 
Grant Update

Year 1

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

5



General Overview:

• All bids are in and are under evaluation

• Bids requested for SBAC, General Science, Alternate Science

Montana Team:

• Seven Evaluators for MT Team

• Five Subject Matter Experts

• Two Support Specialists

• State decision submitted to WA by May 7th

All-State Team:

• WA, HI, DE, MT, USVI

• Consensus Meeting on May 13th

RFP Update

6



• For future administrations, OCHE has requested:
– Unique supplemental for Montana with only approved non-test questions

– Reformed processes including masking unauthorized non-test questions

– Organization definition list for entities with access to the ACT Enroll System

• ACT will not issue a letter to impacted students or families.

• Prior to testing, OPI notified Montana Test Coordinators:
– Clarification on the list of OPI/OCHE-approved non-test questions

– Description of the release from ACT

– Memo on ACT including masking from OCHE/OPI

• March 15: District Superintendents were notified of the
unauthorized release under the period of April 2016 –
February 2019.

7

ACT Data Release Update



• ACT, SBAC, MSAA Peer Review Action Plan

– Test Security and Integrity Plan 2020

• Science Transition Plan

• Website Refresh

• WIDA Peer Review Submission

Summer Projects

8



Questions?

9

Ashley McGrath  

State Assessment Director

Montana Office of Public Instruction

Phone: 406.444.3656

E-mail: amcgrath@mt.gov

mailto:amcgrath@mt.gov


ACTION 

ITEM 21 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE NOTICE 
OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR ASSESSMENT, 

ARM 10.56.101 

Ashley McGrath 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: May 2019 

Presentation Negotiated Rulemaking for Chapter 56 

Presenter Ashley McGrath 

Position Title State Assessment Director 
Assessment Department 
Office of Public Instruction 

Overview On behalf of the Superintendent of Public Instruction, 
the Office of Public Instruction (OPI) will present the 
proposed adoption and amendments for 
Administrative Rules for Montana (ARM) Chapter 56: 
Assessment along with a statement of reasonable 
necessity and revised timeline including the hearing 
date. 

Requested Decision(s) Action Item  
Notice of proposed amendment with rule language as 
approved by the Superintendent and submitted to 
the Board of Public Education for vote to publish 
notice. 

Related Issue(s) None 

Recommendation(s) Title: Chapter 56 Assessment 
Subchapters: 

• 10.56.101 Statewide Assessment

• 10.56.102 Participation

• 10.56.103 Test Security

• 10.56.104 Accessibility and Accommodations

• 10.56.105 Reporting



MAR Notice No. 10-56-285 

-1- 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

In the matter of the adoption of New 
Rules I through IV and the 
amendment of ARM 10.56.101 
pertaining to student assessment 

) 
) 
) 
) 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
PROPOSED ADOPTION AND 
AMENDMENT 

TO:  All Concerned Persons 
1. On June 26, 2019, at 10:15 a.m., the Board of Public Education will hold a

public hearing in the Superintendent’s Conference room at 1227 11th Avenue, 
Helena, Montana, to consider the proposed adoption and amendment of the above-
stated rules. 

2. The Board will make reasonable accommodations for persons with
disabilities who wish to participate in this rulemaking process or need an alternative 
accessible format of this notice.  If you require an accommodation, contact the Board 
of Public Education no later than 5:00 p.m. on June 19, 2019, to advise us of the 
nature of the accommodation that you need.  Please contact Pete Donovan, 
Executive Director, 46 N. Last Chance Gulch, Suite 2B, P.O. Box 200601, Helena, 
Montana, 59620-0601; telephone (406) 444-0300; fax (406) 444-0847; or e-mail 
pdonovan@mt.gov. 

3. The rules as proposed to be adopted provide as follows:

NEW RULE I  PARTICIPATION  (1)  By the authority of §20-2-121(11) and 
ARM 10.55.603, the Board of Public of Education (Board) adopts rules for statewide 
assessment in all public and accredited nonpublic schools. 

(2) Statewide assessments approved by the Board shall be administered in
all public and accredited nonpublic schools. 

(3) School districts shall annually administer statewide assessments to all
students in accordance with state and federal laws and regulations that meet or 
exceed the following specifications: 

(a) English language arts and mathematics assessments shall be aligned to
Montana content standards in English language arts and mathematics and 
administered in grades 3-8 and 11; 

(b) Science assessments shall be aligned to Montana content standards for
science and administered in grades 5, 8, and 11; and 

(c) Assessments shall be administered in the spring of each year.
(4) State-level assessments aligned to Montana-English language proficiency

standards shall be administered to all students identified as English Learners (EL) in 
grades (K-12).  These assessments shall be administered mid-school year. 

(5) The Board of Public Education may approve alternative grade levels and
timelines for the administration of statewide assessments due to the availability of 
assessments and other academic factors. 

(6) School districts shall use guidance provided by the Office of Public
Instruction to inform parents/guardians about statewide assessments, including: 

mailto:pdonovan@mt.gov


 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-56-285  

-2- 

(a)  the purpose; 
(b)  the source of the requirement;  
(c)  when the information about student performance is provided to teachers 

and parents;  
(d)  how teachers, principals, and district officials use the information about 

student performance; and  
(e)  how parents can use that information to help their child. 
 

AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, MC 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-7-402, MCA 
 
 NEW RULE II  TEST SECURITY  (1)  The Office of Public Instruction has the 
responsibility to audit test administration activities to monitor adherence to test 
security and best practices without undue disruption to schools. 

(2)  All statewide assessments must be administered to students only by 
school district employees who have been trained and are familiar with standardized 
testing procedures. 

(3)  Suspected violations of test security must immediately be reported to the 
Office of Public Instruction. 

(4)  Failure to comply with the test administration and security requirements 
may result in the Office of Public Instruction making a recommendation for 
consequences to the Board of Public Education for further action within the limits of 
its authority. 

 
AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, MC 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-7-402, MCA 
 
 NEW RULE III  ACCESSIBILITY AND ACCOMMODATIONS  (1)  Schools 
shall administer statewide assessments with or without accommodations based on 
individual student needs consistent with all state and federal laws and regulations. 

(2)  The Individualized Education Program (IEP) team for a student shall 
determine if the student meets the eligibility criteria for the statewide alternate 
assessment based on the alternate achievement standards. 

(3)  Schools shall use the guidance from the Superintendent of Public 
Instruction to identify English Learners (EL) and annually monitor individual progress 
in acquiring academic English consistent with all state and federal laws and 
regulations. 

 
AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, MC 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-7-402, MCA 
 
 NEW RULE IV  REPORTING  (1)  The Superintendent of Public Instruction 
shall provide a report of the annual state assessment results to the Legislature and 
Board of Public Education. 

(2)  The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall make available student 
assessment data in compliance with confidentiality requirements of federal and state 
law (§ 20-7-104, MCA).  To facilitate transparency, the statewide assessment results 



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-56-285  

-3- 

released to the public shall be accompanied by a clear statement of the purpose, 
subject areas assessed, description of proficiency levels, and the percent of 
students who participated in the assessments. 

(3)  Statewide assessment results are a part of each student's permanent 
record as described in compliance with § 20-1-213 and § 20-7-104, MCA. 

 
AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, MC 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-7-402, MCA 
 

4.  The rule as proposed to be amended provides as follows, new matter 
underlined, deleted matter interlined: 

 
 10.56.101  STUDENT STATEWIDE ASSESSMENT  (1)  By the authority of 
20-2-121(12), MCA and ARM 10.55.603, the Board of Public Education adopts rules 
for state-level assessment in the public schools and those private schools seeking 
accreditation. 
 (2)  The board recognizes that the primary purpose of assessment is to serve 
learning.  A balanced assessment system including formative, interim, and 
summative assessments aligned to state content standards will provide an 
integrated approach to meeting both classroom learning needs and school and state 
level information needs.  A balanced assessment system is structured to 
continuously improve teaching and learning and to inform education policy. 
 (3)  In order to obtain state-level achievement information, all accredited 
schools shall annually administer a single system of state-level assessments 
approved by the board.  The following state-level assessments shall be administered 
according to standardized procedures.  Districts and schools shall ensure that all 
test administrators are trained in and follow those procedures. 
 (a)  State-level assessments shall be administered to all students as specified 
below: 
   (i)  The English language arts and mathematics assessments shall be aligned 
to Montana content standards in English language arts and mathematics and 
administered in grades 3-8 and 11; 

(ii)  The science assessments shall be aligned to Montana content standards 
for science and administered in grades 4, 8, and 10; and 

(iii)  The assessments shall be administered in the spring of the year. 
 (b)  State-level assessments aligned to Montana English language proficiency 
standards shall be administered to all students identified as Limited English 
Proficient (LEP) in grades K-12.  These assessments shall be administered mid-
school year. 
 (c)  The obligation for funding the assessments identified in (a) and (b) is an 
obligation of the state.  This section may not be construed to require a school district 
to provide these assessments if the state does not have a current contract with test 
vendors for provision of these assessments to Montana school districts. 
 (4)  State-level assessment results are a part of each student's permanent 
record as described in ARM 10.55.909.  
 (5)  The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall provide a report of the 
results to the Legislature and annually to the board.   



MAR Notice No. 10-56-285 

-4- 

(6) The Superintendent of Public Instruction is authorized to make available
the reported student assessment data in compliance with confidentiality 
requirements of federal and state law.  State-level assessment results released to 
the public shall be accompanied by a clear statement of the purposes of the 
assessments, subject areas assessed, level of measurement of the content 
standards, and the percent of students who participated in the assessments.  The 
Superintendent of Public Instruction will ensure transparency and public availability 
of public school performance data and reporting as outlined in 20-7-104, MCA. 

(7) All students shall participate in the state-level assessments.
(a) For a student with disabilities, the student's individualized education

program (IEP) team has the authority to specify accommodations to be provided, as 
defined in (8), for participation by the student in the state-level assessment. 

(i) When an IEP team determines that an accommodation for a student's
disability would still not allow for adequate measurement of the student's progress 
toward the content standards, the IEP team may waive using the approved state-
level assessments by providing alternate assessments that are appropriate to 
determine the student's progress toward the content standards. 

(b) For a student who has been identified through the district's process as
LEP, accommodations may be provided, as defined in (8), for participation by the 
student in the state-level assessment. 

(i) When the result of the district's process indicates that an accommodation
for an LEP student who has had fewer than three years of instruction in English 
would still not allow for adequate measurement of the student's progress toward the 
content standards, the team of educators may waive using the approved state-level 
assessments by providing alternate assessments that are appropriate to determine 
the student's progress toward the content standards. 

(8) Accommodations allow a student to demonstrate competence in subject
matter so that state-level assessment results accurately reflect the student's 
achievement level rather than limited English language development or impaired 
sensory or manual skills, except where those skills are the factors which the 
assessment purports to measure. 

(a) Accommodations for state-level assessment purposes are defined as
modifications of the test administration procedures similar to those used to assess 
the student in the instructional setting. 

(b) Accommodations vary for the state required tests under (3)(a) through (c)
and are dependent on the knowledge and skills being measured.  Test-specific 
accommodations are detailed in test administration manuals. 

(c) The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall provide guidance to
schools concerning appropriate accommodations. 

(9) The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall recommend in writing to the
board any modifications to the single system of state level assessment as set forth in 
(3)(a)(i) through (iii).  The board may consider recommended modifications as an 
information item on an agenda at a board meeting.  At that meeting, the board may 
vote to list the recommendations as an action item on the agenda of a subsequent 
board meeting.  Unless approved by the board, no recommended modifications are 
effective and no accredited schools may implement the recommended modifications. 



MAR Notice No. 10-56-285 

-5- 

(2) The Board of Public Education (Board) recognizes that the primary
purpose of assessment is to serve learning. A balanced assessment system 
including formative, interim, and summative assessments aligned to state content 
standards, will provide an integrated approach to meeting both classroom learning 
needs and school and state level information needs. A balanced assessment system 
is structured to continuously improve teaching and learning and to inform education 
policy. 

(3) The obligation for funding the assessments is the responsibility of the
state. This chapter may not be construed to require a school district to provide these 
assessments if the state does not have a current contract with test vendors for 
provision of these assessments to Montana school districts.  

(4) The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall recommend in writing to the
Board any modifications to the single system of state level assessment as set forth 
in (2).  The Board may consider recommended modifications as an information item 
on an agenda at a board meeting. At that meeting, the Board may vote to list the 
recommendations as an action item on the agenda of a subsequent Board meeting. 
Unless approved by the Board, no recommended modifications are effective and no 
accredited schools may implement the recommended modifications. 

(5) When developing a recommendation to the Board for adopting statewide
assessments the Superintendent of Public Instruction will include implications 
including alignment to content standards. 

(5) The Superintendent of Public Instruction shall:
(a) ensure Montana educators participate in the process;
(b) ensure that all statewide test items are field tested before being used to

determine proficiency; and 
(c) request approval from the Board to allow for census field testing before

determining proficiencies. 

AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, MC 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-7-402, MCA 

5. REASON: Using the negotiated rulemaking process involving independent
stakeholder groups, Superintendent of Public Instruction, Elsie Arntzen has 
developed recommendations for the revision of Chapter 56 Assessment to reflect 
several major developments in statewide assessments including the 2015 
reauthorization of the Elementary and Secondary Education Act (ESEA), the 2016 
adoption of new science standards, the 2017 U.S. Department of Education peer 
review for three single statewide summative assessments, and the 2018 U.S. 
Department of Education’s approval of Montana’s State ESEA Plan. 

The Board of Public Education has determined it is reasonable and necessary 
to adopt and amend rules relating to student assessment pursuant to ARM 
10.56.101 to stay consistent with the 2015 reauthorization of the ESEA and with 
meeting the required peer review under the U.S. Department of Education. The 
amendments were determined to be representative of federal changes since 2015 
including the reauthorization of ESEA, state adoption and implementation of science 



MAR Notice No. 10-56-285 

-6- 

standards (ARM 10.53.801-810), and issues with the technical aspects of the 
Montana assessment system including peer review and test security under Title I. 

6. Concerned persons may submit their data, views, or arguments either
orally or in writing at the hearing.  Written data, views, or arguments may also be 
submitted to: Pete Donovan, Executive Director, Board of Public Education, 46 N. 
Last Chance Gulch, Suite 2B, P.O. Box 200601, Helena, Montana, 59620-0601; 
telephone (406) 444-0300; fax (406) 444-0847; or e-mail pdonovan@mt.gov, and 
must be received no later than 5:00 p.m., June 26, 2019 

7. Pete Donovan, Executive Director, has been designated to preside over
and conduct this hearing. 

8. The Board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive
notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency. Persons who wish to have 
their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name, e-
mail, and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies for which 
program the person wishes to receive notices.  Notices will be sent by e-mail unless 
a mailing preference is noted in the request.  Such written request may be mailed or 
delivered to the contact person in 2 above or may be made by completing a request 
form at any rules hearing held by the board. 

9. The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply.

10. With regard to the requirements of 2-4-111, MCA, the board has
determined that the amendment of the above-referenced rule will not significantly 
and directly impact small businesses. 

__________________ ________________________________ 
Pete Donovan Darlene Schottle 
Rule Reviewer Chair 

Board of Public Education 

Certified to the Secretary of State May 14, 2019. 



Proposed Timeline for Assessment Rules 

Updated April, 2019 

• File Notice of Negotiated Rulemaking (NR) with SOS May 15, 2018 

• Publish Notice of NR in MAR May 25, 2018 

• Final Date to receive nominations/appointments for
Negotiated Rulemaking Committee (NRC) June 30, 2018 

• Initial presentation to BPE for introduction of proposed

NR timeline July, 2018 meeting 

• OPI appoints NRC July 13, 2018 

• First meeting of NRC August 6, 2018  

• Second meeting of NRC October 1, 2018 

• Economic impact survey to districts and compile responses October 3, 2018 

• Third NRC committee meeting- send proposed amendments

and proposed economic impact statement to Superintendent November 5, 2018 

• Superintendent’s review of proposed language for

proposed rules from NRC January 1-11, 2019 

• Introduction of Superintendent’s rule change

Recommendations (with proposed timeline and economic

Impact statement report) to BPE January 18, 2019 

• Proposed amendments and timeline to BPE for approval March 14-15, 2019 

• Notice of proposed amendment with rule language as

approved by the Superintendent submitted to BPE

for vote to publish notice May 9-10, 2019 

• File Notice of Public Hearing with SOS May 14, 2019 

• Notice of Public Hearing is published May 24, 2019 

• Public Hearing June 26, 2019 

• Final Date for Public comments June 26, 2019 

• BPE review Notice of Amendment/Adoption and
vote to amend/adopt rules July 10-12, 2019 

• File Notice of Amendment/Adoption July 30, 2019 

• Publication date of Notice of Amendment/Adoption August 9, 2019 

• Effective Date of rules July 1, 2021 



INFORMATION 

 EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE – (Items 22-23)

ITEM 22 

OPI STAFFING REPORT 

Jule Walker 



 

 

Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

 

Date: April 30, 2019 
  

Presentation RE: Request for OPI FTE Report 
Presenter Elsie Arntzen/Jule Walker 
 
Position Title Superintendent/Deputy Superintendent 
  

Overview The attached spreadsheet and narrative show an FTE report of 
the OPI in the current biennium, as well as the projected FTE 
levels in the coming biennium, per the Board’s request. 

  

Requested Decision(s) None 
  

Related Issue(s) None 
  

Recommendation(s) None 

http://opi.mt.gov/


Office of Public Instruction
Staffing History

May 2019

Projected
Division Jan-17 Jul-17 Jan-18 Jul-18 Jan-19 Jul-19
AGENCY TOTAL GF 64.00 60.80 60.80 60.80 62.06 62.06

FED 93.40 93.40 94.34 94.34 92.25 88.22
SS 2.29 2.29 1.35 1.35 1.99 1.99

 Authorized by 
Legislature 159.69 156.49 156.49 156.49 156.30 152.27
Vacant 14.20 17.50 18.50 22.20 25.06 21.06
Net 145.49 138.99 137.99 134.29 131.24 131.21

EDUCATOR LICENSURE GF 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00
Vacant
Net 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

ACCREDITATION GF 4.39 4.39 4.35 4.35 4.35 4.35
FED 2.61 2.61 2.65 2.65 2.65 2.65
Vacant 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00
Net 7.00 7.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00

STUDENT SUPPORT SERVICES GF 0.05 0.05 0.01 0.01 0.00 0.00
FED 20.50 20.50 20.54 20.54 20.55 20.55
Vacant 1.00 1.00 2.00 2.00 1.00
Net 20.55 19.55 19.55 18.55 18.55 19.55

HEALTH ENHANCEMENT AND SAFETY GF 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00
FED 15.85 15.85 16.79 16.79 16.15 16.15
SS 2.29 2.29 1.35 1.35 1.99 1.99
Vacant 1.00 1.00 3.00 4.00
Net 17.14 18.14 18.14 17.14 15.14 14.14

EDUCATIONAL OPPORTUNITY AND EQUITY GF 0.75 0.75 0.40 0.40 0.00 0.00
FED 16.00 16.00 15.60 15.60 15.00 15.00
Vacant 5.00 8.00 6.00 5.00 7.00 3.00
Net 11.75 8.75 10.00 11.00 8.00 12.00

INDIAN EDUCATION FOR ALL & GF 6.00 6.00 5.97 5.97 5.77 5.77
INDIAN EDUCATION ACHIEVEMENT FED 11.76 11.76 12.04 12.04 11.24 10.24

Vacant 1.00 1.00 2.00 1.00
Net 17.76 16.76 17.01 16.01 16.01 16.01

CAREER TECHNICAL EDUCATION GF 3.57 3.57 3.07 3.07 3.32 3.32
FED 8.43 8.43 8.93 8.93 9.68 8.68
Vacant 2.00 2.00 3.00 1.00 1.00 3.00
Net 10.00 10.00 9.00 11.00 12.00 9.00

MEASUREMENT & ACCOUNTABILITY GF 9.00 9.00 11.10 11.10 9.00 9.00
FED 8.00 8.00 7.90 7.90 8.00 7.00
Vacant 2.00 2.50 1.50 4.50 4.50 3.50
Net 15.00 14.50 17.50 14.50 12.50 12.50

CONTENT STANDARDS & INSTRUCTION GF 5.00 4.00 4.00 4.00 5.00 5.00
FED 3.02 3.02 3.02 3.02 2.02 2.00
Vacant 1.00
Net 7.02 7.02 7.02 7.02 7.02 7.00

The below chart gives an overview of staffing levels at the Office of Public Instruction. The OPI currently has 131 FTE 
with 156 positions authorized by the the  Legislature, leaving 25 FTE vacant. The Legislature authorized the reduction of 
4 FTE which goes into effect on July 1. The OPI will begin the 2020 Fiscal Year with a projected 131 FTE out of 152 
allowable, leaving 21 FTE vacant. In addition to capturing the normal turnover of positions due to resignations and 
retirements, the reported vacancies represent several strategic decisions that the OPI made over the last biennium to 
avoid a RIF of employees and ensure services were maintained through the state's budget challenges, while also better 
organizing the agency.

4/30/2019



Office of Public Instruction
Staffing History

May 2019
Projected

Division Jan-17 Jul-17 Jan-18 Jul-18 Jan-19 Jul-19
CENTRALIZED SERVICES GF 0.00 0.00 0.11 0.11 0.13 0.13

FED 2.00 2.00 1.89 1.89 1.68 1.68
Vacant
Net 2.00 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.81 1.81

LEGAL GF 2.01 2.01 2.35 2.35 2.35 2.35
FED 1.74 1.74 1.65 1.65 1.65 1.65
Vacant 1.00
Net 3.75 3.75 4.00 4.00 4.00 3.00

SUPERINTENDENT'S OFFICE GF 8.03 6.83 6.24 6.24 6.08 6.08
FED 1.78 1.78 1.32 1.32 2.48 2.48
Vacant 2.20 2.00 2.00 2.00 1.00 1.00
Net 7.61 6.61 5.56 5.56 7.56 7.56

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY GF 13.20 12.20 11.20 11.20 14.06 14.06
FED 1.71 1.71 2.01 2.01 1.15 0.14
Vacant 1.00 1.00 1.70 3.56 2.56
Net 13.91 13.91 12.21 11.51 11.65 11.64

SCHOOL FINANCE GF 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.00 9.00
Vacant 1.00 1.00 1.00
Net 9.00 8.00 8.00 8.00 9.00 9.00

Note: Report excludes positions created by budget amendment and positions funded through the indirect cost pool.

4/30/2019



INFORMATION 

ITEM 23 

UPDATE ON QUALITY EDUCATOR 
SHORTAGE REPORT 

Jule Walker 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date:  April 26, 2019 

Presentation Update on Educator Shortage Report 

Presenter Jule Walker 

Position Title Deputy Superintendent 
Office of Public Instruction 

Overview The Office of Public Instruction (OPI) will present an 
update on the Educator Shortage Report using 2018 
data. 

Requested Decision(s) Information Item 

Related Issue(s) None 

Recommendation(s) None 



2018 Endorsement Code

Total FTE 

Recruitment

Possible to 

Hire

Difficult to 

Hire

Unable 

to Hire

% Difficult or 

Unable to 

Recruit 2017 Endorsement Code

Total FTE 

Recruitment

Possible 

to Hire

Difficult 

to Hire

Unable 

to Hire

% Difficult 

or Unable 

to Recruit

Prelimin

ary 

Weight

Increase 

in FTE

Increase in % 

Difficult or 

unable to hire

00 Elementary 576.05 419.65 144.9 11.5 27% 00 Elementary 517.8 365.1 141.7 11.0 29% 153 58.2 -2%

01 English 63.8 40.25 20.67 2.88 37% 01 English 84.9 50.4 29.6 5.0 41% 35 -21.1 -4%

02 Math 72.3 29.8 40.5 2 59% 02 Math 70.7 25.2 37.0 8.5 64% 46 1.6 -6%

03 Science 64.27 35.37 26.9 2 45% 03 Science 45.0 15.1 27.4 2.5 66% 30 19.3 -21%

04 Social Studies/ History 58.32 39.9 16.42 2 32% 04 Social Studies/ History 55.1 37.6 15.5 2.0 32% 18 3.2 0%

05 Art / Music 78.99 32.8 37.96 8.23 58% 05 Art / Music 82.3 27.4 45.6 9.2 67% 55 -3.3 -8%

06 World Languages 16.91 4.95 8.96 3 71% 06 World Languages 20.8 6.5 9.3 4.9 69% 14 -3.8 2%

08 Health/ PE 36.33 17.8 13.78 4.75 51% 08 Health/ Physical Enhancement 37.9 28.6 9.1 0.3 25% 9 -1.6 26%

12 - 23 CTE 50.36 16.04 26.32 8 68% 12 - 23 CTE 41.5 7.0 23.5 11.0 83% 34 8.9 -15%

30 Principal 38.5 29 9.5 0 25% 30 Principal 73.7 52.4 20.0 1.3 29% 21 -35.2 -4%

31 Counselor 25.86 8.55 14.25 3.06 67% 31 Counselor 29.3 15.6 9.2 4.5 47% 14 -3.4 20%

32 Special Education Teacher 128.76 20.1 103.66 5 84% 32 Special Education Teacher 152.6 56.7 88.4 7.5 63% 96 -23.8 22%

Speech-Language Pathologist 32.2 1 24.2 7 97% Speech-Language Pathologist 33.2 5.0 25.2 3.0 85% 28 -1.0 12%

1242.65 1244.62

increase in Elementary Education recruitment of 58 FTE (roughly 10% increase in FTE hired from 2017)

Increase in Science recruitment FTE of 19 FTE (roughly 25% increase from 2017)

Decrease in Principal FTE recruitment FTE from 2017 of 35 FTE (roughly half the FTE recruited in 2017)

Decrease in Special Education teacher FTE recruitment of 23.8 FTE (roughly 15% change from 2017)

Decrease in English FTE recruitment of 21 FTE (roughly 25% decrease from 2017)

Science Recruitment FTE Percentage difficult to hire decreased by 21% (66% in 2017, 45% in 2018)

Health and Physical Enhancement  FTE percentage difficult to hire increased from 25% in 2017 to 51% in 2018, would qualify as a shortage area for the first time

Counselor, Special Education FTE Percentage difficult to hire increased by roughly 20% from 2017 to 2018 

No change in source data from TEAMS since 9/27; if we'd used 2018 data this is the same data we would have used.

There is still an erroneous data entry for Basin Elementary district recruitment of 1920 FTE for Elementary Education endorsment area.



ACTION 

 LICENSURE COMMITTEE – (Items 24-31)

Tammy Lacey 

ITEM 24 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF THE NOTICE 
OF PUBLIC HEARING FOR REVISIONS TO 

ARM 10.57, EDUCATOR LICENSURE 

Kris Thatcher 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: May 2019 

Presentation 
Proposed Notice of Public Hearing for Licensure 
rule amendments to: 
• ARM 10.57.410 Class 2 Standard Teacher’s

License;
• ARM 10.57.411 Class 1 Professional Teacher’s

License; and,
• ARM 10.57.424 Class 5 Provisional License

Presenter 
Kristine Thatcher 

Position Title 
Educator Licensure, Program Manager 

Overview 
The Office of Public Instruction presents to the 
Board of Public Education the Notice of Public 
Hearing for the proposed amendments of 
Administrative Rules of Montana:  10.57.410, 
10.57.411 and 10.57.424. 

Notice of Public Hearing is attached. 

Requested Decision(s) Action 

Related Issue(s) None 



Recommendation(s) Approval of Proposed Notice of Public Hearing 
for proposed amendments of: 
• ARM 10.57.410 Class 2 Standard Teacher’s

License;
• ARM 10.57.411 Class 1 Professional Teacher’s

License; and,
• ARM 10.57.424 Class 5 Provisional License



 
 
 

 
MAR Notice No. 10-57-287  

-1- 

BEFORE THE BOARD OF PUBLIC EDUCATION 
OF THE STATE OF MONTANA 

 
In the matter of the adoption of New 
Rule I and the amendment of ARM 
10.57.410, 10.57.411 and 10.57.424 
pertaining to educator licensure 

) 
) 
) 
) 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING ON 
PROPOSED AMENDMENT 

 
TO:  All Concerned Persons 
 
1.  On June 26, 2019 at 10:30 a.m., the Board of Public Education will hold a 

public hearing in the Superintendent’s Conference room at 1227 11th Avenue, 
Helena, Montana, to consider the proposed adoption and amendment of the above-
stated rules. 

 
2.  The Board will make reasonable accommodations for persons with 

disabilities who wish to participate in this rulemaking process or need an alternative 
accessible format of this notice.  If you require an accommodation, contact the Board 
of Public Education no later than 5:00 p.m. on June 19, 2019, to advise us of the 
nature of the accommodation that you need.  Please contact Pete Donovan, 
Executive Director, 46 N. Last Chance Gulch, Suite 2B, P.O. Box 200601, Helena, 
Montana, 59620-0601; telephone (406) 444-0300; fax (406) 444-0847; or e-mail 
pdonovan@mt.gov. 

 
3.   The rules as proposed to be amended provides as follows, new matter 

underlined, deleted matter interlined: 
 

 10.57.410  CLASS 2 STANDARD TEACHER'S LICENSE  (1) through (4) 
remain the same. 

 (a)  proof of a minimum passing score on the PRAXIS Subject Assessment  
applicable to the requested endorsement as established by the Office of Public 
Instruction and approved by the Board of Public Education; or hold current 
certification from the National Board for Professional Teaching Standards in an area 
approved for endorsement in Montana, and apply for endorsement in the same area; 
and 

(b) through (6) remain the same. 
 
AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-2-121, 20-4-102, MCA 
IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-4-102, 20-4-103, 20-4-106, 20-4-108, MCA 
 

10.57.411  CLASS 1 PROFESSIONAL TEACHER'S LICENSE  (1) remains 
the same. 

(2)  To obtain a Class 1 professional teacher's license an applicant must 
submit verification of all of the following: 

(a)  eligibility for the Class 2 standard teacher's license as set forth in ARM 
10.57.410, including proof of a minimum passing score on the PRAXIS Subject 
Assessment applicable to the requested endorsement and ʺAn Introduction to Indian 

mailto:pdonovan@mt.gov


MAR Notice No. 10-57-287 

-2- 

Education for All in Montanaʺ online course if the educator preparation program 
competed by the applicant is not in Montana; or hold current certification from the 
National Board for Professional Teaching Standards in an area approved for 
endorsement in Montana, and apply for endorsement in this same area; 

(b) completion of “An introduction to Indian Education for All in Montana;”
(b) and (c) remain the same but are renumbered (c) and (d).
(3) and (4) remain the same.

AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-4-102, MCA 
IMP:  Mont. Const. Art. X, sec 9, 20-4-106, 20-4-108, MCA 

10.57.424  CLASS 5 PROVISIONAL LICENSE  (1)  There are two types of 
Class 5 licenses: 

(a) A Class 5 provisional license that is valid for three years; and
(b) A Class 5A provisional license that is valid for one year.
(1) and (2) remain the same but are renumbered (2) and (3).
(3) (4)  An applicant for a Class 5 provisional license who has graduated from

an educator preparation program outside of Montana must provide proof of: 
(a) a minimum passing score on the Praxis Subject Assessment applicable to

the requested endorsement and a current Montana address or job offer from an 
accredited or state-funded P-12 school in Montana; or hold current certification from 
the National Board for Professional Teaching Standards in an area approved for 
endorsement in Montana, and apply for endorsement in the same area;  and 

(b)_ have a current Montana address or job offer from an accredited or state-
funded P-12 school in Montana.  

(5) An applicant for a Class 5 provisional license must provide verified
completion of the online course “An Introduction to Indian Education for All in 
Montana”. 

(4) remains the same but is renumbered (6).
(7) A Class 5A provisional license will be issued to those individuals seeking

their initial Montana educator license that meet all licensure requirements except for 
successful completion of the Montana required Praxis test.  This license is valid for 
one year and is non-renewable. 

 AUTH: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-4-102, MCA 
 IMP: Mont. Const. Art. X, sec. 9, 20-4-106, 20-4-108, MCA 

4. REASON: The Board of Public Education proposes to amend these rules
for the following reasons: 

New Class 5A:  Montana licenses approximately 1500 new (first MT license) 
educators each year. As a quality assurance measure, the Content Knowledge 
Praxis test is required for the requested endorsements. Successful completion of the 
specific Praxis test is required prior to licensure.  While the value of this requirement 
speaks for itself, completion of the test(s) prior to licensing has proven to be 
problematic for many. This is due to the multiple demands and obligations on both 
personal and professional levels that are associated with relocating. 



MAR Notice No. 10-57-287 

-3- 

Additionally, School Districts have found themselves struggling with new hires that 
were anticipated to have completed their licensure process by the start of the school 
year. This occurs, on occasion, because the new employee has not yet completed 
their Praxis test(s). 

Praxis Exemption:  Providing for a waiver of the Praxis test recognizes that the 
National Board for Professional Teaching Standards (NBPTS) is a highly respected 
K-12 certification program. Acceptance into NBPTS requires: a) a bachelor’s degree
from an accredited institution, b) completion of three years of successful teaching in
one or more early childhood, elementary, middle or secondary school, c) hold a valid
state teaching license for each of the three years of verified teaching, d) if registering
as a World Languages candidate, provide required certified ratings from the
American Council on the Teaching of Foreign Languages.

The rigors of obtaining this certification require that teachers demonstrate standards-
based evidence of the powerful impact they have on student learning. They must 
show an integral understanding of: their students; content knowledge; use of data 
and assessments; and, teaching practice. Additionally, they must participate in 
learning communities and provide evidence of ongoing reflection and continuous 
learning. 

5. Concerned persons may submit their data, views, or arguments either
orally or in writing at the hearing.  Written data, views, or arguments may also be 
submitted to: Pete Donovan, Executive Director, Board of Public Education, 46 N. 
Last Chance Gulch, Suite 2B, P.O. Box 200601, Helena, Montana, 59620-0601; 
telephone (406) 444-0300; fax (406) 444-0847; or e-mail pdonovan@mt.gov, and 
must be received no later than 5:00 p.m., June 26, 2019. 

6. Pete Donovan, Executive Director, has been designated to preside over
and conduct this hearing. 

7. The Board maintains a list of interested persons who wish to receive
notices of rulemaking actions proposed by this agency. Persons who wish to have 
their name added to the list shall make a written request that includes the name, e-
mail, and mailing address of the person to receive notices and specifies for which 
program the person wishes to receive notices.  Notices will be sent by e-mail unless 
a mailing preference is noted in the request.  Such written request may be mailed or 
delivered to the contact person in 2 above or may be made by completing a request 
form at any rules hearing held by the board. 

8. The bill sponsor contact requirements of 2-4-302, MCA, do not apply.

9. With regard to the requirements of 2-4-111, MCA, the board has
determined that the amendment of the above-referenced rule will not significantly 
and directly impact small businesses. 



MAR Notice No. 10-57-287 

-4- 

__________________ ________________________________ 
Pete Donovan Darlene Schottle 
Rule Reviewer Chair 

Board of Public Education 

Certified to the Secretary of State May 14, 2019. 



ACTION 

ITEM 25 

REQUEST FOR ADDITIONAL YEAR OF 
INTERNSHIP FOR DOUGLAS GLENNY 

Kris Thatcher 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: May 2019 

Presentation 
Request for Additional Year of Internship for 
Douglas Glenny 

Presenter 
Kristine Thatcher 

Position Title 
Educator Licensure, Program Manager 

Overview 
Per Administrative Rule 10.57.109 Unusual Cases, 
it is acknowledged that licensure rules cannot 
cover all special circumstances that may arise.  
The Board of Public Education has authority to 
exercise judgment based upon recommendation 
by the Superintendent of Public Instruction.  
Therefore, the Superintendent brings forward a 
request for an additional year of internship for 
Douglas Glenny. 

Mr. Glenny has been employed with Jeannette 
Rankin Elementary School in Missoula since 2016.  
He holds a Class 2, Elementary Education 
endorsed license, and has been working on 
completing a Special Education PK-12 program 
with the University of Montana since the fall of 
2016.   

Mr. Glenny has held three consecutive internships 
for the purpose of obtaining the Special Education 



endorsement.  Per ARM 10.55.607, the Internship 
rule, an intern may be considered appropriately 
assigned for up to three years while enrolled in 
and making progress toward program completion.  

Mr. Glenny had made satisfactory progress each 
year of his internship and was on track to 
complete his program this spring, May of 2019.   

Unfortunately, Mr. Glenny suffered a severe fall 
on the ice the end of November in 2018.  This fall 
prohibited him from working and also from being 
able to take his final courses for program 
completion this spring.  

Mr. Glenny has provided an explanation of his 
circumstances.  He has also provided letters of 
support from his school principal, from the 
district’s Human Resources Department, from the 
district’s Special Education Coordinator and from 
the University of Montana.   

All letters provided emphasize Mr. Glenny’s 
dedication and talent as a Special Education 
teacher. 

Therefore, the Superintendent is requesting Mr. 
Glenny be granted approval for a fourth year of 
internship. 

Requested Decision(s) 
Approval for Douglas Glenny to receive one more 
year of internship.  

Related Issue(s) None 



Recommendation(s) 
It is the Superintendent’s recommendation that 
due to the extenuating circumstances 
surrounding Mr. Glenny, the Board of Public 
Education authorize Mr. Glenny to receive one 
more year of internship for completion of his 
Special Education endorsement with the 
University of Montana. 



ACTION 
 
 

ITEM 26 
 
 

RECOMMEND APPROVAL OF A NEW 
CURRICLULAR PROGRAM IN COMPUTER 
SCIENCE – COLLEGE OF EDUCATION AND 
HEALTH AND HUMAN DEVELOPMENT AT 

MSU – BOZEMAN 
 
 

Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson 
Dr. Nick Lux, Associate Professor of 

Education, MSU 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: May 9-10, 2019 

Presentation 
Recommend Approval a New Curriculum Program 
in Computer Science in the College of Education, 
Health and Human Development at Montana State 
University Bozeman. 

Presenter Linda Vrooman Peterson 

Position Title Administrator 
Accreditation and Educator Preparation Division 
Office of Public Instruction 

Overview This presentation to the Board of Public Education 
(BPE) confirms the alignment of MSU Bozeman’s 
computer science teaching minor to the 
Professional Educator Preparation Program 
Standards (PEPPS). Dr. Nicholas Lux provided 
relevant materials for the off-site review to verify 
need, ongoing available resources, and alignment 
to the PEPPS. The OPI reviewed the materials 
based on the Administrative Rules of Montana 
(ARM) 10.58.528 Computer Science and ARM 
10.58.802 Approval of New Curricular Programs.  

Dr. Lux will provide highlights of the computer 
science minor and be available to respond to 
questions from members of the BPE. 

The State Superintendent recommends approval 
of the new curricular program offered at MSU 



 

 

 

Bozeman in a computer science teaching minor as 
an endorsement option in secondary education. 

  

Requested Decision(s) Action 
  

Related Issue(s) Once approved by the BPE, the College of 
Education, Health and Human Development may 
immediately enroll candidates in the computer 
science teaching minor program. 

Recommendation(s) Approve the Computer Science teaching minor as 
an endorsement option in the bachelor’s degree 
Teacher Education Program in the College of 
Education, Health and Human Development at 
Montana State University Bozeman.   

  



College of 

EDUCATION, HEALTH &

HUMAN DEVELOPMENT 

Office of the Dean 
Alison Harmon 
250 Reid Hall 
PO Box 172940 
Bozeman, MT 59717-2940 

Tel (406) 994-4133 
Fax (406) 994-1854 

MEMORANDUM 

TO: Linda Vrooman Peterson, Administrator 
Accreditation and Educator Preparation Division 
Montana Office of Public Instruction 

FROM: Dr. Alison Harmon, Dean 
College of Education, Health & Human Development 

Dr. Tricia Seifert, Head  
Department of Education 

RE: Computer Science teaching minor (endorsement option) 

DATE: October 19, 2018 

Montana State University is seeking Board of Public Education approval to 
offer a computer science teaching minor as an endorsement option in the 
bachelor’s degree Teacher Education Program. The 25-credit minor draws 
from coursework in Computer Science and Education and has been 
developed with close collaboration between the two departments to meet the 
standards set forth in ARM 10.58.528. Required coursework is attached.  

Computer science teachers are in demand in this state and beyond. Because 
schools are required to hire teachers considered qualified to teach within 
specific subject areas, preparing new teachers with endorsements is a 
necessary step toward supporting robust computer science instruction in 5-12 
instruction in Montana. The focus of this program is to prepare teachers with 
the pedagogical, content, and technological understandings related to 
computer science education in 5-12 contexts. The minor makes use of 
courses already offered as part of the curriculum and will address the 
foundational computer science and computational thinking-relevant content, 
coupled with the instructional planning, delivery, and assessment strategies, 
needed to be an effective computer science teacher.  

As a result of creating this new teaching minor and endorsement option, 
MSU-Bozeman provides a pathway for highly prepared educators to teach 
computer science in middle and high schools across the state.  



Computer Science Teaching Minor coursework 

Computer Science Courses 

CSCI 107 Joy and Beauty of Computing 3 

CSCI 127 Joy and Beauty of Data 4 

CSCI 132 Basic Data Structures and Algorithms 4 

CSCI 232 Data Structures and Algorithms 4 

Computer Science Elective 3 

Education Courses 

EDU 370 Integrating Tech into Educ 2 

EDU 498 Internship 2 

EDU 497 Methods 3 

or EDU 497R Methods: 5-8 Mathematics 

Total Credits 25 

https://nextcatalog.montana.edu/search/?P=CSCI%20107
https://nextcatalog.montana.edu/search/?P=CSCI%20127
https://nextcatalog.montana.edu/search/?P=CSCI%20132
https://nextcatalog.montana.edu/search/?P=CSCI%20232
https://nextcatalog.montana.edu/search/?P=EDU%20370
https://nextcatalog.montana.edu/search/?P=EDU%20498
https://nextcatalog.montana.edu/search/?P=EDU%20497
https://nextcatalog.montana.edu/search/?P=EDU%20497R


    
 

The Montana Office of Public Instruction provides vision, advocacy, support, and leadership for schools and communities  

to ensure that all students meet today’s challenges and tomorrow’s opportunities. 

Office of Public Instruction 
P.O. Box 202501 

Helena, MT 59620-2501 
406.444.3095 
888.231.9393 

406.444.0169 (TTY) 
opi.mt.gov 

MEMORANDUM 

To: Montana Board of Public Education 

From: Linda Vrooman Peterson, Administrator 

 Accreditation and Educator Preparation 

Cc: Elsie Arntzen, State Superintendent 

 Jule Walker, Deputy Superintendent 

Date: March 14-15, 2019 

Re: Alignment of Computer Science Minor Endorsement Program Requirements to 
Professional Educator Preparation Program Standards 

The College of Education, Health and Human Development is seeking approval to offer a new 
curricular program in computer science with an endorsement in secondary education. The 
Office of Public Instruction (OPI) conducted an initial off-site review of the computer science 
minor program of study to verify the alignment of the computer science program to the 
Professional Educator Professional Program Standards (PEPPS).   

Dr. Nick Lux, Associate Professor, Department of Education, and Dr. John Paxton, Professor, 
Computer Science Department at MSU, provided program materials to the OPI for review. 
These materials included course descriptions, course syllabi, and plan of study, and the need for 
the professional expectations. The OPI staff examined the computer science endorsement 
program of study teaching option with the requirements of the PEPPS: 10.58.528 Computer 
Science and 10.58.802 Approval of New Curricular Programs.  

Initial Off-Site Review Findings: 

• Computer Science minor program of study requirements and corresponding course 
syllabi align to the PEPPS 10.58.528.  

• Verification and rationale for the development of the proposed Computer Science Minor 
align to the PEPPS 10.58.802 Approval of New Curricular Programs. 

Attached are examples of the material submitted by College of Education, Health and Human 
Development at Montana State University Bozeman.  
 
 



© 2018, Nicholas Lux 

EDU 370  
Integrating Technology Into Education 

Spring 2019 
Instructor Contact Info: See D2L 

Course Description 
This course provides pre-service teachers with a foundation for the skills needed to effectively integrate technology into teaching in 
order to enhance student learning.  

Learning Outcomes 
• Students will produce a wide array of digital learning tools for integration in K-12 learning situations.
• Students will evaluate when and where technology can most effectively be used to motivate and engage students, and deliver 

effective instruction.
• Students will critique the process of integrating technology as applied to specific learning situations. 
• Students will apply digital learning tools to instructional planning in order to address content standards and specified learning 

objectives.
• Students will analyze specific strategies and create plans for the integration of digital learning tools intended to maximize 

student learning.
• Students will compose a technology integration rationale that justifies the use of digital learning tools intended to meet 

stated learning objectives and pedagogical needs.

Class Days and Times 
All sections of EDU 370 meet for one 110 minute lecture each week for 16 weeks. Additionally, there will be a required online 
component for this class.  You will are expected to check in to D2L just about every other day, if not more frequently. Sometimes, you 
may only check in quickly and read a short message and be logging out after 5-10 minutes.  Video screencasts, supplemental online 
discussion, and important course updates are all shared online via D2L.  The assignments and this information will be critical to your 
success in this course - this is not the type of class in which you will succeed if you log in once a week. 

Attendance Policy 
Two unexcused absences will result in your final grade being dropped by one 10%.  In other words, you have one free absence.  The 
second absence will result in your final grade being lowered by 10%. The third unexcused absence will result in lowering of your 
course grade by 20%.  The fourth unexcused absence will result in lowering of your course grade 30%, and so forth.   Extenuating 
circumstances will be reviewed on a case-by-case basis. It is your responsibility to check in with your instructor on a regular basis to 
confirm that the official class attendance record aligns with your own personal records. 

Additionally, please note that this “one free absence” may not be applied to the “Final Exam Meeting”. Please see the section below 
titled “Final Examination Meeting”. 

You are allowed to make-up a missed class by attending one of the other EDU 370 sections. However, you must obtain the permission 
of that instructor, and notify them of your intent to make up a missing class by attending another. Again, it is YOUR job to 
communicate this intent to the instructor, and make sure that your instructor records the attendance at the alternative section. 

EDU 370 lecture courses are offered on the following days/times: 
• EDU 370-001 - Thursday, 10:50 AM - 12:40 PM (Cusker)
• EDU 370-002 - Wednesday, 11:00 AM – 12:50 PM (Lux)

• EDU 370-003 - Wednesday, 2:10 - 4 PM (Lux)
• EDU 370-004 - Wednesday, 5:10 - 7 PM (McGeehan)

Required Lab Registration 
A major course component of EDU 370 is a field experience in which you will design and deliver technology-rich instruction in a Bozeman 
elementary after school program. This course requirement will be explained in depth during the first week of lecture, but it is important 
that everyone recognizes that the lab time for which you registered (EDU 370-006: Tuesday, 3:30-5:30 PM; or EDU 370-007: Thursday 
3:30-5:30 PM) is reserved for that field placement.  

Required Texts and other materials 
There is no required text for EDU 370 – all necessary course material will be provided via D2L.  This, of course, does not account for the 
necessary technology students need to complete the course. No special software is required, but students will need a computer with a 
high-speed Internet connection. 

Communication 
All class communications will take place through Desire2Learn and your MSU email address. It is your responsibility to check your D2L 
email and your MSU account frequently.  It is suggested that you consider forwarding your D2L email to an email address you check 
frequently. 



 

© 2018, Nicholas Lux 

 
Final Exam  
EDU 370 relies on a take-home final exam in the form of the Final Paper and Technology Rationale. This paper will be due during finals 
week. Please check the schedule below and D2L for details on the due date/time and specifics of the assignment. 
 
Professional Expectations for the ASP (After School Partnership) Tech Club Field Placement 
Students must remember that they are guests in our community schools! If, at any time, you are asked to leave and not carry on with your 
duties, you will not receive credit for this component of the lab course.  You must remember – it is the success of children in our local 
district that are at stake.  You will be asked to present yourself the upmost professional manner consistent with which is expected of a 
teacher or paraprofessional working in our local schools.  This applies to your dress, hair, your timeliness, and communications with school 
personnel, etc.  
 
Once again, if for any reason you are asked to not return to your duties and work in the after-school program, you will not receive any of 
the points possible for this project. Since this is a major component of the course and account for over 50% of the total possible points, 
this means that you will not pass the lab component of EDU 370. 
 
In preparation for your participation in the field experience, you will be asked to: 
• Participate in an orientation with MSU faculty, staff, and Bozeman School District administration. 
• Follow all Office of Field Placement and Licensure background checks, including getting finger printed: 

o http://www.montana.edu/fieldplacement/FingerprintingInstruction.shtml 
• Thoroughly review the Professional Expectations document on the MSU Field Placement and Licensure website: 

o http://www.montana.edu/fieldplacement/PDFs/Professional_Expectations_Fall_10.pdf 
 
Cohorts 
Students will be split into two cohorts.  Because of several university holidays, as well as Bozeman School District PIR days, it is critical that 
we adhere to this schedule. Also, please note that there is an overlap week in which Cohort #1 and #2 are in the schools at the same time. 
 
Week of January 28, 2019: Cohort 1 Begins 
Week of March 4, 2019: Overlap Week (Cohort 1 Ends/Cohort 2 Begins) 
Week of April 15, 2019: Cohort 2 Ends 
Week of April 22, 2019: Make Up Week 

 
Overlap Week: The week of October 23  is an overlap week; it will be Cohort 1’s last visit, and serve as Cohort 2’s first visit (observation 
only). 
 
Make-up Week: In the event you are unable to attend a Tech Club visit, it is YOUR RESPONISIBILTY to communicate with your partner and 
ASP site coordinator, as well as make up the visit during the 4/22 make-up week. 

 
For most placements, MSU teacher candidates will be expected to spend a minimum of SIX afternoons working at a Bozeman school with 
students in an after-school setting. This requirement might be adjusted depending on your placement, but your instructor, the ASP 
Director, and your field supervisor will make you aware of these adjustments. All students are expected to ultimately meet the time 
requirement expectations as outlined by your instructors. 

 
FAILURE TO COMPLETE ALL REQUIRED VISITS FOR YOUR PLACEMENT WILL RESULT IN A FORFEITURE OF THE 150 POSSIBLE POINTS FOR 
THIS PROJECT AND A FAILING GRADE FOR THE ENTIRE COURSE.  

 
Kick Off Meeting  
For students place in Belgrade: Tuesday, January 22nd 2:15PM-4:00PM Holiday Inn Express-Belgrade (Conference Room) 
For students placed in Bozeman: Tuesday, January 22nd 5:15PM-7:00PM Bozeman High School Library (Upstairs) 
Other Locations: TBA 
 
CRITICAL SCHEDULING INFO: Because placements will not be firmed up until the second week of classes, all students should students 
should set aside 2:00 PM – 7:00PM on Tuesday, January 22nd until they know their actual placement. This meeting will serve a critical 
introduction between you and the ASP program coordinators and school principals from the school at which you will be placed.  
Considering this is a mandatory/required meeting, students should make necessary accommodations early for work and other 
obligations. 

 
Background Check & Orientations 
In preparation for your participation in the field experience, you will be asked to: 

1. Participate in an orientation with MSU faculty, staff, and Bozeman School District administration. 
2. Follow all Office of Field Placement and Licensure background checks, including getting finger printed*: 

http://www.montana.edu/fieldplacement/Practicum_Student.html 



© 2018, Nicholas Lux 

3. Thoroughly review the Professional Expectations document on the MSU Field Placement and Licensure website: 
http://www.montana.edu/fieldplacement/On-Line-Packets/Professional ExpectationsFall10.pdf 

*NOTE: Students must have a completed background check on file with the MSU Field Placement and Licensure Office. Background checks 
completed through other organizations or institutions do not suffice. All students enrolled in MSU teacher education courses complete a 
background check upon beginning the first teacher education program courses (EDCI 222 or EDCI 223: Educational Psychology). This 
background check is good until you formally enter the MSU Teacher Education Program (TEP) at the start of student teaching. At that time, 
you will complete a new background check. 

However, ALL students are expected to self-disclose any changes in their background status to the Field Placement and Licensure Office. 
Failure to do so jeopardizes your status in the MSU Teacher Education Program. 

Accountability 
In terms of accountability, your work in the field will be tracked through two mechanisms: 
1. Field Experience Log with required signatures 
2. Completed ASP First Day Checklist
3. Written reflection following each visit (see below for specific details)

Academic Expectations 
Students enrolled in EDU 370 are expected to adhere to the policies set forth in the MSU “Conduct Guidelines and Grievance Procedures 
for Students”. Violation of these conduct guidelines will jeopardize your success in the course.   

These guidelines can be found at www2.montana.edu/policy/student_conduct/cg600.html. Please review these guidelines carefully, and 
contact your instructor if you have any questions. 

Additional Expectations: Late Work, and Participation 
• Class participation points cannot be made up. You will earn class participation points by the quality and depth of your contributions 

to class conversations (both small group and large group), as well as the viewing of all screencasts. D2L provides the instructor a 
mechanism to check the frequency of screencast viewings, so you want to ensure you save enough time each week to watch ALL 
screencasts for that week’s work.

• Late assignments will be accepted only during the week following the due date and will lose one letter grade for being LATE.  Late
assignments will not be accepted after that time interval unless prior arrangements have been made with your instructor. Talk to your 
instructor if you are having problems getting work done on time.

• All written assignments must be done using a word processor unless instructed differently.  Papers received that are not typed will be 
given back and, upon resubmission, will receive late point deduction.

• The Education Department faculty feels strongly that a teacher should have competent writing skills.  Any assignment exhibiting 
more than three spelling, grammar, or punctuation errors will automatically drop one letter grade or be given back to you for
correction and may receive late point deduction.

APA Style Reminder 
All work you submit should follow APA format, and be double-spaced with 12 pt. text.  Remember – it is YOUR RESPONSIBILITY to cite any 
and all sources of information in your work. 

If you have any questions about proper APA formatting, your instructor will be glad to help point in the right direction of useful resources 
for formatting help. NOTE: If the discipline in which you are studying typically uses MLA format, make sure that you adhere to the 
conventions on that format. 

Course Overview 
All assignments listed below are due before the start of class during the week for which they are listed. For example, the items listed for 
Week 2 are due before class begins Week 2. NOTE: ADB refers to the “Assignment Drop Box” in D2L.  

CLASS TOPICS IN-CLASS ACTIVITIES ASSIGNMENTS DUE  
Week #1: 
1/9 or 1/10 

Course Introduction • Syllabus Review 
• Tech Club Introduction 
• Digital Learning Portfolio 

Introduction

• Course Agreement Checklist in D2L (Due 
Friday, 1/11)

• Tech Club Information Form Submission (Due 
Friday, 1/11): http://bit.ly/1esII47 

Week #2: 
1/16 or 1/17 

Instructional Planning 
with Technology; 
Storytelling with 
Google Tours 

• Meet with ASP faculty for 
Tech Club Expectations 

• Build: Google Tours
• UDL Introduction 

• Read Technology Integration Articles in D2L 
• Three ASP Activity Ideas (Submit to Dropbox 

and bring to class)



© 2018, Nicholas Lux 

Bring to class signed BSD Volunteer Form AND 
Non-Staff Acceptable Use Agreement 

• View ASP Tech Club Intro Screencast
1/22  ASP Introduction 

Meeting 
DETAILS TBA: Time varies depending on placement—for now, students should set 
aside 2:00 PM – 7:00 PM until they know their actual placement. See above for 
details. 

Week #3: 
1/23 or 1/24 

Integrating the Web 
& Digital Citizenship, 

• Information Literacy and 
Critical Web Evaluation 

• Commonsensemedia.org 
• Review Tech Club Reflection 

process

• Week 2 Google Tour (Submit Share URL to 
Dropbox)

• Complete Field Placement Confirmation Form 
• Review ASP Handbook and ASP Professional 

Development Video
Week #4: 
1/30 or 1/31 

Tools for Student 
Creativity  

• Google Apps, Pt. 1 
• Other tools that support 

student creativity 

• Final ASP Activity Plans (Submit to Dropbox 
and bring to class)

• COHORT #1 BEGINS THIS WEEK 
• Begin Field Placement Reflection in Journal (if 

in cohort #1)
Week #5: 
2/6 or 2/7 

Google Apps • Google Apps, Pt. 2 
• Wikis (Setting up your Digital 

Learning Portfolio)
Week #6: 
2/13 or 2/14 

Mobile Learning 
Debate 

• Mobile learning review & in-
class activity

• Terms of Service (ToS) 
Assignment Introduction 

Week #7: 
2/20 or 2/21 

Digital Storytelling, 
Pt. 1 

• Digital Storytelling

Week #8: 
2/27 or 2/28 

Digital Storytelling, 
Pt. 2 

• Digital Storytelling • Terms of Service (ToS) Submission

Week #9: 
3/6 or 3/7 

Digital Storytelling, 
Pt. 3 

• Digital Storytelling • Digital Story – completed and submitted in 
class

• COHORT #2 BEGINS THIS WEEK 
• Begin Field Placement Reflection in Journal (if 

in cohort #2)
Week #10: 
3/13 or 3/14 

IEFA eBook 
Informational Text 
Project, Pt. 1 

• Project introduction 
• Whiteboard and Screencast 

Apps
Week #11: 
3/20 or 3/21 ** NO CLASS – SPRING BREAK ** 

Week #12: 
3/27 or 3/28 

IEFA eBook 
Informational Text 
Project, Pt. 2 

• Illustration and Content 
Writing 

• Sketchbook
Week #13: 
4/3 or 4/4 

IEFA eBook 
Informational Text 
Project, Pt. 3 

• IEFA eBook Informational Text
Creation – Book Creator

• Illustration and Content 
Writing

• Completed IEFA eBook Informational Text
Project – completed and submitted in class

• Educational Technology in Practice 
Reflection Paper

Week #14: 
4/10 or 4/11 

Technology and 
Assessment, Part 1 

• Using technology to support 
classroom assessment

Week #15: 
4/17 or 4/18 

Technology and 
Assessment, Part 2 
Online Teaching and 
Learning; 

• Data-driven instructional
decisions

• Online course design 
• Online course design activity 

Week #16: 
4/24 or 4/25 

Final Exam Prep 
Workshop 

• Course Review: UDL, 
Technology and Scaffolding, 
Digital Citizenship, Digital 
Literacy,
Deliberate/Purposeful 
Integration, & Tech-based 
Assessment

• Final Tech Club Presentation – Due Fri., 
4/26, 11:59 PM 
Submit final presentation to D2L

FINAL EXAM 
4/29 at 12 PM 
(Noon) 

TAKE HOME FINAL: 
FINAL PAPER AND 
TECHNOLOGY 
RATIONALE 

There is no final exam for EDU 370. Instead, you will complete a take-home final. 
This take-home final is the Final Paper and Technology Rationale. It is due on 
Monday, 4/29 by 12:00 PM (NOON). Submit to D2L. 



 

© 2018, Nicholas Lux 

 
 
Key Assignment Due Dates   
Please use the following to guide your completion of the course assignments. Please note that each assignment is due at the start of your 
class that week. For example, if you are in a Wednesday section, your three ASP activity ideas are due on 1/16 if you are in a 
Wednesday section or 1/17 if you are in a Thursday section.   
 
In-Class vs. At-Home Assignments: In addition, please note what is included in the column titled “In-Class or At-Home”. Several of the 
assignments we do in EDU 370 are completed entirely in-class. In other words, those assignments designated as “In Class” are expected to 
NOT be completed at home, but instead using class time given to you by your instructor.  Those assignments designated as “At Home” are 
expected to completed entirely in your own time at home. Use this key to determine if an activity is an “In-Class” or “At-Home” activity. 
Plan and use your time accordingly. 
 
Lastly, please note that these due dates are subject to 

KEY COURSE ASSIGNMENTS DUE DATE 
Syllabus Checklist in D2L & Tech Club Confirmation Form Week #1: Friday, 1/11 
Three ASP Activity Ideas (Submit to D2L and bring to class) Week #2: 1/16 or 1/17 
Google Tour (submitted to D2L) Week #3: 1/23 or 1/24 
Final ASP Activity Plan (Submit to D2L and bring to class) Week #4: 1/30 or 1/31 
Terms of Service Assignment (Submit to online database) Week #8: 2/27 or 2/28 
Digital Story (submitted in-class) Week #9: 3/6 or 3/7 
IEFA Interactive Informational Text Project (submitted in-
class) Week #12: 4/3 or 4/4 

Educational Technology in Practice Reflection Paper 
(submitted to D2L) Week #12: 4/3 or 4/4 

Tech Club Final Presentation (submitted to D2L) Friday, 4/26 at 11:59 PM 
Take Home Final: Final Paper and Tech. Rationale Monday, 4/29 at 12 PM 

 
Point Breakdown for Assignments 

Lecture Assignments Possible 
Points 

Three ASP Activity Plan Ideas  10 
Final ASP Activity Plan  25 
Google Tour 10 
Terms of Service Assignment 20 
Digital Story  20 
Terms of Service Assignment 10 
IEFA eBook Informational Text Project 20 
Educational Technology in Practice Reflection Paper 75 
Field Experience Log and Reflection  150 
Final Paper and Technology Integration Rationale (TEPP Sig. Assignment) 100 
Final Presentation on ASP Experience 25 

 
Grading Breakdown for both Lab and Lecture 

Percentage Letter Grade 
94% and above A 

90% A- 
87% B+ 
83% B 
80% B- 
77% C+ 
73% C 
70% C- 
67% D+ 
63% D 
60% D- 

Below 60% F 
 



Educator Preparation Provider Report 

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

ARM 10.58.528 Computer Science 
TO BE COMPLETED BY THE EPP 

Courses and Outcomes Assessments 
(1) The program requires that successful
candidates:

Courses listed here represent examples of 
the many opportunities students have 
throughout the minor. 

OCHE course outcomes available at: 
https://ccn.mus.edu/search/. 

Assessments listed here represent 
examples of the many opportunities 
students have throughout the minor. 

(a) demonstrate knowledge of computer
science content, models, important
principles, and concepts through:
(i) knowledge of, and proficiency in, the
use of primitive data types;

CSCI 107: Joy and Beauty of Computing 
CSCI 127: Joy and Beauty of Data 

Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(ii) understanding of data representation; CSCI 127: Joy and Beauty of Data Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(iii) knowledge of, and proficiency in, the
use of static and dynamic data

structures;

CSCI 132: Basic Data Structures and 
Algorithms in Java 
CSCI 232: Data Structures and Algorithms 

Linked List Project 
Balanced Binary Tree Project 

(iv) knowledge of, and proficiency in, the
use of common data abstraction
mechanisms (e.g., abstract and generic
classes such as stacks, trees, etc.); and

CSCI 132: Basic Data Structures and 
Algorithms in Java 

Stacks and Queues Assignment 

https://ccn.mus.edu/search/


Educator Preparation Provider Report 

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

(v) effective use, manipulation, and
explanation of external data stores –
various types (text, images, sound) and
various locations (local, server, cloud);

CSCI 127: Joy and Beauty of Data Python Data Library Assignment 

(b) demonstrate knowledge of algorithm
design, analysis, and implementation in
an object-oriented programming
language using data structures and
abstract data types covering:
(i) algorithm problem solving techniques
and strategies and design methodologies;

CSCI 127: Joy and Beauty of Data 
CSCI 232: Data Structures and Algorithms 

Graph Algorithm Assignment 

(ii) algorithm verification; CSCI 232: Data Structures and Algorithms Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(iii) algorithm complexity and efficiency;
and

CSCI 232: Data Structures and Algorithms Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(iv) knowledge of at least one of the
programming languages, C++, Java, C#,
or Ada, and one other current
programming language and current
programming language trends;

CSCI 107: Joy and Beauty of Computing 
CSCI 127: Joy and Beauty of Data  
CSCI 132: Basic Data Structures and 
Algorithms in Java 
CSCI 232: Data Structures and Algorithms 

Python Assignment 

(c) demonstrate effective design,
development, and testing of programs by:



Educator Preparation Provider Report 

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

(i) using a modern high-level
programming language; constructing
correctly functioning programs involving
simple and structured data types; using
compound Boolean expressions; and
sequential, conditional, iterative, and
recursive control structures;

CSCI 107: Joy and Beauty of Computing 
CSCI 127: Joy and Beauty of Data  
CSCI 132: Basic Data Structures and 
Algorithms in Java 
CSCI 232: Data Structures and Algorithms 

Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(ii) designing and testing programming
solutions to problems in different contexts
(i.e., textual, symbolic, numeric, graphic)
using advanced data structures;

CSCI 127: Joy and Beauty of Data  
CSCI 132: Basic Data Structures and 
Algorithms in Java 
CSCI 232: Data Structures and Algorithms 

Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(iii) demonstrating knowledge of and skills
regarding the syntax and semantics of
two high-level programming languages
other than those covered in (b)(iv), their
control structures, and their basic data
representation;

CSCI 132: Basic Data Structures and 
Algorithms in Java 
CSCI 232: Data Structures and Algorithms 

Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(iv) demonstrating knowledge of and skill
regarding program correctness issues
and practices (i.e., testing, test data
design, and proofs of correctness);

CSCI 132: Basic Data Structures and 
Algorithms in Java 
CSCI 232: D Data Structures and 
Algorithms 

Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(v) demonstrating knowledge of and skill
regarding at least three different program
development environments in widespread
use;

CSCI 107: Joy and Beauty of Computing 
CSCI 127: Joy and Beauty of Data  
CSCI 132: Basic Data Structures and 
Algorithms in Java 
CSCI 232: Data Structures and Algorithms 

Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 



Educator Preparation Provider Report 

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

(vi) demonstrating knowledge of and the
ability to construct multi-threaded client-
server applications;

This content and skills are addressed in 
300-level courses and beyond and are
beyond the scope of any CS content that
would be taught in a K-12 context.
Stakeholders involved in this proposal and
process encourage this particular standard
be revisited and revised/removed to be
more developmentally appropriate for a K-
12 context.

(vii) demonstrating knowledge of and the
ability to construct web sites that utilize
complex data bases;

This content and skills are addressed in 
300-level courses and beyond and are
beyond the scope of any CS content that
would be taught in a K-12 context.
Stakeholders involved in this proposal and
process encourage this particular standard
be revisited and revised/removed to be
more developmentally appropriate for a K-
12 context.

(viii) demonstrating knowledge of and the
ability to construct artificial intelligence
and robotic applications; and

This content and skills are addressed in 
300-level courses and beyond and are
beyond the scope of any CS content that
would be taught in a K-12 context.
Stakeholders involved in this proposal and
process encourage this particular standard
be revisited and revised/removed to be
more developmentally appropriate for a K-
12 context.

(ix) demonstrating knowledge of the
principles of usability and human
computer interaction and be able to apply

This content and skills are addressed in 
300-level courses and beyond and are
beyond the scope of any CS content that



Educator Preparation Provider Report 

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

these principles to the design and 
implementation of human-computer 
interfaces;  

would be taught in a K-12 context. 
Stakeholders involved in this proposal and 
process encourage this particular standard 
be revisited and revised/removed to be 
more developmentally appropriate for a K-
12 context. 

(d) demonstrate knowledge of computer
systems and networks and be able to:
(i) describe the operation of a computer
system, CPU and instruction cycle,
peripherals, network components, and
applications, indicating their purposes
and interactions among them;

EDU 370: Integrating Technology into 
Education 
EDU 498: Internship 

Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(ii) demonstrate an understanding of
operating systems;

EDU 370: Integrating Technology into 
Education 
EDU 498: Internship 

Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(iii) demonstrate an understanding of
computer networks; and

EDU 370: Integrating Technology into 
Education 
EDU 498: Internship 

Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(iv) demonstrate an understanding of the
issues involved in building and fielding
mobile services;

CSCI 215: Social and Ethical Issues in 
Computer Science 

Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 



Educator Preparation Provider Report 

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

(e) demonstrate an understanding of
software engineering and be able to
demonstrate an understanding of:
(i) the difference between computer
science and software engineering;

EDU 498: Internship Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(ii) software development methodologies
and the software development life cycle;
and

EDU 498: Internship Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(iii) the purpose and contents of the
software engineering body of knowledge;

EDU 498: Internship Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(f) demonstrate an understanding of the
key concepts of computer/information
security and be able to:
(i) demonstrate an understanding of the
concept of ʺattack surfaceʺ and the
various methods used to minimize an
attack surface;

CSCI 215: Social and Ethical Issues in 
Computer Science 
EDU 498: Internship 

Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(ii) demonstrate an understanding of the
importance of maintaining logs of all
system activity related to security; and

EDU 498: Internship Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 



Educator Preparation Provider Report 

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(iii) demonstrate an understanding of the
purpose and general functionality of a
firewall;

EDU 498: Internship Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(g) demonstrate an understanding of the
role computer science and software
engineering plays in the modern world
and be able to demonstrate an
understanding of:
(i) significant historical events relative to
computers and information systems;

CSCI 215: Social and Ethical Issues in 
Computer Science 

Recitation Research Assignment 

(ii) the social, ethical, and legal issues
and impacts of computing and
information systems;

CSCI 215: Social and Ethical Issues in 
Computer Science 

Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(iii) the contributions that computer and
information science and software
engineering make to science, the
humanities, the arts, commerce, and
entertainment;

CSCI 215: Social and Ethical Issues in 
Computer Science 
CSCI 107: Joy and Beauty of Computing 

Multiple in-class discussions, lab 
assignments, and homework activities 
provide students with an opportunity to 
engage with and apply their knowledge of 
this standard. 

(iv) and ability to teach social issues
related to the use of computers and
information systems in society and the
principles for making informed decisions
including, but not limited to, security,

CSCI 215: Social and Ethical Issues in 
Computer Science 

Recitation Writing Assignment 



Educator Preparation Provider Report 

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

privacy, intellectual property, equitable 
access to technology resources, gender 
issues, cultural diversity, differences in 
learner needs, limits of computing, and 
rapid change; and 
(v) the many different careers that are
closely related to the development and
use of computer and information
systems;

CSCI 215: Social and Ethical Issues in 
Computer Science 

Careers Assignment 

(h) demonstrate effective content
pedagogical strategies that make the
discipline comprehensible to students
and:

EDU 370: Integrating Technology into 
Education 
EDU 497: Methods 
EDU 498: Internship 

Internship CS Unit and Observations 

(i) design projects that require students to
effectively describe computing artifacts
and communicate results using multiple
forms of media;

EDU 370: Integrating Technology into 
Education 
EDU 497: Methods 
EDU 498: Internship 

Internship CS Unit and Observations 

(ii) identify problematic concepts and
constructs in computer science and
appropriate strategies to address them;
and

EDU 370: Integrating Technology into 
Education 
EDU 497: Methods 
EDU 498: Internship 

Internship CS Unit and Observations 

(iii) promote and model the safe,
effective, and ethical use of computer
hardware, software, peripherals, and
networks and develop digital citizenship.

EDU 370: Integrating Technology into 
Education 
EDU 497: Methods 
EDU 498: Internship 
CSCI 215: Social and Ethical Issues in 
Computer Science 

Internship CS Unit and Observations 



Educator Preparation Provider Report 

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

History: 20-2-114, MCA; IMP, 20-2-121, MCA; NEW, 1991 MAR p. 300, Eff. 3/15/91; AMD, 1992 MAR p. 1475, Eff. 7/17/92; AMD, 
1994 MAR p. 2722, Eff. 10/14/94; AMD, 2000 MAR p. 2406, Eff. 9/8/00; AMD, 2007 MAR p. 190, Eff. 2/9/07; AMD, 2014 MAR p. 
2936, Eff. 7/1/15.) Rules 10.58.529 and 10.58.530 are reserved. 



 
EPP Report – Approval of New Curricular Programs  
Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.58.802  

 

 

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

ÍARM 10.58.802 Approval of New 
Curricular Programs 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE INSTITUTION 
Description Verification 

(1) The provider may request the 
approval of a new curricular program by 
describing the purpose, need, and 
objectives of the program and the impact 
on P-12 education. 

The Computer Science Teaching Minor is 
intended for those undergraduate students 
interested in preparing to be computer 
science teachers in Montana, with the 
necessary licensure for such. Computer 
science teachers are in demand in this 
state and beyond. Because schools are 
required to hire teachers considered 
qualified to teach within specific subject 
areas, preparing new teachers with 
endorsements is a necessary step toward 
supporting computer science instruction in 
5-12 instruction in Montana. The focus of 
this program is to prepare teachers with the 
pedagogical, content, and technological 
understandings related to computer 
science education in 5-12 contexts. The 
minor will address the foundational 
computer science and computational 
thinking-relevant content, coupled with the 
instructional planning, delivery, and 
assessment strategies, needed to be an 
effective computer science teacher. 
 

This process has been verified through 
collaboration with statewide partners. 
Further, the computer science teaching 
minor has the support from departmental, 
college, and university leadership as 
verified by Montana Board of Regents 
approval as well as 
Northwest Commission on Colleges and 
Universities (NWCCU). 
 



 
EPP Report – Approval of New Curricular Programs  
Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.58.802  

 

 

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

ÍARM 10.58.802 Approval of New 
Curricular Programs 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE INSTITUTION 
Description Verification 

 (2) The provider:  
 
(a) ensures that the program of study is 
based on current research, proven 
practice, and emerging trends in this field 
of P-12 school curriculum; 
 
 

Computer science has historically been 
marginalized in K-12 classroom in favor of 
other STEM disciplines.  However, 
computer science-related careers are 
projected to grow significantly over the next 
several decades (United States Bureau of 
Labor Statistics, 2012). Further, computer 
science enrollment projections in higher 
education suggest that the number of 
graduates will not be sufficient to address 
industry needs (CSTA, 2015).  In response 
to this growing need, K-12 educators have 
begun to recognize the critical role 
computer science plays in driving 
innovation and supporting the US 
economy, and considerable efforts are 
underway to better support interest in 
computer science.   As a result, a 
considerable shift is afoot across the nation 
to make computer science a central 
component of core academic work in K-12 
contexts. Computer science teachers are in 
demand in Montana, yet the state is 
currently facing a shortage of the 
mechanisms needed to adequately train 
educators to teach computer science. 
Preparing new teachers to teach computer 

This process has been verified through 
collaboration with statewide partners. 
Further, the computer science teaching 
minor has the support from departmental, 
college, and university leadership as 
verified by Montana Board of Regents 
approval as well as 
Northwest Commission on Colleges and 
Universities (NWCCU). 
 



EPP Report – Approval of New Curricular Programs 
Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.58.802  

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

ÍARM 10.58.802 Approval of New 
Curricular Programs 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE INSTITUTION 
Description Verification 

science means more computer science 
courses can be taught in schools across 
Montana, encouraging diversity within the 
field, and support K-12 interest in and 
instruction in one of the fastest growing 
disciplines in STEM.  Ultimately, this 
means more opportunities for K-12 learners 
to be exposed to computer science, 
strengthening the pathways to a career in 
computer science.   

(b) works cooperatively with accredited
school districts, education organizations,
agencies, and P-20 stakeholders to
design the program;

Planning for the Computer Science 
Teaching Minor has been underway since 
Summer 2016. Department of Education 
and School of Computing faculty and 
administrators have met routinely to better 
understand the need for the program, 
discuss the role the minor will play in 
preparing Montana educators to teach 
Computer Science, and build the cross-
college interdisciplinary curriculum. The 
proposal was then approved by the 
relevant curriculum committee within each 
academic unit before being submitted to 
the Board of Regents as a Level I proposal.  

This process has been verified through 
collaboration with statewide partners. 
Further, the computer science teaching 
minor has the support from departmental, 
college, and university leadership as 
verified by Montana Board of Regents 
approval as well as 
Northwest Commission on Colleges and 
Universities (NWCCU). 

(c) implements, assesses, and evaluates
the programꞌs impact on the identified P-
12 needs;

Success of the program will make of the 
already well-established MSU Teacher 
Education Program Performance 

This process has been verified through 
collaboration with statewide partners. 
Further, the computer science teaching 



EPP Report – Approval of New Curricular Programs 
Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.58.802  

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

ÍARM 10.58.802 Approval of New 
Curricular Programs 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE INSTITUTION 
Description Verification 

Assessment System (PAS). The PAS is 
used to collect and analyze data relevant to 
all current teaching majors and minors. 
Data sources are far reaching, and include 
multiple sources relevant to student 
performance, as well as stakeholder input.  
This same system would provide the 
primary mechanism for measurement of 
the proposed Computer Science Teaching 
Minor. If success is not met, data-driven 
remedial action regarding program 
curriculum and implementation would be 
take place, guided by those data collected 
through the PAS. 

minor has the support from departmental, 
college, and university leadership as 
verified by Montana Board of Regents 
approval as well as 
Northwest Commission on Colleges and 
Universities (NWCCU). 

(d) submits regular and systematic
reports of the programꞌs impact on P-12
education to the state superintendent and
the Board of Public Education; and

Data collected for the Teacher Education 
Program Performance Assessment System 
(PAS) will be provided to the state 
superintendent and the Board of Public 
Education as required. Those data 
comprise both knowledge-based 
assessments, as well as performance-
based assessments. Specific knowledge-
based measures include academic 
performance in required course work 
(course grades and scores on Signature 
Assignments), PRAXIS II scores specific to 
the content area of the teaching license, 

This process has been verified through 
collaboration with statewide partners. 
Further, the computer science teaching 
minor has the support from departmental, 
college, and university leadership as 
verified by Montana Board of Regents 
approval as well as 
Northwest Commission on Colleges and 
Universities (NWCCU). 



EPP Report – Approval of New Curricular Programs 
Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.58.802  

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

ÍARM 10.58.802 Approval of New 
Curricular Programs 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE INSTITUTION 
Description Verification 

and the Teacher Work Sample (TWS). The 
TWS is a research-focused product all 
student teachers must complete during 
both practicum and student teaching and is 
an analytical reflection of a five-lesson 
sequence. Performance based 
assessments include both a midterm and 
final Performance Assessment that is 
aligned to the Danielson Framework for 
Teaching. 

(e) updates and maintains program
information on its Web page.

Once approved, the program information 
will be added to the appropriate 
Department of Education web resources. 

This will be verified during the 
department’s systematic web content 
checks and updates.  

(3) The provider:

(a) articulates initial or advanced
candidatesꞌ learning expectations
pursuant to ARM Title 10, chapter 58,
subchapters 3, 5, 6, and 7;

The adopted Administrative Rules of 
Montana 10.58.528 Computer Science 
teaching specific standards, were used as 
the foundation for the computer science 
teaching minor intended learning 
outcomes. Those standards have been 
adapted to demonstrate what students will 
know, be able to do, and value or 

This process has been verified through 
collaboration with statewide partners. 
Further, the computer science teaching 
minor has the support from departmental, 
college, and university leadership as 
verified by Montana Board of Regents 
approval as well as 
Northwest Commission on Colleges and 
Universities (NWCCU). 



EPP Report – Approval of New Curricular Programs 
Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.58.802  

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

ÍARM 10.58.802 Approval of New 
Curricular Programs 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE INSTITUTION 
Description Verification 

appreciate because of completing the 
program. 

(b) aligns learning expectations and
outcome assessments to the program
objectives;

(c) describes the professional learning
process, plan, and timeline to prepare
personnel;

The minor will rely on the already-
established Teacher Education Program 
Performance Assessment System (PAS).  
The PAS is an electronic database system 
composed of a set of assessments 
maintained by our Assessment 
Coordinator, and serves as the basis for 
our annual cycle of continuous 
improvement by providing sound data for 
decision-making regarding areas of 
program development. Over the course of 
the academic year, the PAS is used to 
systematically collect, aggregate, and 
analyze data regarding the qualifications, 
knowledge, and performance of our Pre-
Education Students and Teacher 
Candidates as well as program outcomes. 

This process has been verified through 
collaboration with statewide partners. 
Further, the computer science teaching 
minor has the support from departmental, 
college, and university leadership as 
verified by Montana Board of Regents 
approval as well as 
Northwest Commission on Colleges and 
Universities (NWCCU). 

(d) establishes assessment and
evaluation systems to collect, analyze,
use, and report initial or advanced
candidateꞌs progress in the program;

The minor will rely on the already-
established Teacher Education Program 
Performance Assessment System (PAS).  
The PAS is an electronic database system 
composed of a set of assessments 
maintained by our Assessment 
Coordinator, and serves as the basis for 

This process has been verified through 
collaboration with statewide partners. 
Further, the computer science teaching 
minor has the support from departmental, 
college, and university leadership as 
verified by Montana Board of Regents 
approval as well as 



EPP Report – Approval of New Curricular Programs 
Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.58.802  

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

ÍARM 10.58.802 Approval of New 
Curricular Programs 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE INSTITUTION 
Description Verification 

our annual cycle of continuous 
improvement by providing sound data for 
decision-making regarding areas of 
program development. Over the course of 
the academic year, the PAS is used to 
systematically collect, aggregate, and 
analyze data regarding the qualifications, 
knowledge, and performance of our Pre-
Education Students and Teacher 
Candidates as well as program outcomes. 

Northwest Commission on Colleges and 
Universities (NWCCU). 

(e) ensures that the program is supported
by identifiable human and physical
resources available to the program and
resources not under the control of the
institution shall be outlined and confirmed
by the Board of Public Education;

Current Department of Education and 
Gianforte School of Computing facilities, 
equipment, space, laboratory space, and 
computers are sufficient for the successful 
implementation of the Computer Science 
Teaching Minor.  Students who work 
toward the Computer Science Teaching 
Minor will already be education majors, and 
required to complete Education courses 
like EDU 370 and EDU 397 regardless of 
their minor in Computer Science. 
Therefore, the Department of Education’s 
current space and computers, like the 
Educational Technology learning laboratory 
in Reid Hall 425, will accommodate the 
increased need. If there is an increased 
use of those facilities due to the increase in 

This process has been verified through 
collaboration with statewide partners. 
Further, the computer science teaching 
minor has the support from departmental, 
college, and university leadership as 
verified by Montana Board of Regents 
approval as well as 
Northwest Commission on Colleges and 
Universities (NWCCU). 



EPP Report – Approval of New Curricular Programs 
Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.58.802  

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

ÍARM 10.58.802 Approval of New 
Curricular Programs 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE INSTITUTION 
Description Verification 

students enrolled in the Computer Science 
Teaching Minor, the Gianforte School of 
Computing and the Department of 
Education will apply for Equipment Fee 
Allocation Committee (EFAC) and 
Computer Fee Allocation Committee 
(CFAC) funds to support the purchase of 
the needed teaching resources. 

There are minimal new personnel needs to 
support the Computer Science Teaching 
Minor. Because students who enroll in the 
minor will already be from the Department 
of Education, and the Department of 
Education courses that are required for the 
minor are already part of the required 
coursework for all Education majors, there 
will be no impact on Education resources. 
For the Computer Science courses, there is 
enough capacity for the additional 15 
students we might enroll by Year 3 in CSCI 
127, CSCI 132, and CSCI 232. For CSCI 
107, the extra 15 students would require a 
roughly .25 GTA and a bigger room would 
be needed to accommodate the extra 15 
students. For the CSCI electives (e.g. CSCI 
215), a .5 FTE GTA would be needed. If 



EPP Report – Approval of New Curricular Programs 
Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.58.802  

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

ÍARM 10.58.802 Approval of New 
Curricular Programs 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE INSTITUTION 
Description Verification 

the new teaching minor does result in 
significant student growth, additional 
personnel to handle that growth will be 
acquired using the standard mechanisms 
that Montana State University has in place 
to respond to growth. 

(f) creates a timetable that includes:

(i) the program's proposed
implementation date;

(ii) the sequence of activities that will
occur;

(iii) selection and schedules of regular
and systematic intervals of candidate and
program evaluations; and

(iv) the approximate date for submitting
the program plan, timeline, and reports
for program approval to the appropriate
institutional officials and to the
Superintendent of Public Instruction; and

Fall 2019: Students begin formally enrolling 
in the CS teaching minor in the Fall 2019. 

Annual Assessment Process ‐ TEP 
• Data is collected each semester

from faculty in identified courses by
the  Teacher Education Program's
Assessment Coordinator and
housed in the Program Assessment
System database.

• Annually an assessment data team
consisting of faculty aided by
graduate student assistants
requests both raw data for all
students in the identified courses
and aggregated statistics by
program from the Assessment
Coordinator for that year's analysis.
The data team my chose to modify
or refine their requests as needed
each year.

This process has been verified through 
collaboration with statewide partners. 
Further, the computer science teaching 
minor has the support from departmental, 
college, and university leadership as 
verified by Montana Board of Regents 
approval as well as 
Northwest Commission on Colleges and 
Universities (NWCCU). 



 
EPP Report – Approval of New Curricular Programs  
Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.58.802  

 

 

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

ÍARM 10.58.802 Approval of New 
Curricular Programs 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE INSTITUTION 
Description Verification 

• The data team analyzes data for 
validity and reliability. Areas where  
established performance thresholds 
have not been met are highlighted. 

• The team provides reports for each 
of the programs in the Department 
of Education, as well as  other 
licensure areas in the Teacher 
Education Program housed in other 
departments. 

• Faculty in each program review the 
assessment results and make 
decisions, in coordination with other 
faculty and administration, on how to 
respond. If performance thresholds 
have not been met, possible 
responses include but are not limited 
to: 
>Gather additional data next year to 
verify or refute the result. 
>Identify and modify some aspect of 
the curriculum to fix the problem. 
>Modify the acceptable performance 
threshold if it is found to have been 
inappropriate. 
>Select or create a better 
assignment to assess the outcome. 



EPP Report – Approval of New Curricular Programs 
Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.58.802  

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

ÍARM 10.58.802 Approval of New 
Curricular Programs 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE INSTITUTION 
Description Verification 

• Faculty may choose to respond to
assessment results even if the
acceptable performance threshold
has been met.

• A summary of the year's
assessment activities and faculty
decisions will be developed.

(g) ensures that program evaluations
have definite provisions for performance
criteria and follow-up at specified
intervals and the evaluations:

(i) align to initial or advanced standards
pursuant to ARM Title 10, chapter 58,
subchapters 3, 5, 6, and 7; and
(ii) ensure continuous program
improvement by using data to inform
decisions that provide positive impact on
candidatesꞌ professional growth and on
program development.

The minor will rely on the already-
established Teacher Education Program 
Performance Assessment System (PAS).  
The PAS is an electronic database system 
composed of a set of assessments 
maintained by our Assessment 
Coordinator, and serves as the basis for 
our annual cycle of continuous 
improvement by providing sound data for 
decision-making regarding areas of 
program development. Over the course of 
the academic year, the PAS is used to 
systematically collect, aggregate, and 
analyze data regarding the qualifications, 
knowledge, and performance of our Pre-
Education Students and Teacher 
Candidates as well as program outcomes. 

This process has been verified through 
collaboration with statewide partners. 
Further, the computer science teaching 
minor has the support from departmental, 
college, and university leadership as 
verified by Montana Board of Regents 
approval as well as 
Northwest Commission on Colleges and 
Universities (NWCCU). 

(4) The provider shall establish and
administer the program and designate the

The minor will be administered through the 
Department of Education in collaboration 

This process has been verified through 
collaboration with statewide partners. 



EPP Report – Approval of New Curricular Programs 
Administrative Rules of Montana (ARM) 10.58.802  

  Montana Office of Public Instruction ▪ Elsie Arntzen, Superintendent ▪ January14, 2019 
Contact Person – Linda Vrooman Peterson 444-5726 or lvpeterson@mt.gov 

ÍARM 10.58.802 Approval of New 
Curricular Programs 

TO BE COMPLETED BY THE INSTITUTION 
Description Verification 

appropriate division, school, college, or 
department within the institution to act on 
all matters relating to such program, 
according to general institutional policies. 

with the School of Computing per general 
institutional policies. 

Further, the computer science teaching 
minor has the support from departmental, 
college, and university leadership as 
verified by Montana Board of Regents 
approval as well as 
Northwest Commission on Colleges and 
Universities (NWCCU). 

 (History: 20-2-114, MCA; IMP, 20-2-121 MCA; NEW, 1979 MAR p. 492, Eff. 5/25/79; AMD, 1984 MAR p. 831, Eff. 5/18/84; AMD, 
2007 MAR p. 190, Eff. 2/9/07; AMD, 2014 MAR p. 2936, Eff. 7/1/15.) 



EDU 497-40               COURSE INFORMATION Fall 2018 
Methods of Teaching Senior High Math Dr. Megan Wickstrom 
MW, 3:10 – 4:25 p.m. Office: Wilson 2-235 
Wilson Hall 1-133  Phone: 994-5026 
Paraprofessional field experience (lab section) Email: megan.wickstrom@montana.edu 

OFFICE HOURS: Wednesday 1-3, Thursday 2-3 or by appointment. 

PRE-REQUISITES:  EDU 382, twenty or more credits in subject area, and good standing in the 
Teacher Education Program. 

CATALOG DESCRIPTION:  Effective techniques in presenting materials and planning class 
activities (including lesson/unit).  Methods of teaching and evaluating algebra, geometry, 
trigonometry, probability/statistics; application of current mathematics education research and 
reading in the content area of mathematics.  Includes practicum experience. 

REQUIRED TEXT(S):  
• Brahier, Daniel J. (2016, 5th ed.); Teaching Secondary and Middle School Mathematics;

Pearson Education.
• Smith, Margaret S. & Stein, Mary Kay (2011); 5 Practices for Orchestrating Productive

Mathematics Discussions
• (2014) Principles to Actions: Ensuring Mathematical Success for All

SUPPLEMENTS:  Supplementary activities and readings will be posted to D2L/Brightspace, 
accessible on the Web, or provided by the instructor.  Some sources we may use: 
• Common Core State Standards for Mathematics (original format and Montana’s adaptation)

• Inside Mathematics at http://www.insidemathematics.org/
• Illustrative Mathematics at https://www.illustrativemathematics.org/

• National Council of Teachers of Mathematics:
• Principles and Standards for School Mathematics (2000)
• NCTM journals The Mathematics Teacher, Mathematics Teaching in the Middle School

PROFESSIONAL OPPORTUNITIES: 
1) I encourage you to join NCTM now at the student rate of $47.00.  You may apply online at

http://www.nctm.org/Membership/Membership-Options-for-Individuals/.
2) The annual meeting of the Montana Council of Teachers of Mathematics is in Billings,

October 18-19.  We'll discuss travel arrangements and how attendance might apply to this
course.

GOALS AND OBJECTIVES:  The overarching goal of this course is to advance your journey 
toward becoming an exemplary mathematics teacher. In this course you will acquire a deeper 
understanding of what it means to “do” mathematics both as teacher and as learner; develop 
effective practices in the “art” of mathematics teaching; and situate yourself in the profession of 
mathematics teaching. Specifically you will: 

1) engage in tasks of teaching such as identifying worthwhile content, designing meaningful
lessons, using appropriate assessment, applying research-based instructional strategies,
and attending to standards for teaching and learning mathematics;

2) interact with traditional and contemporary teaching materials and resources;



3) explore traditional and contemporary perspectives on mathematics education;
4) become acquainted with the broader mathematics education community; and
5) develop, assess, and reflect upon your own teaching skills.

ASSIGNMENTS will vary in their purpose and complexity and include day-to-day formative 
tasks, standards-related projects, explorations in teaching, and summative assessments.  

Formative tasks (30 pts) may be in-class or online, and are used to assess progress, guide 
instruction, and encourage steady attendance, participation, and effort. They may include:  

• Warm-ups such as math exercises or reading summaries
• Quizzes over mathematics content, text readings, and other assignments
• Homework assignments based on in-class mathematics activities or other current work

Standards-related projects include: 
• One online tasks exploring CCSS and Web-based resources (15 pts)
• Three praxis papers based on rich problems and instructional scenarios (45 pts)
• Two classroom research projects based on your practicum experience (30 pts)

Explorations in teaching are related to "real life" professional experiences. These include: 
• Three-day lesson plan (30 pts)
• Three-day lesson assessment (20 pts)
• Modeling lesson plan and analysis (40 pts)

Summative assessments allow you to showcase your accumulated knowledge. They include: 
• Writing a professional paper outlining your views on important mathematics content,

best teaching practices in mathematics, and your role as a mathematics educator (30 pts)
• Writing a SCK paper on one mathematical topic (20 pts)
• Completing a mathematical menu as a final exam (30 pts)

COURSE ASSESSMENT:  Assignments will generally be evaluated on a rubric-based point 
system.  Course performance will be weighted as follows: 

Formative tasks 30 points (10%) 
Standards-related projects 90 points (30%) 
Explorations in teaching 90 points (30%) 
Summative assessments 90 points (30%) 
TOTAL 300 

Course grades will be assigned as follows: A = 90-100%, B = 80-89%, C = 70-79%, D = 60-
69%.  Plus and minus grades are assigned at the instructor’s discretion within two percentage 
points of cutoff. 

FINAL THOUGHTS: Your enthusiastic participation is highly valued!  Please come ready to 
share and discuss what you’ve read, written, observed, and experienced each day.  I sincerely 
hope this course will strengthen and broaden your skill set for teaching and affirm your choice to 
pursue mathematics education. The art of teaching and the nature of mathematics are constantly 
changing; therefore, view your years of teacher preparation not as a finite experience so much as 
the first leg of a continuous journey.  Enjoy the trip! 

Additional Notes: Attendance, Active Participation, and Professionalism 



Attendance. Attendance is mandatory and essential for your success in this course. Even one 
absence impacts your opportunity to learn and three or more absences is considered excessive. 
Excessive absences may result in your instructor filing a Student Consultation Form with the 
Department of Education. All exams are to be taken when scheduled and assignments are due 
when indicated. Exceptions must be arranged and discussed with your instructor in advance. I 
also expect that you notify me of absences in advance whenever possible. 

Although we understand that there are legitimate reasons for absences, not all legitimate reasons 
will be considered “excused.” Think of what will be expected of you as a teacher after 
graduation. Your school must be able to depend on you to report to class on time every day. As a 
future teacher, we want you to have a similar attitude about your learning and to exhibit the traits 
of a good teacher. Reasons for an absence being “excused” would be similar to reasons for a 
teacher to be absent that do not lead to a loss of pay. One certainly would be excused if illness 
makes it inappropriate to attend class (e.g. your physician tells you not to go to class) but 
excessive absence because of illness is frowned upon both at work and in the classroom. 
Similarly, attending a professional meeting or working at the district office on curriculum issues 
would be excused as will missing class to participate in a school activity whose schedule is set 
by MSU (e.g. intercollegiate athletics). Note that make-up work may be required even when 
absences are excused. These reasons are different from a situation where, for example, your car 
breaks down on the way to campus. We would consider that an understandable reason for being 
absent – after all, life happens – but it would not constitute an “excused” absence. Missing class 
to attend a family social function would be understandable, but not excused. If you have any 
questions about whether a possible absence is excused, please discuss it with me.  

Active Participation. The ability to actively contribute to learning environments is a critical 
component of the professional, behavioral, and social competencies you need to develop as 
prospective teachers. Active participation is important because class discussions and activities 
are an essential part of the learning process in this course. Your mathematical ideas are important 
and contribute to your own and to your classmates’ learning. Active participation is expected 
and includes attending class on time, regularly presenting material, asking questions both of 
your instructor and your peers, and staying on task and contributing to both whole class and 
small group discussions.  

In support of a productive learning environment, we ask that you: 
● Arrive on time
● Complete all assignments to the best of your ability prior to the start of class
● Ask individual questions of instructors during office hours or via email
● Use class time efficiently, both when participating in small group discussions and class

discussions
● Participate actively by regularly taking your turn presenting material to your peers
● Participate actively by asking questions of both your instructor and your peers
● Be respectful of others who are taking a risk by presenting material to the class
● Ask for help when you need help

In support of a productive learning environment, we ask that you do not: 
● Text or use phones during class. If you must make or receive a call or text, please step

into the hall.
● Work on homework or activities from other courses
● Engage in side conversations during instruction or when your colleagues are sharing their

ideas



● Arrive late or leave early (except when prearranged with the instructor)

Thank you, in advance, for adhering to these guidelines. Please don’t hesitate to contact your 
course instructor with any questions or concerns. We look forward to a great semester!  

Communication & Other Information 
Email/D2L Policy 
I expect that you will check your D2L every weekday for class announcements, new items, 
emails, etc.  

Americans with Disabilities Act. If you have a documented disability and would like to discuss 
academic accommodations, please contact me before the third week of class.  

Behavioral Expectations 
Montana State University expects all students to conduct themselves as honest, responsible and 
law-abiding members of the academic community and to respect the rights of other students, 
members of the faculty and staff and the public to use, enjoy and participate in the University 
programs and facilities. For more information about university conduct guidelines, see the Code 
of Student Conduct. 
http://www.montana.edu/policy/student_conduct/student_conduct_update/index.html - 
studentrespon 

Professional Expectations for Prospective Teachers 
The mathematics department takes the preparation of teachers very seriously and expect students 
to do the same. We expect all students to demonstrate communication, intellectual, professional, 
behavioral, and social competencies as outlined in the document, “Professional Expectations for 
Prospective Teachers.” If we feel that you are not meeting expectations as outlined in the 
document, we will ask you to meet with us to discuss and file a Student Consultation Form 
with the Department of Education. For a complete description of these expectations, see this 
syllabus or to the webpage below. 
http://www.montana.edu/education/documents/advising/grievance/Professional-
ExpectationsFall10.pdf 

Testing Center Hours (In the case of a make-up test or Redo) 
M-TH from 9:00 AM – 3:00 PM in Wilson Hall and closed on Friday
You must have an ID with you and will not be allowed to use your cell phone as a calculator

Disaster Preparedness 
Our Rally Point is the corner of 8th and Cleveland, by the parking lot. 

• Earthquake: Duck, cover, and hold until the shaking stops. Then head to Rally
Point.

• Fire Alarm: Evacuate whether there is smoke and/or fire or not. Head to Rally Point.
• Gunshots/Criminal Activity: If at all possible, get out and get away. Don’t linger at

Rally Point. If you absolutely can’t get out, lock the door and shelter in place.

Academic Integrity 



Collaboration 
Students are expected to collaborate on work in this class, but all work turned in must be 
completed by the individual receiving a grade. You should discuss your ideas, discuss 
mathematical questions, and exchange completed problems for feedback with classmates. You 
must not copy solutions from classmates or others or use mathematical work that is not your 
own. If you are unsure about the degree of collaboration that is acceptable, please ask the 
professor for clarification. Cheating will not be tolerated. Academic misconduct will result in a 
minimum penalty of a grade of F on the assignment. 
Plagiarism 
Paraphrasing or quoting another’s work without citing the source is a form of academic 
misconduct. Even inadvertent or unintentional misuse or appropriation of another's work (such as 
relying heavily on source material that is not expressly acknowledged) is considered plagiarism. 
If you have any questions about using and citing sources, you are expected to ask for 
clarification. 
Academic Misconduct 
Section 420 of the Student Conduct Code describes academic misconduct as including but not 
limited to plagiarism, cheating, multiple submissions, or facilitating others’ misconduct. Possible 
sanctions for academic misconduct range from an oral reprimand to expulsion from the 
university.  
Academic Expectations 
Section 310.00 in the MSU Conduct Guidelines states that students must:  

A. be prompt and regular in attending classes;
B. be well prepared for classes;
C. submit required assignments in a timely manner;
D. take exams when scheduled;
E. act in a respectful manner toward other students and the instructor and in a way that does

not detract from the learning experience; and
F. make and keep appointments when necessary to meet with the instructor.

In addition to the above items, students are expected to keep a positive attitude toward 
learning, to ask questions if they are struggling, and to behave as professional teachers in 
training.   
Disposition Expectations 
The mathematics department takes the preparation of teachers very seriously. As such, we expect 
pre-service teachers to treat their preparation with the same level of seriousness. We expect the 
following dispositions toward teaching and learning within the classroom. If we feel that you 
have not met expectations as outlined in the professional expectations document, we reserve the 
right to file a concern form with the education department.  

• Collaboration: The ability to work together, especially in joint intellectual effort.

• Honesty/Integrity: The ability to demonstrate truthfulness to oneself and to others;
demonstrate moral excellence and trustworthiness.

• Respect: The ability to honor, value, and demonstrate consideration and regard for
oneself and others.

• Reverence for Learning: Respect the seriousness of the intent to acquire knowledge.

• Emotional Maturity: The ability to adjust one’s emotional state to a suitable level of
intensity in order to remain engaged with one’s surroundings.

• Reflection: The ability to review, analyze, and evaluate the success of past decisions in
an effort to make better decisions in the future.



• Flexibility: The ability to adapt and change.

• Responsibility: The ability to act independently, demonstrating accountability,
reliability, and sound judgment.



1  

 
 

EDDU 497 
Middle & Secondary Science Teaching Methods 

Instructor: Michael J. Brody 
office: 138 Reid Hall 
phone: 994-5951 
email: brody@montana.edu 

 

Class Meeting: M & W 12:10 – 1:30 
 

Dr. Brody' s Schedule 
 

Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday 
_______________________________________________________________  
9 
_____________________________________________________________ 
10 EDCI 506 EDCI 506 EDCI 506 EDCI 506 EDCI 506 
_______________________________________________________________ 
11 EDCI 506 Office Hour EDCI 506 Office Hour EDCI 506 
_______________________________________________________________ 
12 EDSD 497 EDSD 497 
_______________________________________________________________ 
1 EDSD 497 EDSD 497 
_______________________________________________________________ 
2 EDCI 575 Office Hour EDCI 575 Office Hour EDCI 575 
_______________________________________________________________ 
3 EDCI 575 Dept. Meet EDCI 575 Office Hour EDCI 575 
_______________________________________________________________ 

 
 
 
Important Books in AJM 121: 

 

A Sourcebook for the Biological Sciences 
Earth Science Curriculum Activities Kit 
Hands-On Earth Science Activities 
Invitations to Science Inquiry 
Hands on Physics Activities 
Chemical Demonstrations vol. 1 
Chemical Demonstrations vol. 2 
Idea Bank Collation vol. 1 



2 

Content of EDU 497 
Secondary Science Teaching 

The course is made up of sections, each of which requires a variable amount of 
time. Some parts of these are individual study, others are more structured and formal. 
Several major themes such as constructivism, learning theory, science process skills, 
structure of scientific disciplines, assessment, lab safety and computer applications will 
be presented throughout the course. These will help form linkages between the various 
units and assignments. As an advanced learner you will be given a great deal of 
independence in your learning about science teaching. 

If there was one thing to make very clear it would be that in this class we are going 
to try and help you learn the importance of moving from a dogmatic, teacher centered, 
information transfer approach to teaching science to a student centered approach 
emphasizing the role of the student in constructing knowledge and negotiating new 
science meaning with other learners and the teacher. This approach is based on the 
inherent inquiry processes upon which all science is built. This is the logical  
outgrowth of our college's emphasis on constructivism as the foundation of teaching   
and learning. This is a formidable task since most of our science background is based in 
old behaviorist paradigms and we have only one course in your entire career to affect  
the desired change. We will try to help you understand the importance of this transition. 
Please be open to new ways of thinking and critical of your science education training. 
We hope to help you become an effective teacher for what most educators believe is an 
exciting but different future career in education. 

Second, we will emphasize ref lect ive teaching as a way for you to constantly 
improve your education practices through out your career. The class is designed for you 
to learn skills and grow into a perspective that empowers you to make intelligent 
decisions about teaching and learning. This approach should inevitably lead to self- 
reliance and confidence in your ability to continually improve as a teacher. Along with it 
comes the anxiety of having to make decisions on your own, accepting the fact that 
nobody is perfect and be able to give and take constructive criticism will help you 
become a better teacher. 



3 

STANDARDS IN SCIENCE FOR BEGINNING TEACHER 
LICENSING AND DEVELOPMENT 

The teacher of science understands the central ideas, tools of inquiry, 
applications, structure of science and of the science disciplines he or she teaches 
and can create learning activities that make these aspects of content meaningful 
to students. 

The teacher of science understands how students learn and develop and can 
provide learning opportunities that support students’ intellectual, social, and 
personal development. 

The teacher of science understands how students differ in their approaches to 
learning and creates instructional opportunities that are adapted to diverse 
learners. 

The teacher of science understands and uses a variety of instructional strategies 
to encourage students' development of critical thinking, problem solving, and 
performance skills. 

The teacher of science uses an understanding of individual and group motivation 
and behavior to create a learning environment that encourages positive social 
interaction, active engagement in learning, and self-motivation. 

The teacher of science uses knowledge of effective verbal, nonverbal and media 
communication techniques to foster active inquiry, collaboration, and supportive 
interaction in the classroom. 

The teacher of science plans instruction based upon knowledge of subject matter, 
students, the community, and curriculum goals. 

The teacher of science understands and uses formal and informal assessment 
strategies to evaluate and ensure the continuous intellectual, social and physical 
development of the student. 

The teacher of science is a reflective practitioner who continually evaluates the 
effects of his/her choices and actions on others (students, parents, and other 
professionals in the learning community) and who actively seeks out 
opportunities to grow professionally. 

The teacher of science fosters relationships with school colleagues, parents, and 
agencies in the larger community to support students' learning and well being. 



4 

Major Assignments 

Unit 1 .  An Overv iew of Sc ience Educat ion, Profess iona l L iterature and 
Giv ing a Lecture 
This section is designed as a starter in the course, during it you will be introduced 

to educational techniques such as concept mapping and writing in the subject area. 
Specific objectives and requirements will be provided through handouts and discussion. 
An introductory library assignment will be completed. Students will give a lecture/demo 
in class and construct a concept map in their subject area. 

The teacher of sc ience understands the centra l ideas, tools of inqu iry, 
app l icat ions, structure of sc ience and of the sc ience d isc ip l ines he or 
she teaches and can create learn ing act iv it ies that make these aspects 
of content mean ingfu l to students. 

Unit 2 .  Inqu iry- Based Learn ing & The Sc ience Learn ing Laboratory 
In this section we will review scientific inquiry, laboratory procedures and science 

process skills. Practical laboratory safety skills will be emphasized. A laboratory file, Vee 
analysis, materials inventory and safety check will be made. In addition, you will 
participate as a member of a small group and conduct a mini laboratory for the class. 

The teacher of sc ience understands and uses a var iety of instruct iona l 
strateg ies to encourage students' deve lopment of cr it ica l th ink ing, 
problem so lv ing, and performance sk i l ls . 

Teachers of science understand that the nature of science, how students develop and 
learn, and the variety of experiences and interests that students bring to class all drive 
the selection of science activities that focus on understanding important ideas, inquiry 
and application. Teachers strive to create a balance between a variety of instructional 
approaches. Teachers of science know that whether reading a text, studying a research 
article, designing an investigation, organizing data on a computer, defending an idea or 
presenting conclusions during an exhibition, students can focus on science 
understanding, inquiry and application. 

Unit 3 .  Organ izat ion and Design of Curr icu lum for Sc ience Instruct ion 
This section will include the design of lesson unit plans for middle level and high 

school science teaching. The instructional format is primarily independent study. Please 
be advised that this is very time consuming and must be started early in the course. 
Several class periods will be provided to assist in the completion of curriculum units. 
New approaches to science teaching are encouraged. 

The teacher of sc ience p lans instruct ion based upon knowledge of 
subject matter, students, the community , and curr icu lum goals. 

Unit 4 .  M icroteach ing 
You will microteach a self-contained lesson exhibiting specific teaching skills. These 

may include: visual aids, handouts, questioning, demonstrations or computer 
applications. Self eva luat ion and peer eva luat ion of your m icroteach ing are an 
important part of this unit. 



5 

Selected Learning Outcomes 

1. develop inquiry strategies as learners and teachers of science,
2. understand science in the context of secondary curriculum; scope, sequence, content and

terminology,
3. understand how science integrates with other disciplines,
4. examine, compare and critique textbooks, curriculum, resource materials and trade books

for use in the classroom,
5. learn science content particularly as it relates to content integration,
6. become aware of personal knowledge, skills and attitudes in relation to science teaching,
7. understand the nature of science and especially science process skills,
8. learn and practice laboratory safety skills,
9. appreciate how social and cultural influences (including gender) affect our understanding of

science
10. learn new skills such as performance assessment, concept mapping, Vee diagram and

cooperative learning strategies and
11. be actively involved in the transition from student learning to teacher thinking and acting.
12. apply Native American concepts and examples to Science instruction

Inclusion	

Montana	State	University	considers	the	diversity	of	its	students,	faculty,	and	staff	to	be	a	strength	and	
critical	to	its	educational	mission.	MSU	expects	every	member	of	the	university	community	to	
contribute	to	an	inclusive	and	respectful	culture	for	all	in	its	classrooms,	work	environments,	and	at	
campus	events.	Dimensions	of	diversity	can	include	sex,	race,	age,	national	origin,	ethnicity,	gender	
identity	and	expression,	intellectual	and	physical	ability,	sexual	orientation,	income,	faith	and	non-faith	
perspectives,	socioeconomic	status,	political	ideology,	education,	primary	language,	family	status,	
military	experience,	cognitive	style,	and	communication	style.	The	individual	intersection	of	these	
experiences	and	characteristics	must	be	valued	in	our	community.	If	there	are	aspects	of	the	design,	
instruction,	and/or	experiences	within	this	course	that	result	in	barriers	to	your	inclusion	or	accurate	
assessment	of	achievement,	please	notify	the	instructor	as	soon	as	possible	and/or	contact	Disability	
Services	or	the	Office	of	Institutional	Equity 



6 

Throughout the course the following topics will be developed: 

Teaching Strateg ies 

Within the science classroom, or any classroom, there is the opportunity to use a 
number of different teaching strategies. Most strategies chosen by teachers are based 
on their preferred teaching/learning styles. The emphasis throughout the course is to 
make the student more familiar with some of the teaching options available in the 
science classroom. 

F ie ld Exper iences 

The purpose of the practicum is to enhance your methods course. It allows you to 
work with a middle or high school teacher in your content area while studying methods 
of science instruction. It is the real life experience that is essential for your learning. 
The practicum is designed to help you transition to student teaching. 

Grading Policy 

Your work will be evaluated using point values: 

1) Content & Overview (I) 10 
2) Inquiry & Laboratory (II) 20
3) Organization of Curriculum (III) 30
4) Microteaching (IV) 10
5) self evaluation of performance 5

7) Twenty five points are assigned by instructor for class attendance and class
participation including being on time for class, cooperation and positive contributions to
classroom activities.

If you choose to turn in late assignments, point value will be lost unless there are prior 
excused extenuating circumstances. 



7 

Major Themes of EDU 497 
Constructivism, the active construction of knowledge by the learner, 
guides the process of science teaching and learning. 

Science Knowledge is constructed by people based on the accepted science 
content (concepts, principles, theories and philosophies of various science 
disciplines) and science process skills (questioning, observation, data 
collection, etc.) within the specific scientific domain. 

Science Learning depends on the existing knowledge of the student 
(which is influenced by gender, culture, society, etc.), individual learning 
style and developmental level. 

Accepted Science Standards, from national to local, guide curriculum, 
teaching, learning and assessment. 

Science Teaching should be based on constructivist principles including: 
the active engagement of the learner, interdisciplinary approaches, positive 
attitudes of mind and relevance to the learner. This includes emphasis on 
Laboratory Safety. 

Science Teaching Strategies should actively engage the learner in the 
construction of new knowledge that is based on the integration of new 
knowledge with existing knowledge and relevant application in the real 
world. These strategies include both individual and group work and 
student centered approaches with the teacher acting as a facilitator. 

Effective science teaching is based on Intelligent Planning. This includes 
annual, semester, unit and daily planning. 

Assessment is a routine part of every lesson and is integral to teacher and 
student learning. This includes both traditional and alternative assessment 
approaches. 



ã 2019 Nicholas Lux 1 

EDU 498 (1-Credit) 
Digital Learning Internship 

Spring 2020 
Instructor: Dr. Nicholas Lux  Ph: 994-6581 
Email: nicholas.lux@montana.edu Office: Reid 209 
Office Hours: TBA (and by appointment) 

COURSE DESCRIPTION 
The Digital Learning Internship is a course focused on supporting pre-service teachers’ conceptualization, 
design, and implementation of digital learning with specific focus on computer science and computational 
thinking concepts and instruction. A secondary intent of the course is to consider how the use of digital tools 
can enhance teaching and learning at various levels of integration. A third focus of this is on the integration 
of computer science content into students’ practicum experience.  

During the internship, students will develop a computer science/computational thinking unit in which they will 
specifically contend with integrating CS concepts across a unit relevant to their practicum experience. In 
addition, students will consider how technology might be used to address in that balanced literacy unit the 
principles of universal design for learning to give all individuals equal opportunities to learn. 

LEARNING OUTCOMES 
• Students will develop effective and practical strategies for the meaningful integration of computer

science and computational thinking to support the instructional process
• Students will develop effective and practical strategies for the meaningful integration of computer

science and computational thinking to promote and model the safe, effective, and ethical use of
computer hardware, software, peripherals, and networks

• Students will purposefully and deliberately integrate technology within the accompanying computer
science/computational thinking unit

• Students will use technology within computer science/computational thinking unit to specifically
target digital literacy through the lens of their specific major (e.g. math or science education)

• Students will integrate technology to address the core principles of universal design for learning and
to address key digital citizenship concepts

CLASS MEETING TIME: 
Online 

REQUIRED RESOURCES 
Supplemental readings, videos, and resources will be provided via D2L as needed. 

ACADEMIC EXPECTATIONS  
Students in this course are expected to adhere to the conduct guidelines as presented in the MSU Student 
Conduct Code. The full conduct code can be found at: 
www2.montana.edu/policy/student_conduct/cg600.html 

OVERVIEW OF MAJOR ASSIGNMENTS  
Over the course of the semester, students will engage in the following assignments: 

1) Technology Integration Project: Balanced Literacy Unit (50 points)
2) Final Reflection (50 points)

COURSE ASSIGNMENTS 
Requirements Points 

Possible 
Technology Integration Project: computer science/computational thinking Unit 50 
Final Reflection 50 
TOTAL POINTS POSSIBLE 100 



ã 2019 Nicholas Lux 2 

COURSE SCHEDULE 
Due to the dynamic nature of the collaborative cohort model at Hyalite, EDU 498 students must remember 
that this schedule itself must remain flexible and dynamic. Therefore, we ask for your understanding as it is 
adjusted over the course of the semester.  

ASSIGNMENT DUE DATE 
Computer science/computational thinking unit TBD 
Final Reflection TBD 

SPECIFIC ASSIGNMENT DETAILS 
Although a considerable amount of the work you complete for the 1-credit technology internship will be 
rooted in practical application of the theories and tools we explore when we periodically meet, several 
assignments will be used to document your learning as you put those ideas into practice. 

1) TECHNOLOGY INTEGRATION PROJECT: COMPUTER SCIENCE/COMPUTATIONAL THINKING
UNIT (100 POINTS)

The primary focus of your work for the EDU 498 Technology Internship will focus on building in purposeful, 
deliberate, and intentional technology into the computer science/computational thinking unit you will be 
completing for the accompanying methods course. In other words, your efforts will focus on considering how 
you might use computer science/computational thinking in a targeted manner within that unit. 

This work will include four primary additions to the computer science/computational thinking unit: 
1) General Technology Integration Overview
2) Computer science/computational thinking concepts to be addressed
3) Technology Integration/UDL in four of the lessons you will develop for the unit
4) Purposeful Use of Technology Reflection

In addition, your instructor will provide a series of screencast videos that should be watched. These 
screencasts will provide you with an overview of the assignment, as well as considerations that should be 
made when building in the technology components into the computer science/computational thinking unit. 

Assignment specifics can be found in D2L. 

2) FINAL REFLECTION PROJECT

Length: Less than 5 pages (Double-spaced) 

The intent of the final paper is to encourage a critical reflection about how you see technology supporting 
teaching and learning, and in particular, supporting your computer science/computational thinking instruction. 
To that end, your response paper should be clear and substantive, and articulate when, where, and why you 
think technology should be integrated to support teaching and learning in computer science/computational 
thinking.  

Assignment specifics can be found in D2L. 



2/28/2019 CSCI 107, Fall 2018

https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/ 1/2

CSCI 107: The Joy and Beauty of Computing
Fall 2018

Date Python Topic Computing Topic Graded Events

08.27  
08.29  
08.31

Course Introduction  
Python Introduction 
Python Introduction

Anyone Can Learn Video  
Growth Mindset  

Computer Science Demographics (p. 19)

   
   
 

09.03  
09.05  
09.07

Labor Day - No Classes!  
Python Introduction 
Simple Python Data

   
Stereotype Threat  
Unconscious Bias

   
   

Assignment 1

09.10  
09.12  
09.14

Simple Python Data  
Simple Python Data  

Turtle Graphics

Brotopia  
   

Fortnite

   
   

Assignment 2

09.17  
09.19  
09.21

Turtle Graphics  
Turtle Graphics  
Turtle Graphics

Twitch  
   

Donna Dubinsky, CEO of Numenta

   
   

Assignment 3

09.24  
09.26  
09.28

Practice Practicum  
Practice Practicum Solutions 

Take Practicum

College of Engineering ePals  
Grace Hopper Conference  

 

   
   

Practicum 1

10.01  
10.03  
10.05

Course Survey Functions  
Return Practicum  

Functions

Laws of Technology  
   

Software Developer Scarcity

   
   

Assignment 4

10.08  
10.10  
10.12

Functions  
Modules  
Modules

5G Networks  
   

Laura Orvidas, CEO of onX

   
   

Assignment 5

10.15  
10.17  
10.19

Debugging Interlude 
Selection  
Selection

Social Media Disinformation  
   

MSU Computer Science Degrees

   
   

Assignment 6

10.22  
10.24  
10.26

Practice Practicum  
Practice Practicum Solutions  

Take Practicum

   
Spring Registration  

 

   
   

Practicum 2  

10.29  
10.31  
11.02

Return Practicum  
More About Iteration, Assignment 7  

More About Iteration

NSF Big Ideas Video  
   

Chris Nelson, CEO of Zoot Enterprises

   
   

Assignment 7

11.05  
11.07  
11.09

More About Iteration 
More About Iteration 

Recursion

Civility  
   

Nobel Prize Winner Uses Python

   
   
 

11.12  
11.14  
11.16

Veteran's Day - No Classes!  
Recursion  

Work on Assignment 8

   
oSTEM Conference  

 

   
   

Assignment 8

11.19  
11.21  
11.23

Recursion  
Thanksgiving - No Classes!  
Thanksgiving - No Classes!

Atlas Robot, Drywall Robot  
   
 

   
   
 

11.26  
11.28  
11.30  

Strings  
Strings, Survey  

Strings

ACM Code of Ethics  
   

AI Code of Ethics

   
   

Assignment 9

12.03  
12.05  
12.07

Assignment 9, Assignment 10  
Practice Practicum  

Practice Practicum Solutions

Uber ATG  
   
 

   
   

Assignment 10

12.11 Take Practicum 8:00 a.m. - 9:50 a.m. in Linfield 301 Practicum 3

Meeting Times
Monday, Wednesday, Friday from 2:10 p.m. - 3:00 p.m. in Linfield 301.

Instructor

https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/bSo2
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/OJEN
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/intro-1.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/intro-2.html
https://code.org/
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=KUWn_TJTrnU
https://cra.org/wp-content/uploads/2018/05/2017-Taulbee-Survey-Report.pdf
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/I4xW
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/IuaC
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/intro-3.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/data-1.html
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=nGEUVM6QuMg
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NW5s_-Nl3JE
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/assignments/hw1/
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/YfUG
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/MTsv
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/mBQ5
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/data-2.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/data-3.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/turtle-1.html
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=P6TgE_Ktk7U
https://www.theguardian.com/games/2018/mar/07/fortnite-battle-royale-parents-guide-video-game-multiplayer-shooter
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/assignments/hw2/
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/T6gr
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/EsPQ
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/turtle-2.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/turtle-3.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/turtle-4.html
https://www.lifewire.com/what-is-twitch-4143337
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Donna_Dubinsky
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/assignments/hw3/
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/BLrr
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/practicum-1.html
http://www.coe.montana.edu/epals/index.html
https://ghc.anitab.org/
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/jOxh
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/qgbx
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/zNna
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/survey.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/functions-1.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/functions-2.html
https://www.wsj.com/articles/the-6-laws-of-technology-everyone-should-know-1511701201?mod=djmc_pkt_ff
https://www.cnbc.com/2018/09/06/companies-worry-more-about-access-to-software-developers-than-capital.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/assignments/hw4/
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/BNei
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/EZRR
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/functions-3.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/modules-1.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/modules-2.html
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=2DG3pMcNNlw
https://www.snewsnet.com/press-release/amazon-veteran-takes-the-reins-as-onx-ceo
https://www.onxmaps.com/
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/assignments/hw5/
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/fteo
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/BxQc
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/JSY2
http://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/succeed.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/decisions-1.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/decisions-2.html
https://medium.com/stanford-magazine/where-does-fake-news-come-from-65c06d5f94c7
http://catalog.montana.edu/undergraduate/engineering/computer-science/
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/assignments/hw6/
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/fuie
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/practicum-2.html
http://www.montana.edu/registrar/registration.html
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/Xzar
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/ualb
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/iteration-1.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/iteration-2.html
https://www.nsf.gov/news/mmg/mmg_disp.jsp?med_id=81537
https://mthightech.org/zoot-celebrates-25-years-single-dad-turned-software-pioneer-created-hundreds-of-high-tech-jobs-in-bozeman/
https://zootsolutions.com/
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/assignments/hw7
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/Cl40
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/fb9r
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/bEwW
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/iteration-3.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/iteration-4.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/recursion-1.html
https://www.ted.com/talks/christine_porath_why_being_nice_to_your_coworkers_is_good_for_business
https://qz.com/1417145/economics-nobel-laureate-paul-romer-is-a-python-programming-convert/
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/neml
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/recursion-2.html
https://www.ostem.org/conference-2018
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/assignments/hw8
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/6oWA
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/recursion-3.html
https://www.boston.com/news/local-news/2018/10/15/boston-dynamics-atlas-parkour-video
https://techcrunch.com/2018/10/01/watch-this-humanoid-robot-install-drywall/
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/8T0F
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/fS9h
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/dU0N
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/strings-1.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/strings-2.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/survey/index.php
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/strings-3.html
https://www.acm.org/code-of-ethics
https://www.technologyreview.com/s/612318/establishing-an-ai-code-of-ethics-will-be-harder-than-people-think/
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/assignments/hw9
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/NANF
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/uuxb
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/lectures/practicum-3.html
https://www.uber.com/info/atg/
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/assignments/hw10


2/28/2019 CSCI 107, Fall 2018

https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/ 2/2

John Paxton
Office Hours: Monday, Friday from 3:10 p.m. to 4:00 p.m., Wednesday from 10:00 a.m. to 10:50 a.m. and by appointment.
Office: Barnard Hall 353
E-Mail: john DOT paxton AT montana DOT edu

Course Assistants

Brendan Kristiansen
Availability for Assistance: Monday from 4:10 p.m. until 5:00 p.m., Thursday from 2:10 p.m. until 4:00 p.m. and by appointment.
Location: Barnard Hall 259
E-Mail: brendan DOT kristiansen AT ecat1 DOT montana DOT edu

Christian Marquardt (Wednesday and Friday lectures)
Availability for Assistance: Wednesday from 9:00 a.m. until 9:50 a.m. and by appointment.
Location: Barnard Hall 259
E-Mail: christian AT marquardt AT ecat1 DOT montana DOT edu

Justin McGowen (Monday and Wednesday lectures)
Availability for Assistance: Thursday from 1:30 p.m. until 3:00 p.m. and by appointment.
Location: Barnard Hall 259
E-Mail: justin DOT mcgowen AT ecat1 DOT montana DOT edu

Kyle Webster (Monday and Friday lectures)
Availability for Assistance: Tuesday from 10:00 a.m. until 10:50 a.m. and by appointment.
Location: Barnard Hall 259
E-Mail: kyle DOT webster AT ecat1 DOT montana DOT edu

Other Help

Computer Science Success Center
Smarty Cats Tutoring

Additional Course Information
Last modified: December 7, 2018.

http://cs.montana.edu/paxton
http://www.cs.montana.edu/student-success-center.html
http://www.montana.edu/aycss/success/smartycats/index.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/joy-and-beauty/logistics.html


2/28/2019 CSCI 127

https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/ 1/3

CSCI 127: The Joy and Beauty of Data
Spring Semester 2019

Syllabus
Date Lecture Topic Computing Topic

Wednesday, January 9
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/uft0) 
Thursday, January 10  
Friday, January 11 (materials/jan11.py)

Data Types (lectures/Intro/SimpleData/) 

Turtle Graphics
(lectures/Intro/TurtleGraphics/)

Gamifying Work (https://www.fastcompany.com/90260703/th
side-of-gamifying-work)

Monday, January 14
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/ZuLC)  
Wednesday, January 16
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/qCDq) 
Thursday, January 17  
Friday, January 18
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/Nk7E)

Turtle Graphics Events
(lectures/Intro/TurtleGraphics/events.html)
Functions (lectures/Intro/Functions/)  

Selection (lectures/Intro/Selection/)
Donald Knuth
(https://www.nytimes.com/2018/12/17/science/donald-knuth
computers-algorithms-programming.html?
action=click&module=Top%20Stories&pgtype=Homepage)

Monday, January 21  
Wednesday, January 23
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/mWht)
Thursday, January 24  
Friday, January 25
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/jgeq)

Martin Luther King Day - No Class! 
Iteration (lectures/Intro/Iteration/)  

Modules (lectures/Intro/Modules/) CRISPR (https://spectrum.ieee.org/biomedical/diagnostics/so
helps-gene-editing-tool-crispr-live-up-to-its-hype)

Monday, January 28
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/xRqc)  
Wednesday, January 30
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/InZ2) 
Thursday, January 31 
Friday, February 1
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/E5GB)

Strings (lectures/Intro/Strings/)  
Recursion (lectures/Intro/Recursion/) 

Lists (lectures/Lists/lists-1.html) Deep Learning
(https://www.forbes.com/sites/bernardmarr/2018/10/01/what
deep-learning-ai-a-simple-guide-with-8-practical-
examples/#23c3d1a58d4b)

Monday, February 4
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/1dUb)  
Wednesday, February 6
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/qDM6)
Thursday, February 7  
Friday, February 8
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/uNP8)

Lists (lectures/Lists/lists-2.html) 
Lists (lectures/Lists/lists-3.html) 

Review (lectures/Practicums/P1/) DeepMind AlphaStar
(https://www.engadget.com/2019/01/24/deepmind-ai-starcra
demonstration-tlo-mana/)

Monday, February 11 
Wednesday, February 13
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/agv7)  
Thursday, February 14 
Friday, February 15
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/wK19)

Practicum 1  
Practicum Solution 

Files (lectures/Files/files-1.html) How Bitcoin Works (https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bBC
nXj3Ng4)

Monday, February 18  
Wednesday, February 20
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/6O5H)
Thursday, February 21  
Friday, February 22
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/mrJh)

President's Day - No Class!  
Files (lectures/Files/files-2.html) 

Files (lectures/Files/files-3.html) Smart Stores
(https://www.theatlantic.com/technology/archive/2019/01/wa
tests-new-smart-coolers/581248/)

https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/uft0
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/materials/jan11.py
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Intro/SimpleData/
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Intro/TurtleGraphics/
https://www.fastcompany.com/90260703/the-dark-side-of-gamifying-work
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/ZuLC
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/qCDq
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/Nk7E
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Intro/TurtleGraphics/events.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Intro/Functions/
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Intro/Selection/
https://www.nytimes.com/2018/12/17/science/donald-knuth-computers-algorithms-programming.html?action=click&module=Top%20Stories&pgtype=Homepage
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/mWht
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/jgeq
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Intro/Iteration/
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Intro/Modules/
https://spectrum.ieee.org/biomedical/diagnostics/software-helps-gene-editing-tool-crispr-live-up-to-its-hype
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/xRqc
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/InZ2
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/E5GB
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Intro/Strings/
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Intro/Recursion/
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Lists/lists-1.html
https://www.forbes.com/sites/bernardmarr/2018/10/01/what-is-deep-learning-ai-a-simple-guide-with-8-practical-examples/#23c3d1a58d4b
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/1dUb
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/qDM6
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/uNP8
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Lists/lists-2.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Lists/lists-3.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Practicums/P1/
https://www.engadget.com/2019/01/24/deepmind-ai-starcraft-ii-demonstration-tlo-mana/
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/agv7
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/wK19
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Files/files-1.html
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=bBC-nXj3Ng4
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/6O5H
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/mrJh
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Files/files-2.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Files/files-3.html
https://www.theatlantic.com/technology/archive/2019/01/walgreens-tests-new-smart-coolers/581248/


2/28/2019 CSCI 127

https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/ 2/3

Date Lecture Topic Computing Topic

Monday, February 25
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/3Bc6)  
Wednesday, February 27 [1]
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/Kjut),
[2]
(https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/KnR9) 
Thursday, February 28  
Friday, March 1

Dictionaries (lectures/Dictionaries/day-
1.html)
Dictionaries (lectures/Dictionaries/day-
2.html)

Dictionaries (lectures/Dictionaries/day-
3.html)

Microsoft Culture (https://qz.com/work/1539071/how-microso
satya-nadella-rebuilt-the-company-culture/)

Monday, March 4  
Wednesday, March 6 
Thursday, March 7  
Friday, March 8

Object Oriented Basics
(lectures/OOP/day-1.html) 
Object Oriented Basics
(lectures/OOP/day-2.html) 

Object Oriented Basics
(lectures/OOP/day-3.html)

Computational Thinking (https://www.seattletimes.com/educa
lab/student-voices-why-all-kids-need-to-learn-computer-scie

Monday, March 11  
Wednesday, March 13 
Thursday, March 14  
Friday, March 15

More Object Orientation (lectures/OOP-
2/day-1.html)  
More Object Orientation (lectures/OOP-
2/day-2.html)  

More Object Orientation (lectures/OOP-
2/day-3.html)

Chinese Romance Video Games
(https://www.wired.co.uk/article/china-love-games)

Monday, March 18  
Wednesday, March 20 
Thursday, March 21  
Friday, March 22

Spring Break - No Class! 
Spring Break - No Class! 
Spring Break - No Class! 
Spring Break - No Class!

Monday, March 25  
Wednesday, March 27 
Thursday, March 28  
Friday, March 29

Review (lectures/Practicums/P2/) 
Practicum 2  

Practicum Solution TBA

Monday, April 1 
Wednesday, April 3 
Thursday, April 4 
Friday, April 5

NumPy Module
(lectures/Numeric/day1.html) 
NumPy Module
(lectures/Numeric/day2.html) 

NumPy Module
(lectures/Numeric/day3.html)

TBA

Monday, April 8  
Wednesday, April 10 
Thursday, April 11  
Friday, April 12

matplotlib Module
(lectures/Plot/day1.html) 
matplotlib Module
(lectures/Plot/day2.html) 

matplotlib Module
(lectures/Plot/day3.html)

TBA

Monday, April 15  
Wednesday, April 17 
Thursday, April 18  
Friday, April 19

pandas Module
(lectures/pandas/day1.html) 
pandas Module
(lectures/pandas/day2.html) 

University Day - No Class!

https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/3Bc6
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/Kjut
https://montana.techsmithrelay.com/KnR9
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Dictionaries/day-1.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Dictionaries/day-2.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Dictionaries/day-3.html
https://qz.com/work/1539071/how-microsoft-ceo-satya-nadella-rebuilt-the-company-culture/
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/OOP/day-1.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/OOP/day-2.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/OOP/day-3.html
https://www.seattletimes.com/education-lab/student-voices-why-all-kids-need-to-learn-computer-science/
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/OOP-2/day-1.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/OOP-2/day-2.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/OOP-2/day-3.html
https://www.wired.co.uk/article/china-love-games
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Practicums/P2/
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Numeric/day1.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Numeric/day2.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Numeric/day3.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Plot/day1.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Plot/day2.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Plot/day3.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/pandas/day1.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/pandas/day2.html


2/28/2019 CSCI 127

https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/ 3/3

Additional Information (more.html)
Last modified: February 27, 2019.

Date Lecture Topic Computing Topic

Monday, April 22  
Wednesday, April 24 
Thursday, April 25  
Friday, April 26

pandas Module
(lectures/pandas/day3.html)  
scikit-learn Module
(lectures/Learning/day1.html) 

Review (lectures/Practicums/P3/)

TBA

Friday, May 3 Final Practicum, 8:00 a.m. - 9:50 a.m.

https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/more.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/pandas/day3.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Learning/day1.html
https://www.cs.montana.edu/paxton/classes/csci127/lectures/Practicums/P3/


CSCI 132 : More Information 
 

Resources 
Syllabus  
 
Textbook :  
Data Structures and Algorithms in Java  
6th edition, Goodrich, Tamassia, Goldwasser  
Available at the MSU Bookstore 

Java API (Oracle): 
http://www.oracle.com/technetwork/java/api-141528.html 
 

D2L (aka Brightspace) — tracks assignments, grading, notes, etc. 
https://ecat1.montana.edu/ 

Downloads 
Java JDK  
http://www.oracle.com/technetwork/java/javase/downloads/index.html 

Please use one of the following IDEs for your labs and projects: 

Eclipse:  
https://www.eclipse.org/downloads/ 

Netbeans:  
http://www.oracle.com/technetwork/java/javase/downloads/jdk-netbeans-jsp-
142931.html 

Catalog Information 
CSCI 132. Basic Data Structures and Algorithms. 4 Credits. (3 Lec, 1 Lab) 
PREREQUISITE: CSCI 111 or CSCI 127 and M 151Q. An examination of 
advanced Java and basic data structures and their application in problem 
solving. Data structures include stacks, queues and lists. An introduction to 
algorithms employing the data structures to solve various problems including 



searching and sorting, and recursion. Understanding and using Java class 
libraries. The laboratory uses Java. Introduces Big-O Notation. 

Course Outcomes 
By the end of this course, students should be be able to: 

• Design and implement a class in Java
• Explain the concept of an ADT
• Implement linked lists, stacks, queues, and deques
• Apply consistent documentation and program style standards in Java
• Be able to determine the time complexity of simple algorithms

Graded Items 
15% Exam 1  
15% Exam 2  
20% Final Exam; The final will not be given early.  
25% Labs (the "in-lab" assignments are generally one or two hour 
programming exercises. They take place during time assigned by section, and 
proctored by TAs)  
25% Projects (out-of-lab programming assignments that take longer than 
inlabs) 

IMPORTANT: To pass the course, you must average a score of at least 50% 
on the exams. It is not possible to pass the course with an average of 49% on 
the exams and 100% on all the labs.  

Policies 
Grading 

At the end of the semester, grades will be determined (after any curving takes 
place) based on your class average as follows: 

• 93+: A
• 90+: A-
• 87+: B+
• 83+: B
• 80+: B-
• 77+: C+



• 73+: C 
• 70+: C- 
• 67+: D+ 
• 63: D 
• 60: D- 

Lateness 

Assignment with due dates attached to them are due at the assigned time, 
and will not be accepted late for credit. You may speak with the TA/grader for 
your section regarding exceptional cases, but the policy is that the work must 
be done by the time assigned. 

A really good idea is to regard the due date for an assignment as a hard 
extreme, and set your own "soft" due date a day or two earlier. 

Collaboration 

For the lab potion of this course, you may talk together with other students 
about approaches or specific details of a class or method.  However, you are 
to do your own design, implementation, and coding of the labs and projects 
unless expressly told otherwise. Students in violation of this policy are subject 
to charges of academic dishonesty, an "F" for the course and being reported 
to the Dean of Students. 

Conduct Guidelines and Grievance Procedures for Students: 

http://www2.montana.edu/policy/student_conduct 

MSU Policy and Procedures Manual  

http://www2.montana.edu/policy 

Last modified: January 3, 2019 
 



CSCI 215: Social and Ethical Issues in 
Computer Science 
Spring 2019 

Meeting Times 
• Lecture: Tues-Thurs, 3:05:3:55 pm, Gaines 243 
• Recitations: varies based on your section 

Instructor 
• Dr. Mary Ann Cummings  

o E-mail: mary.cummings1@montana.edu 
o Phone: (406) 994-3547 
o Office Hours: Monday thru Friday 11:00-12:00pm, or by appointment. 

 Location: NORM 253C 

TA Information 

• Amy Peerlinck, Office hour: Wed, 12-1pm, email: 
amy.peerlinck@student.montana.edu 

Course Description 
The first part of this course is to explain what a career as a computer scientist is like.  It will 
introduce you to issues you will/may encounter as you work.  The second part of this course is to 
go over ethical issues in computer science that exist today.  We will use current news to frame 
our discussions. 
 
To determine if you are understanding these concepts, you will be writing papers that show you 
can apply or think through the concepts we are learning.  This course is very much about 
discussion and getting you to think through issues.  Think about this as a fun course that you will 
remember for the rest of your career.  
 

Books used 
• Optional: Ethics in a Computing Culture, by Bo Brinkman and Alton Sanders 
• Optional: Brotopia, by Emily Chang 
• Optional: Sticking Points by Haydn Shaw 



Course Outcomes 
At the end of this course, you should be able to: 

• Describe what it means to have a career in computer science
• Describe what it is like to work in a multi-generational work environment
• Describe issues with being a woman computer scientist
• Describe current ethical issues in computer science
• Describe examples of current ethical issues in computer science

Things to Know 
If you get sick and cannot make it to recitation or get your assignment in on time, you must 
contact me before recitation to discuss your options.  In order to have options, you must provide 
a note from a doctor/clinic.  Those who are participating in school sanctioned events also need to 
contact me before recitation or the assignment is due to discuss your options (will need a note 
from the school for this). 

Be respectful of your fellow students and me.  Do not talk to your class mates during class.  Do 
not use your phone during class. 

I will ask you to get in groups often to answer a question I pose. 

Changes from last semester: 

• I will look for up to 3 volunteers in class to discuss what they are to do in
recitation.  If you are picked, you will not have to go to recitation that week.

• The papers are now 2 pages long and will have a grading rubric that includes
content, organization, and presentation (grammar counts).

• You will need to discuss your recitation topic for 3 minutes (vice 2 minutes).
• We will do a lot of group discussion and then have the groups provide the results

of their talks.

Inclusive Learning Environment 
This classroom is a place where you will be treated with respect.  I welcome individuals of all 
ages, backgrounds, beliefs, ethnicities, genders, gender identities, gender expressions, national 
origins, religious affiliations, sexual orientations, ability – and other visible and nonvisible 
differences.  All members of this class are expected to contribute to a respectful, welcoming, and 
inclusive environment for every other member of this class.  



Grading 
• Participation/Attendance → 40% -  you need to attend recitation and you need to talk
• 7 assignments → 40%
• Final (group presentation) -> 20%

Each assignment is worth 100 points.  

Each week in recitation is worth 8 points.  You will receive 4 points for attending the recitation 
and 4 points for talking in class about the recitation item listed above for over 2 minutes.  If you 
talk for less than 2 minutes, you will (instead) receive 2 points.   

Each week, I will ask for up to 3 volunteers in class to talk about what you would have talked 
about in recitation.  If you are picked, then you don’t have to go to recitation that week. 

If you miss recitation, you must let me know ahead of time.  If you provide me a doctor’s note or 
a letter showing that you are away because of a MSU sponsored event, you get 4 points.  To get 
the other 4 points, I will ask you to write a 2 page paper on what you would have said in 
recitation.   

At the end of the semester, final grades will be determined as follows: 

• 93+: A
• 90+: A-
• 87+: B+
• 83+: B
• 80+: B-
• 77+: C+
• 73+: C
• 70+: C-
• 67+: D+
• 63: D
• 60: D-
•

Late Policy 
Assignments will be submitted through BrightSpace, and no late assignment is accepted. 
Exception will only be given to extreme cases, like a student being sick with a dr’s note.  In this 
case, the student must contact me before the due date/time in order to get a delay in the 
assignment.  

Collaboration Policy 



You must write your paper alone – no group participation. 

You will have a group project as the final project in the class. 

You may (unless otherwise noted)  

• Discuss your ideas with other people, but still have to write your solution by yourself.
• Use Internet resources, provided that a reference is given.

Failure to abide by these rules will result in everyone involved being reported to the Dean of 
Students and receiving an F for the course.  

Assignments 
All papers are be 2 pages in length.  You will be graded on technical content, organization, and 
presentation.   

Week/Date Lecture Topic Assignment 

1
10 January 

Course Overview, computer science jobs/careers 
No recitations Assignment 1 (due 1/15) 

2 
15 Jan 
17 Jan 

Myers Briggs and your personality type 
30 year plan  
Conflicts in views of what your job represents 
Security concerns 
Recitations: describe your Myers Briggs type and 
how you fit the MY/CS paper 

 Assignment 2 (due 1/22) 

3 
22 Jan 
24 Jan 

Brotopia 
Resumes 
Recitations: 30 year plan 

 Assignment 3 (due  1/29) 

4 
29 Jan 
31 Jan 

Multi-generational work environment: 
Recitations: read an article on Brotopia book and 
discuss an issue you found from the article 

 Assignment 4 (due 2/5) 

5
5 Feb 
7 Feb 

CS Issue: False Missile Alert  
Teaming/Agile development 
Recitations: generational discussions 

Assignment 5 (due 2/14) 

6 
12 Feb 
14 Feb 

Definition of ethical/moral and what it means in a 
society 
Recitations: research an agile software 
development process and describe something 



(issue, benefit) that you might see occurring in 
this type of environment 

7 
19 Feb 
21 Feb 

Ethical Issue - Intellectual and Intangible 
property 
Recitations: research the False Missile Alert 
beyond what we discussed in class and talk about 
that  

8 
26 Feb 
28 Feb 

Ethical Issue - artificial intelligence, autonomous 
systems, drones 
Recitations: discuss an example of an ethical 
issue with intellectual and intangible property 

9
5 Mar 
7 Mar 

Ethical Issues - privacy, censorship, freedom of 
speech and freedom of the press 
Recitations: discuss an example of an ethical 
issue with artificial intelligence, autonomous 
systems, drones 

10 
12 Mar 
14 Mar 

Ethical Issues – cyber bullying, social media 
Recitations: discuss an example of an ethical 
issue caused by technology regarding privacy, 
censorship, freedom of speech and freedom of 
the press 

11 
26 Mar 
28 Mar 

Ethical Issues – vulnerable groups, group 
discussions 
Recitations: discuss an example of with cyber 
bullying or ethical issue with social media 

Assignment 6 (due 4/2) 

12 
2 Apr 
4 Apr 

Ethical Issues – Trust, safety, and reliability 
Recitations: discuss an example of  ethical issues 
with vulnerable groups and computer technology 

Assignment 7 (due 4/16) 
Double points 

13 
9 Apr 
11 Apr 

Ethical Issues – Hacking, cyber attacks 
Recitations: discuss an example of  a trust, safety 
and reliability issue that has occurred recently 
with software 

14 
16 Apr 
18 Apr 

Teleworking 
Computer scientists vs engineers 
No recitations: prepare for group presentation 

15 
23 Apr 
25 Apr 

group presentations 
No recitations 

30 Apr NO FINAL – will meet to continue group 
projects 



2pm-
3:50pm 

Schedule, assignments and grade weights subject to change. 



CSCI 232: Data Structures and Algorithms 
Spring 2019 Syllabus 

 
 
Instructor: Dr. Brendan Mumey 

Email: brendan.mumey@montana.edu 
Office hours: Tue: 12:20 pm - 1:00 pm,  

Thu: 8:30 am - 10:20 am 
Barnard Hall 364 

 
TAs: Peter Ottsen 

Email: peter.k.ottsen@gmail.com  
Office hours: Mon: 9:00 am - 11:00 am (Barnard Hall 259) 

 
Mirpouya Mirmozaffari 
Email: m.mirmozaffari@gmail.com  
Office hours: Wed: 11:00 am - 1:00 pm (Barnard Hall 259) 

 
 
Lectures: Tue/Thu: 10:50 am - 12:05 pm, Reid Hall 108 
 
Labs: Fridays in Roberts Hall 111 
 
Resources 
 
Ecat (Brightspace): Used for class announcements and lab/hw submission, grades: 
 
https://ecat.montana.edu  
 
Google drive: Course documents such as the lecture schedule and homework will be 
stored in this google drive folder: 
 
https://drive.google.com/open?id=1sM-ha-Ythswthcft-o8jXkKutzL2TIp2  
 
Textbook 
 
Sedgewick and Wayne, Algorithms, Fourth Edition 
Textbook website: https://algs4.cs.princeton.edu/home/  
 
 
Course Outline 
 
The purpose of this course is to provide the students with solid foundations in the basic 
concepts of programming: data structures and algorithms. Students will learn how to 
select and design data structures and algorithms that are appropriate for computational 
problems. This course is also about comparing algorithms and studying their 

mailto:brendan.mumey@montana.edu
mailto:peter.k.ottsen@gmail.com
mailto:m.mirmozaffari@gmail.com
https://ecat.montana.edu/
https://drive.google.com/open?id=1sM-ha-Ythswthcft-o8jXkKutzL2TIp2
https://algs4.cs.princeton.edu/home/


performance and computational complexity. It offers students a mixture of theoretical 
knowledge and practical experience using Java. 

After the completion of this course students will have: 
● An understanding of different data structures that are suitable for specific

problems.
● An understanding of the design of algorithms based of different data structures.
● An understanding of algorithm complexity.
● The ability to implement data structures and algorithms.
● An understanding of paradigms for computational problem solving.
● An understanding of how common computational problems can be solved

efficiently.

Topics covered include: 
● Analysis of algorithms
● Priority queues and heaps
● Search trees
● Hash tables
● Graphs
● Minimum spanning trees

Lab Assignments 

There will be 4 lab assignments. You may work in groups of up to three students. You 
may submit your solution directly to the TA in lab or using ecat; if using ecat, only one 
person should submit, but the files should include the names of each group member. 

Homework Assignments 

There will be 3 homework assignments that must be done individually. Solutions must be 
submitted through ecat, i.e. email submissions are NOT acceptable. 

The deadline of each assignment (homework or lab)  will always be 11pm on the due 
date.  Late assignments will receive a grade of zero. 

Extensions 

If you have a documented illness preventing you from completing your assignments, you 
may request an extension prior to the deadline by sending email to Dr. Mumey. 
Extension is not automatic.  

Additional Resources 

CS Student Success Center (Barnard 254): 
http://www.cs.montana.edu/student-success-center.html 

http://www.cs.montana.edu/student-success-center.html


Grading Scheme 

Midterm 10% 
Final 20% 
Homework 30% 
Labs 40% 

Final course grades may be curved. 

Attendance Policy 

● Class attendance is not required, but it is strongly encouraged.
● Lab attendance is not required, but it is strongly encouraged.
● When a class/lab is missed, it is the student's responsibility to obtain

assignments and notes from classmates.

Special Accommodations 

A student in need of special accommodations must bring that need to my attention within 
the first two weeks of class. The need must be properly documented. 

Academic Misconduct 

You are expected to complete your own work in this class. Cheating on exams or lab 
exercises is not fair to students who are honestly studying.  Penalties for academic 
misconduct may include receiving a zero on an assignment or failing the course. 



ACTION 
 
 

ITEM 27 
 
 

CARROLL COLLEGE GOOD CAUSE 
EXTENSION PROPOSAL 

 
 

Dr. Linda Vrooman Peterson 
Dr. Robert Stansberry, Director of Teacher 

Education, Carroll College 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



Montana Board of Public Education 
Executive Summary 

Date: May 9-10, 2019 

Presentation Carroll College Proposal Requests a Two-year 
Good Cause Extension 

Presenter Linda Vrooman Peterson 
Office of Public Instruction 

Position Title Administrator 
Accreditation and Educator Preparation Division 

Overview This is a discussion item.  
This presentation by Dr. Robert Stansberry, 
Director of the Teacher Education Program (TEP) 
at Carroll College requests the BPE to consider a 
two-year Good Cause Extension of TEP’s site visit. 
The recent program prioritization of the education 
program and the final decisions recommended by 
the Carroll College President John Cech and 
approved the Board of Directors require significant 
curricular changes to the TEP. Dr. Stansberry 
outlines the TEP changes and future directions for 
Carroll College TEP including a teach-out plan for 
candidates who are enrolled in discontinued 
programs. 
Carroll College requests a two-year extension of 
the scheduled site visit in 2019 to 2021. 

Requested Decision(s) Discussion 

Related Issue(s) The Montana Board of Public Education and State 
Superintendent of Public Instruction maintain a 



 

 

 

 

seven-year accreditation cycle. For example, the 
rescheduled visit  will be based on the original 
Scheduled Visit. If the scheduled visit were to 
occur in 2019, then the next scheduled visit will 
occur in five years or in 2026. 
 

  

Recommendation(s) Discussion 
  



March 21, 2019 

TO: Linda Vrooman Peterson, Division Administrator, Educator Preparation 

FROM: Robert Stansberry, Director of Teacher Education and Department Chair 

RE: Good Cause Extension Request 

The Educator Preparation Program (EPP) at Carroll College is seeking a two-year extension for our term 

of accreditation.  Specifically, we request an extension of the scheduled site visit in spring 2019 until 

spring 2021. 

In accordance with CAEP Policy 6.06 and 6.02, the basis for this request includes substantive changes at 

Carroll College and in the EPP. 

Substantive Changes: 

1. Program Prioritization

Beginning fall, 2018, Carroll College embarked on a wide-ranging review and evaluation of all

academic and administrative programs throughout the college campus.  Data was used to generate

reports from each academic and administrative program and submitted throughout the month of

November.  Over 170 Program reports were submitted to two task force groups (academic and

administration) for review during December and January.  Recommendations to maintain programs,

to provide support and/or restructure programs in need, and to eliminate programs was presented to

the Board of Trustees on February 22, 2019 for action.  This review process has resulted in some

significant changes in the educator licensure programs offered by Carroll College and altered the

course of our accreditation work the remainder of this school year, as well as, the 2019-20 school

year.   Recommendations endorsed by the Board of Trustees in regard to the Teacher Education

Program are as follows:

Education Restructure:  Discontinue the following Secondary Education 
Majors/Minors to be restructured as Broadfield Majors: 

Effective 
Start 
Date 

• Integrate this program into the English Secondary Education Major:
English Literature Secondary Education Major (Discontinued)

Fall 
2019 

• Integrate these programs into a Broadfield Science Secondary Education
Major: Biology Secondary Education Major & Minor (Discontinued);
Chemistry Secondary Education Major & Minor (Discontinued); Physics
Secondary Education Minor (Discontinued)

Fall 
2019 



• Integrate these programs into the Broadfield Social Studies Secondary
Education Major: History Secondary Education Major & Minor
(Discontinued); History, Political Science, and Social Studies Secondary
Education Major (Discontinued); History, Political Science Secondary
Education Major (Discontinued); Political Science Secondary Education Major
(Discontinued); Psychology Secondary Education Minor (Discontinued)

Fall 
2019 

2. Changes in the General Education Requirements (Core):

After several years of work by the Core Committee, a proposal for a significant revision to the

General Education Requirements (Core) was presented to the Faculty Assembly in September, 2018.

After the faculty deliberated on the proposal during the fall, the new Core requirements were

presented to the Board of Trustees for review and approval.  Those new requirements were approved

at the February 22, 2019 meeting.  The new Core requirements will be implemented with the

incoming freshman class in fall, 2019.  Core requirements directly relate to the content knowledge

required by Elementary Education majors.  These changes will impact our accreditation work through

the implementation of the new Core in the 2019-20 school year.

3. Changes in Personnel

In summer, 2017, the long-time administrator of the EPP retired and a new administrator was hired to

begin in fall, 2017.  The transition from a program administrator who had worked at Carroll for 30+

years has created a steep learning curve for the new administrator as the EPP works toward the

accreditation visit.  In addition, the overall staffing of the EPP has been reduced by one faculty

member since the 2012 accreditation visit.

4. Revision of Program

With the change of administrators, the EPP is also revising the manner in which data is collected and

analyzed.  Beginning in the fall, 2018, the EPP will be revising evaluations and collecting data in an

online format.  Postponing the accreditation visit to spring, 2021 will allow the EPP to fully refine the

data collection system and have 5 full semesters of data from this evaluation system for review and

analysis.



 
 

 Montana Office of Public Instruction Adapted March 2018 
Updated July 2017 
 

 
Good Cause Extension Request Form 

Completed by Educator Preparation Provider (EPP)  
 

EPP:                     

Requested By (Name and Title): 

 

Contact Information (e-mail): 

 

Scheduled Visit Semester:  

 

Scheduled Visit Type (e.g. Continued, First):  

 

Requested New Visit Semester: 

 

Requested Length of Extension:  

___ one semester    ___ one year   ___two years 

 

The Montana Board of Public Education and State Superintendent of Public Instruction maintain 
a 7-year accreditation cycle. The semester of the visit following a rescheduled visit will be based 
on the original Scheduled Visit Semester, e.g., Scheduled visit, spring, 2019. 
 

Programs selecting the Special Professional Association (SPA) review option with National 
Recognition will be scheduled to submit the initial SPA review reports three years prior to the final 
approved site visit date. See the CAEP Accreditation Handbook for details. 
 

Basis for Requesting a Good Cause Extension*: 
__ State or federal standards or legislation requiring significant programmatic change. 

__ Substantive changes –see CAEP Accreditation Policy 6.02: Substantive Changes link below. 
 http://caepnet.org/~/media/Files/caep/accreditation-resources/accreditation-policy.pdf?la=en  

__ Other extenuating circumstances such as, an Act of God, natural disaster, or civil unrest, please explain. 
 

*The Superintendent of Public Instruction reserves the right to approve or deny requests for Good 
Cause Extension. The EPP must provide sufficient justification to demonstrate need for an 
extension. The OPI reserves the right to adjust the length of the extension based on the nature of 
the request. 
 

Submit this completed form along with: 
EPP Rationale: The EPP leadership explaining the basis for the request. 
 
 
 

Submit GCE documentation via email to: 

  lvpeterson@mt.gov 

http://caepnet.org/~/media/Files/caep/accreditation-resources/accreditation-policy.pdf?la=en


ACTION 

ITEM 28 

INITIAL INVESTIGATION OF BPE CASE 
#2019-07, TURCOTTE 

Rob Stutz, Agency Legal Services 



ACTION 

ITEM 29 

APPEAL OF LICENSURE DENIAL, BPE CASE 
#2019-08, MURPHY 

Rob Stutz, Agency Legal Services 



ACTION 

ITEM 30 

APPEAL OF LICENSURE DENIAL, BPE CASE 
#2019-06, BEALE 

Rob Stutz, Agency Legal Services 



EXECUTIVE SESSION – CLOSED 

ITEM 31 

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR PERFORMANCE 
EVALUATION 

Dr. Darlene Schottle 



FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

July 11-12, 2019 

Strategic Planning Meeting 
CSPAC/BPE Joint Meeting 

CSPAC Annual Report 
Annual HiSET Report 

Annual Special Education Report 
Assessment Update 

Federal Update 
Educator Preparation Program Report 

Accreditation Report 


	Financials.pdf
	ORG Bud by OBPP Prog,Fund,Subcl

	2019 BPE Calendar.pdf
	Mar 19
	Apr 19
	May 19

	c. Medicine Lake  HS Corrective Plan  Timeline.pdf
	Binder1.pdf
	7-8 action plan
	Please select the county, district and school for which you are submitting€ a plan.
	D1. Select the assurance or student performance area where the school received a deviation.
	D1. Indicate the school's plan to remedy the deviation selected above:
	Do you have another deviation to address for this school?
	D2. Select the assurance or student performance area where the school received a deviation.
	D2. Indicate the school's plan to remedy the deviation selected above:
	Do you have another deviation to address for this school?
	D3. Select the assurance or student performance area where the school received a deviation.
	D3. Indicate the school's plan to remedy the deviation selected above:
	Do you have another deviation to address for this school?

	Action Plan HS
	Please select the county, district and school for which you are submitting€ a plan.
	D1. Select the assurance or student performance area where the school received a deviation.
	D1. Indicate the school's plan to remedy the deviation selected above:
	Do you have another deviation to address for this school?
	D2. Select the assurance or student performance area where the school received a deviation.
	D2. Indicate the school's plan to remedy the deviation selected above:
	Do you have another deviation to address for this school?


	Binder2.pdf
	Elem Action Plan
	Please select the county, district and school for which you are submitting€ a plan.
	D1. Select the assurance or student performance area where the school received a deviation.
	D1. Indicate the school's plan to remedy the deviation selected above:
	Do you have another deviation to address for this school?



	Copy of FTE history for BOPE.pdf
	Detail Summary

	ADPC3DF.tmp
	Total Page

	May BPE 2019 EXPENDITURE TO APPROPRIATIONS.pdf
	Sheet1

	n CSCI 215 Spring 2019 Syllabus.pdf
	CSCI 215: Social and Ethical Issues in Computer Science
	Spring 2019
	Meeting Times
	Instructor
	TA Information
	 Amy Peerlinck, Office hour: Wed, 12-1pm, email: amy.peerlinck@student.montana.edu
	Course Description
	Books used
	Course Outcomes
	At the end of this course, you should be able to:
	 Describe what it means to have a career in computer science
	 Describe what it is like to work in a multi-generational work environment
	 Describe issues with being a woman computer scientist
	 Describe current ethical issues in computer science
	 Describe examples of current ethical issues in computer science
	Things to Know
	If you get sick and cannot make it to recitation or get your assignment in on time, you must contact me before recitation to discuss your options.  In order to have options, you must provide a note from a doctor/clinic.  Those who are participating in...
	Be respectful of your fellow students and me.  Do not talk to your class mates during class.  Do not use your phone during class.
	I will ask you to get in groups often to answer a question I pose.
	Changes from last semester:
	 I will look for up to 3 volunteers in class to discuss what they are to do in recitation.  If you are picked, you will not have to go to recitation that week.
	 The papers are now 2 pages long and will have a grading rubric that includes content, organization, and presentation (grammar counts).
	 You will need to discuss your recitation topic for 3 minutes (vice 2 minutes).
	 We will do a lot of group discussion and then have the groups provide the results of their talks.
	Inclusive Learning Environment
	This classroom is a place where you will be treated with respect.  I welcome individuals of all ages, backgrounds, beliefs, ethnicities, genders, gender identities, gender expressions, national origins, religious affiliations, sexual orientations, abi...
	Grading
	Late Policy
	Collaboration Policy





